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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (D) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006

Commission File No. 001-14793

First BanCorp.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Puerto Rico 66-0561882
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)

1519 Ponce de Lén Avenue, Stop 2:¢
Santurce, Puerto Rico 00908
(Address of principal office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:

(787) 7298200

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of thie Ac

Common Stock ($1.00 par value)

7.125% Noncumulative Perpetual Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series A (Liquidation Preference 35 per share)
8.35% Noncumulative Perpetual Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series B (Liquidation Preference #6 per share)
7.40% Noncumulative Perpetual Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series C (Liquidation Preference @6 per share)
7.25% Noncumulative Perpetual Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series D (Liquidation Preference &b per share)
7.00% Noncumulative Perpetual Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series E (Liquidation Preference &b per share)

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of thie Ac

NONE
Indicate by check mark if the registrant isell known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleod®e Securities Act. Ye&I No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant i$ remuired to file reports pursuant to Section 13®(d) of the Act. YeEl No ™

Indicate by check mark whether the regist(apthas filed all reports required to be filed byc8on 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiech shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti@gs. Yedd No ™

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delieqt filer pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation Sskhot contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowdedlg definite proxy or information statements irmmarated by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.

Indicate by check mark whether the registiqatlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated files non-accelerated filer (as defined in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Large Accelerated Fildd Accelerated Fildz Non-Accelerated Filéd

Indicate by check mark whether the registimat shell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act). Yed No M



The aggregate market value of the voting comstock held by nonaffiliates of the registranb&dune 30, 2006 (the last day of the
registrant’s most recently completed second quantas $766,412,000 based on the closing price &8er share of common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange on June 30, 2006 (see Not&low).

The number of shares outstanding of the negiss common stock, as of December 31, 2006 was:

Common stock, par value $1.00 — 83,254,056

Note 1-The registrant had no nonvoting commguity outstanding as of June 30, 2006. In calndahe aggregate market value of the
common stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrapgistrant has treated as common stock heldfthiates only common stock of the
registrant held by its principal executive offi@rd voting stock held by the registrant’'s emplolyeeefit plans. The registrant’s response to
this item is not intended to be an admission thgtgerson is an affiliate of the registrant for gnyposes other than this response.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

As a result of the delay in completing Firstnl®orp’s (or the “Corporation”) amended Annual Répa Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004, which included the restatemiethteoCorporation’s audited financial statementstii@ years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, and the unaudited selected quaftealycial data for each of the quarters of 200d 2003, First BanCorp was unable to
timely file with the Securities and Exchange Consitie (“SEC”) this Annual Report on Form 10-K ané tQuarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2007, Sepé&z 30, 2006, June 30, 2006, March 31, 2006, 8d@e 30, 2005 and June 30, 2005. For
information regarding the restatement of First BampG previously issued financial statements, seeGorporation’s Amendment No. 1 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A (“Amended 2004 FormK0) for the year ended December 31, 2004, whicls filad with the SEC on
September 26, 2006. The Annual Report on Form I6rkkhe year ended December 31, 2005 (the “200:FA®-K), was filed with the SEC
on February 9, 2007.
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Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains “forward-lookistatements” within the meaning of the Private SéesrLitigation Reform Act of 1995.
When used in this Form 10-K or future filings bystiBanCorp with the Securities and Exchange Comsionis in the Corporation’s press
releases or in other public or shareholder comnatioigs, or in oral statements made with the apprafvan authorized executive officer, the
word or phrases “would be,” “will allow,” “intend®,” “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “shdd,” “anticipate” and similar expressions
are meant to identify “forward-looking statements.”

First BanCorp wishes to caution readetsam place undue reliance on any such “forwarddlog statements,” which speak only as of
the date made, and represent First BanCorp’s exjpats of future conditions or results and areguarantees of future performance. First
BanCorp advises readers that various factors araude actual results to differ materially from #hosntained in any “forward-looking
statement.” Such factors include, but are not &ahito, the following:

. risks associated with the Corporaf's inability to prepare and timely submit regulatéilings;
. the Corporatio’s ability to attract new clients and retain exigtones

. general economic conditions, including prevailintprest rates and the performance of the findntéakets, which may affect
demand for the Corporation’s products and senacgisthe value of the Corporation’s assets, inclydlie value of the interest rate
swaps that hedge the interest rate risk mainlyingl/do brokered certificates of deposit and mec-term notes

. risks arising from worsening economic condition®irerto Rico

. risks arising from credit and other risks of lergland investment activitie

. changes in the Corporati's expenses associated with acquisitions and dispusi

. developments in technolog

. risks associated with changing the Corporé's business strategy to no longer acquire mortgaayeslin bulk
. risks associated with the ongoing SEC investiga

. the completion of the sale of shares of commorksim&ank of Nova Scotia, which is conditioned among other things, regulatc
approvals

. the ability to finalize the settlement of the shider litigation;

. the impact of Dor¢ s financial condition on its repayment of its oatgting secured loan to FirstBat
. risks associated with being subject to the ceadalasist order

. potential further downgrades in the credit ratiofthe Corporatio’s securities

. general competitive factors and industry consoiiaatand

. risks associated with regulatory and legislativandes for financial services companies in Puerto Rhe United States, and the |
and British Virgin Islands

The Corporation does not undertake, gedifically disclaims any obligation, to update d&fgrward-looking statements” to reflect
occurrences or unanticipated events or circumstaafter the date of such statements except asegigoy the federal securities laws.

Investors should carefully consider thiestors and the risk factors outlined under Itefn Risk Factors, in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Iltem 1. Business
GENERAL

First BanCorp (the “Corporation”) is a pubjiddwned financial holding corporation that is sutj® regulation, supervision and
examination by the Federal Reserve Board. The Qatipo was incorporated under the laws of the Commealth of Puerto Rico to serve as
the bank holding company for FirstBank Puerto Ri€drstBank”). The Corporation is a full serviceguider of financial services and
products with operations in Puerto Rico, the UniBates and the US and British Virgin Islands.

The Corporation provides a wide range of fiahservices for retail, commercial and institagb clients. As of December 31, 2006, the
Corporation controlled four wholly-owned subsidéari FirstBank Puerto Rico (“FirstBank” or the “BépkirstBank Insurance Agency, Inc.,
Grupo Empresas de Servicios Financieros (d/b/aFipBnce Group”) and Ponce General Corporation,(Iffance General”). FirstBank is a
Puerto Rico-chartered commercial bank, FirstBamskilance Agency is a Puerto Rico-chartered insuragency, PR Finance Group is a
domestic corporation and Ponce General is the gldompany of a federally chartered stock savisge@ation, FirstBank Florida.
FirstBank is subject to the supervision, examimatiod regulation of both the Office of the Commassir of Financial Institutions of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (“*OCIF”) and the Fetl®reposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC"). Dejtsre insured through the FDIC
Deposit Insurance Fund. Within FirstBank, theretaua separately regulated businesses: (1) the Wigiands operations; and (2) the Miami
loan agency. The U.S. Virgin Islands operationEicgtBank are subject to regulation and examinabipithe United States Virgin Islands
Banking Board, and the British Virgin Islands opinas are subject to regulation by the British Mirtslands Financial Services Commiss
FirstBank’s loan agency in the State of Florideeigulated by the Office of Financial Regulatiortleé State of Florida, the Federal Reserve
Bank of Atlanta and the Federal Reserve Bank of Nevk. As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation twddl assets of $17.4 billion, total
deposits of $11.0 billion and total stockholderguity of $1.2 billion.

FirstBank Insurance Agency is subject to thgesvision, examination and regulation of the Gffaf the Insurance Commissioner of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. PR Finance Group ligesti to the supervision, examination and regutatibthe Office of the Commissioner
of Financial Institutions of the Commonwealth ofele Rico. FirstBank Florida is subject to the suson, examination and regulation of
the Office of Thrift Supervision (the “OTS").

As of December 31, 2006, FirstBank conductetusiness through its main office located in 3zam, Puerto Rico, forty-eight full service
banking branches in Puerto Rico, fourteen branoh#®e United States Virgin Islands (USVI) and Btit Virgin Islands (BVI) and a loan
agency in Coral Gables, Florida (USA). FirstBanK faur wholly-owned subsidiaries with operations in Puerto Rikist Leasing and Rent
Corporation, a vehicle leasing and daily rental pany with eight offices in Puerto Rico; First Fealdfinance Corp. (d/b/a Money Expres:
Financiera), a finance company with thirty-nineia#t in Puerto Rico; First Mortgage, Inc., a restd# mortgage loan origination company
with thirty five offices in FirstBank branches aatistand alone sites; and FirstBank Overseas Catipor an international banking entity
organized under the International Banking Entity 8icPuerto Rico. FirstBank had two subsidiariethwaiperations outside of Puerto Rico;
First Insurance Agency VI, Inc., an insurance agemith four offices that sells insurance productshie USVI and First Express, a finance
company specializing in the origination of sma#ihe with four offices in the USVI.

Business combinations

On March 31, 2005, the Corporation complebtedacquisition of 100% of the outstanding commareas of Ponce General Corporation,
the holding company of FirstBank Florida (formeklyown as Unibank) and Ponce Realty. The purposiesofcquisition was to build a
platform in Florida from which to initiate furthexpansion into the United States. As of the actiorsdate, excluding the effect of purchase
accounting entries, Ponce General had approxim&get$.2 million in assets, $476.0 million in loamwmposed mainly of residential and
commercial mortgage loans amounting to approxing&éP5.8 million, commercial and construction loansounting to approximately
$28.2 million, consumer loans amounting to appratety $22.1 million and $439.1 million in depositie consideration consisted mainly
payments made to principal and minority sharehsldéiPonce General's outstanding common stockautisition date. This consideration
along with other direct acquisition costs and liéibs incurred led to a total acquisition costapproximately $101.9 million. The purchase
price resulted in a premium of approximately $3@iam that was mainly allocated to core deposiamgibles and goodwiill.

FirstBank Florida is a federally charteredckteavings association which is headquartered amhliFlorida (USA) and currently is the
only operating subsidiary of Ponce General. FiratBlorida provides a wide range of banking serwvie
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individual and corporate customers through its €iighnches in Florida (USA).

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Based upon the Corporation’s organizatiorraicstire and the information provided to the Chigke@ating Decision Maker and to a lesser
extent the Board of Directors, the operating segmare driven primarily by the legal entities. T®erporation has four reportable segments:
Commercial and Corporate Banking, Mortgage Bank@msumer (Retail) Banking and Treasury and Investm These segments are
described below:

Commercial and Corporate Banking

The Commercial and Corporate Banking segmemsists of the Corporation’s lending and otherises/for large customers represented
by the public sector and specialized and middleketaglients. The Commercial and Corporate Bankegnsent offers commercial loans,
including commercial real estate and constructd@am$, and other products such as cash managentebtusiness management services. A
substantial portion of this portfolio is secureddmmmercial real estate. Although commercial Idamslve greater credit risk because they
are larger in size and more risk is concentratedisingle borrower, the Corporation has and maistan effective credit risk management
infrastructure designed to mitigate potential Issagssociated with commercial lending, includingrsty underwriting and loan review
functions, sales of loan participations and corgirsimonitoring of concentrations within portfolios.

Mortgage Banking

The Mortgage Banking segment conducts itsatjwars mainly through FirstBank and its mortgaggionation subsidiary, FirstMortgage.
These operations consist of the origination, sateservicing of a variety of residential mortgagaris products. Originations are sourced
through different channels such as branches anthage and real estate brokers, and in associaitbmew project developers.
FirstMortgage focuses on originating residential estate loans, some of which conform to Fedeoaisihg Administration (“FHA”),
Veterans Administration (“VA”) and Rural DevelopmégRD”) standards. Loans originated that meet FstAndards qualify for the federal
agencys insurance program whereas loans that meet VAREhdtandards are guaranteed by their respectiverdbdgencies. Mortgage loz
that do not qualify under these programs are contyneferred to as conventional loans. Conventioral estate loans could be conforming
and non-conforming. Conforming loans are residéngial estate loans that meet the standards fernsaler the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
programs whereas loans that do not meet the s@mdae referred to as non-conforming residentell e@state loans. The Corporation’s
strategy is to penetrate markets by providing custs with a variety of high quality mortgage produo serve their financial needs faster,
simpler and at competitive prices. The Mortgagekdansegment also acquires and sells mortgagéseisg¢condary markets. From time to
time, residential real estate conforming loanssatd to secondary buyers like Fannie Mae and Fechllidic.

Consumer

The Consumer (Retail) segment consists o€ihigoration’s consumer lending and deposit-takictivaiies conducted mainly through its
branch network and loan centers. Loans to consumeltgle auto, credit card and personal loans. Biepooducts include checking and
savings accounts, Individual Retirement Accourf®@Ajl and retail certificates of deposit. Retail dsi®gathered through each branch of
FirstBank’s retail network serve as one of the fogdources for the lending and investment acésiti

Consumer lending growth has been mainly driweauto loan originations. The growth of this falib has been achieved through a
strategy of providing outstanding service to selédctuto dealers who provide the channel for thke dbiithe Corporation’s auto loan
originations. This strategy is directly linked tetCorporation’s commercial lending activities las €orporation maintains strong and stable
auto floor plan relationships, which is the foundatof a successful auto loan generation operaiibe. Corporation continues to strengthen
the commercial relations with floor plan dealersjeh directly benefit the Corporation’s consumerdimg operation and are managed as part
of the consumer banking activities.

Personal loans and, to a lesser extent, ménaecing and a small credit card portfolio alemtibute to interest income generated on
consumer lending. Management plans to continue tackive in the consumer loans market, applyingCtboration’s strict underwriting
standards.

Treasury and Investments

The Treasury and Investments segment is resilerfor the Corporation’s investment portfolicdamneasury functions designed to manage
and enhance liquidity. This segment sells fundhéoCommercial and Corporate Banking, Mortgage Baplkand Consumer Lending
segments to finance their lending activities andtpases funds gathered by those segments.
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The interest rates charged or credited by Treamutdylinvestments are based on market rates.

For information regarding First BanCorp’s repble segments, please refer to note 31 “Segmémrnhation” to the Corporation’s
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2@16 included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation &dubsidiaries employed 3,037 persons. None ehifsloyees are represented by a
collective bargaining group. The Corporation coassdts employee relations to be good.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
Audit Committee Revie

As previously announced on August 1, 2005 Abhdit Committee (the “Committee”) of the Corpomtidetermined that it should review
the background and accounting for certain mortgatged transactions that FirstBank had enteredbatween 1999 and 2005. The
Committee retained the law firms of Clifford Chandss. LLP and Martinez Odell & Calabria and forerstcountants FTI Consulting Inc. to
assist the Committee in its review. Subsequertéahnouncement of the review, a number of sigmifievents occurred, including the
announcement of the restatement and other evesdsilded below. In August 2006, the Committee conepléts review and the Corporation
filed the Amended 2004 Form 10-K with the SEC opt8mber 26, 2006 and the 2005 Form 10-K on Febraa?p07.

Governmental Action
SEC

. On August 23, 2005, the Corporation receivedtaidrom the SEC in which the SEC indicated thatas conducting an informal
inquiry into the Corporation. The inquiry pertatos among other things, the accounting for mortgadgted transactions with Doral
and R&G during the calendar years 1999 through 2

. On October 21, 2005, the Corporation announcatithie SEC issued a formal order of investigatioits ongoing inquiry of the
Corporation. The Corporation cooperated with th€ SEconnection with the investigatic

. On September 26, 2006, the Corporation filed WithSEC the Amended 2004 Form 10-K which includedated financial
information for the fiscal years 2000 through 2C

. First BanCorp has been engaged in discussioihstiétstaff of the SEC regarding a possible regwmiub its investigation of the
Corporation’s restatement, and has accrued $8lbmih its consolidated financial statements fog {ear ended December 31, 2005
in connection with a potential settlement of theCSEinvestigation of the Corporation. Any settlemisrdubject to the approval of t
Commissioners of the SEC. There can be no assuthatcthe Corporation’s efforts to resolve the S&i@vestigation with respect to
the Corporation will be successful, or that the ami@ccrued will be sufficient, and the Corporatiamnot predict at this time the
timing or final terms of any settleme

. On February 9, 2007, the Corporation filed with 8t€C the 2005 Form -K.
Banking Regulators

. Beginning in the Fall of 2005, the Corporationaiwed inquiries from federal banking regulatoigareling the status and impact of
the restatement and related safety and soundneseros.

. On December 6, 2005, the Commonwealth of Pueido Rommissioner of Financial Institutions (“ther@missioner”) determined
that the Corporation had exceeded the lending liegjirements of Section 17(a) of the Puerto Riankéng Law which governs the
amount a bank may lend to a single person, grouplated entity. The Puerto Rico Banking Law authes the Commissioner to
determine other components which may be considergulrposes of establishing its lending limit, ainicomponents may lay
outside the traditional elements mentioned in $acti7. After consideration of other components,Gbenmissioner authorized the
Corporation to retain the secured loans to DordIR&G as it believed that these loans were sedoyeslifficient collateral to
diversify, disperse and significantly diffuse tlisks connected to such loans thereby satisfyingdiety and soundness
considerations mandated by Section 28 of the PirRicm Banking Law
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. On December 7, 2005, the Corporation was adyigetie FDIC that the revised classification of thertgagerelated transactions fi
accounting purposes resulted in such transactieimg lviewed for regulatory capital purposes as cencral loans to mortgage
companies rather than mortgage loans secured byoefioeir family residential properties. As suchesle loans must be classified for
capital purposes at the 100% level rather thahea50% level that the Corporation had used. Thaghan risk weight for these
loans, coupled with the losses generated fromrtakility to use the short-cut method of accounforghe interest rate swaps that
hedged the interest rate risk on brokered certédigaf deposit and medium-term notes, caused FingtBo become less than well-
capitalized. FirstBank then advised the FDIC thaspant to regulatory requirements, the reviseskdiaation of the mortgage
transactions and the correction of the accountingtfe interest rate swaps would cause FirstBafietslightly below the well-
capitalized level, within the meaning establishgdhe FDIC. On March 17, 2006, the Corporation amuoed that FirstBank had
returned to the well-capitalized level. The Corpiormmade a cash contribution to FirstBank in theant of $110 million which
along with the partial payment made by R&G (destibelow under Business Developments) contributedd return to a well-
capitalized level

. In reaction to these earlier events, in Febr2®@6, the Office of Thrift Supervision (“*OTS") imped restrictions on FirstBank
Florida. Under these restrictions, FirstBank Flar@nnot make any payments to the Corporatiors @ffifiates pursuant to a tax-
sharing agreement nor can FirstBank Florida emptagceive consultative services from an execuiifieer of the Corporation or
its affiliates without the prior written approvadl © TS’ Regional Director. Additionally, FirstBankdfida cannot enter into any
agreement to sell loans or any portions of anyddarthe Corporation or its affiliates nor can Benk Florida make any payment to
the Corporation or its affiliates via an intercompaccount or arrangement unless pursuant to axiséing contractual agreement
for services rendered in the normal course of mssinAlso, FirstBank Florida cannot pay divideralig parent, Ponce General, a
wholly owned subsidiary of First BanCorp, withouigo approval from the OT¢

. On March 17, 2006, the Corporation announcedithetd agreed with the Board of Governors of thdd¥al Reserve System to a
cease and desist order issued with the consehed@orporation (the “Consent OrderThe Consent Order addresses certain con
of banking regulators relating to the incorrectaoting for and documentation of mortgage-relataddactions with Doral and
R&G. The Corporation had initially reported thossnisactions as purchases of mortgage loans whershioelld have been accoun
for as secured loans to the financial institutibasause, as a legal matter, they did not constitute sales” but rather financing
arrangements. The Corporation also announced trsBRnk had entered into a similar agreement wiehFDIC and the
Commissioner (referred to together with the Con€mdters as the “Consent Orders”). The agreemegtsed by all parties involved,
did not impose any restrictions on the Corporé's or FirstBan's da-to-day banking and lending activitie

The Consent Orders with banking regulators impasgthin restrictions and reporting requirementshenCorporation and FirstBal
Under the Consent Orders, FirstBank may not diyemtindirectly enter into, participate in, or inyaother manner engage in certain
transactions with any affiliate without the prioritten approval of the FDIC. The Consent Ordersinegthe Corporation and
FirstBank to take various affirmative actions, indihg engaging an independent consultant to retheswnortgage portfolios and
prepare a report including findings and recommeadat submitting capital and liquidity contingenaians, providing notice prior to
the incurring of additional debt or the restruataror repurchasing of debt, obtaining approvalmtaopurchasing or redeeming sto
filing amended regulatory reports upon completibthe restatement of financial statements, andiioig regulatory approval prior
to paying dividends after those payable in Marc@&@ he requirements of the Consent Orders have sidaestantially completed a
reported to the regulators as required by the Gur@eders

. FirstBank received a letter dated May 24, 200é1fthe FDIC regarding FirstBank’s failure to filétlvthe FDIC its Part 363 annual
report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2Q0bJune 12, 2006, FirstBank notified the FDIC ihattended to file an amended
2004 Part 363 annual report and its 2005 Part 868al report after the Corporation filed the 20@8r+ 10-K with the SEC. On
March 31, 2007, the Corporation notified the FDi@ttthe amended 2004 Part 363 annual report arDf Part 363 annual report
were available on the Corporat’s website

. On May 31, 2006, the Corporation announced thaubsidiary, FirstBank, received a cash paynrent Doral Financial
Corporation (“Doral”)of approximately $2.4 billion, substantially redogithe balance in secured commercial loans reguitom the
Corporation’s previously-announced revised clasaifon of numerous mortgage-related transactiotts Roral. In addition,
FirstBank and Doral entered into a sharing agre¢émviéth respect to certain profits or losses thatddocurs as part of the sales of
the mortgages that previously collateralized thmmercial loans, subject to a maximum reimbursero€f9.5 million, which will be
reduced proportionately to the extent that Dorasdoot sell the mortgages. Given the difficultlest the Corporation’s largest
borrowers have had, the Corporation can give narasse that Doral will continue to repay their geculoans on a timely basis or
that the Corporation will continue to be able towrately assess any risk of loss from the loarikdse financial institution:

. Subsequent to the effectiveness of the Consatgr§rthe Corporation and FirstBank have requestddbtained written approval
from the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC fopthanent of dividends by FirstBank to its holdiraypany, and for the payment
of dividends by the Corporation to the holderstefreferred stock, common stock and trust prefesteck. The written approvals
have been obtained in accordance with requirenaéritee Consent Order
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On August 29, 2006, the Corporation announcetlithaubsidiary, FirstBank, consented and agredhd issuance of a cease and
desist order by the FDIC relating to the Bank’s ptance with certain provisions of the Bank Secrécy (the “BSA Consent
Order”). The BSA Consent Order requires FirstBamkake various affirmative actions, including tRastBank operate with
adequate management supervision and Board of Diggaversight to prevent any future unsafe or umsbbanking practices or
violations of law or regulation on BSA related neas implement systems of internal controls, indeleat testing and training
programs to ensure full compliance with BSA anddamd regulations enforced by the Office of Fordigeets Control (“OFAC”);
designate a BSA and OFAC Officer, and amend exjgimlicies, procedures and processes relatingéonal and external audits to
review compliance with BSA and OFAC provisions astpf routine auditing; engage independent coaststto review account and
transaction activity from June 1, 2005 to the dffecdate of the Order and to conduct a comprekensiview of FirstBank’s actions
to implement the BSA Consent Order in order to ss$iee effectiveness of the policies, procedurdspancesses adopted by
FirstBank; and appoint a compliance committee efBlard of Directors. Since the beginning of 2@EistBank has been refining
core areas of its risk management and complianstersys, and beginning prior to this BSA Order, matituted a significant number
of measures required by the BSA Consent Ol

On February 15, 2007, the Corporation enterazlaninortgage payment agreement with R&G Finanaap@ration (“R&G”) under
which R&G paid down $50 million of the outstandiogmmercial loan with FirstBank resulting in a remiag balance of

$271 million which the parties agreed to re-docunaana secured loan. The agreement will enabl€timporation and FirstBank to
fulfill the remaining requirement of the previouslgnounced Consent Orders with banking regulaedasing to the mortgage-related
transactions that the Corporation recharacteriseddcounting and legal purposes as commerciakleaaured by the mortgage lo
and pass-through trust certificates. In additi@rjous agreements that were executed for approglyn@218 million of commercial
loans secured by trust certificates were amendatlde both FirstBank and R&G Crown to treat thasmsactions as “true sale” for
accounting and legal purposes, as such, these camaieans secured by trust certificates weredfamed to available-for-sale
securities

New York Stock Exchange Listi

On March 19, 2007, the Corporation receivedt@idétom the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") aduigthat the procedures in
Section 802.01E of the Listed Company Manual apiegble to the Corporation as a result of the faat it did not file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”bgoration’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thecfil year ended
December 31, 2006 (the “2006 10-K”) by March 1, 20e date on which it was required to have béed @inder Section 13 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Among other thitigs NYSE advised the Corporation that it will pthee Corporation’s 2006 10-
K to the annual late filers list on the Listing &dards Filing Status page on the NYSE’s websit&arch 22, 2007. The NYSE also
advised the Corporation that, pursuant to Sectiith@®LE of the Listed Company Manual, the NYSE ésely monitoring the status
of the Corporation’s late filing and, if the Corption does not file the 2006 10-K within six montiighe March 1, 2007 due date,
the NYSE will determine whether to allow the Comutiwn’s securities to trade for up to an additiosialmonths or to commence
suspension and delisting procedures. With thegfiifthis 2006 10-K, the Corporation has compliethwthe six-month period
provided for by Section 802.01

Recent Puerto Rico Legislati

Act 41 of August 1, 2005 imposed a temporary taltil tax of 2.5% on taxable income of all corgmas operating in Puerto Rico.
This temporary tax effectively increased the statutax rate from 39% to 41.5%. Act 41 is effectfoe taxable years commencing
after December 31, 2004 and ended on or beforeBleee31, 2006, and therefore is effective for th@32and 2006 taxable years

with a retroactive effect to January 1, 2005. Adariuary 1, 2007 the statutory tax rate decre@s88%.

Act 89 of May 13, 2006 imposed a 2% additionabime tax on income subject to regular taxes fdPa#irto Rico corporations
operating pursuant to Act 55 of 1933. Act 89 wdsdive for the taxable year commencing after Ddoen31, 2005 and on or befc
December 31, 2006 and, therefore, increased thea@tatax for the 2006 taxable year to 43.5%. $tadutory tax reverted to 39% -
taxable years commencing after December 31, 2

On December 22, 2006, Law No. 283 was approvaénding Section 27 of Law No. 55 of May 12, 1933amended. This law
clarifies the process for the determination of la@ses by financial institutions in the Commonwleaf Puerto Rico, stipulating that
accrued interest on loans past due 90 days or siangld be excluded from income, except on loanateshlized by mortgages,
where interest past due not exceeding one yead ¢ruincluded as part of income given proper d&dle of the fact that they have
not been collected. It also requires that loans ghas 365 days for which no interest was collechedng the periods be charged to
losses, except for collateralized loans and loamieulegal collection efforts, which will be chadg® losses up to their net realizable
value.
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Private Litigation

Following the announcement of the Audit Committe@eview, the Corporation and certain of its catrend former officers and
directors were named as defendants in five (5)ragpaecurities class actions filed between Oct8lheP005 and December 5, 2005,
alleging violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(ajtef Securities Exchange Act of 1934. At presehsedurities class actions have
been consolidated into one case named “In Re: BasCorp Securities Litigations”. Based on avadaéidence and discussions
with the lead plaintiff, the Corporation accruedt®b million in the 2005 financial statements fggassible settlement of the class
action. Subsequently, in 2007, the Corporationlled@n agreement in principle and signed a memararad understanding with tl
lead plaintiff. The agreement specified a payméi®7d.25 million by the Corporation and is subjecapproval by the United States
District Court for the District of Puerto Ric

Between November 8, 2005 and March 7, 2006, aégbareholders of the Corporation commenced fypasate derivative actions
against certain current and former executive offi@nd directors of the Corporation. In these astithe Corporation was includec
a nominal defendant. These actions were filed @unsto Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f228@d alleged, among other
things, a breach of fiduciary duty on behalf of tefendants. All shareholder derivative actionsensamsolidated into one case
named “In Re: First BanCorp Derivative Litigationthich was dismissed on November 30, 2006 befardtls. District Court for
the District of Puerto Ricc

Restatemer

On October 21, 2005, December 13, 2005, and MBEr¢c2006, the Corporation announced that it hatloded that the mortgage-
related transactions that FirstBank entered inth ®Woral and R&G since 1999 did not qualify as &males’for accounting purpose
As a consequence, the Corporation announced omfiberel 3, 2005 that management, with the concurrehttee Board of
Directors, determined to restate its previoushoregd financial statements to correct its accognfor the mortgage-related
transactions. In addition, the Corporation annodribat it would also restate its financial stateta¢a correct the accounting
treatment used for certain interest rate swapscivanted for as hedges using the s-cut method

On September 26, 2006, the Corporation filed wWithSEC the Amended 2004 Form 10-K for the figear ended December 31,
2004, which includes restated financial informationthe fiscal years 2000 through 20!

On February 9, 2007, the Corporation filed wite BEC the 2005 Form 10-K for the fiscal year erdedember 31, 2005, which
reported certain restated financial informationtfog quarter ended March 31, 2005 and correcteshial information previously
announced for the quarter ended June 30, 2

Corporate Governance Changes

Changes in Senior Management

In September 2005, following the announcemenhefAudit Committee’s review, the Corporation impknted changes to its senior
management. Specifically, the Board of Directolsedsfor the resignation of Angel Alvarez-PérezntiReesident, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board (the “Former CE@nnie Astor-Carbonell, then Chief Financial @#r and a Director on the
Board (the “Former CFQ”), and Carmen Szendrey-Rathesn General Counsel and Secretary of the Bahed'Former GC”). On
September 30, 2005, the Corporation announcedhbadtormer CEO had resigned from his managemeittgrasand that the
Former CFO had resigned from her position as CR@dtober 2005, the Corporation terminated the [o1IGT.

On September 30, 2005, the Board of Directorsentad following appointments: Luis M. Beauchamgeove as President and CEO
of the Corporation; Aurelio Aleman to serve as €perating Officer (“COQ”) and Senior ExecutivecdiPresident; and Luis
Cabreri-Marin to serve, on an interim basis, as CFO of the @atjon.

On February 22, 2006, the Corporation announigeddtention of Lawrence Odell as Executive Vicesitent and General Counsel
of the Corporation and its subsidiary, FirstBa

On July 18, 2006, the Corporation’s Board of Dioes appointed Fernando Scherrer as Executive Riiesident and Chief Financial
Officer of the Corporation, effective July 24, 2006r. Scherrer had been working with the Corporagmce October 2005 as a
consultant in its reassessment of accounting issngpreparation of restated financial statememisom other consulting matte
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Changes in Board Structure

On September 30, 2005, the Corporation annoutihadhe Former CEO would retire from his positiassChairman of the Board of
Directors and as a Director of the Corporationctie December 31, 2005. Additionally, effectivep®amber 30, 2005, the Former
CFO resigned from her position as a Director ofGlmeporation

On September 30, 2005, the Board of Directors ®Qbrporation elected Luis Beauchamp and Aurel@nén as Directors

On November 28, 2005, the Corporation annountatthe Board of Directors elected Fernando Roédgimaro as a Director and
as an additional financial expert to serve on theifCommittee. Thereafter, he was appointed Chairof the Audit Committee
effective January 1, 2006. In addition, the Bodr®ioectors appointed José Menéndez-Cortada apbrdient Lead Director
effective February 15, 200

On March 28, 2006, José Julian Alvarez, 72, mied the Corporation that he would resign from loisifion as director of the
Corporation, effective March 31, 2006. Mr. Alvarerérm as a director would have expired at the 2008ual Meeting of
Stockholders and, given the Corporation’s retirenpaticy for the Board of Directors, Mr. Alvarez widl not have been eligible for
reelection.

Change in By-Laws

On March 14, 2006, the Board of Directors of @wporation approved an amendment to the CorporatBy-Laws. As amended,
Section 2 of Article | of the By-Laws provides thiae Board of Directors will set a date and timetf@ annual meeting of
stockholders in circumstances that do not perreittieeting to occur within 120 days after the Campion’s fiscal year end due to |
Corporation’s inability to issue its annual repweith audited financial statements. In such evérd,Board will set such date and time
within a reasonable period after the Corporatidmsits an annual report with audited financial staats to stockholders. Prior to
adoption of this amendment, Section 2 of Articthd not provide that the Board of Directors coudd the date and time of the annual
meeting. The amendment was effective upon appioyte Board

Business Developmer

On March 13, 2005, the Corporation announcedalibging of its acquisition of Ponce General Corgiora a Delaware corporation,
and its subsidiaries, Unibank, a federal savingslaan association, and Ponce Realty Corporati@elaware corporation with real
estate holdings in Florida. Unibank, headquartémédiami, Florida, had 11 financial service fad#i located in the Miami/Dade,
Broward, Orange and Osceola counties of Florida Carporation subsequently changed the name ofddkito FirstBank Floride

During 2005, the major rating agencies downgratdedCorporation’s and FirstBank’s ratings in deseof actions. On October 24,
2005 Fitch Ratings, Ltd., a subsidiary of Fimalaad\., lowered the Corporation’s long-term senidotdating from BBB- to BB and
placed the rating on Rating Watch Negative. Stath@alPoors, a division of the McGraw Hill Companiéss., lowered the longerm
senior debt and counterparty rating of FirstBawkfiBBB- to BB+ and placed the rating on Credit Wdiegative on December 13,
2005. On October 2005, Moody'’s Investor Servicedmd FirstBank's long-term senior debt rating frBam3 to Bal and placed the
rating on negative outloo

On March 17, 2006, the Corporation announced thdle fourth quarter of 2005, R&G made a part@yment on its secured loan
$137 million, which released capital allocatedHe Ibans secured by the mortgage loans to R&Gtlaaid-irst BanCorp made a
capital contribution to FirstBank of $110 milliohthe end of 200t

On May 31, 2006, the Corporation announced teauibsidiary, FirstBank, received a cash paynment Doral of approximately
$2.4 billion, substantially reducing the balancesétured commercial loans resulting from the Caran’s previously-announced
revised classification of numerous mortgage-relatadsactions with Doral. In addition, FirstBanlddboral entered into a sharing
agreement with respect to certain profits or loskasDoral incurs as part of the sales of the gagés that previously collateralized
the commercial loans. In connection with this shguagreement the Corporation recorded a net [0$8@#56 million in 2006. Given
the difficulties that the Corporation’s largest fmwers have had, the Corporation can give no assarthat Doral will continue to
repay their secured loans on a timely basis ortt@Corporation will continue to be able to actelsaassess any risk of loss from
loans to these financial institutior
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. On February 15, 2007, the Corporation agreed tei49% of its outstanding common stock at a prfck16.25 per share to the Ba
of Nova Scotia (“Scotiabank”) in a private placemd@ased upon the number of shares outstandingebrubry 15, 2007, the
Corporation would issue approximately 9.250 millgrares of its common stock to Scotiabank for @ fmirchase price of $94.8
million. The valuation reflects a premium of approately 5% over the volume weighted-average closimare price over the 30-
trading day period ending January 30, 2007. Theaisse of common stock to Scotiabank is subjeatdalatory approva

. On February 15, 2007, the Corporation enterazlaninortgage payment agreement with R&G under wR&B paid down

$50 million of the outstanding commercial loan whinstBank resulting in a remaining balance of $&¥llion which the parties
agreed to relocument as a secured loan. The agreement willetfad Corporation and FirstBank to fulfill the raiming requiremer
of the previously announced Consent Orders withkiognregulators relating to the mortgage-relatedi$actions with R&G that the
Corporation recharacterized for accounting andllpgeposes as commercial loans secured by the agetipans and pass-through
trust certificates. In addition, various agreemehéd were executed for approximately $218 millddrcommercial loans secured by
trust certificates were amended to allow both Bastk and R&G Crown to treat these transactiongrag ‘sale” for accounting and
legal purposes, as such, these commercial loanseskby trust certificates were transferred to labéd-for-sale securities

Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal €olover Financial Reporting

. Over the course of the Corporation’s restaternéits financial statements for periods betweerudayn1, 2000 and December 31,
2004, the Corporation’s management identified almemof material weaknesses in its internal cordvar financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 and 2005. The Corporation tauknaber of significant actions to remedy the matavizaknesses in its internal
controls identified in 2004 and 2005. The Corpamaiileveloped and implemented a plan for remedyliraf the identified material
weaknesses. In addition, as part of this remedigirogram, the Corporation has added skilled ressuto improve controls and
increase the reliability of the financial reportipgcess. As a result, First BanCorp’s managenmmtioded that its internal controls
over financial reporting were effective as of Debem31, 2006 based on the criteria set forth iartrdl Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commissi“COSC").

Certain of these and other subsequent evesris addressed in the Corporation’s Current ReporfSorm 8-K filed with the SEC.

WEBSITE ACCESS TO REPORT

The Corporation makes available annual reportSorm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, eatreports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports, filed or furnishedymmt to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934, free of charge on or
through our internet website at www.firstbankpr.coffSobre nosotros” section, SEC Filings link),sa®n as reasonably practicable after the
Corporation electronically files such material witin furnishes it to, the SEC.

The Corporation also makes available the Qaimn’s corporate governance standards, the aisasféhe audit, compensation and
benefits, corporate governance and nominating coteesi and the codes mentioned below, free of ctamrge through our internet website
www.firstbankpr.com(“Sobre nosotros,” Governance Documents link):

. Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Office
. Code of Ethics applicable to all employt¢
. Independence Principles for Direct:

The corporate governance standards, and ¢éineraéntioned charters and codes may also be obithiee of charge by request to
Mr. Lawrence Odell, Executive Vice President anch&al Counsel, PO Box 9146, San Juan, Puerto Rig68

As previously announced on December 13, 2BDSt BanCorp determined that previously filed rteunaudited and annual audited
financial statements should no longer be reliechugrad that it needed to restate previously issineohéial statements. The Corporation
restated financial information for the periods frdanuary 1, 2000 through December 31, 2004. Otiaer the Annual Report on Amended
2004 Form 1K, the Corporation has not amended any of its presly filed reports. The consolidated financiatesti@ents and other financi
information in First BanCorp’s previously filed meps for the dates and periods referred to ababerahan the Amended 2004 Form 10-K,
including Form 10-Q for the quarter ended MarchZX)5, should no longer be relied upon.

The public may read and copy any materialstEBanCorp files with the SEC at the SEC’s PubkddRence Room at 100 F
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Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. In addition,ghblic may obtain information on the operationiu Public Reference Room by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains amriet site that contains reports, proxy, and infdiom statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electroficavith the SEC at its website_( www.sec.gpv

MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

Puerto Rico, where the banking market is igidmpetitive, is the main geographic service arfghe Corporation. As of December 31,
2006, the Corporation also had a presence thrdegiubsidiaries in the United States and Britistgiilslands and through its loan agenc
Coral Gables, Florida. Through the acquisition oh& General Corporation, FirstBank has establisheesence in Florida with the plan of
future expansion into the United States marketrtBuRico banks are subject to the same federal, leagsilations and supervision that apply
to similar institutions in the United States mairda

Competitors include other banks, insurancepaomes, mortgage banking companies, small loan aarep, automobile financing
companies, leasing companies, vehicle rental corapabrokerage firms with retail operations, aretidrunions in Puerto Rico, the Virgin
Islands and the state of Florida. The Corporatibo'sinesses compete with these other firms withe@go the range of products and services
offered and the types of clients, customers, addstries served.

The Corporation’s ability to compete effectivdepends on the relative performance of its petglithe degree to which the features of its
products appeal to customers, and the extent tohathe Corporation meets clients’ needs and expenta The Corporation’s ability to
compete also depends on its ability to attractratain professional and other personnel, and aefstation.

The Corporation encounters intense competitiattracting and retaining deposits and in itsstoner and commercial lending activities.
The Corporation competes for loans with other foarinstitutions, some of which are larger andéngueater resources available than those
of the Corporation. Management believes that thep@ation has been able to compete effectivelyd&posits and loans by offering a variety
of transaction account products and loans with aitipe features, by pricing its products at conitpat interest rates, by offering convenient
branch locations, and by emphasizing the qualitysagervice. The Corporation’s ability to origindbans depends primarily on the rates and
fees charged and the service it provides to itsdvars in making prompt credit decisions. There lzamo assurance that in the future the
Corporation will be able to continue to increasediéposit base or originate loans in the mannendhe terms on which it has done so in the
past.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

On March 17, 2006, the Corporation announbatithe Corporation and FirstBank consented toecaad desist orders with the Federal
Reserve Board and the FDIC. For more informatigarding these orders, see “Significant Events —e@awental Action, Banking
Regulatory Matters.”

Bank Holding Company Activities and Other Limitatis

The Corporation is subject to ongoing regaolatsupervision, and examination by the FederaéResBoard, and is required to file with
the Federal Reserve Board periodic and annual tepad other information concerning its own busirgserations and those of its
subsidiaries. In addition, under the provisionshef Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding compenust obtain Federal Reserve Board
approval before it acquires directly or indireathynership or control of more than 5% of the votiigires of another bank, or merges or
consolidates with another bank holding company. Aégeral Reserve Board also has authority und&ineircumstances to issue cease and
desist orders against bank holding companies aidribn-bank subsidiaries.

A bank holding company is prohibited under Basnk Holding Company Act, with limited exceptiofimm engaging, directly or
indirectly, in any business unrelated to the busses of banking or managing or controlling bankse 6f the exceptions to these prohibitions
permits ownership by a bank holding company ofsthares of any corporation if the Federal Resenaa®after due notice and opportunity
for hearing, by regulation or order has determitied the activities of the corporation in questéwa so closely related to the businesses of
banking or managing or controlling banks as to beogper incident thereto.

Under the Federal Reserve Board policy, a lbenhdting company such as the Corporation is expletct@ct as a source of financial stret
to its banking subsidiaries and to commit suppwthem. This support may be required at times whbsent such policy, the bank holding
company might not otherwise provide such suppaorthé event of a bank holding company’s bankrupay, commitment by the bank
holding company to a federal bank regulatory ageaaayaintain capital of a subsidiary bank will lsssamed by the bankruptcy trustee and be
entitled to a priority of payment. In addition, argpital loans by a bank holding company to angso$ubsidiary banks must be subordinated
in right of payment to deposits and to
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certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary baskf December 31, 2006, FirstBank and FirstBalukifa were the only depository
institution subsidiaries of the Corporation

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act revised and expahtie provisions of the Bank Holding Company Actithgiuding a section that permits a
bank holding company to elect to become a finarteiéding company to engage in a full range of fiiahactivities. The Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act requires that a bank holding companytthigcts to become a financial holding companyiléca written declaration with the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank and comply wiHdhowing (and such compliance must continue ekiile entity is treated as a financial
holding company): (i) state that the bank holdinghpany elects to become a financial holding compéiyprovide the name and head off
address of the bank holding company and each deppsistitution controlled by the bank holding cpamy; (iii) certify that all depository
institutions controlled by the bank holding compamg well-capitalized as of the date the bank Imgidiompany files for the election;

(iv) provide the capital ratios for all relevanipital measures as of the close of the previoustgutor each depository institution controlled
by the bank holding company; and (v) certify thhtlapository institutions controlled by the baniding company are well-managed as of
the date the bank holding company files the elactdl insured depository institutions controlleg the bank holding company must have
also achieved at least a rating of “satisfactooprd of meeting community credit needs” under tioen@unity Reinvestment Act during the
depository institutiors most recent examination. In April 2000, the Coapion filed an election with the Federal Resereai8l and became
financial holding company.

Financial holding companies may engage, directindirectly, in any activity that is determith¢o be (i) financial in nature, (ii) incidental
to such financial activity, or (iii) complementaiy a financial activity and does not pose a sultistiansk to the safety and soundness of
depository institutions or the financial system grafly. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act specifically pides that the following activities have
been determined to be “financial in nature”: (ahdimg, trust and other banking activities; (b) lr@ce activities; (c) Financial or economic
advice or services; (d) Pooled investments; (euftes underwriting and dealing; (f) Existing bamélding company domestic activities;
(9) Existing bank holding company foreign activéti@nd (h) Merchant banking activities. The Corfioreoffers insurance agency services
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, FirstBank Ireuce Agency, Inc. and through First Insurance Agan I., Inc., a subsidiary of
FirstBank.

In addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act spéwdfly gives the Federal Reserve Board the authdrif regulation or order, to expand the
list of “financial” or “incidental” activities, butequires consultation with the U.S. Treasury, gives the Federal Reserve Board authority to
allow a financial holding company to engage in aniivity that is “complementary” to a financial sty and does notgose a substantial ri
to the safety and soundness of depository ingtitstor the financial system generally.”

Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, if the Coration fails to meet any of the requirements fange financial holding company and is
unable to resolve such deficiencies within cerfa@scribed periods of time, the Federal Reservedoauld require the Corporation to divest
control of one or more of its depository institutisubsidiaries or alternatively cease conductingrfcial activities that are not permissible for
bank holding companies that are not financial mgdiompanies.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act

On July 20, 2002, President Bush signed imothe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOA”), whichplemented legislative reforms
intended to address corporate and accounting f@Qé contains reforms of various business praceresnumerous aspects of corporate
governance. Most of these requirements have beglemented by regulations issued by the SEC. THeviolg is a summary of certain key
provisions of SOA.

In addition to the establishment of an accimgnoversight board that enforces auditing, qualdptrol and independence standards and is
funded by fees from all publicly traded compan®®A places restrictions on the scope of servicasrttay be provided by accounting firms
to their public corporation audit clients. Any nanédit services being provided to a public corporatiudit client requires pre-approval by the
corporation’s audit committee. In addition, SOA reakertain changes to the requirements for rotati@ertain persons involved in the audit
after a period of time. SOA requires chief exeatificers and chief financial officers, or thefquévalent, to certify to the accuracy of
periodic reports filed with the SEC, subject tailcand criminal penalties if they knowingly or wilgly violate this certification requirement.

In addition, counsel is required to report evideata material violation of the securities lawsadoreach of fiduciary duties to the
corporation’s chief executive officer or its chiefal officer, and, if such officer does not appiagely respond, to report such evidence to the
audit committee or other similar committee of tloautl of directors or the board itself.

Under SOA, longer prison terms may apply tpooate executives who violate federal securitiwest the period during which certain
types of suits can be brought against a corporatiats officers is extended; and bonuses issuédp@xecutives prior to restatement of a
corporation’s financial statements are now sulijgclisgorgement if such restatement was due toocatp misconduct. Executives are also
prohibited from insider trading during retirememdmp“blackout” periods, and loans to corporatiomeécutives (other than loans by financial
institutions permitted by federal rules or regulati) are
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prohibited. In addition, the legislation accelesatiee time frame for disclosures by public compsnés they must immediately disclose
certain material changes in their financial comuditor operations. Directors and executive officgerpiired to report changes in ownership in a
corporation’s securities must file such reportsinitwo business days of the change.

SOA increases responsibilities and codifietag® requirements related to audit committeesutfip companies and how they interact v
the corporation’s “registered public accountingnfit Audit committee members must be independentaadarred from accepting
consulting, advisory or other compensatory feesftioe issuer. In addition, companies are requinettidclose whether at least one memb
the committee is a “financial expert” (as such tésrdefined by the SEC) and if not, the reasons.whgorporation’s registered public
accounting firm is prohibited from performing stattily mandated audit services for a corporatiothé corporation’s chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, controller, chief accoumgi officer or any person serving in equivalent poss had been employed by such firm and
participated in the audit of such corporation dgiine one-year period preceding the audit initratiate. SOA also prohibits any officer or
director of a corporation or any other person actinder their direction from taking any action taudulently influence, coerce, manipulate,
or mislead any independent public or certified actant engaged in the audit of the corporatiomaritcial statements for the purpose of
rendering the financial statements materially naidiag.

SOA also has provisions relating to inclusidmrertain internal control reports and assessnantaanagement in the annual report on
Form 10-K. The law also requires the corporationdependent registered public accounting firm thsties the audit report to attest to and
report on management’s assessment of the corpaiatidernal controls and on the effectivenesstdrinal controls over financial reporting.
Since the 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Grton has been required to include managemessassament regarding the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal consitolicture and procedures over financial reporfifige internal control report includes a
statement of management’s responsibility for eshlrlg and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting for the
Corporation; management’s assessment as to thetiedfieess of the Corporation’s internal control riofileancial reporting based on
management’s evaluation, as of year-end; and émdwork used by management as criteria for evalgitiie effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog. The reports on internal control over finahceporting issued by management and the
independent registered public accounting firm wideel as part of the Annual Report on each respedtorm 10-K. The Corporation took a
number of significant actions to remedy the matavisaknesses in its internal controls identifie@@95 and 2004. The Corporation
developed and implemented a plan for remedyingfdtie identified material weaknesses. As parhefremediation program, the
Corporation added skilled resources to improverotsmand increase the reliability of the finanahising process. As a result, First
BanCorp’s management concluded that its internadrobover financial reporting was effective adbscember 31, 2006 based on the criteria
set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framekvimsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organipatiof the Treadway Commission
(*COS0”).

USA Patriot Act

Under Title Il of the USA Patriot Act, alsméawn as the International Money Laundering Abateraad Anti-Terrorism Financing Act of
2001, all financial institutions are required tmang other things, identify their customers, adophal and comprehensive anti-money
laundering programs, scrutinize or prohibit altbgetcertain transactions of special concern, angrégared to respond to inquiries from U.S.
law enforcement agencies concerning their custoareigheir transactions. Presently, only certagesyof financial institutions (including
banks, savings associations and money servicesdasss) are subject to final rules implementingatitemoney laundering program
requirements of the USA Patriot Act.

Failure of a financial institution to complyittvthe USA Patriot Act’s requirements could haeei@us legal and reputational consequences
for the institutions. The Corporation has adoptegrapriate policies, procedures and controls taeskicompliance with the USA Patriot Act
and U.S. Treasury Department regulations. See ff&ignt Events — Governmental Action and Banking&ators”for information regardin
recent issues relating to compliance with the Baekrecy Act.

Privacy Policies

Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, all finanldiastitutions are required to adopt privacy pa@girestrict the sharing of nonpublic
customer data with nonaffiliated parties at theamuer’'s request and establish policies and proesdiar protect customer data from
unauthorized access. The Corporation and its sialoid have adopted policies and procedures inr@odeomply with the privacy provisions
of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and the regulatiossuied thereunder
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State Chartered Non-Member Bank; Federal SavingsriBaBanking Laws and Regulations in General

FirstBank is subject to extensive regulatiod axamination by the Commissioner and the FDI@,iarsubject to certain requirements
established by the Federal Reserve Board. FirstBéorida is a federally regulated savings bank acifdjo extensive regulation and
examination by the OTS, and subject to certain F@deserve regulations. The federal and state éndsegulations which are applicable to
banks and savings banks regulate, among othersthiing scope of their businesses, their investmt@s reserves against deposits, the
timing and availability of deposited funds, and tfeure and amount of and collateral for certaam$ In addition to the impact of
regulations, commercial banks are affected sigauifily by the actions of the Federal Reserve Boaiitl@tempts to control the money supply
and credit availability in order to influence th@oaomy. References herein to applicable statutesgulations are brief summaries of porti
thereof which do not purport to be complete andclaire qualified in their entirety by referencettose statutes and regulations. Any change
in applicable laws or regulations may have a matedverse effect on the business of commercidthahrifts and bank holding companies,
including FirstBank, FirstBank Florida and the Ganggtion. However, management is not aware of amentiproposals by any federal or
state regulatory authority that, if implemented udohave or would be reasonably likely to have aemal effect on the liquidity, capital
resources or operations of FirstBank, FirstBanki&#oor the Corporation.

As a creditor and financial institution, FBsink is subject to certain regulations promulgdtgthe Federal Reserve Board, including,
without limitation, Regulation B (Equal Credit Oppnity Act), Regulation DD (Truth in Savings AcBegulation E (Electronic Funds
Transfer Act), Regulation F (Limits on Exposuredther Banks), Regulation Z (Truth in Lending A®ggulation CC (Expedited Funds
Availability Act), Regulation X (Real Estate Settlent Procedures Act), Regulation BB (Community Restment Act) and Regulation C
(Home Mortgage Disclosure Act).

There are periodic examinations by the Comianies and the FDIC of FirstBank and by the OTS icdtBank Florida to test each bank’s
compliance with various statutory and regulatoguieements. This regulation and supervision ethbg a comprehensive framework of
activities in which an institution can engage améhtended primarily for the protection of the Fd@hsurance fund and depositors. The
regulatory structure also gives the regulatory arities extensive discretion in connection withittseipervisory and enforcement activities
and examination policies, including policies widspect to the classification of assets and thélsttenent of adequate loan loss reserves for
regulatory purposes. This enforcement authoritjuithes, among other things, the ability to asseskmbney penalties, to issue cease-and-
desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctaions against banking organizations and ingtituaffiliated parties. In general, these
enforcement actions may be initiated for violatioh$aws and regulations and for engaging in unsafensound practices. In addition, cer
bank actions are required by statute and implemgmégulations. Other actions or failure to act rpeyvide the basis for enforcement action,
including the filing of misleading or untimely reft® with regulatory authorities.

For a discussion of bank regulatory actiomatirgg to FirstBank and FirstBank Florida, see discussion under “Significant Events —
Governmental Action-Banking Regulators.”

Dividend Restrictions

The Corporation is subject to certain restiits generally imposed on Puerto Rico corporatieitls respect to the declaration and payn
of dividends (i.e., that dividends may be paid @iy from the Corporation’s net assets in excessapftal or in the absence of such excess,
from the Corporation’s net earnings for such figesdr and/or the preceding fiscal year). The Fedzaerve Board has also issued a policy
statement that provides that bank holding compastiesild generally pay dividends only out of currepérating earnings.

As of December 31, 2006, the principal sowfcfinds for the Corporation is dividends declaaed paid by its subsidiary, FirstBank. The
ability of FirstBank to declare and pay dividendsits capital stock is regulated by the Puerto Faoking Law, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Act (the “FDIA”), and FDIC regulations. deneral terms, the Puerto Rico Banking Law prewithat when the expenditures of a
bank are greater than receipts, the excess of ditpess over receipts shall be charged againststrifalited profits of the bank and the
balance, if any, shall be charged against the reduieserve fund of the bank. If the reserve fusngloit sufficient to cover such balance in
whole or in part, the outstanding amount must tsrgéd against the bank’s capital account. The BiRito Banking Law provides that, until
said capital has been restored to its original arhand the reserve fund to 20% of the original @dpihe bank may not declare any divide!

In general terms, the FDIA and the FDIC regates restrict the payment of dividends when a bankndercapitalized, when a bank has
failed to pay insurance assessments, or when #nergafety and soundness concerns regarding snkh ba

In addition, the Consent Orders impose cergstrictions on dividend payments. FirstBank,itiseired institution, may not declare or pay
dividends or any other form of payment represensimgduction in capital without the prior writteppaoval of the FDIC. The FDIC will
approve a dividend or any other form of paymenteegenting a reduction in capital provided thatRB#C determines that such dividend or
payment will not have an unacceptable impact ostBank’s capital position, cash
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flow, concentrations of credit, asset quality attdveance for loan and lease loss needs. Also, tmp@ation may not pay dividends or other
payments without the permission of the Federal ResBank. The FDIC and the Federal Reserve Bank bhaproved all requests for
approval of dividend declarations since the Corpionaand FirstBank agreed to the Consent Orders.

Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates and Inders

Certain transactions between financial institis such as FirstBank and FirstBank Florida dfitlaies are governed by Sections 23A and
23B of the Federal Reserve Act and by RegulatiorAWaffiliate of a financial institution is any quoration or entity, that controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with flmancial institution. In a holding company contetkte parent bank holding company and
any companies which are controlled by such parankiholding company are affiliates of the finandmatitution. Generally, Sections 23A
and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act (i) limit théeex to which the financial institution or its sidiaries may engage in “covered
transactions” (defined below) with any one affdidb an amount equal to 10% of such financial tuttin’s capital stock and surplus, and
contain an aggregate limit on all such transactigitis all affiliates to an amount equal to 20% o€k financial institution’s capital stock and
surplus and (ii) require that all “covered trangats” be on terms substantially the same, or &t laa favorable to the financial institution or
affiliate, as those provided to a non-affiliate €ftlerm “covered transaction” includes the makingpahs, purchase of assets, issuance of a
guarantee and other similar transactions. In aalilbans or other extensions of credit by therfaial institution to the affiliate are requirec
be collateralized in accordance with the requiremeat forth in Section 23A of the Federal Reséyee

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires that fiogh subsidiaries of banks be treated as affilifdepurposes of Sections 23A and 23B of
the Federal Reserve Act, but (i) the 10% capitaltition on transactions between the bank and finahcial subsidiary as an affiliate is not
applicable, and (ii) notwithstanding other provisdn Sections 23A and 23B, the investment by drekbn the financial subsidiary does not
include retained earnings of the financial subsidiihe Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act provides that: (hyygpurchase of, or investment in, the
securities of a financial subsidiary by any afféiaf the parent bank is considered a purchasavesiment by the bank; and (2) if the Federal
Reserve Board determines that such treatment &ssagy, any loan made by an affiliate of the pdank to the financial subsidiary is to be
considered a loan made by the parent bank.

The Federal Reserve Board has adopted ReguMtiwhich interprets the provisions of Sectioné 2®8d 23B. The regulation unifies and
updates staff interpretations issued over the y@arsrporates several new interpretations andipi@vs (such as to clarify when transactions
with an unrelated third party will be attributalitean affiliate), and addresses new issues arasrgresult of the expanded scope of
nonbanking activities engaged in by banks and ahdting companies in recent years and authorizefirfancial holding companies under
the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act.

In addition, Sections 22(h) and (g) of the ératiReserve Act, implemented through Regulatiopl@xe restrictions on loans to executive
officers, directors, and principal stockholdersdeénSection 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act, Idasdirector, an executive officer, a
greater than 10% stockholder of a financial initty, and certain related interests of these, ntyerceed, together with all other outstanc
loans to such persons and affiliated interestsfitiaacial institution’s loans to one borrower lingenerally equal to 15% of the institution’s
unimpaired capital and surplus. Section 22(h) effederal Reserve Act also requires that loangéotdrs, executive officers, and principal
stockholders be made on terms substantially the senoffered in comparable transactions to othesops and also requires prior board
approval for certain loans. In addition, the aggtegamount of extensions of credit by a financiatitution to insiders cannot exceed the
institution’s unimpaired capital and surplus. Ferthore, Section 22(g) of the Federal Reserve Asatqd additional restrictions on loans to
executive officers. On December 6, 2006, the FedReaerve Board announced the approval of, andeidygublic consent on, an interim rule
amending Regulation O that will eliminate sevetatigory reporting and disclosure requirementstiradao insider lending. The interim rule
does not alter the substantial restrictions onddaninsured depository institutions to their iresl

The Consent Orders with the banking regulatopsed some additional restrictions and repontargirements on the Corporation and
FirstBank. Under its Consent Order with the FDI@stBank must not, directly or indirectly, entetanor participate, or in any other manner
engage in any of the following transactions witly affiliate without the prior written approval di¢ FDIC: (i) a loan or extension of credit to
the affiliate; (ii) a purchase of or an investminsecurities issued by the affiliate; (iii) a pbase of assets, including assets subject to an
agreement to repurchase, from the affiliate; (e acceptance of securities issued by the affitiateollateral security for a loan or extension
of credit to any person or company; (v) the isseasfca guarantee, acceptance, or letter of criedltjding an endorsement or standby lette
credit, on behalf of an affiliate; (vi) the salesgfcurities or other assets to an affiliate, iniclgdssets subject to an agreement to repurchase;
(vii) the payment of money or furnishing of sensgde an affiliate under contract, lease or othesyw(siii) any transaction in which an affilia
acts as agent or broker or receives a fee foeiges to FirstBank; and (ix) any transactioneries of transactions with a third party if an
affiliate has a financial interest in the third fyaor an affiliate is a participant in such
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transaction or series of transactions. Under itssgat Order with the Federal Reserve Board, thpdation must report all covered
transactions and not engage in insider transactigth®ut the prior written approval of the FedeRadserve Board.

In February 2006, the OTS imposed restrictmm$irstBank Florida, formerly Unibank, a subsigliacquired by First BanCorp in
March 2005. Under these restrictions, FirstBankiBiibocannot make any payments to the Corporatiats @ffiliates pursuant to a tax-sharing
agreement nor can the bank employ or receive ctatimg services from an executive officer of the@wation or its affiliates without the
prior written approval of the OTS Regional Directadditionally, FirstBank Florida cannot enter irgny agreement to sell loans or any
portions of any loans to the Corporation or itdliates nor can the bank make any payment to thpdation or its affiliates via an
intercompany account or arrangement unless pursoanpre-existing contractual agreement for ses/iendered in the normal course of
business.

Federal Reserve Board Capital Requirements

The Federal Reserve Board has adopted capliégjuacy guidelines pursuant to which it assebseadequacy of capital in examining and
supervising a bank holding company and in analyaimglications to it under the Bank Holding Comp#ay. The Federal Reserve Board
capital adequacy guidelines generally require baniing companies to maintain total capital eque% of total risk-adjusted assets, with at
least one-half of that amount consisting of Tier tore capital and up to omedf of that amount consisting of Tier Il or supplentary capita
Tier | capital for bank holding companies generalhysists of the sum of common stockholders’ eqaiity perpetual preferred stock, subject
in the case of the latter to limitations on theckand amount of such perpetual preferred stocknizgtbe included as Tier | capital, less
goodwill and, with certain exceptions, other intées. Tier Il capital generally consists of hybdapital instruments, perpetual preferred
stock that is not eligible to be included as Tieapital term subordinated debt and intermediate-fgeferred stock and, subject to
limitations, allowances for loan losses. Assetsaaljested under the risk-based guidelines to taledccount different risk characteristics,
with the categories ranging from 0% (requiring dadligional capital) for assets such as cash to 1fai%he bulk of assets, which are typically
held by a bank holding company, including multi-famesidential and commercial real estate loansymercial business loans and
commercial loans. Off-balance sheet items als@dpested to take into account certain risk charaties.

In addition to the risk-based capital requiesnts, the Federal Reserve Board requires bankrgptdimpanies to maintain a minimum
leverage capital ratio of Tier | capital to totabats of 3.0%. Total assets for purposes of thisikedion do not include goodwill and any other
intangible assets and investments that the FeBexsdrve Board determines should be deducted. Tder&eReserve Board has announced
that the 3.0% Tier | leverage capital ratio requiest is the minimum for the top-rated bank holdiogpanies without supervisory, financial
or operational weaknesses or deficiencies or tixdseh are not experiencing or anticipating sigrifit growth. Other bank holding compat
will be expected to maintain Tier | leverage cdpiios of at least 4.0% or more, depending oir therall condition. As of December 31,
2006, the Corporation exceeded each of its cagmtplirements and was a well-capitalized institusrdefined in the Federal Reserve Board
regulations.

The federal banking agencies are currentlyyairay regulatory capital requirements as partrogfort to implement the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision new capital adequacy frammkvar large, internationally active banking orgeations (Basel Il), as well as to update
their risk-based capital standards to enhanceiskesensitivity of the capital charges, to reflebinges in accounting standards and financial
markets, and to address competitive equity questiost may be raised by U.S. implementation oBasel 1l framework. Accordingly, the
federal agencies, including the Federal Reserved3arad the FDIC, are considering several revistonggulations issued in response to an
earlier set of standards published by the BaselrGittee in 1988 (Basel I). On September 25, 2006 bnking agencies proposed in a notice
of proposal a new risk-based capital adequacy fwaorleunder Basel II. The framework is intended toduce riskbased capital requireme
that are more risk-sensitive than the existing-iaked capital rules. On February 15, 2007, U.8kibg agencies released proposed
supervisory guidance to accompany the Septembexl Basotice of proposed rulemaking. The guidarmegides standards to promote safety
and soundness and to encourage the comparabiliggafatory capital measures across banks.

FDIC Risk-Based Assessment System

Under a new rule adopted by the FDIC in Noven#D06, beginning in 2007, the FDIC will placeleatstitution that it insures in one of
four risk categories using a two-step process bfisstan capital ratios and then on other relevafdrmation (the supervisory group
assignment). Beginning in 2007, FDIC insurance jpuemrates will range between 5 and 43 cents ped $i@ccessible deposits. The
Corporation has available an FDIC credit to offséire assessments. Once the credit is fully etdisignificant increases in the insurance
assessments of the bank subsidiaries will increaseosts.
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FDIC Capital Requirements

The FDIC has promulgated regulations andtestant of policy regarding the capital adequacstafe-chartered non-member banks like
FirstBank. These requirements are substantiallylairto those adopted by the Federal Reserve Begyarding bank holding companies, as
described above. In addition, FirstBank Florida tmasnply with similar capital requirements adopbgtthe OTS.

The regulators require that banks meet abiésded capital standard. The risk-based capitadiatdrfor banks requires the maintenance of
total capital (which is defined as Tier | capitabasupplementary (Tier 2) capital) to risk-weightesets of 8%. In determining the amount of
risk-weighted assets, weights used (ranging from®%)0%) are based on the risks inherent in the of asset or item. The components of
Tier | capital are equivalent to those discussddvbender the 3.0% leverage capital standard. Tmeponents of supplementary capital
include certain perpetual preferred stock, mangatonvertible securities, subordinated debt anermediate preferred stock and, generally,
allowances for loan and lease losses. Allowancéofor and lease losses includable in supplementgpial is limited to a maximum of
1.25% of risk-weighted assets. Overall, the amoficapital counted toward supplementary capitahcaexceed 100% of core capital.

The FDIC’s and OTS’ capital regulations esttbh minimum 3.0% Tier | capital to total assetguirement for the most highly-rated state-
chartered, non-member banks, with an additionghionsof at least 100 to 200 basis points for dileotstate-chartered, non-member banks,
which effectively will increase the minimum Tielelverage ratio for such other banks from 4.0% @84%or more. Under these regulations,
highest-rated banks are those that are not antiicgpar experiencing significant growth and havdlwleversified risk, including no undue
interest rate risk exposure, excellent asset gqualigh liquidity and good earnings and, in genesis¢ considered a strong banking
organization and are rated composite | under théobin Financial Institutions Rating System. Levezay core capital is defined as the sum
of common stockholders’ equity including retainedréngs, non-cumulative perpetual preferred stockralated surplus, and minority
interests in consolidated subsidiaries, minusngdirigible assets other than certain qualifying stipery goodwill and certain purchased
mortgage servicing rights.

In August 1995, the FDIC and OTS publishethalfrule modifying their existing risk-based capistandards to provide for consideration
of interest rate risk when assessing the capitdaacy of a bank. Under the final rule, the FDIGshexplicitly include a bank’s exposure to
declines in the economic value of its capital dueltanges in interest rates as a factor in evalgiatibank’s capital adequacy. In June 1996,
the FDIC and OTS adopted a joint policy statemeninterest rate risk. Because market conditionskisaructure, and bank activities vary,
the agencies concluded that each bank needs ttogdteown interest rate risk management prografored to its needs and circumstances.
The policy statement describes prudent principtes@ractices that are fundamental to sound intea¢strisk management, including
appropriate board and senior management oversigha @omprehensive risk management process tleatig#ly identifies, measures,
monitors and controls such interest rate risk.

Failure to meet capital guidelines could sob@n insured bank to a variety of prompt correctictions and enforcement remedies under
the FDIA (as amended by Federal Deposit Insuramredtation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”) andd Riegle Community
Development and Regulatory Improvement Act of 198%)uding, with respect to an insured bank, #grenination of deposit insurance by
the FDIC, and certain restrictions on its businésgieneral terms, undercapitalized depositonjtungins are prohibited from making any
capital distributions (including dividends), arébgact to restrictions on borrowing from the Feddtakerve System, are subject to growth
limitations and are required to submit capital eestion plans.

As of December 31, 2006, FirstBank and FiratBalorida were well-capitalized. A bank’s capitategory, as determined by applying the
prompt corrective action provisions of law, howewany not constitute an accurate representatidheobverall financial condition or
prospects of the Bank, and should be considerednjunction with other available information regaglfinancial condition and results of
operations.

Set forth below are the Corporation’s, FirsitBa and FirstBank Florida’ capital ratios as of December 31, 2006, basdtederal Resen
and FDIC guidelines.
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First BanCorp Banking Subsidiary

Well-
FirstBank Capitalized
First BanCorp FirstBank Florida Minimum
Total capital (Total capital to ri-weighted asset: 12.46% 12.25% 11.35% 10.0(%
Tier 1 capital ratio (Tier 1 capital to rirweighted asset: 11.27% 11.02% 10.9¢% 6.0(%
Leverage ratic 7.91% 71.7¢% 8.1(% 5.0(%

The Consent Orders entered into with bankégilators required the Corporation and FirstBandrfduRico to submit a capital plan to
ensure that an adequate capital position is maiedady both FirstBank and the Corporation in lighthe reclassification of the mortgage-
related transactions as secured loans. The cafatalwas submitted to regulators in May 2005.

Activities and Investments

The activities as “principal” and equity inteents of FDIC-insured, state-chartered banks asdfirstBank are generally limited to those
that are permissible for national banks. Under lagns dealing with equity investments, an inswstade-chartered bank generally may not
directly or indirectly acquire or retain any equittyestments of a type, or in an amount, that tspeomissible for a national bank.

Federal Home Loan Bank System

FirstBank is a member of the Federal Home LBank (FHLB) system. The FHLB system consists aflt® regional Federal Home Loan
Banks governed and regulated by the Federal Housimance Board (FHFB). The Federal Home Loan Baekse as reserve or credit
facilities for member institutions within their agsed regions. They are funded primarily from petederived from the sale of consolidated
obligations of the FHLB system, and they make Iq@avances) to members in accordance with polenesprocedures established by the
FHLB system and the board of directors of eachoreajiFHLB.

FirstBank is a member of the FHLB of New Y@AHLB-NY) and as such is required to acquire anld lsbares of capital stock in that
FHLB for a certain amount, which is calculated az@dance with the requirements set forth in applie laws and regulations. FirstBank i
compliance with the stock ownership requirementhefFHLB-NY. All loans, advances and other extensiof credit made by the FHLB-
NY to FirstBank are secured by a portion of Firstk's mortgage loan portfolio, certain other investisesnd the capital stock of the FHLB-
NY held by FirstBank

FirstBank Florida is a member of the FHLB dfafata and is subject to similar requirements asehof FirstBank.
Ownership and Control

Because of FirstBank’s status as an FDIC-gwbinank, as defined in the Bank Holding Company Ricst Bancorp, as the owner of
FirstBank’s common stock, is subject to certairtrietions and disclosure obligations under varitederal laws, including the Bank Holding
Company Act and the Change in Bank Control Act (bBCA"). Regulations pursuant to the Bank Holdi@dgmpany Act generally require
prior Federal Reserve Board approval for an actiisof control of an insured institution (as defthin the Act) or holding company thereof
by any person (or persons acting in concert). @brgrdeemed to exist if, among other things, &per(or persons acting in concert) acquires
more than 25% of any class of voting stock of aurad institution or holding company thereof. Uniter CBCA, control is presumed to e:
subject to rebuttal if a person (or persons adtingpncert) acquires more than 10% of any classtihg stock and either (i) the corporation
has registered securities under Section 12 of drei@ies Exchange Act of 1934, or (ii) no persah ewn, control or hold the power to vote
a greater percentage of that class of voting siesiimmediately after the transaction. The conoéjgicting in concert is very broad and also
is subject to certain rebuttable presumptionsuidiclg among others, that relatives, business patnenagement officials, affiliates and
others are presumed to be acting in concert with ether and their businesses. The FDIC’s and @d@ilations implementing the CBCA
are generally similar to those described above.

The Puerto Rico Banking Law requires the apglrof the Commissioner for changes in control &feerto Rico bank. See “Puerto Rico
Banking Law.”

Cross-Guarantees

Under the FDIA, a depository institution (whiterm includes both banks and savings associdtittresdeposits of which are insured by
the FDIC, can be held liable for any loss incurogdor reasonably expected to be incurred by, DECHEN
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connection with (i) the default of a commonly catited FDIC4insured depository institution or (ii) any assistaprovided by the FDIC to a
commonly controlled FDIC-insured depository indtida “in danger of default.” “Default” is definedegerally as the appointment of a
conservator or a receiver and “in danger of defasidefined generally as the existence of certainditions indicating that a default is likely
to occur in the absence of regulatory assistamcgome circumstances (depending upon the amouhedbss or anticipated loss suffered by
the FDIC), cross-guarantee liability may resulthia ultimate failure or insolvency of one or maneured depository institutions liable to the
FDIC, and any obligations of that bank to its paarporation are subordinated to the subsidiankisacross-guarantee liability with respect
to commonly controlled insured depository institas. FirstBank and FirstBank Florida are curretity only FDIC-insured depository
institutions controlled by the Corporation and #fere subject to this guaranty provision.

Standards for Safety and Soundness

The FDIA, as amended by FDICIA and the Riggtenmunity Development and Regulatory Improvemeritdfd 994, requires the FDIC
and the other federal bank regulatory agenciesdascpibe standards of safety and soundness, blatEgs or guidelines, relating generally
operations and management, asset growth, asséiygaalnings, stock valuation, and compensatidre FDIC and the other federal bank
regulatory agencies adopted, effective August 9518 set of guidelines prescribing safety and dness standards pursuant to FDIA, as
amended. The guidelines establish general standalatmg to internal controls and information gyas, internal audit systems, loan
documentation, credit underwriting, interest ratpasure, asset growth and compensation, fees arefitse In general, the guidelines requ
among other things, appropriate systems and pescticidentify and manage the risks and exposypesfied in the guidelines. The
guidelines prohibit excessive compensation as aaferand unsound practice and describe compensatiexcessive when the amounts paid
are unreasonable or disproportionate to the seryiegformed by an executive officer, employee,adaeor principal shareholder. For
additional information, see the discussion undégrificant Events — Governmental Action, BankinggRtors.”

Brokered Deposits

FDIC regulations adopted under the FDIA gowbmreceipt of brokered deposits by banks. Welitaized institutions are not subject to
limitations on brokered deposits, while adequatalpitalized institutions are able to accept, renevollover brokered deposits only with a
waiver from the FDIC and subject to certain resiits on the interest paid on such deposits. Urggtalized institutions are not permitted to
accept brokered deposits. As of December 31, Z0@&Bank was a well-capitalized institution andswherefore not subject to any
limitations on brokered deposits.

Puerto Rico Banking Law

As a commercial bank organized under the lafitee Commonwealth, FirstBank is subject to sujs@m, examination and regulation by
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Commissioner ofiRaial Institutions (“Commissioner”) pursuant te thuerto Rico Banking Law of
1933, as amended (the “Banking Law”). The Bankiagvlcontains provisions governing the incorporatiod organization, rights and
responsibilities of directors, officers and stockless as well as the corporate powers, lendingditiains, capital requirements, investment
requirements and other aspects of FirstBank araffas. In addition, the Commissioner is givetesmsive rule-making power and
administrative discretion under the Banking Law.

The Banking Law authorizes Puerto Rico comimélmnks to conduct certain financial and relaetivities directly or through
subsidiaries, including the leasing of personapprty and the operation of a small loan corporation

The Banking Law requires every bank to mamtalegal reserve which shall not be less thantiyveercent (20%) of its demand liabilitir
except government deposits (federal, state andaipat), that are secured by actual collateral. fgserve is required to be composed of any
of the following securities or combination there(f) legal tender of the United States; (2) chamk®anks or trust companies located in any
part of Puerto Rico that are to be presented fidectton during the day following the day on whittey are received, (3) money deposited in
other banks provided said deposits are authoriggldoCommissioner, subject to immediate collect{dh federal funds sold to any Federal
Reserve Bank and securities purchased under agnéetoaesell executed by the bank with such fuhdsare subject to be repaid to the
bank on or before the close of the next businegsatal (5) any other asset that the Commissiorestifies from time to time.

The Banking Law permits Puerto Rico commerbaiks to make loans to any one person, firm, pestrip or corporation, up to an
aggregate amount of fifteen percent (15%) of tha efi (i) the bank’s paid-in capital; (ii) the bdskeserve fund; (iii) 50% of the bank’s
retained earnings; and (iv) any other componemtsttie Commissioner may determine from time to tithsuch loans are secured by
collateral worth at least twenty five percent (25%gre than the amount of the loan, the aggregatenmuan amount may reach one third of
the sum of the bank’s paid-in capital, reserve fli@¥o of retained earnings and such other comperikat the Commissioner may determine
from time to time. There are no restrictions untherBanking Law on the amount of loans that arellyls@cured by bonds, securities and
other evidence of indebtedness of the Governmetisofinited States, or of the Commonwealth of RuRito, or by bonds, not in default, of
municipalities or

21




Table of Contents

instrumentalities of the Commonwealth of PuertooRithe Corporation’s restatement of previously éskfinancial statements (Form 10-K/A
2004) due to, among other corrections, the reviteskification of mortgageelated transactions as secured commercial loaiesabfinancia
institutions caused the transactions to be treasatvo secured commercial loans, which were in®xoélending limits imposed by the
Banking Law. FirstBank received a ruling from then@missioner that results in FirstBank being congiden continued compliance with the
loan to one borrower limitation. The Puerto RiconBiag Law authorizes the Commissioner to deterroiter components which may be
considered for purposes of establishing its lendim@, which components may lay outside the tradial elements mentioned in Section 17.
After consideration of other components, the Corsiaiser authorized the Corporation to retain theisstloans to Doral and R&G as it
believed that these loans were secured by sufficigiateral to diversify, disperse and signifidgrtiffuse the risks connected to such loans
thereby satisfying the safety and soundness camgides mandated by Section 28 of the Puerto Reakig Law.

The Banking Law prohibits Puerto Rico commalrbianks from making loans secured by their ownkstand from purchasing their own
stock, unless such purchase is made pursuantéclarepurchase program approved by the Commissmris necessary to prevent losses
because of a debt previously contracted in godH.féihe stock purchased by the Puerto Rico comiadseink must be sold by the bank in a
public or private sale within one year from theedat purchase.

The Banking Law provides that no officersgdiors, agents or employees of a Puerto Rico coniahdank may serve or discharge a
position of officer, director, agent or employeeaobther Puerto Rico commercial bank, financiapoaation, savings and loan association,
trust corporation, corporation engaged in grantirggtgage loans or any other institution engagatiérmoney lending business in Puerto
Rico. This prohibition is not applicable to theilidtes of a Puerto Rico commercial bank.

The Banking Law requires that Puerto Rico cargial banks prepare each year a balance summéngiobperations, and submit such
balance summary for approval at a regular meetirsgozkholders, together with an explanatory refiieteon. The Banking Law also
requires that at least ten percent (10%) of thely@&t income of a Puerto Rico commercial bankteglited annually to a reserve fund. This
credit is required to be done every year until seserve fund shall be equal to the total paidapial of the bank.

The Banking Law also provides that when thgeexditures of a Puerto Rico commercial bank aratgrehan receipts, the excess of the
expenditures over receipts shall be charged agdiestndistributed profits of the bank, and theahag, if any, shall be charged against the
reserve fund, as a reduction thereof. If thereisaserve fund sufficient to cover such balancghiole or in part, the outstanding amount s
be charged against the capital account and noetidighall be declared until said capital has bestored to its original amount and the
reserve fund to twenty percent (20%) of the oribazgoital.

The Banking Law requires the prior approvallef Commissioner with respect to a transfer oftahptock of a bank that results in a
change of control of the bank. Under the Banking/ La change of control is presumed to occur ifsq@e or a group of persons acting in
concert, directly or indirectly, acquire more tHe# of the outstanding voting capital stock of tla@lkh The Commissioner has interpreted the
restrictions of the Banking Law as applying to dsijions of voting securities of entities controllia bank, such as a bank holding company.
Under the Banking Law, the determination of the Gussioner whether to approve a change of contintfis final and non-appealable.

The Finance Board, which is composed of thm@dssioner, the Secretary of the Treasury, theedagr of Commerce, the Secretary of
Consumer Affairs, the President of the Economicdd@yment Bank, the President of the Government Dpweent Bank, and the President
of the Planning Board, has the authority to reguthé maximum interest rates and finance charggsitay be charged on loans to individt
and unincorporated businesses in Puerto Rico. Uilvertt regulations of the Finance Board provide tha applicable interest rate on loans to
individuals and unincorporated businesses, inclydéal estate development loans but excludingicesther personal and commercial loans
secured by mortgages on real estate propertigs pis determined by free competition. Accordingie regulations do not set a maximum
for charges on retail installment sales contractsfar credit card purchases and set aside prevegidations which regulated these maxin
finance charges. Furthermore, there is no maximatmget for installment sales contracts involvir@anvehicles, commercial, agricultural
and industrial equipment, commercial electric agptes and insurance premiums.

International Banking Act of Puerto Rico (“IBE Act)

The business and operations of the First Bgm@BE, FirstBank IBE and FirstBank Overseas Coation are subject to supervision and
regulation by the Commissioner. Under the IBE Aefitain sales, encumbrances, assignments, meegetsgnges or transfers of shares,
interests or participation(s) in the capital ofimternational banking entity (an “IBE”) may not lmitiated without the prior approval of the
Commissioner. The IBE Act and the regulations idshereunder by the Commissioner (the “IBE Regaieti) limit the business activities
that may be carried out by an IBE. Such actividies
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limited in part to persons and assets located @it Puerto Rico.

Pursuant to the IBE Act and the IBE Regulaiaach of First BanCorp IBE, FirstBank IBE ancdstBank Overseas Corporation must
maintain books and records of all its transactiarthe ordinary course of business. First BanC8&ip, IFirstBank IBE and FirstBank Oversi
Corporation are also required thereunder to sutmitie Commissioner quarterly and annual reportheif financial condition and results of
operations, including annual audited financialestants.

The IBE Act empowers the Commissioner to revoksuspend, after notice and hearing, a licessseed thereunder if, among other thir
the IBE fails to comply with the IBE Act, the IBEeBulations or the terms of its license, or if thm@nissioner finds that the business or
affairs of the IBE are conducted in a manner thattat consistent with the public interest.

Puerto Rico Income Taxes

Under the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue CodE98# (the “Code”), all companies are treated parsge taxable entities and are not
entitled to file consolidated tax returns. The Quogtion, and each of its subsidiaries are subgeatrhaximum statutory corporate income tax
rate of 39% or an alternative minimum tax (“AMT ) @ncome earned from all sources, whichever isédrighhe excess of AMT over regular
income tax paid in any one year may be used t@bfégyular income tax in future years, subjecteidain limitations. The Code provides fc
dividend received deduction of 100% on dividend®ieed from wholly owned subsidiaries subject twoime taxation in Puerto Rico and
85% on dividends received from other taxable doimestrporations.

In computing the interest expense deductiom Qorporation’s interest deduction will be redugethe same proportion that the average
exempt assets bear to the average total asset&fdites to the extent that the Corporation holdsai® investments and loans which are
exempt from Puerto Rico income taxation, part ®fnterest expense will be disallowed for tax psgm

The Corporation has maintained an effectixeéde lower than the maximum statutory tax ratd26% (39% plus a 2.5% temporary tax
and a 2% additional tax) as of December 31, 20@6niynby investing in government obligations andrtgagebacked securities exempt fri
U.S. and Puerto Rico income tax combined with inedrom the international banking entity (IBE) unitisthe Corporation and the Bank and
by the Bank’s subsidiary, FirstBank Overseas Cation. The IBE, and FirstBank Overseas Corporatiere created under the IBE Act,
which provides for Puerto Rico tax exemption oninebme derived by IBEs operating in Puerto RiagrsBant to the provisions of Act
No. 13 of January 8, 2004, the IBE Act was amendéohpose income tax at regular rates on IBEsdpatate as units of a bank, to the ex
that the IBEs net income exceeds 40% of the bankéd net taxable income (including net income gatezl by the IBE unit) for the taxable
year that commenced on July 1, 2003, 30% for tkelie year that commenced on July 1, 2004 and 20%xable years commencing
July 1, 2005, and thereafter. These amendmenty appl to IBEs that operate as units of a banky tth@ not impose income tax on an IBE
that operates as a subsidiary of a bank.

Act 41 of August 1, 2005 amended the Puertm Riternal Revenue Code by imposing a temporadjtiadal tax of 2.5% on net taxable
income for all corporations. This temporary taxeefively increased the statutory tax rate from 36%1.5%. The Act became effective for
taxable years commencing after December 31, 20604ading on or before December 31, 2006 and theréceffective for the 2005 and
2006 taxable years with a retroactive effect tauday 1, 2005.

Act 89 of May 13, 2006 amended the Puerto Riternal Revenue Code by imposing a 2% addition@me tax on income subject to
regular taxes of all corporations operating purst@aict 55 of 1933 (The Puerto Rico Banking A&t 89 will be effective for the taxable
year commencing after December 31, 2005 and oeford December 31, 2006 and therefore, increasestétutory tax for the 2006 taxal
year to 43.5%. The statutory tax will revert to 38%taxable years commencing after December 3062

United States Income Taxes

The Corporation is also subject to federabme tax on its income from sources within the Whi&tates and on any item of income that is,
or is considered to be, effectively connected whthactive conduct of a trade or business withinUhited States. The U.S. Internal Revenue
Code provides for tax exemption of portfolio intgreeceived by a foreign corporation from sourcébiwthe United States, therefore, the
Corporation is not subject to federal income taxcertain U.S. investments which qualify under gt “portfolio interest”.
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Insurance Operations Regulation

FirstBank Insurance Agency, Inc. is registaasdn insurance agency with the Insurance Cononissof Puerto Rico and is subject to
regulations issued by the Insurance Commissiotatimg to, among other things, licensing of empksjesales, solicitation and advertising
practices, and to the FDIC as to certain consumggegtion provisions mandated by the Gramm-LeadleBAct and its implementing
regulations.

Community Reinvestment

Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA8derally insured banks have a continuing andraffiive obligation to meet the credit
needs of their entire community, including low- andderate-income residents, consistent with ttede and sound operation. The CRA does
not establish specific lending requirements or paots for financial institutions nor does it limit astitution’s discretion to develop the type
of products and services that it believes are igiged to its particular community, consistent itk CRA. The CRA requires the federal
supervisory agencies, as part of the general exatimimof supervised banks, to assess the bankisd®d meeting the credit needs of its
community, assign a performance rating, and takb secord and rating into account in their evabmatf certain applications by such bank.
The CRA also requires all institutions to make pubisclosure of their CRA ratings. FirstBank aricsiBBank Florida received a
“satisfactory” CRA rating in their most recent exaations by the FDIC.

Mortgage Banking Operations

FirstBank is subject to the rules and regatatiof the Federal Housing Administration (“FHAD,S. Department of Veteran Affairs
(“VA"), Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNM), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLNCHousing and Urban
Development (“HUD”) and Government National Mortgafjssociation (“GNMA”) with respect to originatingrocessing, selling and
servicing mortgage loans and the issuance andsatertgage-backed securities. Those rules andatgus, among other things, prohibit
discrimination and establish underwriting guidetiribat include provisions for inspections and ajspig, require credit reports on prospec
borrowers and fix maximum loan amounts, and wipeet to VA loans, fix maximum interest rates. Moer, lenders such as FirstBank are
required annually to submit to FHA, VA, FNMA, FHLMGNMA and HUD audited financial statements, anche@gulatory entity has its
own financial requirements. FirstBank’s affairs atgo subject to supervision and examination by FAA, FNMA, FHLMC, GNMA and
HUD at all times to assure compliance with the mablle regulations, policies and procedures. Mapggarigination activities are subject to,
among others, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act,défatiTruth-in-Lending Act, and the Real Estate I8atent Procedures Act and the
regulations promulgated thereunder which, amongrdtiings, prohibit discrimination and require thisclosure of certain basic information
to mortgagors concerning credit terms and settlémmasts. FirstBank is licensed by the Commissiameter the Puerto Rico Mortgage
Banking Law, and as such is subject to regulatipthk Commissioner, with respect to, among otheigt) licensing requirements and
establishment of maximum origination fees on cartgpes of mortgage loan products.

Section 5 of the Puerto Rico Mortgage Bankiag/ requires the prior approval of the Commissidoetthe acquisition of control of any
mortgage banking institution licensed under sueh For purposes of the Puerto Rico Mortgage Bankiag, the term “control” means the
power to direct or influence decisively, directlyindirectly, the management or policies of a magtg banking institution. The Puerto Rico
Mortgage Banking Law provides that a transactiai tesults in the holding of less than 10% of thestanding voting securities of a
mortgage banking institution shall not be considexehange in control.

Recent Legislation

Act 89 of May 13, 2006 imposed a 2% additianabme tax on the net income subject to regubeedaf all corporations operating
pursuant to Act 55 of 1933 (The Puerto Rico Bankdat). The Act became effective for the taxablery@@mmencing after December 31,
2005 and on or before December 31, 2006, and threxghcreased the statutory tax for the 2006 tiexpdar to 43.5%. The statutory tax will
revert to 39% for taxable years commencing afterdbeber 31, 2006.

Act 98 of May 16, 2006 imposed an extraordir&o tax on the taxable income reported in the @@ie tax return of corporations whose
gross income exceeded $10 million for the taxaklr ynded on or before December 31, 2005. Covaxgayers were required to file a
special return and pay the tax no later than Jujy\2B06. The extraordinary tax paid will be takeraaredit against the income tax of the
entity determined for taxable years commencing dfidy 31, 2006, subject to certain limitations.yAmused credit may be carried forwarc
subsequent taxable years, subject to certain limits.

On December 22, 2006, Law No. 283 was approaegnding Section 27 of Law No. 55 of May 12, 1983amended. This law clarifies
the process for the determination of loan lossefinaycial institutions in the Commonwealth of PoeRico, stipulating that accrued interest
on loans past due 90 days or more should be extlindsn income, except on loans collateralized bytgages, where interest past due not
exceeding one year could be included as part ohirgcgiven proper disclosure of the fact that theyehnot been collected. It also requires
that loans past due 365 days for which no intexest collected during the periods be charged tekssxcept for collateralized loans and
loans under legal collection efforts, which will blearged to losses up to their net realizable value
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Certain risk factors that may affect the Cogpion’s future results of operations are discudssidw.

Risks Relating to the 2004 Restatement Process
First BanCorp is subject to the ongoing regulatoiyvestigation by the SEC

On August 25, 2005, the Corporation annouribedeceipt of a letter from the SEC in which tl&CSndicated that it was conducting an
informal inquiry of, among other things, the Corgitwn’s accounting for mortgage loans purchasethbyCorporation from two other
financial institutions during the calendar year89 ¢hrough 2004. On October 21, 2005, the Corpmmainnounced that the SEC had issued a
formal order of investigation into the accountiing the mortgage—related transactions with Doral R&¢.

First BanCorp has been engaged in discussithghe staff of the SEC regarding a possible ltggm to its investigation of the
Corporation’s restatement, and has accrued $8lBbmih its consolidated financial statements fog t/ear ended December 31, 2005 in
connection with a potential settlement of the SEGV&stigation of the Corporation. Any settlemensubject to the approval of the SEC.
There can be no assurance that the Corporatioiogs®fo resolve the SEC’s investigation with regye the Corporation will be successful,
or that the amount accrued will be sufficient, &mel Corporation cannot predict at this time thangyor final terms of any settlement.

Settlement of pending litigation may not be apprave

As a consequence of the accounting reviewresiditement, the Corporation is subject to pendiass-action proceedings (refer to
“Significant Events” above). Following the annoumamnt of the Audit Committee’s review, the Corpavatand certain of its officers and
directors and former officers and directors wemmed as defendants in five separate securities atdigms filed between October 31, 2005
and December 5, 2005, alleging violations of SestibO(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange AtB84. All securities class actions w
consolidated into one case named “In Re: First BapGecurities Litigations”. During the first quariof 2007, the Corporation reached an
agreement in principle and signed a memorandunmaérstanding to settle all claims with the leadrpifis in the shareholder class action.
Under the terms of the settlement, which is sulifeéinal approval by the United States Districtu@dor the District of Puerto Rico, First
BanCorp will pay the plaintiffs $74.25 million. Tt@orporation accrued $74.25 million in its consatil financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2005 in connection with a piaiesgttiement. No assurance can be given thatthet will approve the settlement.

Banking regulators could take adverse action agaitise Corporation or its banking subsidiaries agesult of the Consent Orders

The Corporation is subject to supervision eegllation by the Board of Governors of the FedBeserve System. The Corporation is a
bank holding company that qualifies as a finanle@ting corporation. As such, the Corporation ismged to engage in a broader spectrum
of activities than those permitted to bank holdiognpanies that are not financial holding compariiescontinue to qualify as a financial
holding corporation, each of the Corporation’s baglsubsidiaries must continue to qualify as “wapitalized” and “well-managed.” As of
December 31, 2006, the Corporation and its bansirimgidiaries continue to satisfy all applicablei@dguidelines. This, however, does not
prevent banking regulators from taking adverseoastagainst the Corporation or its banking subsahaas a result of the Consent Orders or
related internal control matters. If the Corpomatigere not to continue to qualify as a financiddim corporation, it might be required to
discontinue certain activities and may be prohibftem engaging in new activities without prior uégtory approval.

Federal banking regulators, in the performasfd@eir supervisory and enforcement duties, hsgrificant discretion and power to initiate
enforcement actions for violations of laws and tagions and unsafe or unsound practices. FailuteeoCorporation or FirstBank to remain
in compliance with the terms of the Consent Orderdd result in the imposition of additional ceasel desist orders and/or in monetary
penalties.

Downgrades in the Corporation’s credit ratings calipotentially increase the cost of borrowing funds

Following the Corporation’s announcement onoDer 21, 2005 that the SEC had issued a forma&rafiinvestigation, the major rating
agencies downgraded the Corporation’s and FirstBanakings in a series of actions. Fitch Ratingsl. lowered the Corporation’s long-term
senior debt rating from BBB- to BB and placed tatng on Rating Watch Negative. Standard & Poongeled the long-term senior debt and
counterparty rating of FirstBank from BBB- to BBmdhplaced the rating on Credit Watch Negative. Mo®thvestor Service lowered
FirstBank’s long-term senior debt rating from Bda3

25




Table of Contents

Bal and placed the rating on negative outlook. g@leegurther downgrades may adversely affect thep@ation’s and FirstBank’s ability to
access capital and will likely result in more sgémt covenants and higher interest rates undeethes of any future indebtedness.

These debt and financial strength ratingscareent opinions of the rating agencies. As sutéy tmay be changed, suspended or withd
at any time by the rating agencies as a resulbafges in, or unavailability of, information or bdson other circumstances.

The Corporation’s liquidity is contingent upit® ability to obtain external sources of fundindginance its operations. Downgrades in
credit ratings can hinder the Corporation’s actesxternal funding and/or cause external fundinge more expensive, which could in turn
adversely affect the results of operations.

There is a lack of public disclosure concerning ti@orporation

The Corporation has not yet filed with the SEQjuarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the fisgahrters ended June 30, 2005,
September 30, 2005, March 31, 2006, June 30, Z¥@ember 30, 2006 and March 31, 2007 or the imtBnancial information required by
those reports. In addition, it needs to file an Ahed quarterly report in Form 10-Q for fiscal geanded March 31, 2005 or the restated
interim financial information required by that repdrhe Corporation expects to file these reportshe financial information required by thi
reports as soon as practicable after the filinthisf Form 10-K. Until the Corporation files thisiéincial information, there will be limited
public information available concerning the Corpimials most recent interim results of operations.

The Corporation’s delay in filing all required finacial statements may adversely affect its abiliyattract customers, investors and
employees

The Corporation’s ability to attract customangl investors may be adversely affected by itaydel filing all the required financial
statements and the risks and uncertainties thay dehy suggest. This delay may also have an adeéfiesst on the Corporation’s ability to
attract and retain key employees and managemesumesl.

Risks Relating to the Corporation’s Business
Fluctuations in interest rates may impact the Comation’s results of operations

Increases in interest rates are the primamketaisk affecting the Corporation. Interest rades highly sensitive to many factors, such as
governmental monetary policies and domestic aratriational economic and political conditions that laeyond the control of the
Corporation.

Since the year 2004, interest rates have ibeegasing and this may negatively affect the folfay areas of the Corporation’s business:
. The net interest incom
. The value of owned securities, including interes¢ swaps; an
. the volume of loans originated, particularly moggdoans

Increases in interest rates may reduce net inténestme

Increases in short-term interest rates mayaeadet interest income, which is the principal ponent of the Corporation’s earnings. Net
interest income is the difference between the atnmaeived by the Corporation on its interest-eagrassets and the interest paid by the
Corporation on its interest-bearing liabilities. gvhinterest rates rise, the Corporation must pageriminterest on its liabilities while the
interest earned on its assets does not rise aklyjulhis may cause the Corporation’s profits terdase.

Increases in interest rates may reduce the vall®lufings of securities

Fixedrate securities entered into by the Corporatiorgareerally subject to decreases in market valuenrterest rates rise, which wot
require recognition of a loss, thereby potentialffigcting adversely the results of operations.
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Increases in interest rates may reduce demand éwtgage and other loans

Higher interest rates increase the cost otgage and other loans to consumers and businesdesay reduce demand for such loans,
which may negatively impact the Corporation’s profiy reducing the amount of loan origination ineom

The Corporation is subject to default risk on lognghich may adversely affect its results

The Corporation is subject to the risk of lbssn loan defaults and foreclosures with respec¢hé loans it originates. The Corporation
establishes a provision for loan losses, whichdeadeductions in its income from operations, riteed to maintain its allowance for inherent
loan losses at a level which its management deerns aippropriate based upon an assessment ofality au its loan portfolio. Although the
Corporation’s management utilizes its best judgnmeproviding for loan losses, there can be no i@s®me that management has accurately
estimated the level of inherent loan losses ortti@atCorporation will not have to increase its psmn for loan losses in the future as a result
of future increases in non performing loans orditrer reasons beyond its control. Any such increaséhe Corporation’s provision for loan
losses or any loan losses in excess of its pravigioloan losses would have an adverse effecherCorporation’s future financial condition
and results of operations. Given the difficultibattthe Corporation’s largest borrowers have Haglorporation can give no assurance that
these borrowers, Doral and R&G Financial, will édone to repay their secured loans on a timely barsibat the Corporation will continue to
be able to accurately assess any risk of loss fhentoans to these financial institutions.

The Corporation’s business concentration in PuefRco imposes risks

The Corporation conducts its operations iraggaphically concentrated area, as its main magketierto Rico. This imposes risks from
lack of diversification in the geographical portéolThe Corporatiors financial condition and results of operationstaghly dependent on tl
economic conditions of Puerto Rico, where adveddiigal or economic developments, natural disastetc. could affect the volume of loan
originations, increase the level of nonperformisgeds, increase the rate of foreclosure lossesams,) and reduce the value of the
Corporation’s loans and loan servicing portfolio.

These factors could materially and adversfcathe Corporation’s financial condition anduklis of operations. As a result of the
reclassification of purchases of mortgage loaresGbrporation had substantial secured loans td fo@cial institutions in the amount of
$932.0 million and $3.7 billion as of December 3006 and 2005, respectively.

First BanCorp is subject to risks associated wittetCommonwealth of Puerto Rico’s temporary budgesis

Due to a budget impasse, the Commonwealtlueft® Rico (the “Commonwealth”) closed all publgeacies on May 1, 2006, except
those related to safety, health and other essesatigices. All agencies were subsequently openedieeks later and a budget approval by
Legislature was signed into law by the GovernoribahAcevedo Vila. Subsequently, Moody’s Invest8esvice downgraded the
Commonwealth’s general obligation bond rating taB&om Baa2, and kept the rating on Watchlistpiossible further downgrade.

According to Moody’s, this action reflects tiemmonwealth’s strained financial condition, amgi@ing political conflict and lack of
agreement regarding the measures necessary thegdviernment’s multi-year trend of financial diteation. A fiscal reform has been
recently approved, where the House and Senate \agapeotax reform authorizing a 5.5% state salesutaka 1.5% optional municipal tax,
with the option, if expected revenues do not matieg, to raise it an additional 1% after Decen@06. Nevertheless, significant budget
deficits and fiscal imbalance could continue in ¢tbening years. Any significant adverse politicaeeonomic developments in Puerto Rico
resulting from the budget impasse could have athaginpact on the Corporation’s future financiahdition and results of operations.

Rating downgrades on the Government of Puerto R&debt obligations may affect the Corporation’s dieexposure

Even though Puerto Rico’s economy is closeiggrated to that of the U.S. mainland and its gowent and many of its instrumentalities
are investment-grade rated borrowers in the U @talanarkets, the current fiscal situation of thevernment of Puerto Rico has led
nationally recognized rating agencies to downgitsddebt obligations.

In May 2006, Moody'’s Investors Service dowrttge the Government’s general obligation bond ratingaa3 from Baa2, and put the
credit on “watchlist” for possible further downgezd The Commonwealth’s appropriation bonds and suittee subordinated revenue bonds
were also downgraded by one notch and are now jasetelow investment grade at Bal. Moody's comt@ethat this action reflects the
Government’s strained financial condition, the dnggolitical conflict and lack of agreement regagidthe measures necessary to end the
government’s multi-year trend of financial deteaitton. Standard & Poor’s Rating Services (“S&P1l) sates the Government’s general
obligations two notches above junk at BBB, andG@eenmonwealth’s appropriation bonds and some othmrdinated revenue bonds BBB-,
a category that continues to
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be investment-grade rated.

In July 2006, S&P and Moody’s affirmed theiedit ratings on the Commonwealth debt, and remalediebt from their respective watch
lists, thus reducing the possibility of an immediatditional downgrade. These actions resulted gigeGovernment approved the budget for
the 2007 fiscal year, which runs from July 200®tlgh June 2007 and included the adoption of a s $ax. Revenues from the sales tax
are to be dedicated primarily to fund the governt'savperating expenses, and to a lesser extengptmy government debt and fund local
municipal governments.

Both rating agencies maintained the negatittok for the Puerto Rico obligation bonds. Fagtauch as the government’s ability to
implement meaningful steps to curb operating exjteras, improve managerial and budgetary conteoig, eliminate the government’s
reliance on operating budget loans from the Goventrbevelopment Bank of Puerto Rico will be keyedetinants of future rating stability
and restoration of a stable long-term outlook. Atke inability to agree on future fiscal year Coomwealth budgets could result in ratings
pressure from the rating agencies.

It is uncertain how the financial markets megct to any potential future ratings downgradBuerto Rico’s debt obligations. However,
the fallout from the recent budgetary crisis armmbsasible ratings downgrade could adversely affezt/alue of Puerto Rico’s Government
obligations.

First Bancorp’s credit quality may be adversely afted by Puerto Rico’s current economic condition

The slowdown in the island’s growth rate, whappears to have started in 2005 according t@tleeto Rico Planning Board statistics, has
continued in 2006. In addition, manufacturing heslithed in 2006, for the first time since 2002.

Construction remained relatively weak duri®@§@, as the combination of rising interest rates,Gommonwealth’s fiscal situation and
decreasing public investment in construction prigjetfected the sector. The value of constructiemyts during the fiscal year ending June
2006 declined 4.3%, with most of the drop comirayrfrthe public sector. Retail sales during the sinths ending June 2006 also reflected
the uncertainty prevalent at the time related éo@Glommonwealtls fiscal situation, as well as increased oil arnlityuprices. Sales registerer
decline of 1.9% as compared to the same perio@05 2as the months surrounding the temporary govenh shutdown were particularly
affected. The unemployment rate was 10.2% as oémbéer 2006.

In general, it is apparent that in 2006 therRuRican economy continued its trend of decrepgiowth and ended the first half of the year
with minimal momentum, primarily due to weaker miuturing, softer consumption and decreased govenhimvestment in construction.

The above economic concerns and uncertairttyeiprivate and public sectors may also have aarad effect on the credit quality of the
Corporation’s loan portfolios, as delinquency raiss expected to increase in the short-term, thrgieconomy stabilizes. Also, a potential
reduction in consumer spending may also impact tirémvother interest and non-interest revenue ssuof the Corporation.

A prolonged economic slowdown or a decline in theal estate market in the U.S mainland could harnetresults of operations of
FirstMortgage

The residential mortgage loan origination hass has historically been cyclical, enjoying pasiof strong growth and profitability
followed by periods of shrinking volumes and indystide losses. Any decline in residential mortgégpn originations in the market could
also reduce the level of mortgage loans the Cotjporanay produce in the future and adversely impactbusiness. During periods of rising
interest rates, refinancing originations for manyrigage products tend to decrease as the econnceictives for borrowers to refinance their
existing mortgage loans are reduced. In additiom résidential mortgage loan origination businesspacted by home values. Over the past
yeatr, residential real estate values in some arfethe U.S. mainland have decreased greatly, winichled to lower volumes and higher los
across the industry, adversely impacting our mgegdausiness.

The actual rates of delinquencies, foreclasaral losses on loans could be higher during ecmnglowdowns. Rising unemployment,
higher interest rates or declines in housing priead to have a greater negative effect on théyabil borrowers to repay their mortgage
loans. Any sustained period of increased delingiesnéoreclosures or losses could harm the Corjporatability to sell loans, the prices the
Corporation receives for loans, the values of magggloans held-for-sale or residual interests éuisgzations, which could harm the
Corporation’s financial condition and results okogtions. In addition, any material decline in restlate values would weaken the collateral
loan-to-value ratios and increase the possibilitpss if a borrower defaults. In such event, tloeg@ration will be subject to the risk of loss
on such mortgage asset arising from borrower desfamilthe extent not covered by third-party credihancement.
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Changes in regulations and legislation could havdiaancial impact on First BanCorp

As a financial institution, the Corporatiorsisbject to the scrutiny of various regulatory &agislative bodies. Any change in regulations
and/or legislation, whether in the United StatePoerto Rico, could have a financial impact onrdsailts of operations of the Corporation.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties
As of December 31, 2006, First BanCorp owrnedfollowing three main offices located in Pueriod?
Main offices

1. Headquarter Offices — Located at First Federalddngl, 1519 Ponce de Ledn Avenue, Santurce, Puéctn R 16 story office building.
Approximately 60% of the building, an undergrouhtee level parking lot and an adjacent parkingtetowned by the Corporatic

2. EDP & Operations Center — A five-story structureated at 1506 Ponce de Ledn Avenue, Santurce,dPRi&. These facilities are fully
occupied by the Corporatio

3. Consumer Lending Center — A three-story buildinthvei three-level parking lot located at 876 MufidzelRa Avenue, corner Jesus T.
Pifiero Avenue, Hato Rey, Puerto Rico. These fasliare fully occupied by the Corporation. In aibaif during 2006, First BanCorp
purchased the following office located in Puertod?

113C Mufioz Rivera — a building located on 1130 MufidzelRa Avenue, Hato Rey, Puerto Rico. These faeditvill be remodeled and
expanded to accommodate branch operations, datagziog, administrative and headquarter officastBank expects to commer
occupancy as soon as practica

In addition, the Corporation owned 28 branct affice premises and an auto lot and leased t&Tch premises, loan and office centers
and other facilities. All of these premises areated in Puerto Rico and in the U.S. and BritishgWirslands and Florida. Management
believes that the Corporation’s properties are welintained and are suitable for the Corporatibu'siness as presently conducted.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

During 2006, the Corporation became subjegatious legal proceedings, including regulatomyestigations and civil litigation, as a re
of the restatement of the 2004 financial informatiBor information on these proceedings, see “8amit Events — Governmental Action”
and “Significant Events — Private Litigation”, aleov

Additionally, the Corporation and its subsiida are defendants in various lawsuits arisinpéordinary course of business. In the opi
of the Corporation’s management, except as destiibthe Significant Events section above, the penend threatened legal proceedings of
which management is aware will not have a matadakrse effect on the financial condition or resoftoperations of the Corporation.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityolders

None.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Market and Holders Information

The Corporation’s common stock is traded anNlew York Stock Exchange under the symbol FBPD@cember 31, 2006, there were
566 holders of record of the Corporation’s commintls
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The following table sets forth the high and/ Iprices of the Corporation’s common stock for pleeiods indicated as reported by the
NYSE. This table reflects the effect of the Jun82@wvc-for-one stock split on the Corporation’s outstaigdshares of common stock as of
June 15, 2005.

Quarter ended High Low Last
2006:

Decembe $10.7¢ $ 9.3¢ $ 9.5¢
Septembe 11.1¢ 8.6€ 11.0¢
June 12.2z 8.9C 9.3C
March 13.1¢ 12.2C 12.3¢
2005:

Decembe $15.5¢ $10.61 $12.41
Septembe 26.07 16.5C 16.9:2
June 21.31 17.31 20.0¢
March 32.2¢ 20.7¢ 21.1z
2004:

Decembe $32.4¢ $23.6¢ $31.7¢
Septembe 24.9¢ 19.81 24.1°¢
June 21.3¢ 17.57 20.3¢
March 21.6¢€ 19.5C 20.8(

First BanCorp has five outstanding seriesarf convertible preferred stock: 7.125% non-cumuéagierpetual monthly income preferred
stock, Series A (liquidation preference $25 perash®.35% non-cumulative perpetual monthly incgreferred stock, Series B (liquidation
preference $25 per share), 7.40% non-cumulativiegbeal monthly income preferred stock, Series @uitlation preference $25 per share),
7.25% non-cumulative perpetual monthly income preféstock, Series D (liquidation preference $25gbare,) and 7.00% non-cumulative
perpetual monthly income preferred stock, Seri¢gHidation preference $25 per share) (collectiviétreferred Stock”), which trade on the
NYSE.

On March 19, 2007, the Corporation receivéetter from the NYSE advising that the procedureSeéction 802.01E of the Listed
Company Manual are applicable to the Corporatioa @sult of the fact that it did not file with t8&C the Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3062@he “2006 10-K”) by March 1, 2007, the datevdmich it was required to have been
filed under Section 13 of the Securities Exchangedk 1934. Among other things, the NYSE advisezl@worporation that it will post the
Corporation’s 2006 10-K to the annual late filéss bn the Listing Standards Filing Status pagéhenNYSE'’s website on March 22, 2007.
The NYSE also advised the Corporation that, pursteaSection 802.01E of the Listed Company Maniled,NYSE is closely monitoring the
status of the Corporation’s late filing and, if tBerporation does not file the 2006 10-K within siwnths of the March 1, 2007 due date, the
NYSE will determine whether to allow the Corpora’s securities to trade for up to an additionalsianths or to commence suspension and
delisting procedures. With the filing of this 2008-K, the Corporation complies with the six-montm§ requirement

Dividends

The Corporation has a policy of paying quéyteash dividends on its outstanding shares of comatock. Accordingly, the Corporation
declared a cash dividend of $0.07 per share fdr qaarter of 2006, $0.07 per share for each quaft2@05 and $0.06 per share for each
quarter of 2004. See the discussion under “Divideadtrictions” under Item 1 for additional inforrizatt concerning restrictions on the
payment of dividends that apply to the Corporatiod FirstBank.

The Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code reqtiresvithholding of income tax from dividend incomerived by resident U.S. citizens,
special partnerships, trusts and estates and miaerd U.S. citizens, custodians, partnerships,canporations from sources within Puerto
Rico.

Resident U.S. Citizens

A special tax of 10% is imposed on eligibleidénds paid to individuals, special partnershipssts, and estates to be applied to all
distributions unless the taxpayer specifically ®axtherwise. Once this election is made it isviomable. However, the taxpayer can elect to
include in gross income the eligible distributioaseived and take a credit for the amount of takivéld. If the taxpayer does not make this
election on the tax return, then he can exclude fgooss income the
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distributions received and reported without claignihe credit for the tax withheld.
Nonresident U.S. Citizens

Nonresident U.S. citizens have the right tdade exemptions when a Withholding Tax Exemptiart@icate (Form 2732) is properly
completed and filed with the Corporation. The Caogpion, as withholding agent, is authorized to wald a tax of 10% only from the excess
of the income paid over the applicable tax-exempdant.

U.S. Corporations and Partnerships

Corporations and partnerships not organizettuRuerto Rico laws that have not engaged in wadeisiness in Puerto Rico during the
taxable year in which the dividend is paid are sabjo the 10% dividend tax withholding. Corporati@r partnerships not organized under
the laws of Puerto Rico that have engaged in toadisiness in Puerto Rico are not subject to €8é withholding, but they must declare the
dividend as gross income on their Puerto Rico inetex return.

Equity Compensation Plan Disclosure

The following summarizes equity compensatitamg approved by security holders as of Decembg2@6.

(A (B ©)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Number of Securities Future Issuance Under
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Outstandin¢  Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding Securitie

Plan category Options Outstanding Options Reflected in Column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholc
Stock option plan 3,024,411 $ 13.9¢ 1,856,26
Sut-total 3,024,411 $ 13.9¢ 1,856,26
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre N/A N/A N/A
Total 3,024,411 $ 13.9¢ 1,856,26

The stock option plan expired January 21, 2007
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents consolidatedririal and operating information for the Corporatamof the dates indicated. This informa
should be read in conjunction with the auditedriitial statements and the notes thereto.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in thousands except for per share and finacial ratios results)

Condensed Income Statements: Year el
Total interest incom
Total interest expense (
Net interest incom
Provision for loan and lease los:
Non-interest incom
Non-interest expense
Income before income tax provisi
Income tax provisiol
Net income

Per Common Share Results (2): Year er
Net income per common share dilu
Net income per common share bz

Cash dividends declart

Average shares outstandi

Average shares outstanding dilu
Balance Sheet Data: End of y¢

Loans and loans held for si

Allowance for loan and lease los:

Investment:

Total asset

Deposits

Borrowings

Total common equit

Total equity

Book value per common she
Selected Financial Ratios (In Percent): Year er

Net income to average total ass

Net income to average total equ

Net income to average common eqt

Average total equity to average total as:

Dividend payout ratic

Efficiency ratio (3)
Common Stock Price: End of ye
Offices:

Number of full service branch

2006

$ 1,288,81.
845,11¢
443,69:

74,99:
31,33¢
287,96:
112,07¢
27,44:
84,63¢

0.5¢
0.54

&$A A

©~

0.2¢
82,83t
83,13¢

$11,263,98
158,29¢
5,544,18
17,390,25
11,004,28
4,662,27.
679,45
1,229,55
8.1¢

0.44

7.0€

6.8

6.2°5

52.5(

60.62

$ 9.5¢

71

2005

$ 1,067,59
635,27
432,31

50,64+
63,077
315,13:
129,62(
15,01¢
114,60

0.9C
0.92

&$H A

©~

0.2¢
80,84
82,77

$12,685,92
147,99¢
6,653,92.
19,917,65
12,463,75
5,750,19
647,74.
1,197,84.
8.01

0.64

8.9¢

10.2¢

7.0¢

30.4¢

63.61

$ 12.41

68

2004

$ 690,33
292,85!
397,48

52,80(
59,62«
180,48
223,82!
46,50(
177,32¢

1.6t
1.7¢

&$H A

©~

0.24
80,41¢
83,01(

$ 9,697,99.
141,03t
5,699,20.
15,637,04
7,912,32
6,300,57
654,23!
1,204,33
8.1C

1.3C

15.7:

23.7¢

8.2¢

14.1(

39.4¢

$ 31.7¢

57

(1) Includes the changes in fair value of interest sataps that hedge brokered certificates of def
(2) Amounts presented were recalculated, whelicgiybe, to retroactively consider the effect of thrune 30, 2005 two-for-one common

stock split.

(3) Non-interest expense to the sum of net interest incamaenor-interest income
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2003

$ 549,46t
297,52¢
251,93t
55,91¢
106,79t
164,63(
138,19:
18,29;
119,89:

$ 1.0¢
$ 1.1z

$ 0.2z
79,98¢
81,96¢

$ 7,041,05!
126,37t
5,368,12.
12,679,04
6,771,86!
4,634,23
523,72:
1,073,82.
6.54

1.1¢

13.31

18.21

8.64

19.6¢

45.8¢

$ 19.7¢

54

2002

$ 550,10°
235,57!
314,53:
62,30:
48,78¢
132,81
168,20:
35,34
132,86:

1.3Z
1.34

8 &hH

&

0.2C
79,80:
81,10¢

$5,635,02.
111,91:
3,728,66!
9,625,11
5,445,71
3,238,36!
455,52;
816,02:
5.7C

1.51

18.6:
29.4¢

8.11

15.0(
36.5¢

$ 11.3(
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Amil of Financial Condition and Results of Openadicelates to the accompanying
consolidated audited financial statements of BesiCorp. (“the Corporation” or “First BanCorp”) asdould be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements and the notes thereto.

Description of Business

First BanCorp and subsidiaries (“the Corpordi is a diversified financial holding company kegaartered in San Juan, Puerto Rico
offering a full range of financial products to cangers and commercial customers through variousdiabies. First BanCorp is the holding
company of FirstBank Puerto Rico (“FirstBank” oettBank”), Ponce General Corporation (the holdiogypany of FirstBank Florida) and
FirstBank Insurance Agency. Through its wholly-odrseibsidiaries, the Corporation operates officd2uarto Rico, the United States and
British Virgin Islands and the State of Florida A)Specializing in commercial banking, residentiartgage loan originations, finance
leases, personal loans, small loans, vehicle rentalrance agency services and international bgnki

On March 31, 2005, the Corporation completedacquisition of 100% of the outstanding commareas of Ponce General Corporation,
the holding company of Unibank a thrift subsidiaapd Ponce Realty, with a total of eleven finans@lice facilities in the State of Florida.
The purpose of the acquisition was for First Bamgorbuild a platform in Florida to consider funtlexpansion into the United States. The
Corporation subsequently changed the name of UkitmRirstBank Florida.

The Corporation’s results of operations aresgie to fluctuations in interest rates. Chanigeisterest rates can materially affect key
earnings drivers such as the volume of loan ortging, net interest income earned, and gains/laasé@svestment security holdings. The
Corporation manages interest rate risk on an oggoésis through asset/liability management stragegihich have included the use of
various derivative instruments. The Corporatiomm &amnages credit risk inherent in its loan port®linrough its underwriting, loan review
and collection functions. The Corporation’s busiastivities and credit exposures are mainly cotmated in Puerto Rico. Consequently, its
financial condition and results of operations agpehdent on the economic conditions as well asgasim legislation on the Island.

Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains “forward-looking stetents” within the meaning of the Private Securitiggation Reform Act of 1995. When
used in this Form 10-K or future filings by FirsaBCorp with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiatine Corporation’s press releases or
in other public or shareholder communicationshaoorial statements made with the approval of ancaizid executive officer, the word or

phrases “would be,” “will allow,” “intends to,” “Wi likely result,” “are expected to,” “should,” “dicipate” and similar expressions are meant

to identify “forward-looking statements.”

First BanCorp wishes to caution readers nglaoe undue reliance on any such “forward-loolstajements,” which speak only as of the
date made, and represent First BanCorp’s expesgatibfuture conditions or results and are not gotwes of future performance. First
BanCorp advises readers that various factors amaude actual results to differ materially from #hoentained in any “forward-looking
statement.” Such factors include, but are not &ahito, the following:

. risks associated with the Corporar's inability to prepare and timely submit regulatéilyngs;
. the Corporatio’s ability to attract new clients and retain exigtones

. general economic conditions, including prevailinggrest rates and the performance of the finaneéakets, which may affect demand
for the Corporation’s products and services andsttiee of the Corporation’s assets, including thkig of the interest rate swaps that
hedge the interest rate risk mainly relating tokbred certificates of depos“brokered CD") and mediur-term notes

. risks arising from worsening economic condition®irerto Rico

. risks arising from credit and other risks of lergland investment activitie

. changes in the Corporati's expenses associated with acquisitions and dispusi
. developments in technolog

. risks associated with changing the Corporé s business strategy to no longer acquire mortgaayeslin bulk
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. risks associated with the ongoing SEC investiga

. the completion of the sale of shares of commoaoksto Bank of Nova Scotia, which is conditioned among other things, regulatory
approvals

. the ability to finalize the settlement of the straleer litigation;

. the impact of Dor¢ s financial condition on its repayment of its catsting secured loan to FirstBai
. risks associated with being subject to the ceadalasist ordel

. potential further downgrades in the credit ratinfthe Corporatio’s securities

. general competitive factors and industry consoliaatand

. risks associated with regulatory and legislatiianges for financial services companies in PuRito, the United States, and the U.S.
and British Virgin Islands

The Corporation does not undertake, and dpeltif disclaims any obligation, to update any \f@rd-looking statements” to reflect
occurrences or unanticipated events or circumssaafiter the date of such statements except asreeljoy the federal securities laws.

Investors should carefully consider thesediacand the risk factors outlined under Item 1AskRfactors, in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Over the course of the Corporation’s restatarogits financial statements for periods betw@anuary 1, 2000 and December 31, 2004,
the Corporation’s management identified a numbenalterial weaknesses in its internal control ouarfcial reporting as of December 31,
2004 and 2005. The Corporation took a number afisigint actions to remedy the material weaknessés internal controls identified in
2004 and 2005. The Corporation developed and imgaiéed a plan for remedying all of the identifiedtenal weaknesses. In addition, as
of this remediation program, the Corporation hateaddskilled resources to improve controls and imeeehe reliability of the financial
reporting process. As a result, First BanCorp’s aga@ment concluded that its internal controls owerfcial reporting were effective as of
December 31, 2006 based on the criteria set forthternal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh®yCommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ").

Overview of Management’s Discussion and Analysis &financial Condition and Results of Operations

First BanCorp’s results of operations depemghgrily upon its net interest income, which is thiference between the interest income
earned on its interest-earning assets, includimgsiment securities and loans, and the interegresepon its interest-bearing liabilities,
including deposits and borrowings. Net interesbine is affected by various factors including theriest rate scenario, the volumes, mix and
composition of interest-earning assets and intdyeating liabilities and the re-pricing and/or méatumismatch of these assets and liabilities.
The Corporation’s results of operations also degmnthe provision for loan and lease losses, ntarést expenses (such as personnel,
occupancy and other costs), non-interest incomén{ynservice charges and fees on loans and depositunts), the result of derivative
activities, gains (losses) on investments and géiisses) on sale of loans, and income taxes.

Net income for the year ended December 316 200ounted to $84.6 million or $0.53 per commornresifdiluted), compared to
$114.6 million or $0.90 per common share (dilutied)2005 and $177.3 million or $1.65 per commorrsidiluted) for 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, thedZatipn’s results of operations were mainly impddig the following factors: (1) net
interest income was impacted by negative changtifair value of derivative instruments prioith@ implementation of the long-haul
method of accounting on April 3, 2006 and a lowefrinterest margin as a result of the flat to itegyield curve, (2) a higher provision for
loan and lease losses, (3) a net loss of $10.@mitin the partial extinguishment of a secured cenaal loan to a local financial institution,
(4) other-than-temporary impairments to the Corpiongs investment portfolio, (5) higher recurringminterest expenses, mainly employees’
compensation and benefits, (6) lower nonrecurrioig-imterest expenses due to accruals in 2005 éopditential settlement of the class action
lawsuits and SEC investigation partially offseR06 by an increase in professional fees assocrdtedhe Audit Committee’s review and
the restatement, and (7) a higher provision fooine taxes resulting primarily from the change i deferred tax provision relating to the
possible settlements. The following table summarthe effect that the aforementioned factors hadedrincome applicable to common stock
and earnings per common share for the last thraesye
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2006 2005 2004
In thousands, except per common share am Dollars Per share Dollars Per share Dollars Per share
Net income applicable to comm:
stock for prior yea $ 74,32¢ $0.9C $137,04¢ $ 1.65 $ 89,53t $ 1.0¢
Increase (decrease) from change:
Net interest incom 11,37¢ 0.14 34,83¢ 0.4z 145,54; 1.7¢
Provision for loan losse (24,34°) (0.29) 2,15¢ 0.0z 3,11¢ 0.0
Loss on partial extinguishment
of secured commercial loan
local financial institutior (20,640 (0.19) — — — —
Net gain (loss) on investments
and impairment (20,537) (0.25) 2,88z 0.0z (26,137 (0.32)
Gain on sale of credit card
portfolio 50C 0.01 (5,537 (0.07) (26,857) (0.39)
Other norinterest incoms (1,06%) (0.07) 6,104 0.0¢ 5,81( 0.07
Employees’ compensation anc
benefits (25,444 (0.3)) (19,639 (0.29) (7,95)) (0.10)
Professional fee (18,709 (0.29) (9,229 (0.17) (1,179 (0.0
Provision for contingencie 82,75( 1.0C (82,750) (2.00 — —
All other operating expens: (11,429 (0.19 (23,047 (0.27) (6,725 (0.09)
Income tax provisiol (12,426 (0.15) 31,48¢ 0.3¢ (28,207 (0.39
Net income before preferred stc
dividends and change in average
common share 44,35¢ 0.54 74,32¢ 0.9C 146,96t 1.7¢
Increase in preferred stock divider — — — — (9,91%) (0.12)
Change in average common shg — (0.07) — — — (0.02)
Net income available to common
stockholders $ 44,35¢ $ 0.5 $ 74,32¢ $ 0.9C $137,04¢ $ 1.65

. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006b84<$ million compared to $114.6 million and $37iillion for the year:
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respecti

. Diluted earnings per common share for the yededbecember 31, 2006 amounted to $0.53 compar®@ %6 and $1.65 for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgc

. Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2@16 was $443.7 million compared to $432.3 milléord $397.5 million for th
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgcfied increase in net interest income for the P&®6 was mainly driven by t
increase in the average volume of interest-earagsgts of $1.1 billion attributable primarily teethrowth in the Corporation’s loan
and investment portfolios, in particular the constion loan and residential real estate loan plogas well as short-term
investments, partially offset by a reduction in tie interest margin, which on a tax equivalentdbger definition and reconciliation
of this non-GAAP measure, refer to thidet Interest Income’discussion below) decreased by 39 basis pointsadtie flattening of
the yield curve, and fluctuations in net interestirred on interest rate swaps. The decrease i@dhgorations net interest margin «
a tax equivalent basis has been particularly sicant with respect to the Corporation’s portfolioimvestment securities, excluding
money market instruments. Assuming a funding cgatikto the weighted-average cost of the Corpan&tiother borrowed funds,
the interest rate spread on the Corporation’s pliotbf investment securities, excluding money nediikstruments, was
approximately 0.64% for the year ended Decembe306 compared to 1.90% and 2.39% for the yearesdeB&cember 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The decrease in net interagyin for 2006 was also attributable to the pagtof $2.4 billion received from
a local financial institution during the second daaof 2006 that significantly reduced its secuzechmercial loan with the
Corporation. Proceeds from the repayment were tedgemporarily in short-term investments, reduchg Corporation’s average
yield on interes-earning assets. During the second half of 20@6Cthrporation used a part of the repayment proceedpay higher
rate outstanding brokered CDs that matu

The increase in short-term rates also reduti@ change in net payments on interest rate sweauded as part of interest expense.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, the ne¢isettit payments on such interest rate swaps resaltgdirges of $8.9 million to
interest expense as compared to net interest edadiz$71.7 million, or a net increase of $80.8ioilin interest expense compared
to the previous year, as the rates paid underdhahle leg of the swaps exceeded the rates rat:

Net interest income for the years ended Decembe2@16, 2005, and 2004 was also impacted by fltictusiin the valuation ¢
derivative instruments. For the year ended DecerdbgP006, the Corporation recorded as part ofésteexpense $61.9 million in
unrealized losses in the fair value of derivativetiuments, compared to unrealized losses of $Willidn in 2005 and unrealized
gains of $13.0 million in 200:

. The provision for loan and lease losses for #er 2006 was $75.0 million compared to $50.6 mmlbkmd $52.8 million for the years
2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in theigion for 2006 principally reflects growth in t®rporation’s commercial,
excluding loans to local financial institutions,daconsumer portfolios, and increasing trends inperiorming loans experienced
during 2006 as compared to 2005. The Corporatioetsharge-offs and non-performing loans were #&dteby the fiscal and
economic situation of Puerto Rico. According to Eheerto Rico Planning Board, Puerto Rico is inrttiést of a recession. The



slowdown in activity is the result of, among otltgings, highe

35




Table of Contents

utility prices, higher taxes, governmentadipet imbalances, the upward trend in short-terer@st rates and the flattening of the
yield curve, and higher levels of oil prices. Theegbase in provision during 2005, compared to 26@4, primarily attributable to tf
seasoning of the corporate commercial loans patéoid to a decrease in the specific reserve alddm a commercial loa

. Non-interest income for the year ended December 316 2¢as $31.3 million compared to $63.1 million &&9.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgcfied decrease in n-interest income in 2006, compared to 2005, wasiyai
attributable to a net loss of $10.6 million on gaetial extinguishment of a secured commercial lwaa local financial institution, an
increase in other-than-temporary impairment chao§&.9 million in the Corporation’s investmentrffolio and lower gains on the
sale of investments of $13.7 million. These negatigriances were partially offset by increaseslo8 $nillion in commission incom
from the Corporation’s insurance business and 8ill®n in service charges on deposit accountslaads. The increase in non-
interest income in 2005, compared to 2004, was Iynaiitributable to increases of $3.0 million in ammssion income from the
Corporation’s insurance businesses, $2.4 milliootirer service charges on deposit accounts and,laad $8.6 million in net gains
on the sale of investments, partially offset byiramease in other-than-temporary impairment chac§&%.7 million in the
Corporatior's investment portfolio and a decrease of $5.5 onilln gain on sale of credit card portfol

. Nor-interest expense for 2006 was $288.0 million camgao $315.1 million and $180.5 million for theays 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Nonnterest expense for 2005 included accruals ofZ&#illion and $8.5 million recorded in connectigith potential
settlements of the class action lawsuits and SEE€stigation, respectively, as a result of the Caapon’s restatement. Excluding
these accruals, non-interest expense during 2@0éared by $55.6 million compared to 2005 mainky tuincreases of $25.4
million in employees’ compensation and benefits9%8illion in occupancy and equipment and $14.8ionilin professional fees due
to legal, accounting and consulting fees associatddthe internal review conducted by the Corpiords Audit Committee as a
result of the restatement announcement and ottaeddegal and regulatory matters. The increagminrinterest expense for 2005
compared to 2004 was mainly due to increases aB®8#lion in accruals relating to the class actiawsuits and SEC investigation,
$19.6 million in employees’ compensation and bese#i8.2 million in occupancy and equipment and $6illion in professional
fees associated with the Audit Commi’s review and the Corporati’s restatemen

. Income tax expense for the year ended Decemh&@0®E was $27.4 million (or 24% of pre-tax earsingompared to $15.0 million
(or 12% of pre-tax earnings) and $46.5 million Z&o of pre-tax earnings) for the years ended Deee@b, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The increase in income tax expen20Q6 as compared to 2005 was primarily due toceedse in deferred tax benefits
of $28.5 million mainly due to deferred tax berefiecorded in 2005 related to the potential clatisralawsuit settlement that was
partially offset by a decrease in the current inedax provision due to lower taxable income. Therei@se in current income tax
provision for 2006 compared to 2005 was mainly ua decrease in taxable income partially offseé lophange in the Corporation’s
proportion of exempt and taxable income coupledh wit increase in non-qualifying IBE income thatemcurrent legislation were
taxed at regular rates. The decrease in incomexjpense in 2005 as compared to 2004 is mainlyatetdl deferred tax benefits of
$60.2 million recognized during the year mainly gased of $30.1 million as a result of higher urizeal losses on derivative
instruments, $29.0 million as a result of the aedramount for the class action lawsuit settlemadt®8.7 million as a result of
increases in the allowance for loan and lease $psdtset in part by increases in the current tavigion.

. Total assets as of December 31, 2006 were $1liahba reduction of $2.5 billion compared to $2%illion as of December 31,
2005. The decline was mainly driven by decreaséisarCorporation’s loan and investment portfoliog do the Corporation’s
decision to deleverage its balance sheet. The @atipn’s decision to deleverage its balance shastinfluenced, among other
things, by the flat to inverted yield curve. Asesult, the Corporation decided to repay higher maaguring liabilities, in particular
brokered CDs, rather than investing the proceedsegative spread (the yield on available longiiewestments being lower than
its short-term funding cost). Net loans decrease¥d 1o $11.1 billion, when compared to the previgear, resulting from a payment
received during 2006 which significantly reducee Halance of commercial secured loans to locahtiiz institutions. Total
investments decreased by $1.1 billion from 2005naue to reductions in money-market investmemtd mortgage-backed
securities

. Total deposits as of December 31, 2006 were $illiGn, a reduction of $1.5 billion compared td25 billion as of December 31,
2005. The decrease is mainly attributable to thep@uation’s decision to pay down higher rate matyfirokered CDs as well as
federal funds purchased and securities sold urgteements to repurchase using primarily the fuedsived from the pay down of
the secured commercial loz

. Total loan production for the year ended Decenie2006 was $4.8 billion compared to $6.1 billaoxd $5.0 billion for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectivelyd@beease in loan production was mainly due toedesas in the origination of
residential real estate and commercial loans. Boeeése in mortgage and commercial loan produftio2006 compared to 2005
was attributable, among other things
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higher rates, deteriorating economic conditions stndter underwriting standarc

Critical Accounting Policies and Practices

The accounting principles of the Corporatiod ¢he methods of applying these principles confaith generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States and to generaltfas within the banking industry. The Corporat®atitical accounting policies relate to the
1) allowance for loan and lease losses; 2) othem-ttmporary impairments; 3) income taxes; 4) investnsecurities classification and rels
values; 5) valuation of financial instruments andiérivative financial instruments. These critiaatounting policies involve judgments,
estimates and assumptions made by managemenfftwtthe recorded assets and liabilities and ogetit assets and liabilities disclosed as
of the date of the financial statements and therted amounts of revenues and expenses duringpioeting periods. Actual results could
differ from estimates, if different assumptionsconditions prevail. Certain determinations inhegehtive greater reliance on the use of
estimates, assumptions, and judgments and, astsavda greater possibility of producing results trould be materially different than
originally reported.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The Corporation maintains the allowance fanland lease losses at a level that managementlesnadequate to absorb losses inherent
in the loans and leases portfolio. The adequadhetllowance for loan and lease losses is reviewea quarterly basis as part of the
Corporation’s continuing evaluation of its assedldgy. Groups of small balance and homogeneousslaa@ collectively evaluated for
impairment. The portfolios of residential mortgdgans, consumer loans, auto loans and financedeasdandividually considered
homogeneous and each portfolio is evaluated colldgtfor impairment. In estimating the allowanae foan and lease losses, management
uses historical information about loan and leaseds as well as other factors including the effecthe loan portfolio of current economic
indicators and their probable impact on the bormwiaformation about trends on charge-offs and-accrual loans, changes in underwriting
policies, risk characteristics relevant to the ipatar loan category and delinquencies. The Cotpmraneasures impairment individually for
those commercial and real estate loans with a ijpahbalance exceeding $1 million. An allowanceifapaired loans is established based on
the present value of expected future cash flovte@fair value of the collateral, if the loan idlateral dependent. Accordingly, the
measurement of impairment for loans evaluated iddadly involves assumptions by management asé¢@thount and timing of cash flows
to be recovered and of appropriate discount re#éen the loans are collateral dependent, the &irevof the collateral is based on an
independent appraisal that may also involve esémat future cash flows and appropriate discoumetsrar adjustments to comparable
properties.

The allowance for loan and lease losses regusignificant elements of judgments and estimates.Corporation establishes the allowe
for loan and lease losses based on whether itlassified the loans and leases as loss or prolb@dde The Corporation establishes an
allowance to cover the total amount of any asdassified as a “loss,” the probable loss expostiater classified assets, and the estimated
losses of assets not classified. The adequacyedltbwance for loan and lease losses is basedaipomber of factors including historical
loan and leases loss experience that may not egresrrent conditions inherent in the portfolior Example, factors affecting the Puerto
Rico, Florida (USA), US Virgin Islands’ or Britistiirgin Islands’ economies may contribute to deliaguies and defaults above the
Corporation’s historical loan and lease losses. Chgoration addresses this risk by actively mairitpthe delinquency and default
experience and by considering current economicagtket conditions. Based on the assessments @rtwronditions, the Corporation mal
appropriate adjustments to the historically devetbpssumptions when necessary to adjust histdactrs to account for present conditions.
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Other-than-temporary impairments

The Corporation evaluates its investment seesifor impairment on a quarterly basis or eaifi@ther factors indicative of potential
impairment exist. An impairment charge in the cdidsted statements of income is recognized whemléntine in the fair value of
investments below their cost basis is judged tother-than-temporary. The Corporation consider®uarfactors in determining whether it
should recognize an impairment charge, includingnog limited to, the length of time and extentatbich the fair value has been less than its
cost basis and the Corporation’s intent and atititiiold the investment for a period of time suéfit to allow for any anticipated recovery in
market value. For debt securities, the Corporadisn considers, among other factors, the obligepsyment ability on its bond obligations
and its cash and capital generation ability. Angrade in the factors evaluated to determine the faresh impairment charge could have an
impact on that decision.

Income Taxes

The Corporation is required to estimate incéaxes in preparing its consolidated financialestegnts. This involves the estimation of
current income tax expense together with an asssgswhtemporary differences resulting from thdaténces in the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting posps and the amounts used for income tax purpdsegdetermination of current income tax
expense involves estimates and assumptions thaiteghe Corporation to assume certain positiorsethan its interpretation of current tax
regulations. Management assesses the relativeitsemed risks of the appropriate tax treatmentarigactions, taking into account statutory,
judicial and regulatory guidance and recognizesdtnefits only when deemed probable. Changes imgstons affecting estimates may
required in the future and estimated tax liab#itieay need to be increased or decreased accordifggyaccrual of tax contingencies is
adjusted in light of changing facts and circumsgsnsuch as the progress of tax audits, case ldwrmerging legislation. The Corporation’s
effective tax rate includes the impact of tax cogdincies and changes to such accruals, as cordsiglgpeopriate by management. When
particular matters arise, a number of years mayseldefore such matters are audited by the taxitigaties and finally resolved. Favorable
resolution of such matters or the expiration ofgtetute of limitations may result in the releattam contingencies which are recognized as a
reduction to the Corporatiosieffective rate in the year of resolution. Unfalde settlement of any particular issue could iaseethe effectiv
rate and may require the use of cash in the yearsofution. As of December 31, 2006, there werepen income tax investigations.
Information regarding income taxes is included wtéN25 to the Corporation’s audited financial statats.

The determination of deferred tax expenseecoelit is based on changes in the carrying amafrdassets and liabilities that generate
temporary differences. The carrying value of thepOeation’s net deferred tax assets assumes th&dhporation will be able to generate
sufficient future taxable income based on estimatesassumptions. If these estimates and relasenigotions change, the Corporation may
be required to record valuation allowances agdtisisteferred tax assets resulting in additionabine tax expense in the consolidated
statements of income. Management evaluates itsrddftax
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assets on a quarterly basis and assesses theoneedaluation allowance, if any. A valuation allance is established when management
believes that it is more likely than not that sgmeetion of its deferred tax assets will not be imal. Changes in valuation allowance from
period to period are included in the Corporatidas provision in the period of change (see Not¢a2the consolidated audited financial
statements).

Statement of Financial Accounting Standar@&~&S”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SBAL09"), requires companies to
make adjustments to their financial statementhénguarter that new tax legislation is enactedhénthird quarter of 2005, the Puerto Rico
legislature passed and the governor signed intaléemporary two-year additional surtax of 2.5%li@gple to corporations. The surtax is
applicable to taxable years after December 31, 2B@4increases the maximum marginal corporate iedam rate from 39% to 41.5% until
December 31, 2006. On May 13, 2006, with an effeatiate of January 1, 2006, the Government of BuRitto signed Law No. 89 which
imposes an additional 2.0% income tax on all coriggacovered by the Puerto Rico Banking Act whictutied in an additional tax provision
of $1.7 million for the year.

Act 98 of May 16, 2006, amended the PuertmRiternal Revenue Code by imposing a tax of 5% tive 2005 taxable net income
applicable to corporations with gross income ovEd fillion, which was required to be paid July 3006. The Corporation can use the full
payment as a tax credit in its income tax returfditure year. The prepayment of tax resulted diishursement of $7.1 million. No net
income tax expense was recorded since the prepaymikhe used as a tax credit in future taxablarge

The Corporation adopted Financial Accountitgn8ards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting@ncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 3&ffective January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies tlte@unting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial siatgs in accordance with SFAS 109. This Interpiatgtrescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial stateémezognition and measurement of a tax positikartaor expected to be taken in a tax
return. This Interpretation also provides guidaooelerecognition, classification, interest and ftés accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. The cumulative efféadoption of FIN 48 resulted in an increase oB%aillion to tax reserves with offsetting
adjustments to retained earnings. Additionallygamnection with the adoption of FIN 48, the Corpiaraelected to classify interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax portionsoagonents of income tax expense.

Investment Securities Classification and Related Maes

Management determines the appropriate claasifin of debt and equity securities at the timpuwthase. Debt securities are classified as
held-to-maturity when the Corporation has the interd ability to hold the securities to maturityeld-to-maturity (‘“HTM”) securities are
stated at amortized cost. Debt and equity secsidtie classified as trading when the Corporatiantihe intent to sell the securities in the near
term. Debt and equity securities classified asitigadecurities are reported at fair value, withaatized gains and losses included in earnings.
Debt and equity securities not classified as HTMrading, except for equity securities which do hate readily available fair values, are
classified as available-for-sale (“AFS”). AFS seties are reported at fair value, with unrealizaghg and losses excluded from earnings and
reported net of deferred taxes in accumulated aheprehensive income (a component of stockholassity). Investments in equity
securities that do not have publicly and readiliedainable fair values are classified as othertggécurities in the statement of financial
condition and carried at the lower of cost or rzie value. The assessment of fair value apmiesrtain of the Corporation’s assets and
liabilities, including the investment portfolio. IFaalues are volatile and are affected by facsush as market interest rates, prepayment
speeds and discount rates.

Valuation of financial instruments

The measurement of fair value is fundamewtéhé Corporation’s presentation of financial coiodi and results of operations. The
Corporation holds fixed income and equity secwsijt@erivatives, investments and other financiarimsents at fair value. The Corporation
holds its investments and liabilities on the staahof financial condition mainly to manage ligtydhneeds and interest rate risks. A
substantial part of these assets and liabilitiegeflected at fair value on the Corporation’s ficial statement of condition.

Under GAAP, fair value is defined as the ptizat would be received to sell an asset or patdatasfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants. Fair values are détedrin the following ways:

. externally verified via comparison to quoted manketes, thir-party broker quotations or valuation expe
. by using models that are verified by comparisothia-party broker quotations or other tt-party sources; ¢

. by using alternative procedures such as compattgsoomparable securities and/or subsequent ligoidgtices.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

As part of the Corporation’s overall interestie risk management, the Corporation utilizesvéities instruments, including interest rate
swaps, interest rate caps and options to managregttrate risk. In accordance with SFAS No. 12&8cbunting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133"), all derivavinstruments are measured and recognized on theoldated Statements of Financial
Condition at their fair value. On the date the d&tive instrument contract is entered into, thep@oation may designate the derivative as
hedge of the fair value of a recognized assetaility or of an unrecognized firm commitment (‘faialue” hedge), (2) a hedge of a
forecasted transaction or of the variability offtlews to be received or paid related to a recogphiasset or liability (“cash flow” hedge) or
(3) as a “standalone” derivative instrument, inahgdeconomic hedges that the Corporation has motdity documented as a fair value or
cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of adtve instrument that is highly effective andttimdesignated and qualifies as a fair-value
hedge, along with change in fair value on the hddigset or liability that is attributable to thelfed risk (including gains or losses on firm
commitments), are recorded in current-period egsichanges in the fair value of a derivative insgnt that is highly effective and that is
designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedgesamrded in other comprehensive income in the stdkns’ equity section of the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionl@ainings are affected by the variability of célslws (e.g., when periodic settlements ¢
variable-rate asset or liability are recorded imawys). Similarly, the changes in the fair valdestandalone derivative instruments or
derivatives not qualifying or designated for hedgeounting under SFAS 133 are reported in curreribg earnings.

Prior to entering a hedge transaction or degigg a hedge, the Corporation formally documémgselationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, as well as themneskagement objective and strategy for undertatkiadhedge transaction. This process
includes linking all derivative instruments thag¢ alesignated as fair value or cash flow hedgepdoific assets and liabilities on the
statements of financial condition or to specifitrficommitments or forecasted transactions alonly avfiormal assessment at both inceptic
the hedge and on an ongoing basis as to the efeetss of the derivative instrument in offsettihgrges in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item. The Corporation discontinues hedgeusting prospectively when it determines that tegvétive is not effective or will no
longer be effective in offsetting changes in thealue or cash flows of the hedged item, thewdgive expires, is sold, or terminated, or
management determines that designation of theaterivas a hedging instrument is no longer appatgriWhen a fair value hedge is
discontinued, the hedged asset or liability isargkr adjusted for changes in fair value and thigtiag basis adjustment is amortized or
accreted over the remaining life of the assetalnility as a yield adjustment.
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The Corporation recognizes unrealized gainklasses arising from any changes in fair valudesivative instruments and hedged items,
as applicable, as interest income or interest esgpedepending upon whether an asset or liabilibeiag hedged.

The Corporation occasionally purchases orimaigs financial instruments that contain embedtkri/atives. At inception of the financial
instrument, the Corporation assesses: (1) if toe@mic characteristics of the embedded derivatieeckearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics of the financial instrutr{@ost contract), (2) if the financial instrumehat embodies both the embedded derivative
and the host contract is measured at fair valule ghianges in fair value reported in earnings, pif(@ separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded instrument would meet theititf of a derivative. If the embedded derivato@es not meet any of these conditions,
it is separated from the host contract and caatddir value with changes recorded in currentquegarnings. Information regarding
derivative instruments is included in Note 30 te @orporation’s audited financial statements.

Effective April 3, 2006, the Corporation adegthe long-haul method of effectiveness testindpuiSFAS 133, for substantially all of the
interest rate swaps that hedge its brokered CDsraaium-term notes. The long-haul method requisggdic assessment of hedge
effectiveness and measurement of ineffectivendss iffeffectiveness results to the extent the chairgthe fair value of the derivative do not
offset changes in the fair value of the debt duehtanges in the hedged risk in the Consolidategd®ents of Income (the “ineffective
portion”). Prospectively, changes in the valuehaf Corporation’s brokered CDs and medium-term nstesild substantially offset the
changes in the value of the interest rate swaps.

First BanCorp’s implementation of the lohgul method resulted from its previously reportetednination that it should not have used
short-cut method to account for interest rate swalated to brokered CDs and medium-term notesusecaf technical issues involving the
interpretation of the use of the method (referitstBanCorp audited Consolidated Financial Statgmeéncluded in the Corporation’s
amended 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K for addétianformation). Accordingly, prior to the implemtation of the long-haul method
First BanCorp has reflected changes in the faneaf those swaps as well as swaps related tarcéstns as non-hedging instruments
through operations.

Upon the implementation of the long-haul methdth respect to the brokered CDs and medium-testas (“hedged liabilities”) on
April 3, 2006, the Corporation has been accretingmortizing the difference between the market &a@nd the book value of the hedged
liabilities on April 3, 2006 of approximately $200million as a yield adjustment over the remairtiexgn of the hedged liabilities, as the
changes in value since the inception of the longj-hreethod are recorded to the hedged liabilities.the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Corporation recorded an accretion of $3.6 millisragbasis adjustment on the hedged liabilities.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporatiorctele to early adopt Statement of Financial Accaounftandard No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) and Statement of Firgin&ccounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Valuei@pfor Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159”). Following thimitial fair value measurement date, ongoing unzedl gains and losses on items for which
fair value reporting has been elected are repantedrnings at each subsequent financial repodatg.

The Corporation decided to early adopt SFAS® for the callable brokered CDs and a portibtine callable fixed medium-term notes
(“Notes”) that were hedged with interest rate swéjast BanCorp had been following the lohgul method of accounting, which was ado|
on April 3, 2006, under SFAS 133 for the portfadibcallable interest rate swaps, callable brok&Bd and callable notes. One of the main
considerations in determining to early adopt SFAS fbr these instruments was to eliminate the djmeral procedures required by the long-
haul method of accounting in terms of documentatdfectiveness assessment, and manual procedii@sdd by the Corporation to fulfill
the requirements specified by SFAS 133.

Upon adoption of SFAS 159, First BanCorp del@éthe fair value measurement for approximately $dlion, or 63%, of the brokered
CDs portfolio and approximately $29 million, or 1686 the medium-term notes portfolio (“designatiedbilities”). Interest rate risk on the
brokered CDs and medium-term notes chosen forain@dlue measurement option will continue to bedsel through callable interest rate
swaps with the same terms and conditions. The catiualafter-tax effect on the opening balance t@ined earnings from adopting these
standards is an approximate increase of $92.2amillunder SFAS 159, this one-time charge was roatg®ized in current earnings.
Regulatory capital increased by the positive adjesit to retained earnings, exceeding by higher msuthe capital levels required to be
classified as well-capitalized and strengthenirg@orporation’s current regulatory capital ratios.

With the elimination of the use of the lohgul method in connection with the adoption of SAAS as of January 1, 2007, the Corpore
will no longer amortize or accrete the basis adpestt. The basis adjustment is the reversal of la@ge in value of the brokered CDs and
medium-term notes recognized since the implememtati the long-haul method based on the expectédai@ of the instruments. The
adoption of SFAS 159 also requires the recogntiboretained earnings, as part of the adoption &djeist, of all of the unamortized placem
fees that were paid to broker
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counterparties upon the issuance of the brokeresl & medium-term notes. The Corporation previoasigrtized those fees through
earnings based on the expected call date of tireiments. The impact of the derecognition of theidbadjustment and the unamortized
placement fees as of January 1, 2007 results imaulative after-tax reduction to retained earniobapproximately $23.8 million. This
negative charge is included in the total cumulaéifter-tax increase to retained earnings of $92llomthat results with the adoption of
SFAS 157 and SFAS 159.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“BASits Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) ané BEC have issued the following
accounting pronouncements and Issue discussiongrelto the Corporation’s operations:

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No, IB8e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets andancial Liabilities — Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”. This Statema#laws entities to choose to measure certaimfited assets and liabilities at fair
value with changes in fair value reflected in elagsi The fair value option may be applied on atrumsent-by-instrument basis. This
Statement is effective for periods after Novemtigr2D07, however, early adoption is permitted pedithat the entity also elects to apply
the provisions of SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measureraérithe Corporation adopted SFAS 159 effective Janiap07. For further details a
for the effect on the Corporation’s financial cdrah and results of operations upon adoption of SAEA9, refer tcritical Accounting
Policies and Procedureabove.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AdtogiBulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects®fior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Finan&tdtements” (SAB 108). This interpretation expessbe SEC staff' views regarding tf
process of quantifying financial statement misstegiets that could result in improper amounts of tasseliabilities. While a misstatement
may not be considered material for the period iictvlit occurred, it may be considered material subsequent year if the corporation were
to correct the misstatement through current pezmrthings. SAB 108 requires a materiality evaluabiased on all relevant quantitative and
qualitative factors and the quantification of thsstatement using both a balance sheet and inctate®nt approach to determine
materiality. SAB 108 is effective for periods engliafter November 15, 2006. The adoption of thisge®tent did not have a material effect on
the Corporation’s financial condition and result®perations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS N8.“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiand Other Postretirement Plans —
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 10@.38¢R)". This Statement requires corporationstmgnize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretir@rplan as an asset or liability in its statenoériinancial position and to recognize chan
in that funded status in the year in which the gesnoccur through comprehensive income of a busiertity or changes in unrestricted net
assets of a not-for-profit organization. This Staet is effective for periods ending after Decenttigr2006. This Statement is not applicable
to the Corporation and therefore has no impadtécCorporation’s financial condition or resultsopferations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 1530y ‘Value MeasurementsThis Statement defines fair value, establisheamémwork fol
measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosai®ut fair value measurements. This Statemeftdstive for periods beginning after
November 15, 2007. Effective January 1, 2007, thepGration elected to early adopt this Statememt fiirther details and for the effect
the Corporation’s financial condition and result®perations upon adoption of SFAS 157, refe€titical Accounting Policies and
Proceduresabove.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Imtetggion No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in lmmoe Taxes — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109”. This interpretation clarifiee ticcounting for uncertainty in income taxes recd in accordance with SFAS No. 109.
This interpretation provides a recognition thredhenhd measurement attribute for the financial staté recognition and measurement of ¢
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmefThis interpretation also provides guidancelerecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. This interpretation is effectioe periods beginning after December 15,
2006. The Corporation adopted FIN 48 effective dayd, 2007. For further details and for the effatthe Corporation’s financial condition
and results of operations upon adoption of FINré&r toCritical Accounting Policies and Procedurabove.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 12&cbunting for Servicing of Financial Assets,” anendment of SFAS No. 140. This
Statement requires that servicing assets and sgg\iabilities be initially measured at fair valaéong with any derivative instruments use:
mitigate inherent risks. This Statement is effexfior periods beginning after September 15, 200@. adoption of this Statement in 2007 did
not have a material effect on the Corporation’aiicial condition and results of operations.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No, 1A6counting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumts, an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 133 and 140". This Statement alfawsalue measurement for any hybrid financiatiasient that contains an embedded
derivative requiring bifurcation. It also estabksha requirement to evaluate interests in seoedlitiz
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financial assets to establish whether the intest$reestanding derivatives or hybrid finanamstiuments that contain an embedded
derivative requiring bifurcation. This Statemenefective for all financial instruments acquiredissued after September 15, 2006. The
adoption of this Statement did not have a mateffeict on the Corporation’s financial condition aedults of operations.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154,¢éunting Changes and Error Corrections — a replaoewntf APB Opinion No. 20 and
FASB Statement No. 3". This Statement changesdheirements for the accounting for and reporting @bluntary change in accounting
principle. This Statement requires retrospectivaiagtion to prior periodsfinancial statements of a change in accountingcipla unless it it
impracticable to do so; in which case the earfiestod for which retrospective application is preaile should be applied. If it is
impracticable to calculate the cumulative effecaahange in accounting principle, the Statememiires prospective application as of the
earliest date practicable. This Statement doeshange the guidance in APB Opinion No. 20 with rdda the reporting of the correction of
an error, or a change in accounting estimate. Tat®ent’s purpose is to improve the comparahilitfinancial information among periods.
SFAS No. 154 is effective for fiscal years begimnaiter December 15, 2005. The adoption of thiestant did not have a material effect on
the Corporation’s financial condition and result®perations.

Results of Operations

The Corporation’s results of operations depamharily on net interest income, which is thefelience between the interest income earned
on interest-earning assets, including investmeruriiies and loans, and the interest expense engisit-bearing liabilities, including deposits
and borrowings. Net interest income is affectedidryous factors including the interest rate scendhe volumes, mix and composition of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearingiliglsiland the re-pricing characteristics of thesgets and liabilities. Refer to “Risk
Management — Interest Rate Risk Management” betmadditional information on the Corporation’s egpee to interest rate risk. The
Corporation’s results of operations are also affédty the provision for loan and lease losses,intamest expenses (such as personnel,
occupancy and other costs), non-interest incomén({ynservice charges and fees on loans and depositunts), the result of derivative
activities, gains (losses) on investments and géiisses) on sale of loans, and income taxes.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income increased to $443.7 nmilfior 2006 from $432.3 million in 2005 and $397.Blion in 2004. The increase in net
interest income for the year 2006 was mainly driligrihe increase in the average volume of intezastings assets of $1.1 billion attribute
primarily to the growth in the Corporation’s loamdainvestment portfolios, in particular the constion and residential real estate loan
portfolios as well as short-term investments, pétioffset by a decrease in net interest marghre fieduction in net interest margin during
2006 as compared to 2005 was due primarily to asee in short-term interest rates coupled withrfsenatch between the re-pricing profile
of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities. Onrage, the Corporation’s liabilities re-price anddwaiture earlier than its assets. Thus, increase
in short-term interest rates reduce net interesirire, which is an important part of the Corpordi@arnings. The decrease in the
Corporation’s net interest margin has been pagitykignificant with respect to the Corporatiop@rtfolio of investment securities,
excluding money market instruments. Assuming a ifugpdost equal to the weighted-average cost o€Ciwgoration’s other borrowed funds,
the interest rate spread on the Corporation’s plaotbf investment securities, excluding money netiikstruments, was approximately 0.64%
for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared®@¥d.and 2.39% for the years ended December 31, 2002004, respectively. For
further details on the Corporation’s interest rég& profile, refer to “Risk Management — InterBstte Risk Management” section of this
discussion. The increase in shtatm rates also resulted in a change in net paygr@ninterest rate swaps included as part of istengpense
For the year ended December 31, 2006, the ne¢settit payments on such interest rate swaps resnltddrges of $8.9 million to interest
expense, compared to benefits of $71.7 million $12¥4.9 million for the years ended December 315208 2004, respectively. In addition,
net interest income was also affected by the repayof $2.4 billion received from a local financiastitution during the second quarter of
2006. Proceeds from the repayment were investepdearily in short-term investments, reducing thefoation’s average yield on interest-
earning assets.

Effective April 3, 2006, the Corporation impiented fair value hedge accounting for the majanitis interest rate swaps that
economically hedge brokered certificates of deparsit medium-term notes payable. As part of theémintation, the Corporation formally
documented the relationship between the interéstskaaps and hedged liabilities under the long-hathod of effectiveness testing. Prior to
the implementation of fair value hedge, the Corplorarecorded unrealized losses in the valuatiodesivative instruments of $68.0 million
for 2006. The basis differential between the mavisdtie and the book value of the hedged liabilitiethe inception of fair value hedge
accounting in the amount of approximately $200.0ioni amortizes or accretes as a yield adjustmeat the expected remaining term of the
hedged liabilities. For 2006, the Corporation releot an accretion of $3.6 million as a basis adjastron the hedged liabilities. Effective
January 1, 2007, the Corporation decided to eatpaSFAS 157 and SFAS 159. Upon adoption of falue accounting, the difference
between the fair market value and
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carrying value of the selected liabilities is resext through retained earnings and the basis adgmstamortization or accretion for the sele
liabilities ceases.

The following tables include a detailed analysf net interest income. Part | presents avevagigmes and rates on a tax equivalent basis
and Part Il presents, also on a tax equivalenspt® extent to which changes in interest ratdscaanges in volume of interest-related assets
and liabilities have affected the Corporation’s imé¢rest income. For each category of interestirgrassets and interest-bearing liabilities,
information is provided on changes attributablelianges in volume (changes in volume multipliesbloyrates), and changes in rate (char
in rate multiplied by old volumes). Rate-volumeigaces (changes in rate multiplied by changes larue) have been allocated to the
changes in volume and rate based upon their regpgrcentage of the combined totals. For peraitts the adoption of hedge accounting,
the net interest income is computed on a tax etprivdasis by excluding: (1) the change in the @aftiderivatives for undesignated hedges,
(2) the ineffective portion of designated hedges @) the basis adjustment amortization or acanefi@r periods prior to the adoption of
hedge accounting, the net interest income is coatpoih a tax equivalent basis by excluding the irhpathe change in the fair value of
derivatives (refer to explanation below regardihgryes in the fair value of derivative instruments)

Part |

Average volume Interest Income (1) / expense Average rate (1)
Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Earning asset:
Money market

investment: $1,44453. $ 636,11: $ 30896 $ 72,75 $ 22,19 $ 3,73 50 34% 121%
Government obligations

2) 2,827,19i 2,493,72! 2,061,28 170,08t 166,72: 132,32: 6.02% 6.6% 6.42%
Mortgage-backed

securities 2,540,39 2,738,38! 2,729,12! 128,09t 152,817 154,230 5.04% 55% 5.65%
Corporate bond 8,347 48,31 57,46: 574 2,48 (425) 6.88% 5.15% -0.74%
FHLB stock 26,91« 71,58¢ 56,69¢ 2,00¢ 3,28¢ 974 T4% 45% 1.7%%
Equity securities 27,15t 50,78¢ 43,87¢ 35C 1,68¢ 511 12% 3.32% 1.1¢%

Total investments (= 6,874,53! 6,038,91I 5,257,40: 373,87: 349,18 291,35! 5440 5.7¢% 55%
Residential real estate

loans 2,606,66: 1,813,501 1,127,52! 171,33 121,06t 78,88¢ 6.5% 6.68% 7.0(%
Construction loan 1,462,23! 710,75: 379,35t 126,59. 52,30( 19,39¢ 8.66% 7.3t% 5.11%
Commercial loan 5,593,01L 7,171,36! 5,079,83 401,02° 395,28( 188,33( 7.1% 551% 3.71%
Finance lease 322,43: 243,38 183,92: 28,93« 22,26: 17,82 891% 9.1% 9.6%
Consumer loan 1,783,38. 1,570,46: 1,244,38 214,96 191,07: 157,46¢ 12.0% 12.1% 12.6 %
Total loans (4)(5 11,767,73  11,509,47 8,015,02: 942,85( 781,98( 461,90 8.01% 6.7% 5.7¢%

Total earning asse  $18,642,27 $17,548,38 $13,272,42 $1,316,72! $1,131,16 $753,25! 7.06% 6.45% 5.6&%

Interest-bearing

liabilities:
Interest-bearing checkir

accounts $ 37142. $ 376,36( $ 31763 $ 591¢ $ 4,73( $ 3,68t 15% 1.2t% 1.1%
Savings account 1,022,68 1,092,93! 1,020,22 12,97( 12,57: 10,93¢ 1.27% 1.1% 1.0
Certificates of depos 10,479,50 8,386,46. 5,065,39 531,18t 306,68 118,62t 5.0% 3.66% 2.3%%
Interest bearing depos 11,873,60 9,855,76. 6,403,25; 550,07 323,98¢ 133,25 4.6% 3.2% 2.0&%
Other borrowed fund 4,543,26: 5,001,38: 4,235,21! 223,06 207,50 144,92 491% 4.1% 3.4%
FHLB advance: 273,39! 890,68( 1,056,32! 13,70« 32,75¢ 27,66 501% 3.68% 2.62%

Total interest-bearing

liabilities $16,690,26 $15,747,82 $11,694,79 $ 786,85( $ 564,24t $305,84: 4.71% 3.5 2.62%

Net interest incom $ 529,87' $ 566,91¢ $447,41:
Interest rate spree 2.3% 2.8% 3.06%
Net interest margil 28 3.2% 3.3%

(1) On atax equivalent basis. The tax equivaleritiyieas estimated by dividing the interest rate agren exempt assets by (1 less the
Puerto Rico statutory tax rate (43.5% for the Coaipon’s PR banking subsidiary in 2006, 41.5% fibother subsidiaries in 2006,
41.5% for all subsidiaries in 2005 and 39% forsalbsidiaries in 2004)) and adding to it the coshtd#rest-bearing liabilities. When
adjusted to a tax equivalent basis, yields on t@xabd exempt assets are comparable. Changesfairtivalue of derivative instrumen
including the ineffective portion and basis adjustitnamortization or accretion on fair value hedaresexcluded from interest income
and interest expense for average rate calculatioposes because the changes in valuation anddsjsigments do not affect interest
paid or receivec

(2) Government obligations include debt issued by gavent sponsored agenci
(3) Unrealized holding gains or losses in investmeuntslable-for-sale is excluded from the average volun



(4) Average loan balances include the average baldmen-accruing loans, of which interest income is recegdiwhen collecte(

(5) Interest income on loans includes $14.9 millihl.0 million, and $11.0 million for 2006, 2005ds2004, respectively, of income from
prepayment penalties and late fees related to ¢hpaEatior s loan portfolio
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Part Il
2006 compared to 200! 2005 compared to 200:
Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)
Due to: Due to:
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

(Dollars in thousands
Interest income on interest-earning

assets
Money market investmen $ 37,48( $ 13,08¢ $ 50,56¢ $ 6,63¢ $ 11,817 $ 18,45t
Government obligation 21,17¢ (17,819 3,36¢ 28,72 5,67¢ 34,40(
Mortgage-backed securitie (10,599 (14,129 (24,717 521 (1,947 (1,420
Corporate bond (2,409 49( (1,919 (400) 3,312 2,912
FHLB stock (2,699 1,41¢ (1,277 314 1,99¢ 2,312
Equity Securities (57¢) (758 (1,336 93 1,082 1,17¢
Total investment 42,39: (17,707 24,68¢ 35,88t¢ 21,94¢ 57,83¢
Residential real estate loa 52,54( (2,277) 50,26 46,89t (4,719 42,17
Construction loan 63,66 10,63( 74,29: 21,89¢ 11,00¢ 32,90¢
Commercial loan (100,087 105,83 5,747 94,83¢ 112,11 206,95(
Finance lease 7,162 (49)) 6,671 5,601 (1,160 4,441
Consumer loan 25,78t (1,889 23,89¢ 40,46¢ (6,862 33,60¢
Total loans 49,06¢ 111,80° 160,87: 209,69¢ 110,37¢ 320,07¢
Total interest incom 91,45¢ 94,10( 185,55¢ 245,58 132,32! 377,91,
Interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities:
Deposits 75,38t 150,70: 226,08t 91,917 98,82( 190,73
Other borrowed fund (20,752 36,31" 15,56¢ 28,77¢ 33,80( 62,57¢
FHLB advance: (26,829 7,77(C (19,059 (5,21%) 10,301 5,08¢
Total interest expens 27,81: 194,79( 222,60: 115,48: 142,92: 258,40«
Change in net interest incor $ 63,64¢ $(100,690) $(37,049 $130,10¢ $(10,599 $119,50¢

A portion of the Corporation’s interest-eaignassets, mostly investments in obligations of sth& Government agencies and sponsored
entities, generate interest which is exempt froomine tax, principally in Puerto Rico. Also interasd gains on sale of investments held by
the Corporation’s international banking entities tax-exempt under Puerto Rico tax law. To faddithhe comparison of all interest data
related to these assets, the interest income leasdoaverted to a taxable equivalent basis. Thedaivalent yield was estimated by dividing
the interest rate spread on exempt assets bygiHesPuerto Rico statutory tax rate (43.5% forGbeporation’s Puerto Rico banking
subsidiary in 2006, 41.5% for all other subsidisiiie 2006, 41.5% for all subsidiaries in 2005 a@élJor all subsidiaries in 2004)) and
adding to it the average cost of interbstring liabilities. The computation considersitiierest expense disallowance required by Puexto
tax law. Total interest income, excluding changethe fair value of derivatives, basis adjustmert bedge ineffectiveness, includes tax
equivalent adjustments of $28.0 million, $61.2 ioill and $64.3 million for 2006, 2005, and 2004pextively. The decrease in tax
equivalent adjustments for 2006 was mainly dueltwer interest rate spread on tax exempt assets.

On a tax equivalent basis, net interest ing@wreluding changes in the fair value of derivaiiv&ruments and the ineffective portion and
basis adjustments on fair value hedges amount®828.9 million, compared to $566.9 million for 20&&d $447.4 million for 2004. The
decrease in 2006 was mainly due to decreases egisivalent adjustments and lower net interest imafthe interest rate spread and net
interest margin, on a tax equivalent basis, amalit®.35% and 2.84%, respectively, for 2006, aspared to 2.87% and 3.23%,
respectively, for 2005, and to 3.06% and 3.37%peaetvely, for 2004. The decrease in net interestgim was mainly due to a lower interest
rate spread on tax exempt assets and a changepayraents on interest rate swaps included asoparterest expense. In prior years, the
Corporation entered into interest rate swaps tha¢ the effect of converting its fixed-rate brokk€Ds as well as its fixed-rate and step rate
notes payable to LIBOR-based variable-rate liabdit

The exclusion of unrealized changes in thevaiue of the derivative instruments, including theffective portion after the adoption of-
value accounting and basis adjustment amortizatiaccretion on fair value hedges from the detadlealysis of net interest income provides
additional information about the Corporation’s mgérest income and facilitates comparability andlgsis. The changes in the fair value of
the derivative instruments, including the ineffeetportion after the adoption of fair value accangptand the basis adjustment amortization or
accretion on fair value hedges have no effect erést due or interest earned on interest-beassgts or interest-bearing liabilities,
respectively, or on interest payments exchangell sviap counterparties.

The following table reconciles the interestdme on a tax equivalent basis set forth in Talaledve to interest income set forth in the
Consolidated Statements of Income:
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The following table summarizes the components @frast income:

Year ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Interest income on a tax equivalent b $1,316,72! $1,131,16 $753,25!
Less: tax equivalent adjustme! (27,987) (61,16¢) (64,25¢)
Plus: net unrealized (loss) gain on derivativesifemic undesignated hedgt 75 (2,41) 1,33
Total interest incom $1,288,81. $1,067,59 $690,33-

The following table summarizes the components efdtanges in fair values of interest rate swapsraedest rate caps, which are include
interest income.

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives (economicasighated hedges

Interest rate caf $ (472 $ (4,03¢ $ 16
Interest rate swaps on corporate ba 27 82¢ 2,85¢
Interest rate swaps on loa 52C 80% (1,539
Net unrealized (loss) gain on derivatives (econamidesignated hedge $ 75 $ (2,41)) $ 1,330

The following table summarizes the componeihiaterest expense for the years ended Decemh&0®8, 2005 and 2004. As mentioned
before, the net interest margin analysis excludeshanges in the fair value of interest rate sytesineffective portion on designated
hedges and the basis adjustment.
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Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Interest expense on inter-bearing liabilities $757,96¢ $620,77- $ 416,85
Net interest incurred (realized) on interest ratagss 8,92¢ (71,65() (124,88)
Amortization of broker placement fe 19,89¢ 15,09¢ 12,94:
Amortization of mediur-term notes placement fe 59 28 933
Interest expense excluding unrealized loss (gairjerivatives (designated and econon

undesignated hedges) and amortization (accretioogss adjustments on fair value

hedges 786,85( 564,24¢ 305,84«
Net unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (desigth@nd economic undesignated hed 61,89t 71,02 (12,99)
(Accretion) amortization of basis adjustments dnyalue hedge (3,626) — —
Total interest expens $845,11! $635,27: $ 292,85:

The following table summarizes the components efuthrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (designatetleconomic undesignated hedges)
which are included in interest expense:

Year ended December 31
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (designatedieconomic undesignated hedg:
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives (designatedble< ineffective portion):

Interest rate swaps on brokered certificates obsli¢ $ (3,989 $ — $ —
Interest rate swaps on medi-term notes (720 — —
Net unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives (desigthdtedge— ineffective portion) (4,709 — —

Unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (economicasighated hedges

Interest rate swaps on brokered certificates obsl $62,52: $69,16: $(13,409)
Interest rate swaps on medi-term notes 4,08: 1,86( 417

Net unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (econamidesignated hedge 66,60« 71,02: (12,99)
Net unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (desigth@nd economic undesignated hed $61,89¢ $71,02: $(12,99)

The following table summarizes the components efaimortization or accretion of basis adjustmenttaorvalue hedges which are included
in interest expense:

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

(Accretion) amortization of basis adjustments dnvalue hedges

Interest rate swaps on brokered certificates obsli¢ $ (3,57€) $ — $ —
Interest rate swaps on medi-term notes (50 — —
(Accretion) amortization of basis adjustments dnvalue hedge $ (3,626 $ — $ —

Interest income on interest-earning assetsaily represents interest earned on loan recedgadnd investment securities.

Interest expense on interest-bearing liabgiprimarily represents interest due on brokered,®Eanch-based deposits, repurchase
agreements and notes payable.

Net interest incurred or realized on interagé swaps primarily represents net interest exgdduon pay-float swaps that hedge brokered
CDs and medium-term notes.

The amortization of broker placement feesesents the amortization of fees paid upon issutmbeokers selling the related financial
instruments (i.e., brokered CDs).

Unrealized gains or losses on derivativesigiesed and economic undesignated hedges) maiptgsent changes in the fair value of
interest rate swaps that hedge economically oruiaitevalue designation assets (i.e., loans amgarate bonds) or liabilities (i.e., brokered
CDs and medium-term notes).
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The basis adjustments on fair value hedgegsept the amortization or accretion of the bai§isrdntial between the market value and the
book value of the hedged liabilities at the inceptdf fair value hedge accounting that amortizeaooretes to interest expense based on the
expected maturity of the hedged liabilities as desnin value since the inception of the long-haethrad are recorded to these hedged items.

As shown on the tables above, the resultpefaiions for 2006, 2005, and 2004 were signifigaimpacted by changes in the valuation of
interest rate swaps that hedge economically ornifiaitevalue designation the Corporation’s broke@iois and medium-term notes. The
change in the valuation of interest rate swapsrdazbas part of interest expense during 2006 ex$irftan unrealized loss of $61.9 million
(2005- an unrealized loss of $71.0 million, 200dn-unrealized gain of $13.0 million). Effective A@®, 2006, the Corporation implemented
fair value hedge accounting for the majority ofiitierest rate swaps (98% of the interest rate yeatiolio outstanding) that economically
hedge brokered certificates of deposit and medienmm-notes payable which substantially eliminatedithpact of fluctuation in the valuation
of the interest rate swaps after April 3, 2006 past of the implementation, the Corporation formalbcumented the relationship between the
interest rate swaps and hedged liabilities undetdahg-haul method of effectiveness testing.

Derivative instruments, such as interest sataps, are subject to market risk. While the Cafion does have certain trading derivative
facilitate customer transactions, the Corporatioesdnot utilize derivative instruments for speduipurposes. The Corporation’s derivatives
are mainly composed of interest rate swaps thatised to convert the fixed interest payment obritkered certificates of deposit and
medium-term notes to a variable payment (recekedfpay floating). Refer to the “Risk ManagemenDerivative” section of this discussit
for disclosure of the notional amounts of derivatinstruments and other information. As is the ceitle investment securities, the market
value of derivative instruments is largely a fuantof the financial market’s expectations regardhgfuture direction of interest rates.
Accordingly, current market values are not necéysadicative of the future impact of derivativestruments on net interest income. This
will depend, for the most part, on the shape ofyik&d curve as well as the level of interest rates

2006 compared to 2005

On a tax equivalent basis, net interest incerauding the changes in the fair value of denrainstruments and the ineffective portion
and basis adjustment amortization or accretioragrvilue hedges, decreased by $37.0 million f@628mpared to 2005. The decrease in
the net interest income for 2006 excluding the glearin the fair value of derivatives, the ineffeetportion and basis adjustments on fair
value hedges, was primarily due to a reductioménQorporation’s net interest margin offset in fiigrincreases in the Corporation’s average
balance of interest-earning assets. The decreasa interest rate margin during 2006 was due piiyne the upward trend of short-term
interest rates, the flattening of the yield curared the re-pricing mismatch of the Corporation'seds and liabilities. On average, the
Corporation’s liabilities re-price and/or matureles than its assets. Thus, increases in shom-teterest rates reduce net interest income,
which is an important part of the Corporation’sréiags. The average rate paid by the Corporatioitsanterest-bearing liabilities increased
by 113 basis points during 2006, from 3.58% to %/fnainly due to re-pricing of the Corporation’seirestbearing deposits, mainly from t
issuance of brokered CDs at higher rates and freinmterest incurred on the interest rate swapshtbdge these instruments, and increases in
rates paid on FHLB advances, and other borrowedsftied to 3-month LIBOR. The average yield earoedhe Corporation’s interest-
earning assets increased by 61 basis points dR€i6g, from 6.45% to 7.06%, mainly due to the reipg of variable rate commercial loans
and the origination of new commercial loans at bigtates.

The decrease in net interest margin for 2086 also attributable to the payment of $2.4 billieceived from a local financial institution
during the second quarter of 2006 that signifigarégbduced the Corporation’s outstanding securedheerial loan with a local financial
institution. Proceeds from the aforementioned repayt were invested temporarily in short-term inrrestt, reducing the Corporation’s
average yield on interest-earning assets. Duriagéitond half of 2006, the Corporation used a anbat amount of the proceeds of the loan
repayments to repay higher rate outstanding brok€i2s that matured during the third and fourth tprasf 2006.

The Corporation’s average interest-earningtasacreased by $1.1 billion or 6% for 2006 coragao 2005. The increase in average
earnings asset was principally due to increas#seitCorporation’s loan portfolio, mainly in the atiruction and residential real estate
portfolios, and increases in money market investmdResidential real estate loans and construtienms accounted for the largest growth in
the portfolio with average volumes rising by $7981@#ion and $751.5 million, respectively, durin@@ compared to 2005. The
Corporation’s average volume of the commercial Iparifolio decreased by $1.6 billion in 2006 congzhto 2005. The decrease in the
Corporation’s commercial loan portfolio was maidlye to the payment from a local financial instaatof $2.4 billion to partially pay down
its secured commercial loan with the Corporatidme payment significantly reduced the Corporatidoéns-to-one borrower exposure.

For the loan portfolio, the growth in averagdume, mainly driven by loan originations, repmesel a positive increase of
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$49.1 million in interest income on loans. The @ases due to rate of $111.8 million are primatisitautable to the origination of new loans
at higher rates and to the re-pricing of variablke toans. The majority of the Corporation’s conera@rand construction loans are variable
rate loans tied to short-term rates indexes. DW2B@PE, the Federal Reserve Bank increased itsteatdederal funds rate by 108 basis points,
and correspondingly LIBOR and Prime rates alsosiased. Both indexes are used by the Corporatioerpoice the majority of its floating
rate loans including secured loans to local finahicistitutions (refer to the “Financial Conditidmans Receivable” section of this
discussion), contributing to higher interest incoe of December 31, 2006, 82% of the commercid| 2B of the construction loan
portfolios were variable rate loans.

Average volume increases in the Corporationvestment portfolio contributed to increases iteiast income for 2006. This increase was
partially offset by negative rate variances, mainlgovernment obligations and mortgage-backedq@ms. Average money market
investments increased by $808.4 million. After reicgy the repayment of $2.4 billion from a locabdincial institution, the Corporation
invested the proceeds in money market investmBnisng the second half of 2006, the Corporatiordus@art of the proceeds to repay short-
term brokered certificates of deposit, mainly igsire2006, as these matured. The average yieldvexten money market investments also
increased from 3.49% in 2005 to 5.04% in 2006. ihkeease in yields was due to increases in dieont-rates during 2005 and 2006. Aver
government obligations increased by $333.5 millishile the average yield decreased by 67 basidgadiie increase in average volume and
decrease in average yield was due to the re-invgtof proceeds from prepayments on securitiedageér volume of new investments at
lower rates. The average volume and average yaglted on the Corporation’s mortgage-backed seesnitortfolio decreased by
$198.0 million and 54 basis points, respectivaly2006 compared to 2005. The decrease in the avermgme of mortgage-backed securities
was due to the Corporation’s decision not to reshweaturities and prepayments received from mogdaagked securities. Proceeds from
prepayments and maturities of mortgage-backed giesuwvere utilized to fund growth in higher yiatdi loans. The growth in the average
balance of investments represented a positiveasere interest income on investments due to voloh$&2.4 million and a negative
variance due to rate of $17.7 million.

On the liabilities side, the Corporation’sardst expense, excluding changes in the fair va@lirgterest rate swaps and the ineffective
portion and basis adjustment amortization or amorain fair value hedges, increased by $222.6 onilér 39% in 2006 compared to 2005.
The increase in interest expense was due to highes paid on liabilities due to the re-pricingsbbrt-term (i.e., deposits and repurchase
agreements) and long-term (i.e., long-term repwselzyreements and other advances) liabilitiednterest incurred on interest rate swap
instruments, and increases in the average volurireesest-bearing deposits to support the Corpamatiloan and investment portfolio
growth. The average volume of deposits increase®lhy billion and the average rate increased bylE34s points during 2006 compared to
2005, while the average volume of other borrowedifuand FHLB advances decreased by $458.1 milhidrs&17.3 million, respectively,
and the average rate increased by 76 basis paidt$28 basis points, respectively. The increaskdraverage volume of interest-bearing
liabilities coupled with the increase in rates te=iliin an increase in interest expense due tonvelaf $27.8 million and due to rate of
$194.8 million. The increase in short-term rate® absulted in a change in net payments on intessswaps included as part of interest
expense. For the year ended December 31, 2006ettsettlement payments on such interest rate sigaptied in charges of $8.9 million to
interest expense, or a net increase of $80.6 milfianterest expense compared to the previous weahe rates paid under the variable leg of
the swaps exceeded the rates received.

In summary, positive volume variances resglfiom an increase in average interest-earningsassre offset by negative rate variances
derived from a higher cost of funds, despite highelds on the loans. The net impact on net intare®me and earnings was negative on a
rate/volume basis. The Corporation’s net intenesbime (on a tax equivalent basis and excludinggdaim the fair value of derivative
instruments, the ineffective portion on designdtedges and basis adjustments) decreased by $3Wdhnthe net result of a positive volume
variance of $63.6 million and a negative rate varéof $100.7 million. The net interest margin @ased from 3.23% for the year 2005 to
2.84% for 2006. The contraction is primarily dudtte flat to inverted yield curve and has beenipaldrly significant with respect to the
Corporation’s portfolio of investment securitiesckiding money market instruments.

2005 compared to 2004

On a tax equivalent basis, net interest ing@wreluding the changes in the fair values of deie instruments, increased by
$119.5 million for 2005 compared to 2004. The iasein net interest income for 2005, excludingctenges in the fair value of derivatives
was primarily due to increases in the Corporati@verage balance of interest-earning assets affgetrt by a reduction in the Corporation’s
net interest margin. The Corporation’s averaga@steearning assets increased by $4.3 billion &6 8 2005 compared to 2004. The
increase in average interest-earning assets wadally due to increases in the Corporation’s Ipartfolio, mainly in the commercial,
construction, and residential real estate portfpland increases in money market instruments anergment obligation investments.
Commercial loans and construction loans accourtteth€ largest growth in the portfolio with averagdumes rising $2.1 billion and
$331.4 million, respectively, and residential resflate loans followed with $686.0 million. The im&se in the commercial loans portfolio was
due to increases in secured
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commercial loans to local financial institutions.

The decrease in the net interest rate mangiimgl 2005 was due primarily to the upward trenglodrt-term interest rates the flattening of
the yield curve, and the re-pricing mismatch of @wporation’s assets and liabilities. On averdige Corporation’s liabilities re-price and/or
mature earlier than its assets. Thus, increasgsart-term interest rates reduce net interest ikgavhich is an important part of the
Corporation’s earnings. The average rate paid &yCibrporation on its interest-bearing liabilitiasrieased by 96 basis points during 2005,
from 2.62% to 3.58%, mainly due to re-pricing of iorporation’s interest-bearing deposits, andeiases in rates paid on FHLB advances
and other borrowed funds tied to 3-month LIBOR. @kerage yield earned on the Corporation’s intezasting assets increased by 77 basis
points during 2005, from 5.68% to 6.45% mainly tlu¢he repricing of variable rate commercial loans and thgination of new commerci
loans at higher rates.

Significant volume increases in the Corporatdoan portfolio, mainly in the commercial andidential real estate portfolios, and
significant rate increases in the commercial Iqaorfolio contributed significantly to interest imme for 2005. As shown in the table
identified as Part |, the Corporation experiencedtiouous growth in the loan portfolios. Averagars increased by $3.5 billion compared to
2004. For the loan portfolio, the growth in averagkime, mainly driven by loan originations andrgses in secured commercial loans to
local financial institutions, represented a positincrease of $209.7 million in interest incomdaams. The increases due to rate of
$110.4 million are primarily attributable to thegination of new loans at higher rates and to #iernicing of variable rate loans. The majority
of the Corporation’s commercial and constructicenie are variable rate loans tied to short-ternsraexes. During 2005, the Federal
Reserve Bank increased the federal funds rate @ya8is points, and correspondingly, LIBOR and Briates also increased. These indexes
are used by the Corporation to re-price the majafiits floating rate loans including secured lsan local financial institutions (refer to the
“Financial Condition-Loans Receivable” section loiktdiscussion), contributing to higher interestome. As of December 31, 2005, 93% of
the commercial and 96% of the construction loanfplins were variable rate loans.

Average volume increases in the Corporationvestment portfolio and positive rate varianceajnty in the money market investments
and government obligations portfolio, also conttdalito interest income for 2005. Average investnsecurities increased by $781.5 million.
With the increase in long-term rates during 200d @n@ continuing trend in 2005, the Corporatiornéered the long-term investment market
which contributed to the increase in interest ineoffhese purchases accounted for most of the y@siiriances in interest income from
investments due to volume and due to rate. The throwthe average balance of investments repredenpmsitive increase in interest income
on investments due to volume of $35.9 million ané tb rate of $21.9 million, mainly attributableadigher volume of higher yielding
government agency securities.

On the liabilities side, the Corporation’sargst expense, excluding changes in the fair va@lirgterest rate swaps, increased by
$258.4 million or 84% in 2005 compared to 2004. Trfezease in interest expense was mainly due te&ses in the average volume of
interest-bearing deposits to support the Corpanatitban and investment portfolio growth, highelesapaid on liabilities due to the re-pricing
of short-term (i.e., deposits and repurchase ageatspand long-term (i.e., long-term repurchaseeagents and other advances) liabilities,
and higher net interest paid on interest rate smstpuments. The average volume of deposits inegthg $3.5 billion and the average rate
increased by 121 basis points during 2005 compar2004, while the average volume of other borrofedls increased by $766.2 million
and the average rate increased by 73 basis pdimesincrease in the average volume of interestibgdiabilities coupled with the increase in
rates resulted in an increase in interest expenseavolume of $115.5 million and due to rate 4%.9 million. While the LIBOR rate has
increased since December 2004 by approximatelybd8i& points, the Corporation’s cost of interestrimgy liabilities, excluding the changes
in the fair value of interest rate swaps, has iasee 96 basis points from 2.62% for 2004 to 3.5882005. The increases in the three-month
LIBOR rates resulted in a compression of intergshanged on received fixed pay-floating interet mwvaps. The net interest realized on
these economic hedges of brokered CDs decreasedbft@5 million in 2004 to $72 million in 2005 neyaly impacting interest expense ¢
cost of funds when comparing both periods.

In summary, positive volume variances resglfiom an increase in average interest-earningggssre offset by negative rate variances
derived from a higher cost of funds, despite highelds on the loans and investment portfolios. beimpact on net interest income and
earnings was positive on a rate/volume basis. Tdrpdations net interest income (on a tax equivalent bagdseawluding changes in the f
value of derivative instruments) increased by $3.18illion, the net result of a positive volume \aarce of $130.1 million and a negative rate
variance of $10.6 million. The net interest mard@creased from 3.37% for the year 2004 to 3.2392@06. The contraction is primarily due
to the flat to inverted yield curve.

Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

The provision for loan and lease losses isggtato earnings to maintain the allowance for laad lease losses at a level that the
Corporation considers adequate to absorb probas$ées$ inherent in the portfolio. The adequacy ef th

50




Table of Contents

allowance for loan and lease losses is also bgsaa & number of additional factors including histalrloan loss experience, current
economic conditions, the fair value of the underdycollateral and the financial condition of therowvers, and, as such, includes amounts
based on judgments and estimates made by the @tigporAlthough the Corporation believes that theveance for loan and lease losses is
adequate, factors beyond the Corporation’s controluding factors affecting the Puerto Rico, FilariUSA), US Virgin Islands’ or British
Virgin Islands’ economies may contribute to deliegoies and defaults, thus necessitating additi@sairves.

During 2006, the Corporation provided $75.0iam for loan and lease losses, as compared ta§dlion in 2005 and $52.8 million in
2004.

Refer to the discussions under “Risk Managdémefredit Risk Management — Allowance for Loan &edse Losses and Non-performing
Assets” below for analysis of the allowance fom@and lease losses and non-performing assets kateldeatios.

2006 compared to 2005

The Corporation’s provision for loan and lebssses increased by $24.4 million or 48% durin@8€ompared to 2005. The increase in the
provision principally reflects growth in the Corption’s commercial, excluding loans to local finedinstitutions, consumer portfolios, and
increasing trends in non-performing loans expeedrmuring 2006 as compared to 2005. The Corporatiet charge-offs and non-
performing loans were affected by the fiscal anmheenic situation of Puerto Rico. According to theeRo Rico Planning Board, Puerto Rico
is in a midst of a recession. The slowdown in dtgtii the result of, among other things, highelitigs prices, higher taxes, government
budgetary imbalances, the upward trend in shont-faterest rates and the flattening of the yieldreuand higher levels of oil prices.

Net charge-offs to average loans outstandining 2006 were 0.55% as compared to 0.39% in 20B&.provision for loan and lease
losses totaled 116% of net charge-offs for 2006 mared with 112% of net charge-offs, for 2005. Treease of $19.7 million in net charge-
offs in 2006, compared with the previous year, masnly composed of $24.8 million of higher chagfés in consumer loans. The increast
net charge-offs in consumer and commercial potfaias due to the economic situation of the island.

2005 compared to 2004

The Corporation’s provision for loan and lebseses decreased by $2.2 million during 2005 coatp 2004. The decrease in the
provision during 2005 as compared to 2004 was pifynattributable to the seasoning of the corpo@mmercial loans portfolio and to a
decrease in the specific reserve allocated to amaneial loan based on new facts that satisfiedCigoration as to the ultimate recoverab
of the loan. The Corporation has not incurred digant losses as a percentage of its commerciakloaceivable since it started emphasizing
corporate commercial lending activities in the [8890s; therefore, the provision for inherent Isssehis portfolio has decreased. The
provision for 2005 is mainly attributable to thensamer loans portfolio and to a lesser extentéactinstruction loan portfolio which
increased significantly in 2005 from loans disbdrbg the Corporation’s loan agency in Coral Galfsrida.

Net charge-offs to average loans outstandinigng the period were 0.39% as compared to 0.48200%. Net charge-offs amounted to
$45.0 million for 2005 compared to $38.1 milliom 2004. The provision for loan and lease lossededt112% of net charge-offs for 2005,
compared with 138% of net charge-offs for 2004. iFleeease of $6.9 million in net charge-offs in @95 year, compared with the previous
year, was mainly composed of $5.0 million of highbarg+-offs in consumer loans primarily auto loans, givégher delinquencies during
2005.
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Non-interest Income

The following table presents the compositibnon-interest income:

Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Other service charges on lo¢ $ 5,94¢ $ 5,431 $ 3,91(
Service charges on deposit accol 12,59 11,79¢ 10,93¢
Mortgage banking activitie 2,25¢ 3,79¢ 3,921
Rental income 3,26¢ 3,46: 3,071
Insurance incom 11,28« 9,44: 6,43¢
Other commissions and fe 1,47(C 911 1,98
Other operating incom 12,851 15,89¢ 14,37:

Non-interest income before net gain (loss) on investsi@mpairment of investments, net
loss on partial extinguishment of secured commElaén and gain on sale of credit ¢

portfolio 49,67( 50,73¢ 44,63¢
Net gain on investmen 7,057 20,71 12,15¢
Impairment of investmen (15,25) (8,379 2,699
Net (loss) gain on investmer (8,199 12,33¢ 9,451
Net loss on partial extinguishment of secured consrakloan to local financial institutio (10,640 — —
Gain on sale of credit card portfo 50C — 5,53:
Total $ 31,33¢ $63,07" $59,62¢

Non-interest income primarily consists of athervice charges on loans; service charges orsitggmmounts; commissions derived from
various banking, securities and insurance actsjitigins on mortgage banking activities; net gam@vestment activities; and gains or lo¢
on derivatives that are designated as non-econletiges (“non-economic derivatives”). Non-interesbime for 2006 amounted to
approximately $31.3 million as compared to $63.llioni and $59.6 million for the same period in 200% 2004, respectively.

Non-interest income, excluding the net gaiisg) on investments, loss on the partial extingnéstt of secured commercial loan, and gain
on sale of a credit card portfolio, amounted to.$48illion in 2006, $50.7 million in 2005, and $84million in 2004.

Other service charges on loans consist maihbervice charges on credit card related actwitie
Service charges on deposit accounts includehmhoand other fees on deposit accounts.

Mortgage banking activities income includemgan sale of residential loans and fees earneddiministering residential mortgage loans
originated by the Corporation and subsequently watld servicing retained. In addition, lower of tes market adjustments to the
Corporation’s residential mortgage loans held &de sre recorded as part of mortgage banking #esvi

The Corporation’s subsidiary, First Leasing &ental Corporation, generates income on thelrehtarious types of motor vehicles.

Other commissions and fees income is there$ain agreement with a major investment banking fo participate in bond issues by the
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico andgreement with an international brokerage firm ddinsiness in Puerto Rico to offer
brokerage services in selected branches.

Insurance income consists of insurance comomssarned by the Corporation’s subsidiary FirstBmsurance Agency, Inc., and the
Bank’s subsidiary in the US Virgin Islands, FirstBankurance V.1., Inc. These subsidiaries offer a wigigety of insurance business throt
cross selling strategies, marketing effort andtetyia locations of sale offices.

The other operating income category is compageniscellaneous fees such as check fees anal idriafe deposit boxes. Other opera
income also includes unrealized gains and losseeowatives not qualifying or not designated inelge accounting relationship.

The net gain (loss) on investment securigdlects gains or losses as a result of sales thkahaonsonance with the
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Corporation’s investment policies as well as oftien-temporary impairment charges on portfolio séies.

2006 compared to 2005

For 2006, non-interest income decreased by7$3ilion as compared to 2005. The decrease inint@mest income for 2006, compared to
2005, was mainly attributable to a net loss of 81fillion on the partial extinguishment of a seclilcemmercial loan to a local financial
institution, an increase in other-than-temporarpaimment charges of $6.9 million in the Corporatanvestment portfolio and lower gains
on investments of $13.7 million. These negativearares were partially offset by increases of $1il8an in commission income from the
Corporation’s insurance business and $1.3 millioservice charges on deposit accounts and loans.

In 2006, the Corporation recorded a net |[ds%16.6 million on the partial extinguishment otaeed commercial loans to local financial
institutions as a result of a series of agreemexatshed with Doral Financial Corporation (“DoralQn May 25, 2006, the Corporation ente
into a series of credit agreements with Doral toutieent as secured borrowings the loan transfeveeeet the parties that previously had been
accounted for incorrectly as sales. The termsettiedit agreements specified: (1) a floating adepayment based on a spread over 90-day
LIBOR subject to a cap; (2) an amortization schedigld to the scheduled amortization of the undleglynortgage loans subject to a
maximum maturity of 10 years; (3) mandatory prepagta as a result of actual prepayments from thenlyidg mortgages; and (4) an option
to Doral to prepay the loan without penalty at Eme.

On May 31, 2006, First BanCorp received a gaghment from Doral, substantially reducing theabak of approximately $2.9 billion in
secured commercial loans to approximately $450anilés of that date. In connection with the repaytnime Corporation and Doral entered
into a sharing agreement on May 25, 2006 with retsjoecertain profits or losses that Doral incusgart of the sales of the mortgages that
previously collateralized the commercial loanssFBanCorp agreed to reimburse Doral for 40% ofnitelosses incurred by Doral as a result
of sales of the mortgages, subject to certain ¢mmdi and subject to a maximum reimbursement & $8llion, which will be reduced
proportionately to the extent that Doral does miitthe mortgages. As a result of the loss shaamngement and the partial extinguishment of
the commercial loans by Doral, the Corporation réed a net loss of $10.6 million composed of lossatized as part of the sharing
agreement and the difference between the carnahge\of the loans and the net payment received Donal.

Mortgage banking activities income decrease@b5 million for 2006 compared to 2005. The daseein 2006 was principally due to a
$1.0 million lower-of-cost-or-market negative vaioa adjustment to the Corporation’s loans heldsi@le portfolio as a result of increases in
long-term interest rates coupled with a lower voduofii mortgage loan sales.

Insurance income for 2006 increased by $11Bomior 19% compared to the same period in 200 ificrease for 2006 was due to an
increase in the volume of business through crokisgastrategies, marketing efforts and the stritégrations of the Corporation’s insurance
offices.

Service charges on deposit accounts and eémeice charges on loans increased by $0.8 milich$0.5 million, respectively, during
2006 compared to 2005. The increase for 2006 piliynaflects a larger volume of accounts and tratisas during 2006.

Net loss on investments for 2006 amountedta $illion compared to a net gain of $12.3 millfon the same period in 2005. The
decrease in 2006 was principally due to a lowenwd of sales coupled with a net increase of $6l8omin other-than-temporary
impairments in the Corporation’s investment poitfoklated to certain equity securities. Manageneentluded that the declines in value of
the securities were other-than-temporary, as dueleast basis of these securities was written dovine market value as of the date of the
analysis. Management evaluates investment se@ufitiampairment on a quarterly basis or earliatifer factors indicative of potential
impairment exist.

2005 compared to 2004

For 2005, non-interest income increased b§ #8llion as compared to 2004. The increase in imberest income in 2005, compared to
2004, was mainly attributable to increases of $8illon in commission income from the Corporatioimisurance business, $2.4 million in
other service charges on deposit accounts and,laads$8.6 million in net gains on investmentstiply offset by an increase in other-than-
temporary impairment charges of $5.7 million in @erporation’s investment portfolio and a decrezsg5.5 million in gain on sale of credit
card portfolio.

Insurance income for 2005 increased by $3Ilomior 47% compared to 2004. The increase for5s2@@s due to an increased in volum
business through cross-selling strategies, maretiforts and the strategic locations of the Caaion’s insurance offices.
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Other service charges on loans and servicggeha@n deposit accounts increased by $1.5 mitlidd9% and $0.9 million or 8%,
respectively, during 2005 compared to 2004. Thee@ee was due to a larger volume of accounts andactions during 2005. The increase
was also driven by the acquisition of FirstBankrida.

Mortgage banking activities income decreaseith1 million for 2005 compared to 2004. The daseein 2005 was principally due to a
$0.4 million lower-of-cost-or-market adjustmentth@ Corporation’s loans held for sale portfolicea®sult of increases in long-term interest
rates. Mortgage banking activities income alsoudek gains on sale of residential mortgage loaam @ sale of mortgage loans amounted
to $3.6 million in 2005 and 2004. During the figgtarter of 2005, the Corporation entered into aargement with another unrelated finan
institution (the “Counterparty”) in which, in subsice, the parties agreed to sell and purchaseasimirtgage loan portfolios. Pursuant to this
arrangement, the Corporation purchased mortgage vith an aggregate unpaid principal balance @t3aillion for $88.9 million in
March 2005. In April and May of 2005, the Corpooatisold to the Counterparty mortgage loans withreggte unpaid principal balances of
$60.0 million and $29.7 million, for $61.1 millicand $30.3 million, respectively, resulting in gaarsthe sales of $1.3 million and
$0.6 million, respectively. Since the Corporatieteined the servicing on the mortgage loans soldeidCounterparty, it also recognized a
servicing asset of $1.2 million. The Corporatioteeed into these transactions because, among rethsons, the transactions were consistent
with its business objectives of developing a mageghanking business that would provide its liqyidis well as new sources for its
acquisition of mortgage loans. Notwithstanding thattransactions were in substance the purchakesa® of similar mortgage loan
portfolios, generally accepted accounting prin@piequire that the transactions be treated asaategpurchase and a separate sale.

Other commissions and fees income during 2#@%eased by $1.1 million compared to 2004. Theedse in 2005 was mainly due to a
decrease in fees as a result of a decrease inltingservices provided by the Corporation to th®/€&nment Development Bank of Puerto
Rico for the issuance of local bonds.

The gain on the sale of credit card portfai@004 results from portfolios sold pursuant tstrategic alliance agreement reached with ¢
financial institution in 2003.

Net gains on investments, excluding other-ttesmporary impairments, resulted mainly from thie gd a substantial portion of the
Corporation’s equity portfolio held at one of tiéarnational banking entities at gains of approxetya$20.7 million. The proceeds from the
sale of equity securities and other funds availablle Corporation’s holding company were usethasie a $110.0 million capital
contribution to FirstBank Puerto Rico at the en@@®5. During 2005, the Corporation recorded othan-temporary impairments on three
equity securities held in portfolio amounting ta4illion. Management concluded that the declinesalue of the securities were other-
than-temporary; as such the cost basis of thesgises was written down to the market value athefdate of the analyses. Management
evaluates investment securities for impairment gnaxterly basis or earlier if other factors indiiea of potential impairment exist.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expenses amounted to $288.0amiftor 2006 as compared to $315.1 million for 2@@8 $180.5 million for 2004. The
following table presents the components of nonreggeexpenses:

Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Employee’ compensation and benef $127,52! $102,07¢ $ 82,44(
Occupancy and equipme 54,44( 47,58. 39,43(
Deposit insurance premiu 1,614 1,24¢ 97¢
Other taxes, insurance and supervisory 17,88: 14,07: 11,61°¢
Professional fee— recurring 11,45¢ 7,317 4,16t
Professional fee— restatement related and other nonrecur 20,64( 6,07( —
Servicing and processing fe 7,291 6,57: 2,72
Business promotio 17,67: 18,71¢ 16,34¢
Communication 9,16¢ 8,64: 7,27¢
Provision for contingencie — 82,75( —
Other 20,27¢ 20,08 15,50
Total $287,96: $315,13. $180,48(

2006 compared to 2005

Non-interest expense for 2006 decreased by2$8iflion compared to 2005. Non-interest expemse2005 includes accruals of
$74.25 million and $8.5 million for possible settient of class action lawsuits and the SEC invesitigarespectively, relating to the
Corporation’s restatement. Excluding these accruals-interest expense during 2006 increased by63$68lion compared to 2005. The
increase was mainly due to increases in employmaspensation and benefits,
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occupancy and equipment and professional fees.

Employees’ compensation and benefits increas2606 by $25.4 million or 25% as compared to20he increase is mainly attributable
to increases in average salary and employee beefit headcount from approximately 2,700 emplogeex December 31, 2005, to
approximately 3,000 employees as of December 316.2Dhe increase in headcount was mostly attribeit@mbincreases associated with the
Corporation’s loan origination and deposit gathgéfforts, in particular FirstBank Puerto Rico,d88ank Florida, FirstMortgage, and the
Corporation’s small loan company as well as inagsas support areas, in particular audit and caanpk, credit risk management, finance
and accounting and information technology and bamkiperations. The increase was also attributaltleet implementation of SFAS 123R
and the expensing of the fair value of stock omigiven to employees. During 2006, the Corporatémorded $5.4 million in stock-based
compensation expense.

Occupancy and equipment expenses increasadyd006 by $6.9 million or 14% compared to 200Be Thcrease in occupancy and
equipment expenses in 2006 as compared to 2008vianily attributable to increases in costs asdedavith the expansion of the
Corporation’s branch network and loan originatidfices. The increase also reflects higher eledyricosts and the additional operating costs
from the acquisition of FirstBank Florida.

Other taxes, insurance and supervisory fege@sed during 2006 by $3.8 million or 27% compaeoe2005. During 2006, the Corporation
experienced increased insurance costs mainly defatincreases in rate and coverage of directaord’afficers’ liability insurance and
expensed a higher amount of municipal and profarys, as compared to 2005.

Professional fees expenses increased durid@ 29 $18.7 million compared to 2005. The increfas®006 was primarily due to legal,
accounting and consulting fees associated witlntieenal review conducted by the Corporation’s A@ibmmittee as a result of the
restatement announcement and other related ledakgnulatory proceedings which amounted to $20IBomiin 2006 compared to
$6.1 million in 2005.

Following the announcement of the Corporasohudit Committee review, the Corporation and dartd its current and former officers
were named as defendants in separate class audtisfiled late in 2005. The securities class artioere consolidated. Based on available
evidence and discussions with the lead plaintii, Corporation accrued $74.25 million in the 20@&rcial statements for a possible
settlement of the class action. Subsequently, ¥ 2the Corporation reached an agreement in pimeipd signed a memorandum of
understanding with the lead plaintiff. The agreetspecified a payment of $74.25 million by the Gugiion and is subject to approval by
United States District Court for the District ofé?to Rico.

In addition, the Corporation held discussiaiith the staff of the SEC regarding a possible Ikggm to its investigation of the
Corporation’s restatement, and accrued $8.5 miilioits consolidated financial statements for tearyended December 31, 2005 in
connection with a potential settlement of the SE@V&stigation of the Corporation. Any settlemensiibject to the approval of the SEC.
There can be no assurance that the Corporatiofog®fo resolve the SEC’s investigation with regge the Corporation will be successful,
or that the amount accrued will be sufficient, &mel Corporation cannot predict at this time thangyor final terms of any settlement. Both
the SEC and class action contingencies were pedémthe 2005 Statement of Income as provisiordotingencies.

2005 compared to 2004

Non-interest expense for 2005 increased byt F1&iillion compared to 2004. The increase in marfest expense was mainly due to
increases in provision for contingencies, employeespensation and benefits, occupancy and equiparahprofessional fees.

For 2005, as discussed above, non-intereginsepincluded accruals of $74.25 million and $8ilsan for possible settlements of class
action lawsuits and SEC investigation, respectivatya result of the Corporation’s restatement.

Employees’ compensation and benefits increas2805 as compared to 2004 by $19.6 million d¥%27Zhe increase is mainly attributable
to increases in average salary and employee beieiit headcount from approximately 2,300 emplogsed December 31, 2004 and to
approximately 2,700 persons as of December 31, 8Bly to support the growth in operations anarfritie acquisition of FirstBank Flori
in 2005.

The increase of $8.2 million or 21% in occupaand equipment expenses in 2005 as comparedt\88s primarily attributable to
increases in costs associated with the expansi@uoudoration’s branch network and loan originatiffices. The increase in 2005 also
includes higher electricity costs and the acquisitf FirstBank Florida.

Professional fees for 2005 increased by apprately $9.2 million when compared to 2004. Theéase for 2005 was
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primarily due to legal, accounting and consultiegd associated with the internal review conducyetthd Corporatiors Audit Committee, th
restatement process and other related legal prioggedhich amounted to approximately $6.1 millior2005.

Income Tax Provision

The income tax provision includes Puerto Rind Virgin Islands income taxes as well as appleédderal and state taxes. The
Corporation is subject to Puerto Rico income taxt®imcome from all sources. As a Puerto Rico ooafion, First BanCorp is treated as a
foreign corporation in the United States and isegally subject to United States income tax onlytsincome from sources within the United
States or income effectively connected with thedom of a trade or business within the United Statay such tax paid is creditable, within
certain conditions and limitations, against theg@oation’s Puerto Rico tax liability. The Corpomatiis also subject to United States Virgin
Islands taxes on its income from sources withia fihwisdiction. However, any tax paid, subject ¢otain conditions and limitations, is
creditable against the Corporation’s Puerto Ricditbility.

Under the Puerto Rico tax code, First Ban@®1ubject to a maximum statutory tax rate of 38%eept for years 2005 and 2006, in which
a temporary tax of 2.5% was signed into law byGloeernor of Puerto Rico. In August 2005, the Gowent of Puerto Rico approved the
temporary tax of 2.5% that increased the maximwutusiry tax rate from 39.0% to 41.5% for a two-ypariod. On May 13, 2006, with an
effective date of January 1, 2006, the Governm&Ruerto Rico signed Law No. 89 which imposes atitahal 2.0% income tax on all
companies covered by the Puerto Rico Banking Acgraended, such as FirstBank. The Puerto Ricoo@de also includes an alternative
minimum tax of 22% that applies if the Corporat®négular income tax liability is less than thealative minimum tax requirements.

The Corporation has maintained an effectixeéte lower than the maximum statutory rate malylynvesting in government obligations
and mortgage-backed securities exempt from U.SPardto Rico income tax combined with gains on ealavestments held by the
international banking entity units (IBE) of the @oration and the Bank and by the Bank’s subsidi@rstBank Overseas Corporation. The
IBEs and FirstBank Overseas Corporation were odeateler the International Banking Entity Act of RoeRico, which provides for total
Puerto Rico tax exemption on net income derivetheyiBEs operating in Puerto Rico. Since 2004, |Btas operate as a unit of a bank must
pay income tax at normal rates to the extent tietBES’ net income exceeds predetermined percestafgthe bank’s total net taxable
income. Such limitations were 30% of total net tdgancome for a taxable year commencing betwegnl]i2004 and July 1, 2005, and 2!
of such total net taxable income for taxable yearamencing thereafter.

The income tax provision amounted to $27.4iomil(for an effective tax rate of 24%) for 2006a@snpared to $15.0 million (for an
effective tax rate of 12%) for 2005, and $46.5 imill(for an effective tax rate of 21%) in 2004.

For additional information relating to incon@xes, see Note 25 to the Corporation’s finand&tesments.

2006 compared to 2005

The income tax provision for 2006 increasedb®.4 million compared to 2005. The increase iD628s compared to 2005 was mainly
to a decrease in deferred tax benefits of $28.bamimainly due to deferred tax benefits recorde@005 related to the possible class action
lawsuit settlement that was partially offset byezmase in the current tax provision due to loaealle income.

The Corporation evaluated its ability to realthe deferred tax asset and concluded, basedhdatde evidence, that it is more likely than
not that some of the deferred tax assets will eatdalized and thus, established a valuation alloeaf $6.1 million. As of December 31,
2006, the deferred tax asset, net of the valuatilonvance, amounted to approximately $162.1 miliompared to $130.1 million as of
December 31, 2005, including a valuation allowawic$3.2 million.

The current income tax provision of $59.2 ioillin 2006 decreased by $16.1 million compare2i@5. The decrease in 2006 as comp
to 2005 was mainly due to a decrease in taxabtamecpartly offset by a change in the proportioexd#mpt and taxable income as a result of
increases in the Corporation’s taxable income geadrfrom the Corporation’s loan portfolios andréases in tax exempt income mainly
from the Corporation’s investment portfolios andawyincrease in non-qualifying IBE income that underent legislation were taxed at
regular rates. As discussed above, income from IB&soperate as a unit of a bank that exceedioghiesholds are taxed at regular income
tax rates. The current income tax provision was aigacted by the temporary surtax of 2.0% ovestBank’s net taxable income, explained
above, which resulted in an additional income taovision of $1.7 million.

The income tax provision includes total defdrincome tax benefits of $31.7 million and $60if2iam for 2006 and 2005, respectively,
which are mainly attributable to temporary diffecen related to the aforementioned unrealized lomsetrivative instruments and class
action lawsuit settlement.
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2005 compared to 2004

The income tax provision for 2005 decrease82iy.5 million compared to 2004. The decrease 0528 compared to 2004 was mainly
due to total deferred tax benefits of $60.2 milliecognized during the year mainly composed of B&tillion as a result of unrealized losses
on derivative instruments, $29.0 million as a reefibccrued amount for class action settlement&hd million as a result of increases in the
allowance for loan losses, net of increases irctimeent tax provision.

The current income tax provision amounted#b.$ million, compared to $53.0 million in 2004.€Timcrease in the current income tax
provision for 2005, when compared to 2004, islattable to significant increases in the Corporasdaxable income generated from the |
portfolios. The change in the proportion of exerpd taxable income resulted in a higher currentitaaddition, the current provision was
impacted by the temporary surtax of 2.5% over aedlble income, explained above, which resultedhiadditional income tax provision of
$3.6 million.

The income tax provision includes total defdrmcome tax benefits of $60.2 million and $6.8iom for 2005 and 2004, respectively,
which are mainly attributable to temporary diffecea related to the above referred allowance for doal lease losses, unrealized losses on
derivative instruments and to the class actiontedléiability recorded as of December 31, 2005.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Based upon the Corporation’s organizationaicstire and the information provided to the Chige@ating Decision Maker and, to a lesser
extent, the Board of Directors, the operating sagmare driven primarily by legal entities. As oéé@mber 31, 2006, the Corporation had
four reportable segments: Commercial and Corpd@atiking; Mortgage Banking; Consumer (Retail) Bagkiand Treasury and Investmel
as well as an Other category reflecting other legéties reported separately. Management deterhilreereportable segments based on the
internal reporting used to evaluate performancetarabsess where to allocate resources. For infmmeegarding First BanCorp'reportable
segments, please refer to note 31 “Segment Infooniato the Corporation’s financial statements fioe year ended December 31, 2006
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

The accounting policies of the segments agesime as those described in Note 1 — “Nature sir@ss and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” to the Corporation’s financ&htements for the year ended December 31, 2@0&led in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
The Corporation evaluates the performance of tgesats based on net interest income after the adhprovision for loan losses, other
income and direct operating expenses. The segrasntlso evaluated based on the average volunheiofiiterest-earning assets less the
allowance for loan and lease losses.

The only intersegment transactions are theéramsfer of funds by the Treasury and Investmadt@onsumer (Retail) segments to other
segments. The Treasury and Investment segmentfoads to the Consumer; Mortgage Banking and Coroialesind Corporate Banking
segments to finance their lending activities anddaes funds from those segments. The Consumer segats® loans funds to other
segments. The interest rates charged or creditéavegtment and Treasury and the Consumer segmeatlacated based on market rates
that match the expected maturity and/or re-priciiithe segment’s assets and liabilities. The diffiee between the allocated interest income
or expense and the Corporation’s actual net intémesme from centralized management of fundingsc@sreported in the Treasury and
Investments segment.

Consumer

The Consumer (Retail) segment consists o€thigoration’s consumer lending and deposit-takictivaies conducted mainly through its
branch network and loan centers. Loans to consumeltgle auto, credit card and personal loans. Biepooducts include checking and
savings accounts, Individual Retirement Accourf@Ajl and retail certificates of deposit. Retail dsi@gathered through each branch of
FirstBank’s retail network serve as one of the fogdources for the lending and investment acésiti

Consumer lending growth has been mainly driweauto loan originations. The growth of thesetfotios has been achieved through a
strategy of providing outstanding service to seléctuto dealers who provide the channel for thke dbiithe Corporation’s auto loan
originations. This strategy is directly linked toracommercial lending activities as the Corporatieaintains strong and stable auto floor plan
relationships, which are the foundation of a sustésuto loan generation operation. The Corponatiantinues to strengthen the commercial
relations with floor plan dealers, which directlgrefit the Corporation’s consumer lending operatind are managed as part of the consumel
banking activities.

Personal loans and, to a lesser extent, ménaecing and a small credit card portfolio alemtibute to interest income generated on
consumer lending. Management plans to continue tackive in the consumer loans market, applyingCtboration’s strict underwriting
standards.
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The highlights of the Consumer segment finalneisults for the year ended December 31, 2006deche following:

. Segment income before taxes for the year endedmeer 31, 2006 was $139.6 million compared to $lLafllion and
$82.4 million for the years ended December 31, 20052004, respectivel

. Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2@16 was $238.5 million compared to $200.8 millkord $152.0 million fo
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, rasgecThe increase in net interest income forybar 2006 as compared to
2005 and when comparing 2005 to 2004 was mainiyedrby the increase in the average volume of istezarning assets
primarily due to higher balances in the auto armdqmal loans portfolic

. The provision for loan and lease losses for ##r 2006 increased by $1.5 million compared tcstree period in 2005 and
$6.6 million when comparing 2005 with the same gbin 2004. The increase in the provision for laad lease losses was mai
due to growth in the segment’s auto and persomal portfolio coupled with increasing trends in mmrforming loans and charge-
offs experienced during 2006 and 2005. The Corpmrat net charge-offs were affected by the fisgad aconomic situation of
Puerto Rico. According to the Puerto Rico PlanmBiogird, Puerto Rico is in a midst of a recessiore Jlowdown in activity is the
result of, among other things, higher utilitiescps, higher taxes, government budgetary imbalativesipward trend in shotérm
interest rates and the flattening of the yield eyand higher levels of oil price

. Non-interest income for the year ended DecerBlheP006 was $23.5 million compared to $23.1 milland $24.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgc

. Direct non-interest expenses for the year endazbBber 31, 2006 were $86.9 million compared toF#Hllion and
$66.8 million for the years ended December 31, 20052004, respectively. The increase in directatpey expense for 2006 and
2005 was mainly due to increases in employees’ emsgtion and benefits and occupancy and equipffikatincrease in
employees’ compensation and benefits was mainlytairecreases in the headcount in the Corporatigeta! bank branch
network coupled with increases in average saladyeanployee benefits to support the growth of thggrsent.

Commercial and Corporate Banking

The Commercial and Corporate Banking segmemsists of the Corporation’s lending and otherises/for the public sector and
specialized industries such as healthcare, toufisamcial institutions, food and beverage, shogmanters and middle-market clients. The
Commercial and Corporate Banking segment offersngernial loans, including commercial real estate @mubstruction loans, and other
products such as cash management and businessamaaragervices. A substantial portion of this mdidfis secured by commercial real
estate. Although commercial loans involve greatedit risk because they are larger in size and miskds concentrated in a single borrower,
the Corporation has and maintains an effectiveitristt management infrastructure designed to ratégootential losses associated with
commercial lending, including strong underwritingddoan review functions, sales of loan participasi and continuous monitoring of
concentrations within portfolios.

For commercial segment, the Corporation fol@strategy aimed to cater the customer neette iocdmmercial loans middle market
segment by building strong relationships and dfifgfinancial solutions that meet customers’ unigeeds. Starting in 2005, the Corporation
expanded its distribution network and participatiothe commercial loans middle market segmentdaus$ing on customers with financing
needs up to $5 million. The Corporation establisheegional offices that provide coverage throughRuerto Rico. The offices are staffed
with sales, marketing and credit officers ablerovide a high level of personalized service andvgbdecision-making.

The highlights of the Commercial and CorpoBémking segment financial results for the yeareehDecember 31, 2006 include the
following:

. Segment income before taxes for the year endedmleer 31, 2006 was $123.8 million compared to LAbllion and
$91.5 million for the years ended December 31, 20952004, respectivel

. Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2@16 was $154.7 million compared to $153.5 millkord $106.9 million fo
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, rasgecThe increase in net interest income forybar 2006 was mainly drive
by an increase in net interest margin partiallgefty a decrease in the average volume of inteesing assets. The decrease in
the segment’s average volume of interest-earniagtasvas mainly due to the substantial partialyreyeamt of $2.4 billion received
from Doral in May 2006 that reduced the segmentstanding secured commercial loan from local foianinstitutions. The
repayment also reduced the Corporation’s loansa@borrower exposure. The increase in net intérestme in 2005 as compar
to 2004 is mainly attributed to a significant inase in the average volume of segment loans at higtes.

. The provision for loan and lease losses for g Y006 was $7.9 million compared to $2.7 milkow $14.1 million for the years
2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in theigion for loan and lease losses for 2006, conthar€005, was mainly due to
growth in the Corporation’s commercial portfoliougded with increasing trends in non-performing lwand charge-offs
experienced during 2006. The decrease in the poovéuring 2005 as compared to 2004 was primatthjbaitable to the
seasoning of the corporate commercial loans postéold to a decrease in the specific reserve alddm a commercial loan bas
on new facts that satisfied the Corporation afi¢oultimate recoverability of the los

. Total non-interest income for the year ended brdamr 31, 2006 resulted on a gain of $4.6 milliompared to a gain of
$5.6 million and $6.9 million for the years endeed@mber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fifictn in noninterest incom
for 2006, as compared to 2005, was mainly attrietéo a net loss of $10.6 million on the partigirguishment of a secured
commercial loan to a local financial institutic

. Direct non-interest expenses for 2006 were $6lign compared to $10.5 million and $8.1 millifor the years 2005 and 2004,



respectively. The increase in direct operating agpdor 2006 was mainly due to increases in emplyeompensation and
benefits primarily due to the full deployment oétGorporation’s middle-market business strategyeiases in average salary and
employee benefits to support the growth of the sagnThe staffing of the middle market regionalad$ was done during 2005

with the full year salary expense effect in 20
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Mortgage Banking

The Mortgage Banking segment conducts itsatjwars mainly through FirstBank and its mortgaggionation subsidiary, FirstMortgage.
These operations consist of the origination, satbservicing of a variety of residential mortgagaris products. Originations are sourced
through different channels such as branches, mgetheokers, real estate brokers, and in associafitinnew project developers.
FirstMortgage focuses on originating residential estate loans, some of which conform to Fedeoaisihg Administration (“FHA”),
Veterans Administration (“VA”) and Rural DevelopmégRD”) standards. Loans originated that meet FstAndards qualify for the federal
agencys insurance program whereas loans that meet VAREhdtandards are guaranteed by their respectiverdbdgencies. Mortgage loz
that do not qualify under these programs are contyneferred to as conventional loans. Conventioral estate loans could be conforming
and non-conforming. Conforming loans are residéngial estate loans that meet the standards fernsaler the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
programs whereas loans that do not meet the s@mdae referred to as non-conforming residentell @state loans. The Corporation’s
strategy is to penetrate markets by providing custs with a variety of high quality mortgage produio serve their financial needs faster,
simpler and at competitive prices.

The Mortgage Banking segment also acquiressatisl mortgages in the secondary markets. From tinime, residential real estate
conventional conforming loans are directly sold~tmnie Mae and Freddie Mac, or are grouped intdspafdb1 million or more in aggregate
principal balance and exchanged for Fannie Mageddie Mac-issued mortgage-backed securities, whielCorporation sells to investors.

The highlights of the Mortgage Banking segnfarancial results for the year ended Decembe2806 include the following:

. Segment income before taxes for the year endedrbleer 31, 2006 was $24.4 million compared to $&%l%on and
$18.7 million for the years ended December 31, 20052004, respectivel

. Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2@16 was $43.4 million compared to $39.0 milliowd &27.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgcfied increase in net interest income for the P&®6 and 2005 was mair
driven by the increase in the average outstanditanioe of mortgage loans, the increase from a higlerage volume in 2006 w
offset in part by a reduction in net interest mardyiie to the flattening of the yield curve and Isigmnificantly higher balance of
nor-accruing loans

. The provision for loan and lease losses for & Y006 was $4.0 million compared to $2.1 milkom $0.6 million for the years
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The aserén the provision for loan and lease lossesmasly due to growth in the
segmer’s portfolio coupled with increasing trends in -performing loans

. Non-interest income for the year ended December 316 2@as $2.5 million compared to $3.9 million and®dillion for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respgcfired decrease in n-interest income for 2006 was mainly attributalolet
lower-of-cost-or-market negative adjustment of $tilion to the segment’s loans held-for-sale palitf as a result of increases in
long-term interest rate:

. Direct noninterest expenses for 2006 were $17.5 million caeghéo $15.4 million and $12.4 million for the ye&005 and 200«
respectively. The increase in direct operating agpdor 2006 was mainly due to increases in empy@mpensation and
benefits mainly due to increases in average saladyemployee benefits to support the growth osttigament. The Corporation
continued to commit substantial resources to thigrent with the goal of becoming a leading ingtituin the highly competitive
residential mortgage loans mark

Treasury and Investments

The Treasury and Investments segment is resiglerfor the Corporation’s investment portfolicdamneasury functions designed to manage
and enhance liquidity. This segment sells fundhéoCommercial and Corporate Banking, Mortgage Bapkand Consumer Lending
segments to finance their lending activities anctpases funds gathered by those segments. Theshtates charged or credited by Treasury
and Investments are based on market rates.

The highlights of the Treasury and Investmeetgment financial results for the year ended Déeer@1, 2006 include the following:

. Segment income before taxes for the year endedrbleer 31, 2006 resulted in a loss of $79.2 miliompared to a loss of
$12.8 million and a gain of $79.7 million for thears ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respec

. Net interest income for the year ended DecembeP@06 resulted in a loss of $63.2 million compaed loss of $20.7 millio
and a gain of $71.8 million for the years endeddbeloer 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decirass interest income for
the year 2006 was mainly driven by negative chairgése valuation of derivative instruments, maiierest rate swaps that
hedge designated and undesignated brokered C8) 2hanges in net payments on interest rate siwalpsled as part of
interest expense, and a reduction in net interasgim due to the flattening of the yield curve. Teerease in net interest margin
for 2006 was also attributable to the payment of &2llion received from a local financial institoih. Proceeds from the
repayment were invested temporarily in short-tamaestment at zero or negative margin, reducing#ggnent’s net interest
margin. During the second half of 2006, the Corpioraused a part of the repayment proceeds to rhjagner rate outstanding
brokered CDs that mature

. Nor-interest income for the year ended December 316 268sulted on a loss of $8.3 million compared tam of $12.9 million
and $11.1 million for the years ended Decembef8@5 and 2004, respectively. The decrease inimenest income for 2006 w.
mainly attributable to an increase in other-thangerary impairment charges of $6.9 million in ther@ration’s investment
portfolio when compared to 20C



Direct non-interest expenses for 2006 were $1llfomcompared to $5.0 million and $3.2 millionrfthe years 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The increase in direct operating agpdor 2006 was mainly due to increases in emplyeompensation and
benefits.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND OPERATING DATA ANALYSIS

Financial Condition

The following table presents an average baaheet of the Corporation for the following years:

December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Money market investmen $ 1,444,53 $ 636,11 $ 308,96.
Government obligation 2,827,19i 2,493,72! 2,061,28
Mortgagebacked securitie 2,540,39 2,738,38! 2,729,12!
Corporate bond 8,34 48,311 57,46
FHLB stock 26,91 71,58¢ 56,69¢
Equity securitie: 27,15t 50,78¢ 43,87¢
Total investment 6,874,53! 6,038,91! 5,257,40.
Residential real estate loa 2,606,66. 1,813,501 1,127,52!
Construction loan 1,462,23! 710,75: 379,35t
Commercial loan 5,593,01 7,171,361 5,079,83.
Finance lease 322,43: 243,38 183,92:
Consumer loan 1,783,38. 1,570,46! 1,244,38
Total loans 11,767,73 11,509,47 8,015,02:
Total interes-earning asse! 18,642,27 17,548,38 13,272,42
Total nor-interes-earning assets (. 540,63t 452,65. 348,71.
Total asset $19,182,91 $18,001,03 $13,621,13
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing checking accour $ 371,42. $ 376,36( $ 317,63
Savings accoun 1,022,68! 1,092,93i 1,020,22
Certificates of depos 10,479,50 8,386,46. 5,065,39
Interest bearing depos 11,873,60 9,855,76. 6,403,25;
Other borrowed fund 4,543,26. 5,001,38: 4,235,21!
FHLB advance: 273,39 890,68 1,056,32!
Total interes-bearing liabilities 16,690,26 15,747,82 11,694,79
Total nor-interes-bearing liabilities 1,294,56. 976,70! 799,11.
Total liabilities 17,984,82 16,724,53 12,493,90
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred stoc 550,10( 550,10( 550,10(
Common stockholde’ equity 647,98: 726,40¢ 577,13.
Stockholder' equity 1,198,08. 1,276,50! 1,127,23.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $19,182,91 $18,001,03 $13,621,13

(1) Includes the allowance for loan and lease lossésiarealized gains or losses on investment seesiidvailabl-for-sale.
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The Corporation’s total average assets we8e2fiillion and $18.0 billion as of December 3108@nd 2005, respectively; an increase in
2006 of $1.2 billion or 7% over 2005. As of Decem®#, 2006, the increase in average assets compagfd5 was mainly due to: (1) an
increase of $808.4 million in money market instratsedue to the repayment of $2.4 billion receiveah a local financial institution; (2) an
increase of $793.2 million in residential real &staans; (3) an increase of $751.5 million in ¢omgion loans; and (4) an increase of
$212.9 million in consumer loans. These positiveareces were partially offset by a decrease of $il®&n in commercial loans mainly due
to the repayment of $2.4 billion received from edbfinancial institution. For 2005, the Corporat®average assets increased by $4.4 billion
or 32% compared to average balances during 20Ginthease was mainly attributable to increaséstal loans in particular commercial,
construction and consumer loans, and total invastsné particular money market instruments andegoment obligations.

The Corporation’s total average liabilitiesres$18.0 billion and $16.7 billion as of Decembgr 3006 and 2005, respectively; an increase
in 2006 of $1.3 hillion or 8% over 2005. As of Dadger 31, 2006, the increase in average liabiltmapared to 2005 was mainly due to
increases in brokered CDs partially offset by deses in other borrowed funds and FHLB advancesiridnease in brokered CDs and
decrease in FHLB advances was partly due to thpdZation’s decision to replace FHLB advances aseatmatured since the collateral was
under evaluation. During 2005, the FHLB evaluatezldligibility of collateral that secured the commial loans to local financial institutions
and concluded that such collateral was not eligibleecure advances from the FHLB. For 2005, thgp@ations average liabilities increas
by $4.2 billion or 34% compared to average balancgigg 2004. The increase was mainly attributaébliecreases in brokered CDs and o
borrowed funds.

Assets

The Corporation’s total assets as of DecerBheP006 amounted to $17.4 billion, a decreased Billion from $19.9 billion as of
December 31, 2005. The decrease in total assefsCeexember 31, 2006 was mainly the result of aefese in total loans of $1.4 billion an
decrease of $1.1 billion in total investments idahg money market instruments. The decrease i€trporations loans portfolio was main
due to the substantial partial repayment of $2libbifrom Doral that reduced the Corporation’ssiahding secured commercial loan from
local financial institutions. The repayment alsdueed the Corporation’s loans-to-one borrower expmsThe Corporation temporarily
invested the proceeds from the repayment in sleom-investments. During the second half of 2066,Gorporation used a substantial am
of the repayment proceeds to repay outstandingelpeokCDs, as these matured during the third amdhfquarter of 2006.

The decrease in investment securities wagaltiee Corporation’s decision not to reinvest indstment securities the payments received
upon maturities and prepayments of the Corporagionvestment portfolio, mainly mortgage-backed si¢éies. Proceeds from prepayments
and maturities of investment securities were @dizo fund growth in higher yielding loans and &y glown maturing brokered CDs and
repurchase agreements. The Corporation’s decisideleverage its balance sheet was influenced, quoitrer things, by the flat to inverted
yield curve. As a result, the Corporation decidedepay higher rate maturing liabilities, in pauter brokered CDs, rather than investing
proceeds at an effective interest rate lower tharCorporation’s cost of funds.

Loans Receivable
The following table presents the compositibthe loan portfolio including loans held for sale of year-end for each of the last five years.

% of % of % of % of % of
December 31, 2006 Total 2005 Total 2004 Total 2003 Total 2002 Total
(Dollars in thousands (Dollars in thousands

Residential real estate

loans, including loans

held for sale $ 2,772,63 25% $ 2,346,94! 18% $1,322,65! 14% $1,023,18: 15% $ 896,25: 16%
Commercial mortgag 1,215,04 11% 1,090,19: 9% 690,90( 7% 683,76t 10% 651,79¢ 11%
Construction loan 1,511,60: 13% 1,137,111 9% 398,45 4% 328,17! 5% 259,05: 5%
Commercial loan 2,698,14. 24%  2,421,21 19% 1,871,85: 19% 1,623,96: 23% 1,427,08! 25%
Commercial loans to loce

financial institutions

collateralized by real

estate mortgages and

pass-through trust

certificates 932,01 8%  3,676,31 29% 3,841,90: 40% 2,061,43 29% 1,119,53 20%
Total commercial loan 6,356,80:; 56%  8,324,84 66% 6,803,11; 7C% 4,697,34. 67% 3,457,46 61%
Finance lease 361,63: 3% 280,57: 2% 212,23 2% 159,69¢ 2% 142,42: 3%
Consumer loan 1,772,91 16% 1,733,56! 14% 1,359,999 14% 1,160,822 16% 1,138,88. 20%
Total $11,263,98 10(% $12,685,92 10(% $9,697,99: 10(% $7,041,05 10C% $5,635,02. 10(%
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Lending Activities

Total loans receivable decreased by $1.4ohilin 2006 when compared to 2005 due to the repayimeDoral and normal loan portfolio
repayments partially offset by new originations.sh&®wn in the table above, the 2006 loans portioks comprised of commercial (56%),
residential real estate (25%), and consumer arahdi@ leases (19%). Of the total loans of $11.8hiflor 2006, approximately 78% have
credit risk concentration in Puerto Rico, 14% ia thnited States and 8% in the Virgin Islands.

First BanCorp relies primarily on its retadtwork of branches to originate residential andscomer loans. The Corporation supplemen
residential mortgage originations with wholesaleging release purchases from small mortgage banker purpose of the following
presentation, the Corporation excludes commeraais to local financial institutions from loan puation data because it believes this
approach provides a better representation of thipdZation’s commercial production capacity.

The following table sets forth certain additi data (including loan production) related to @wrporation’s loan portfolio net of the
allowance for loan and lease losses for the datlsdted:

For the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands

Beginning balanc $12,537,93 $ 9,556,95: $6,914,67 $5,523,11. $4,215,90.
Residential real estate loans originated and psext 908,84t 1,372,49 765,48¢ 546,70: 265,59¢
Construction loans originated and purcha 961,74t 1,061,77. 309,05: 259,68: 161,93:
Commercial loans originated and purcha 2,031,62! 2,258,55! 1,014,941 924,71: 581,30:
Secured commercial loans disbursed to local firedn

institutions — 681,40 2,228,05! 1,258,78; 726,25(
Finance leases originat 177,39( 145,80t 116,20( 67,33: 54,75(
Consumer loans originated and purche 807,97¢ 992,94. 746,11: 583,08: 443,15:
Total loans originated and purchased 4,887,59I 6,512,97! 5,179,85: 3,640,29i 2,232,98
Sales and securitizations of loz (167,38) (118,52) (180,819 (228,82, (80,446
Repayments and prepayme (6,022,63) (3,803,80) (2,263,04) (1,938,30) (753,529
Other increases (decreases)(2 (129,829 390,32! (93,717) (81,605 (91,809
Net (decrease) increa (1,432,241 2,980,97. 2,642,28: 1,391,56 1,307,20:
Ending balanc: $11,105,68 $12,537,93 $ 9,556,95! $6,914,67 $5,523,11.
Percentage (decrease) incre -11.42% 31.1% 38.21% 25.2(% 31.01%

(1) Loan origination for 2002 includes $435 million acgd from JPMorgan Chase \
(2) Includes the change in the allowance for loan aadé losses and cancellation of loans due to pussession of the collater
(3) For 2005, includes $470 million of loans acquiredbart of the Ponce General acquisiti

Residential Real Estate Loans

Residential real estate loan production andimses for the year ended December 31, 2006 decrdy $463.6 million, compared to the
same period in 2005 and increased by $143.4 mjliompared to the same period in 2004. The deciranertgage loan production for
2006 compared to 2005 was mainly attributable ghéi rates, deteriorating economic conditions iarRuRico, competition from other
financial institutions, and changes to the Corporés and stricter underwriting standards. The @oation decided to make certain
adjustments to its underwriting standards desigoehhance the credit quality of its mortgage Ipartfolio, in light of worsening
macroeconomic conditions in Puerto Rico. The im@etation of these standards contributed to theatestuin the Corporation’s mortgage
loan originations.

Residential real estate loans represent 198dtalfloans originated and purchased for 2006; e residential mortgage loans balance
increasing by $425.7 million, from $2.3 billion 2005 to $2.8 billion in 2006. The Corporation’sas#gy is to penetrate markets by providing
customers with a variety of high quality mortgageducts. The Corporation’s residential mortgagaoariginations continued to be driven
by FirstMortgage, Inc., the mortgage loan origioatsubsidiary (“FirstMortgage”)'he Corporation continued to commit substantiabuese:
to this operation with the goal of becoming a
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leading institution in the highly competitive residial mortgage loans market. The Corporation distadd FirstMortgage as a stand-alone
subsidiary in 2003. As of December 31, 2006, Fimtiglage had a distribution network of 35 mortgagmeters, including stand-alone centers
and offices located within FirstBank Puerto Ricarmhes. FirstMortgage supplements its internattivgginations through its retail network
with an indirect business strategy. The Corpor&i®artners in Business, a division of FirstMortgapartners with mortgage brokers in
Puerto Rico to purchase ongoing mortgage loan mtamu FirstMortgage Realty Group, launched in 2006uses on building relationships
with realtors by providing resources, office amiesiand personnel, to assist real estate brokdmsiliing their individual businesses and
closing transactions. FirstMortgage multi-channedtegy has proven effective in capturing business.

Commercial and Construction Loans

In recent years, the Corporation has emphdsiammercial lending activities and continues togigate this market. A substantial portion
of this portfolio is collateralized by real estaf@tal commercial loans originated and purchasedusnted to $3.0 billion for 2006, an increase
of $327.0 million when compared to originationsidgr2005, for total commercial loans of $8.3 bifliat December 31, 2005. As a result of
strong originations net of prepayments and maég;itihe commercial loans balance, excluding seaosunercial loans to local financial
institutions, increased by $0.8 billion, from $4i8ion as of December 31, 2005 to $5.4 billioncdPecember 31, 2006. The Corporation’s
subsidiary bank loan agency in Florida accounted feubstantial portion of the construction loarséase during 2005 and 2006. Loans
disbursed by the agency for the years ended Deae3db@006 and 2005 amounted to $648.5 million 6.9 million, respectively.

Although commercial loans involve greater @redk because they are larger in size and maileisi concentrated in a single borrower, the
Corporation has and continues to develop an effectiedit risk management infrastructure that rateg potential losses associated with
commercial lending, including strong underwritingddoan review functions, sales of loan participasi, and continuous monitoring of
concentrations within portfolios.

The Corporation’s commercial loans are pritgarariable and adjustable rate loans. Commerowh loriginations come from existing
customers as well as through referrals and dididitations. The Corporation follows a strateggnad to cater to customer needs in the
commercial loans middle market segment by builditigng relationships and offering financial soladhat meet customers’ unique needs.
Starting in 2005, the Corporation expanded itgithistion network and participation in the commeltians middle market segment by
focusing on customers with financing needs up tonfibon. The Corporation established 4 regiondicefs that provide coverage throughout
Puerto Rico. The offices are staffed with salesketing and credit officers able to provide a higbel of personalized service and prompt
decision-making.

The Corporation has a significant lending @mration of $509.1 million in one mortgage oridoran Puerto Rico, Doral Financial
Corporation, as of December 31, 2006. The Corpunrdtas outstanding $422.9 million with another mage originator in Puerto Rico, R&G
Financial Corporation (“R&G"), for total loans toartgage originators amounting to $932.0 millioro&®ecember 31, 2006. These
commercial loans are secured by 10,307 individuatgage loans on residential and commercial ra¢atesvith an average principal balance
of $90,425 each. The mortgage originators haveyayaid the loans in accordance with their ternts@mditions. In December 2005, the
Corporation obtained a waiver from the Office af tBommissioner of Financial Institutions of the Goamwealth of Puerto Rico with resp
to the statutory limit for individual borrowers éo to one borrower limit). In May 2006, FirstBanketo Rico received a cash payment from
Doral Financial Corporation of approximately $2illidn, substantially reducing the balance of tkewed commercial loan to that instituti
As part of the Consent Orders imposed on the Catjwor and FirstBank by their regulators, the Coation has continued working on the
reduction of these exposures with both financistifations.

In February 2007, the Corporation entered iseries of credit agreements with R&G relatingrior transactions originally treated as
purchases of mortgages and pass-through trusticaes from R&G subsidiaries. First, R&G and FBstnCorp entered into a credit
agreement totaling $271 million to document as sstborrowings the loan transfers between thegsattiat previously had been accounted
for incorrectly as sales. The terms of the agreé¢mseecified a 5-year term loans at an interestohi&0 basis points over 90-day LIBOR,
which adjusts quarterly. The loan has an overaiization ranging from 3% to 11% depending on ¥ipe tof each individual loan. In
addition, R-G Premier Bank of Puerto Rico, R&G Ficial Corporation’s wholly owned Puerto Rico comaiarbank subsidiary, repaid
approximately $50 million of the commercial secubedrowing with the Corporation. Second, the Cogtion and R-G Crown Bank, R&G'’s
wholly owned Florida thrift subsidiary, agreed &structure various agreements involving approxilpa&89 million of securities
collateralized by loans that were originally sdidough five grantor trusts. The modifications te triginal agreements deleted or modified
any previous conditions that precluded accountinghe transactions as purchases or sales. Theragn¢s enabled First BanCorp to fulfill
one of the remaining requirements of the Consedefdt
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Consumer Loans

Consumer loan originations and purchasesrameipally driven through the Corporatianietail network. For the year ended Decembe
2006, consumer loan originations amounted to $8068lbn, a decrease of $185.0 million or 19% comgubto the same period in 2005. The
decrease in consumer loan origination was mairfibatable to lower volume of business due to ttkeesse economic conditions of Puerto
Rico. Consumer loan originations were mainly dribgrauto loan originations. Management finds th® awarket attractive. The growth of
this portfolio has been achieved through a stratégyroviding outstanding service to selected algalers who provide the channel for the
bulk of the Corporation’s auto loan originations.

The above mentioned strategy is directly lthk® our commercial lending activities as the Cogion maintains strong and stable auto
floor plan relationships, which are the foundatidra successful auto loan generation operation.ddrporation will continue to strengthen
the commercial relations with floor plan dealerbjah directly benefit the Corporation’s consumerdimg operation.

Personal loans and, to a lesser extent, ménaecing and a small credit card portfolio alemtibute to interest income generated from
consumer lending. Management plans to continue tackive in the consumer loan market applying thepGration’s strict underwriting
standards.

Finance Leases

Finance leases originations, which are masiimposed of loans to individuals to finance theugition of motor vehicles, increased by
$31.6 million or 22% to $177.4 million during 2066mpared to 2005. As a result, portfolio balanoesdgased by $81.1 million in 2006.
These leases typically have five-year terms andealiateralized by a security interest in the uhdeg assets. The Corporation’s credit risk
exposure for this portfolio is similar to the creelkposure of an auto loan portfolio.

Investment Activities

The Corporation’s investment portfolio as afd@mber 31, 2006 amounted to $5.5 billion, a deere&$1.2 billion when compared with
the investment portfolio of $6.7 billion as of Dedeer 31, 2005. The decrease in investment seaurégiilted mainly from prepayments and
maturities received from the Corporation’s investtgortfolio, mainly mortgage-backed and the Cogtion’s decision to de-leverage its
balance sheet. The Corporation’s decision to derlme its balance sheet was influenced, among thtimgs, by the flat to inverted yield
curve. As a result, the Corporation decided toydpgher rate maturing liabilities, in particulamokered CDs, rather than investing the
proceeds at an effective interest rate lower tharQorporation’s cost of funds.

Total purchases of investment securities,ushnly those invested on a short-term basis (morakeh investments) during 2006 amounted
to approximately $672.9 million and were composexinfy of mortgage-backed securities in the amo@$283.2 million with a weighted
average coupon of 5.70% and government agencyiseswand U.S. Treasury securities in the amou$4®&7.2 million with a weighted
average coupon of 4.86%.

The following table presents the carrying eatd investments as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Money market investmen $ 456,47 $1,224,79.
Investment securities heto-maturity:

U.S. Government and agencies obligati 2,258,041 2,190,71.

Puerto Rico Government obligatio 31,71¢ 14,16:

Mortgage-backed securitie 1,055,37! 1,233,71

Corporate bond 2,00( —

3,347,13. 3,438,58!

Investment securities availa-for-sale:

U.S. Government and agencies obligati 403,59: 389,65(

Puerto Rico Government obligatio 25,30z 25,00¢

Mortgagebacked securitie 1,253,85. 1,478,72

Corporate bond 4,961 25,38:

Equity securitie: 12,71¢ 29,42

1,700,42. 1,948,17
Other equity securitie 40,15¢ 42,36¢
Total investment $5,544,18. $6,653,92!
Mortgage-backed securities as of December 31, 26862005, consist of:
2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands
Held-to-maturity:

FHLMC certificates $ 15,43¢ $ 20,21:
FNMA certificates 1,039,93 1,213,50!
1,055,37! 1,233,71.

Available-for-sale:
FHLMC certificates 7,57 9,96:
GNMA certificates 374,36¢ 438,88:
FNMA certificates 871,54( 1,029,47.
Mortgage pas-through certificate 37C 403
1,253,85. 1,478,72
Total mortgag-backed securitie $2,309,22 $2,712,43

The carrying amounts of investment securities diaslsas available-for-sale and held-to-maturityod®ecember 31, 2006 by contractual
maturity (excluding mortgage-backed securities lmothey market investments) are shown below:

Carrying amount Weighted average yield %
(Dollars in thousands

U.S. Government and agencies obligati

Due within one yea $ 183,09 5.01
Due after five years through ten ye 390,72¢ 4.31
Due after ten yeal 2,087,80 5.8t
2,661,63. 5.5¢
Puerto Rico Government obligatio
Due after one year through five ye 4,761 6.1¢
Due after five years through ten ye 31,96: 5.37
Due after ten yeal 20,29¢ 5.6(
57,01¢ 5.52
Corporate bond
Due after five years through ten ye 1,215 7.7C
Due after ten yeal 5,744 7.21
6,961 7.3C
Total 2,725,61.

Mortgage-backed securitie 2,309,22!



Equity securitie: 12,71t
Total investment securities availa-for-sale and he-to-maturity $5,047,55.
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Total proceeds from the sale of securitiesnduthe year ended December 31, 2006 amounted3®.$2nillion (2005 —$252.7 million).

In 2006, the Corporation realized gross gafrs7.3 million (2005 — $21.4 million, 2004 — $12mllion), and realized gross losses of
$0.2 million (2005 — $0.7 million, 2004 — $0).

During the year ended December 31, 2006, trpd@ation recognized through earnings approxingei&b.3 million (2005 —
$8.4 million, 2004 — $2.7 million) of losses in tvestment securities available-for-sale portfoliat management considered to be other-
than-temporarily impaired. The impairment lossesewelated to equity securities.

Net interest income of future periods may thecéed by the acceleration in prepayments of najégbacked securities. Acceleration in the
prepayments of mortgage-backed securities woul@lgields on these securities, as the amortizatfgoremiums paid upon acquisition of
these securities would accelerate. Also, net isténeome in future periods might be affected gisahstantial investments in callable
securities. The book value of the callable se@asjtmainly agency securities, amounted to $2.lbbils of December 31, 2006. Lower
reinvestment rates and a time lag between cakbpgyments and/or the maturity of investments ahdhhceinvestment of proceeds into new
investments, might also affect net interest incomereases in short-term interest rates may redataterest income; when rates rise the
Corporation must pay more in interest on its lidib$ while the interest earned on its assetsyifinj investments, does not rise as quickly.
These risks are directly linked to future perioafiarket interest rate fluctuations. Refer to theskRlanagement — Interest Rate Risk
Management” section of this Management’s Discusaiwh Analysis for further analysis of the effedtgloanging interest rates on the
Corporation’s net interest income and for the is¢rate risk management strategies followed byCtmporation.

Investment Securities and Loans Receivable Mata#

The following table presents the maturitiesepricing of the loan and investment portfoliooch®ecember 31, 2006:

(Dollars in thousands)

2-5 Years Over 5 Years
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
One Year Interest Interest Interest Interest
or Less Rates Rates Rates Rates Total
Money market investmen $ 456,47 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 456,47
Mortgage-backed securitie 107,09¢ 560,46 — 1,641,66 — 2,309,22!
Other securitie: 223,79t 50,53’ — 2,504,15; — 2,778,48!
Total Investment 787,36 610,99¢ — 4,145,82. — 5,544,18.
Loans
Residential real esta 388,86’ 336,61 — 2,047,15I — 2,772,63I
Commercial and commercial real
estate 3,631,18. 249,56 364,20¢ 538,38 61,86« 4,845,19.
Constructior 1,448,92! 26,41 — 36,27( — 1,511,60:
Finance lease 87,17¢ 274,45 — — — 361,63:
Consume 638,64t 1,101,85: — 32,42( — 1,772,91
Total loans 6,194,79: 1,988,89! 364,20¢ 2,654,22i 61,86« 11,263,98
Total earning asse $6,982,16: $2,599,88: $364,20¢ $6,800,04. $61,86¢ $16,808,16

(1) Equity securities availak-for-sale and other equity securities were included utige“ one year or less categ”.

(2) Non-accruing loans were included under “one year or less categ’”.
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Sources of Funds

The Corporation’s principal funding sources branch-based deposits, brokered CDs, institutibeposits, federal funds purchased,
securities sold under agreements to repurchases patyable and FHLB advances.

As of December 31, 2006, total liabilities amted to $16.2 billion, a decrease of $2.5 bill&ancompared to $18.7 billion as of
December 31, 2005. The decrease in total lialslitvas mainly due to a $1.5 billion decrease in @eosits, primarily brokered CDs and a
decrease of $1.1 billion in federal funds purchassd securities sold under agreements to repurcBasig the second half of 2006, the
Corporation’s brokered CDs decreased significamtly to the Corporation’s decision to pay down highée maturing short-term brokered
CDs with available funds received from Doral's payrhof $2.4 billion in May 2006. The Corporationiscision to pay down maturing
brokered CDs was influenced, among other thingshbyflat to inverted yield curve. The Corporatitecided to repay higher rate maturing
liabilities, in particular brokered CDs, rather thavesting the proceeds at an effective interast lower than the Corporation’s cost of funds.

The Corporation maintains unsecured uncomdiites of credit with other banks. As of DecemB&r 2006, the Corporation’s total
unused lines of credit with these banks amount&®&5 million. As of December 31, 2006, the Corpiorahad an available line of credit
with the FHLB, guaranteed with excess collateratiged to the FHLB in the amount of $687.7 million.

Deposits

Total deposits amounted to $11.0 billion aBetember 31, 2006, as compared to $12.5 billi@h$h9 billion as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

The following table presents the compositibiotal deposits:

Weighted average rate December 31
as of December 31, 20( 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Savings accouni 1.49% $ 984,33 $ 1,034,04 $1,077,00:
Interes-bearing checking accour 2.07% 433,27¢ 375,30! 385,07¢
Certificates of depos 5.5€% 8,795,69: 10,243,39  5,750,66!
Interes-bearing deposit 492%  10,213,30 11,652,74  7,212,74
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 790,98! 811,00¢ 699,58:.
Total $11,004,28 $12,463,75 $7,912,32
Interes-bearing deposit:
Average balance outstandi $11,873,60 $ 9,855,76. $6,403,25:
Nonr-interes-bearing deposits
Average balance outstandi $ 771,340 $ 791,81 $ 64551
Weighted average rate during the period on int-bearing deposits( 4.6% 3.2¢% 2.0&%

(1) Excludes changes in the fair value of interest sataps and basis adjustment on fair value het

Total deposits are composed of branch-baspdsits, brokered CDs and, to a lesser extenttutisthal deposits. Institutional deposits
include, among others, certificates issued to aigseraf the Government of Puerto Rico and to Govemragencies in the Virgin Islands.

Total deposits decreased by $1.5 billion aB@tember 31, 2006 when compared to December 85, @@inly due to a decrease in
brokered CDs. Brokered CDs, which are certificatd through brokers, amounted to $7.1 billion @Be&cember 31, 2006 compared to
$8.6 hillion as of December 31, 2005. The total.Un@rket for this source of funding approximate2®billion. The use of brokered CDs has
been particularly important to the growth of ther@mation. The Corporation encounters intense coitigein attracting and retaining
deposits in Puerto Rico, as financial institutians at a competitive disadvantage since the ingemerated on other investment products
available to investors in Puerto Rico is taxedatdr rates than tax rates for income generatecepogit products. The brokered CDs market
is a very competitive and liquid market in whicle tBorporation has been able to obtain substamtialiats of funding in short periods of
time. This strategy enhanced the Corporation’sdiigy position, since the brokered CDs are unsetiared can be obtained at substantially
longer maturities than other regular retail depogiso, the Corporation has the ability to coniket fixed-rate brokered CDs to short-term
adjustable rate liabilities using interest rate pwgreements. For the year ended December 31, 2@06orporation issued $4.9 billion in
brokered CDs (including rollover of short-term beoéd CDs) compared to $8.0
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billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. Riefehe “Risk Management — Interest Rate Risk Managnt” section of this Management’
Discussion and Analysis for further discussionmeriest rate risk management strategies followetthé&yCorporation.

As of December 31, 2006, 63% of the valueetdit brokered CDs held by the Corporation wergttarm fixed callable certificates, in
which the Corporation retains the option to caricelcertificates before maturity. As of December&I06, the average remaining maturit
long-term callable brokered CDs approximated 1§##ys (2005 — 11.60 years) and of short-term flxadkered certificates of deposits
approximated 0.45 years (2005 — 0.39 years). WBkamgunterest rate swaps, the Corporation maintigks those brokered CDs with long-
term maturities.

During the second half of 2006, the Corporatidorokered CDs decreased significantly due tadbgporation’s decision to pay down
higher rate maturing short-term brokered CDs withilable funds received from Doral’s payment of4bRillion in May 2006. This strategy
significantly reduced the negative carry attributeduch repayment.

The following table presents a maturity sumyr@rcertificates of deposit with balances of $000 or more as of December 31, 2006:

(Dollars in thousand

Three months or les $ 1,867,35
Over three months to six mont 797,05:
Over six months to one ye 486,72:
Over one yea 4,817,31

Total $ 7,968,441
Borrowings

As of December 31, 2006, total borrowings anted to $4.7 billion as compared to $5.8 billiord &®.3 billion as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

The following table presents the compositibitotal borrowings as of the dates indicated:

December 31

Weighted average rate 2006 2005 2004
as of December 31, 20( (Dollars in thousands
Federal funds purchased and securities sold unpleements to
repurchas 4.81% $3,687,72. $4,833,88:  $4,165,36.
Advances from FHLE 5.3% 560,00( 506,00( 1,598,001
Notes payabl 5.7€¢% 182,82¢ 178,69: 178,24(
Other borrowing 7.98% 231,71¢ 231,62: 276,69:
Subordinated note — — 82,28(
Total 5.12% $4,662,27. $5,750,19°  $6,300,57.
Weighted average rate during the pel 4.9% 4.08% 3.26%

The Corporation uses federal funds purchasgdirchase agreements, advances from the Feders Hoan Bank (FHLB), notes payable
and other borrowings, such as trust preferred gexsjras additional funding sources.

The growth of the Corporation’s investmenttfmio is substantially funded with repurchase agnents. One of the Corporation’s
strategies is the use of structured repurchasesagnets. Under these agreements, the Corporatempgttt to reduce exposure to interest rate
risk by lengthening the final maturities of itstities while keeping funding cost low. As of Dexber 31, 2006, the outstanding balance of
structured repurchase agreements was $1.4 billion.

FirstBank is a member of the FHLB system abpihins advances to fund its operations under ateod| agreement with the FHLB that
requires the Bank to maintain minimum qualifyingrigages as collateral for advances taken. As oEBéer 31, 2006, the outstanding
balance of FHLB advances was $560.0 million.
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During 2004, the Corporation undertook sevénaincing transactions to diversify its fundingustes. FirstBank, the Corporation’s bank
subsidiary, issued notes payable that as of DeceBih@006 had an outstanding balance of $182 [gomil

In 2004, FBP Statutory Trust |, a statutogstrthat is wholly owned by the Corporation andcuanisolidated in the Corporation’s financial
statements, sold to institutional investors $100ioni of its variable rate trust preferred secasti The proceeds of the issuance, together with
the proceeds of the purchase by the Corporati&3df million of FBP Statutory Trust | variable ra@mmon securities, were used by FBP
Statutory Trust | to purchase $103.1 million aggtegorincipal amount of the Corporation’s Juniob&udinated Deferrable Debentures.

Also in 2004, FBP Statutory Trust Il, a statyttrust that is wholly-owned by the Corporatiardanot consolidated in the Corporation’s
financial statements, sold to institutional invest®125 million of its variable rate trust prefefrgecurities. The proceeds of the issuance,
together with the proceeds of the purchase by tirpdation of $3.9 million of FBP Statutory Trusvhriable rate common securities, were
used by FBP Statutory Trust Il to purchase $128dIBom aggregate principal amount of the CorporatoJunior Subordinated Deferrable
Debentures.

The trust preferred debentures are presenttfttiCorporation’s Consolidated Statement of Fér@rCondition as Other Borrowings, net
of related issuance costs. The variable rate pmederred securities are fully and unconditionglaranteed by the Corporation. The
$100 million Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debesgussued by the Corporation in April 2004 and$h25 million issued in
September 2004, mature on September 17, 2034 guidrStieer 20, 2034, respectively; however, undeagedircumstances, the maturity of
Junior Subordinated Debentures may be shortenedtfwshortening would result in a mandatory redeowptf the variable rate trust
preferred securities). The trust preferred se@asg;tsubject to certain limitations, qualify as Tlieegulatory capital under current Federal
Reserve rules and regulations.

The composition and estimated weighted aveirgtigeest rates of interest-bearing liabilitiesocd®ecember 31, 2006, were as follows:

Amount Weighted
(Dollars in thousand  Average Rate
Interes-bearing deposit $ 10,213,30 4.92%
Borrowed funds 4,662,27. 5.12%
$ 14,875,57 4.98%

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, the Cafon engages in financial transactions that ateewmrded on the balance sheet, or may be
recorded on the balance sheet in amounts thatféeesdt than the full contract or notional amowiithe transaction. These transactions are
designed to (1) meet the financial needs of custen{2) manage our credit, market or liquidity §sk3) diversify our funding sources or
(4) optimize capital.

As a provider of financial services, the Cagtimn routinely enters into agreements with offabae sheet risk to meet the financial needs
of its customers. These financial instruments majude loan commitments and standby letters ofitr€dese agreements are subject to the
same credit policies and approval process usedifdralance sheet instruments. These instrumentdvieto varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the arhcecognized in the statement of financial positids of December 31, 2006, commitments
to extend credit and commercial and financial dbgridtters of credit amounted to approximately $#3lllon and $97.3 million, respectively.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements totledstomers as long as the conditions establishé: contract are met. Generally, the
Corporation does not enter into interest rate Egieements with borrowers.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table presents a detail of thetumities of the Corporation’s contractual obligas and commitments, which consist of
certificates of deposits, long-term contractualtddfligations, operating leases, other contraaibfiations, commitments to sell mortgage
loans, standby letters of credit and commitmenextend credit:
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
(Dollars in thousands

Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years After 5 years
Contractual obligation:
Certificates of depos $ 8,795,69: $ 3,762,401 $ 949,31 $446,06¢ $3,637,91.
Federal funds purchased and securities sold und
agreements to repurche 3,687,72 2,600,222 — 487,50( 600,00(
Advances from FHLE 560,00( 20,00( 516,00( 24,00( —
Notes payabli 182,82¢ — — 8,132 174,69¢
Other borrowings 231,71¢ — — — 231,71¢
Operating lease 54,18: 8,97¢ 13,841 8,57¢ 22,78t
Other contractual obligatior 6,171 1,748 2,91¢ 1,40z 11C
Total contractual obligatior $13,518,31 $ 6,393,34 $1,482,07 $975,67! $4,667,22.
Commitments to sell mortgage loe $ 55,23t $ 55,23¢
Standby letters of crec $  97,31¢ $ 97,31¢
Commitments to extend cred
Lines of credit $ 1,403,57! $ 1,403,57
Letters of credi 40,91t 40,91t
Commitments to originate loal 539,26° 539,26
Total commercial commitmen $ 1,983,75! $ 1,983,75

Included in the above table are the Corpon&iobligations and commitments to make future pawyts under contracts, such as debt and
lease agreements, and under other commitments¢bgme and sell loans and to extend credit. Comenitsnto extend credit are agreements
to lend to a customer as long as there is no vwlaif any condition established in the contrad¢hed contractual obligations result mainly
from contracts for rental and maintenance of eqeipimSince certain commitments are expected ta@xgthout being drawn upon, the total
commitment amount does not necessarily represaniefgash requirements. For credit cards and pat$ioes of credit, the Corporation can
at any time and without cause, cancel the unussditdacility.

Capital

The Corporation’s capital amounted to $1.8dsilas of December 31, 2006 and 2005. As of Deeerlh, 2006, total capital increased by
$31.7 million compared to balances as of DecembeB05. The change in capital for 2006 is compasgedcreases in earnings of
$84.6 million, the issuance of 2,379,000 sharesoaimon stock through the exercise of stock optwitis proceeds of $19.8 million and
$5.4 million of stock-based compensation recognaféskt in part by cash dividends of $63.6 millemd by a negative non-cash valuation of
securities available-for-sale of $14.5 million.

As of December 31, 2006, First BanCorp, FiestBand FirstBank Florida were in compliance wegulatory capital requirements that
were applicable to them as a financial holding canyp a state non-member bank and a thrift, resgsygt{i.e., total capital and Tier 1 capital
to risk-weighted assets of at least 8% and 4% easgely, and Tier 1 capital to average assets tHfast 4%). Set forth below are First
BanCorp, FirstBank and FirstBank Florida’'s regutatoapital ratios as of December 31, 2006, baseeixisiing Federal Reserve, FDIC, and
OTS guidelines.

First BanCorp Banking Subsidiary

Well-
FirstBank Capitalized
First BanCorp FirstBank Florida Minimum
Total capital (Total capital to ri-weighted asset: 12.46% 12.25% 11.3%% 10.0(%
Tier 1 capital ratio (Tier 1 capital to rirweighted asset: 11.2% 11.02% 10.9¢% 6.0(%
Leverage ratic 7.91% 7.7¢% 8.1(% 5.0(%

As of December 31, 2006, FirstBank and FiratBalorida were considered a well-capitalized borkpurposes of the prompt corrective
action regulations adopted by the FDIC. To be amrsid a well-capitalized institution under the FBI&gulations, an institution must
maintain a Leverage Ratio of at least 5%, a Ti€apital Ratio of at least 6% and a Total Capitdidraf at least 10%, and not be subject to
any written agreement or directive to meet a sjecépital ratio.
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On March 17, 2006, First BanCorp and its baglsubsidiary FirstBank entered into Consent Ordétfs the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System, the FDIC and the OffitkeofCommissioner relating to mortgage-related fatisns with Doral Financial
Corporation and R&G Financial Corporation. For gaded description of these orders, please ref€ai |, Item 3. Legal Proceedings, in 1
Form 10-K.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Corparatreached an agreement in principle to settlelaims with the lead plaintiffs in a
shareholder class action originally filed in 200&der the terms of the settlement, which is sulieciotice being provided to the class and
final approval by the United States District Cdartthe District of Puerto Rico, First BanCorp wikhy the plaintiffs $74.25 million. Based on
available evidence, the Corporation had accrued2574hillion in its consolidated financial statemefdr the year ended December 31, 2005
in connection with a potential settlement.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Corparatagreed to issue approximately 9.250 millionrekaf its common stock to The Bank of
Nova Scotia“Scotiabank”), through a private placement offerimgluing the stock at $10.25 per share for a {pathase price of
approximately $94.8 million. The valuation refleetpremium of approximately 5% over the volume \utgd-average closing share price
over the 30 trading day period ending January 807 2After the investment, Scotiabank will hold 10%=irst BanCorp’s outstanding
common shares. The issuance of common stock téaBaok is subject to regulatory approval.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporatioyeatopted SFAS 159. The adoption of SFAS 159HerGorporation’s brokered CDs and
medium-term notes that are hedged with interestsatps resulted in increases to the Corporatiegiglatory capital ratio of approximately
125 basis points.

Dividends

In 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Corporation dedl&mar quarterly cash dividends of $0.07, $0.07 $086 per common share outstanding,
respectively, for an annual dividend of $0.28, 80aRd $0.24, respectively. Total cash dividendd paicommon shares amounted to
$23.3 million for 2006 (or a 53% dividend payouigy $22.6 million for 2005 (or a 30% dividend may ratio) and $19.3 million for 2004
(or a 14% dividend payout ratio). Dividends dealaom preferred stock amounted to $40.3 million00&, 2005 and 2004.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Background

As part of the Corporation’s restatement afdrefer to the Corporation’s amended 2004 AniRegort on Form 10K), during the first
quarter of 2006, the Board reviewed the Corpor&iask management program with the assistanceaitside consultants and counsel. This
effort resulted in the realignment of the Corpamals risk management functions and the adopticemoénterprise-wide risk management
process. The Board appointed a senior managemfadrads Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) and appointdds officer to the Risk Management
Council (“RMC") with reporting responsibilities the CEO and the Audit Committee. In addition, theaRl established an Asset/Liability
Risk Committee of the Board, with oversight resploitiies for risk management, including asset iyaportfolio performance, interest rate
and market sensitivity, and portfolio diversifieati In addition, the Asset/Liability Risk Committhas authority to examine the Corporat®n’
assets and liabilities, such as its brokered Cifadilitate appropriate oversight by the BoardhaHly, management is required to bring to the
attention of the Asset/Liability Risk Committee n&wms of transactions or variants of forms of sactions that the Asset/Liability Risk
Committee has not yet reviewed to enable the Assdility Risk Committee to fully evaluate the c@mgiences of such transactions to the
Corporation. In addition, management is requiredring to the attention of the Audit Committee nimnms of transactions or variants of
forms of transactions for which the Corporation hasdetermined the appropriate accounting treatteeenable the Audit Committee to
fully evaluate the accounting treatment of suchdeations.

During 2006, management continued to refireeerhance its risk management policies, procesgbpracedures to maintain effective |
management and governance, including identifyingasaring, monitoring, controlling, mitigating areporting of all material risks.
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General

Risks are inherent in virtually all aspectsha# Corporatiors business activities and operations. Consequeasftgctive risk management
fundamental to the success of the Corporation.primeary goals of risk management are to ensurethiga€Corporation’s risk taking activities
are consistent with the Corporation’s objectived ask tolerance and that there is an appropriaterize between risk and reward in order to
maximize shareholder value.

The Corporation has in place a risk manageifinantework to monitor, evaluate and manage thecipét risks assumed in conducting its
activities. First BanCorg business is subject to eight broad categorieslaf: (1) interest rate risk, (2) market risk, €8¢dit risk, (4) liquidit
risk, (5) operational risk, (6) legal and complianisk, (7) reputation risk, and (8) contingenckri
Risk Definition
Interest Rate Ris
Interest rate risk is the risk to earnings or aitising from adverse movements in interest rates
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk to earnings or capital iagsfrom adverse movements in market rates or prigech as interest rates or equity prices.
The Corporation evaluates market risk together withrest rate risk, refer to “—Interest Rate Ridnagement” section below for further
details.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk to earnings or capital iugsfrom a borrower’s or a counterparty’s failucenheet the terms of a contract with the
Corporation or otherwise to perform as agreed. Refé—Credit Risk Management” section below forther details.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk to earnings or capitalsing from the possibility that the Corporatiorliviiot have sufficient cash to meet the short

term liquidity demands such as from deposit red@nptor loan commitments. Refer to “—Liquidity Rislanagement” section below for
further details.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting framadequate or failed internal processes, peoplesgstems or from external events. This risk
is inherent across all functions, products andisesvof the Corporation.

Legal and Compliance Ri

Legal and compliance risk is the risk of negatiwpact to business activities, earnings or capigulatory relationships or reputation as a
result of failure to adhere to or comply with regfidns, laws, industry codes or rules, regulatomeetations or ethical standards.

Reputation Ris

Reputation risk is the risk to earnings and cagitaing from adverse impact to the Corporationaket value, capital or earnings arising
from negative public opinion, whether true or nidtis risk affects the Corporation’s ability to ddtsh new relationships or services, or to
continue servicing existing relationships.

Contingency Risk
Contingency risk is the risk to earnings and céjpisaociated with the Corporation’s preparednesthmoccurrence of an unforeseen event.

Risk Governance
The following discussion highlights the robasd responsibilities of the key participants in @@poration’s risk management framework:
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors provides oversight and disthabs the objectives and limits of the Corpordsaisk management activities. The
Asset/Liability Risk Committee and the Audit Comteé assist the Board of Directors in executing rissponsibility.

Asset/Liability Risk Committe

The Asset/Liability Risk Committee of the Corpocetiis appointed by the Board of Directors to agkistBoard of Directors in its
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oversight of risk management, including asset gugortfolio performance, interest rate and masgeatsitivity, and portfolio diversification.
In addition, the Asset/Liability Risk Committee hthg authority to examine the Corporation’s asaatsliabilities. In so doing, the
Committee’s primary general functions involve:

. The establishment of a process to enable thgnitian, assessment, and management of risks thdd affect the Corporation’s
assets and liabilitie:

. The identification of the Corporati’s risk tolerance levels relating to its assetsletilities;

. The evaluation of the adequacy and effectivenéfise Corporation’s risk management process rajat the Corporation’s assets
and liabilities, including managem’s role in that proces

. The evaluation of the Corporation’s compliancéhits risk management process relating to the @atjpn’s assets and liabilities;
and

. The approval of loans and other business mattdmswviog the lending authorities approved by the &b,
Audit Committe:

The Audit Committee of First BanCorp is appointgadiiie Board of Directors to assist the Board o€biors in its oversight of risk
management processes related to compliance, apesathe Corporation’s internal audit function, aéimel Corporation’s external financial
reporting and internal control over financial rejoay process. In performing this function, the Audommittee is assisted by the CRO, the
RMC, and other members of senior management.

Risk Management Count

The RMC is responsible for supporting the CRO irasuging and managing the Corporation’s aggregsitepriofile. The RMC executes
management’s oversight role regarding risk managenidis committee is designed to ensure that pipeapriate authorities, resources,
responsibilities and reporting are in place to supan effective risk management program. The RMQr&il consists of various senior
executives throughout the Corporation and meets monthly basis. The RMC is responsible for engutirat the Corporation’s overall risk
profile is consistent with the Corporation’s objeets and risk tolerance levels. The RMC is alspaoasible for ensuring that there are
appropriate and effective risk management procdssidgntify, measure and manage risks on an agtgdinsis.

Other Management Committees

As part of its governance framework, the Corporatias various risk management related-committeess@ committees are jointly
responsible for ensuring adequate risk measureamshinanagement in their respective areas of atyhéitithe management level, these
committees include:

(1) Management’s Investment and Asset Liabiitynmittee — oversees interest rate and marketliigkdity management and other
related matters. Refer “—Interest Rate Risk Managem” discussion below for further detai

(2) Information Technology Steering Committeis +esponsible for the oversight of and counsehaiters related to information
technology including the development of informatioanagement policies and procedures throughout dingoration.

(3) Bank Secrecy Act Committee — is respondiiteversight, monitoring and reporting of the @aration’s compliance with Bank
Secrecy Act

(4) Credit Committees (Delinquency and Creditrfdgement Committee) — oversee and establish stanida credit risk management
process within the Corporation. The Credit Managan@®mmittee is responsible for the approval oh®above an established size
threshold. The Delinquency Committee is respondini¢he periodic reviews of (1) past due loan$,o\2erdrafts, (3) non-accrual
loans, (4) OREOQ assets, and (5) the I's watch list and nc-performing loans

Executive Officer

As part of its governance framework, the followf§icers play a key role in the Corporation’s rislanagement process:
(1) Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Offi— responsible for the overall risk governance stmec!

(2) Chief Risk Officer — responsible for theegsight of the risk management organization as agetisk governance processes. In
addition, the CRO manages the operational risknarog

(3) Chief Credit Office manages the Corporati's credit risk prograrn

(4) Chief Financial Officer — in combinationtvithe Corporation’s Treasurer, manages the Cotipaora interest rate and market and
liquidity risks programs

(5) Chief Accounting Officer — responsible fthe development and implementation of the Corponaiaccounting policies and
practices and to review and monitor critical acdewand transactions to ensure that they are managetordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Statesapplicable regulatory requiremel

Other Officers

In addition to the centralized Enterprise Risk Mgeraent function, certain line of businesses andarate functions have its own Risk
Managers and support staff. The Risk Managers gwhjporting directly to their respective line okmess o
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function, facilitate communications with the Coration’s risk functions and works in partnershiphwite CRO to ensure alignment with
sound risk management practices and expedite thiementation of the enterprise risk managementdmaonk and policies.

Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity, Operational, Legal and Regulatory Risk Management

The following discussion highlights First Ban@'s adopted policies and procedures for intenast risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, legal and regulatory risk.

Interest Rate Risk Management

First BanCorp manages its asset/liability posiin order to limit the effects of changes iteirest rates on net interest income. The
Management’s Investment and Asset Liability Comeeitbf FirstBank (“MIALCQ”) oversees interest raisky liquidity management and
other related matters. The MIALCO, which reportshie Investment Sub-committee of the Board of Doext Asset/Liability Risk
Committee, is composed of senior management officgecluding the Chief Executive Officer, the Chigfiancial Officer, the Chief
Operating Officer, the Risk Manager of the Treasamyg Investment Department, the Economist and thasDrer.

Committee meetings focus on, among other Hiogrrent and expected conditions in world finahoarkets, competition and prevailing
rates in the local deposit market, liquidity, udizsd gains and losses in securities, recent gpgeed changes to the investment portfolio,
alternative funding sources and their costs, heggird the possible purchase of derivatives suslvaps and caps, and any tax or regulatory
issues which may be pertinent to these areas. TA&®D approves funding decisions in light of ther@oration’s overall growth strategies
and objectives. On a quarterly basis, the MIALCEfgens a comprehensive asset/liability review, ekang interest rate risk as described
below together with other issues such as liquiditg capital.

The Corporation uses scenario analysis to unedle effects of changes in interest rates ointetest income. These simulations are
carried out over a one-year and a two-year tim&bor assuming gradual upward and downward intesgéstmovements of 200 basis points.
Simulations are carried out in two ways:

(1) using a static balance sheet as the Corporatiomhdle simulation date, a
(2) using a growing balance sheet based on recent lgqoatterns and strategit

The balance sheet is divided into groups sétssand liabilities in order to simplify the prajens. As interest rates rise or fall, these
simulations incorporate expected future lendinggaturrent and expected future funding sourcesasij the possible exercise of options,
changes in prepayment rates, and other factorsdwhay be important in projecting the future growtmet interest income. These
projections are carried out for First BanCorp duolly consolidated basis.

The Corporation uses asset-liability managersefiware to project future movements in the Coafion’s balance sheet and income
statement. The starting point of the projectionsegally corresponds to the actual values of tharizad sheet on the date of the simulations.
Interest rates used for the simulations also cpaoied to actual rates at the start of the projeqierod.

These simulations are highly complex, and timy many simplifying assumptions that are intertdaéflect the general behavior of the
Corporation over the period in question. Therelmamo assurance that actual events will match thesemptions in all cases. For this rea
the results of these simulations are only approtioma of the true sensitivity of net interest inato changes in market interest rates.

The following table presents the results ef $hmulations as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

(Dollars in millions)

December 31, 200 December 31, 20C
Net Interest Income Risk (projected for 20! Net Interest Income Risk (projected for 201
Static Simulatior Growing Balance She Static Simulatior Growing Balance She:
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
+200 bps ram| ($34.6) (6.86%) ($36.9) (7.1%) ($25.9) (4.7%) ($21.9) (3.6%)
-200 bps ram| 50.7 10.1% 20.¢ 3.% 7.2 1.2% 04 0.1%

The increase in net interest income risk f&005 to 2006 was primarily due to an increase énpitoportion of fixed
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interest rate securities and loans. As of the Déegr@1, 2006 the ratio of fixed interest rate sikiesrand loans to total securities and loans
was 66% compared to 58% as of December 31, 20G5irthease was primarily due to the growth of tlegpBration’s fixed-rate loans
portfolio, mainly residential real estate loans #melsubstantial repayment of a floating rate consiakloan from a local financial institution.
This increase was not offset by a proportionaléase in the Corporation’s fixed-rate liabilities.

Derivatives.First BanCorp uses derivative instruments and attrategies to manage its exposure to interestigdeaused by changes in
interest rates beyond management’s control. The@ation’s asset liability management program includes #eeai derivatives instrumen
which have worked effectively to date, and that agggment believes will continue to be effectivehia tuture.

The following summarizes major strategiesludimg derivative activities, used by the Corparatin managing interest rate risk:

Interest rate swaps- Under interest rate swap agreements, the Coiporagrees with other parties to exchange, at Bpddntervals,
the difference between fixed-rate and floating-iaterest rate amounts calculated by reference #gaeed notional principal amount.
Since a substantial portion of the Corporatioloans, mainly commercial loans, yield variabkesathe interest rate swaps are utilize

the variable rate nature of these loans.

Interest rate cap agreementsin order to hedge risk inherent on certain conuiaéfoans to other financial institutions, as {teld is a
variable rate limited to the weighted-average cougithe referenced residential mortgage collatéeak a contractual servicing fee, the
Corporation enters into referenced interest rapeagmeements that provide protection against rigitegest rates. In managing this risk,
the Corporation determines the need for derivativesuding cap agreements, based on differemgigiterest rate scenario projections
and the weighted-average coupon of the refereresidantial mortgage loan pools.

Structured repurchase agreement3he Corporation uses structured repurchase agmtsnwith embedded call options, with the
intention of reducing the Corporation’s exposuréterest rate risk by lengthening the contractoaturities of its liabilities, while
keeping funding costs low. Another type of struetlirepurchase agreement includes repurchase agrsewith embedded cap
corridors; these instruments also provide protedi a rising rate scenario.

The following table summarizes the notionabamt of all derivative instruments as of DecemkkrZ006 and 2005:

Notional Amount
December 31
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Interest rate swap agreemer

Pay fixed versus receive floatil $ 80,72 $ 109,32(
Receive fixed versus pay floatil 4,802,371 5,751,122
Embedded written optior 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Purchased optior 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Written interest rate cap agreeme 125,20( 150,20(
Purchased interest rate cap agreem 330,60 386,75(

$5,365,92 $6,424,42i

The following table summarizes the notional amafrdll derivatives by the Corporation’s designatamof December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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Notional Amount
December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Designated hedge
Fair value hedge

Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed rate icatgs of depos $4,381,17! $ —
Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed and stemotes payabl 165,44. —
Total fair value hedge $4,546,61 $ —
Economic undesignated hedg
Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed rate icatis of deposit and loa $ 336,47: $5,860,44:
Embedded options on stock index depc 13,51¢ 13,51t
Purchased options used to manage exposure toottiersirket on embedded stock index opti 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Written interest rate cap agreeme 125,20( 150,20(
Purchased interest rate cap agreem 330,60 386,75(
Total derivatives not designated as he $ 819,31( $6,424,42
Total $5,365,92 $6,424,42i

The majority of the Corporation’s derivativepresent interest rate swaps used mainly to coloreg-term fixed-rate brokered CDs to a
variable rate. A summary of these interest ratepsves of December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows:

December 31
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Pay fixed/receive floating

Notional amoun $80,72( $109,32(
Weighted average receive rate at year 7.38% 6.41%
Weighted average pay rate at year 6.37% 6.6(%

Floating rates range from 175 to 252 basis poinés bIBOR rate

December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Receive fixed/pay floating

Notional amoun $4,802,37! $5,751,12:
Weighted average receive rate at year 5.1€% 4.9(%
Weighted average pay rate at year 5.42% 4.31%

Floating rates range from minus 5 basis pointtbasis points over LIBOR ra
The changes in notional amount of interes sataps outstanding during the years ended Dece®ih@006 and 2005 follows:
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Notional amount
(Dollars in thousand
Pay-fixed and receiv-floating swaps

Balance at December 31, 20C $ 113,16!
Canceled and matured contra (44,565
New contract: 40,72(
Balance at December 31, 20C 109,32(
Canceled and matured contra (28,600
New contract: —
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 80,72(
Receiv«fixed and pay floating swap
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 4,118,61!
Canceled and matured contra (549,309
New contract: 2,181,81!
Balance at December 31, 20C 5,751,122
Canceled and matured contra (948,759
New contract: —
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 4,802,37!

The cumulative valuation of interest rate ssvap of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was unreabssds of $137.1 million and $153.1
million, respectively. Prior to April 2006, none thfese instruments were qualified for hedge acdognEffective April 2006, the Corporatic
designated the majority of interest rate swap imsénts (98% of the interest rate swaps outstandindgr the long-haul method of hedge
accounting to hedge the changes in fair value ltditde brokered certificates of deposit and cabbailedium-term notes. Since the adoption of
the long-haul method, the fair value adjustmenheffective portion of the hedged liabilitieségorded as an adjustment to income that
offsets or partially offsets the fair value adjustthof the related interest rate swaps.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporationidkst to early adopt SFAS 159 for the callable breeCDs and a portion of the callable
fixed mediumterm notes that were hedged with interest rate sw@pe of the main considerations in determiningaidy adopt SFAS 159 f
these instruments is to eliminate the operationadgxures required by the long-haul method of attiog in terms of documentation,
effectiveness assessment, and manual procedulesédl by the Corporation to fulfill the requiremssipecified by SFAS 133.

Upon adoption of SFAS 159, First BanCorp del@éthe fair value measurement for approximately $dlion, or 63%, of the brokered
CDs portfolio and approximately $29 million, or 1688 the medium-term notes portfolio. The CDs argbgtion of the notes chosen for the
fair value measurement option are the ones hedgeflmnuary 1, 2007 by callable interest rate sweéfh the same terms and conditions.

The following tables summarize the fair vatilianges of the Corporation’s derivatives as wethassource of the fair values:
Fair Value Change

(Dollars in thousands December 31, 20C
Fair value of contracts outstanding at the begigoifthe yea $ (142,34)
Contracts realized or otherwise settled duringy#er 4,60¢
Changes in fair value during the y¢ 10,96

Fair value of contracts outstanding at the endhefyeal $ (126,779
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Source of Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Payments Due by Peric

Maturity Maturity

Less Thar Maturity Maturity In Excess Total
As of December 31, 20( One Yeal 1-3 Years 3-5 Years of 5 Years Fair Value
Prices provided by external sourt $(595) $(4,67() $(6,49)) $(115,02) $(126,77%)

The use of derivatives involves market andlitmésk. The market risk of derivatives arisespipally from the potential for changes in the
value of derivatives contracts based on changegerest rates.

The credit risk of derivatives arises from pugential of a counterparty’s default on its cantual obligations. To manage this credit risk,
the Corporation deals with counterparties of gomdlic standing, enters into master netting agre¢snghenever possible and, when
appropriate, obtains collateral. Master nettingeagrents incorporate rights of set-off that profatehe net settlement of contracts with the
same counterparty in the event of default.

Derivative Counterparty Credit Exposure

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2006

Total
Number of Exposure at Negative Total

Rating (1) Counterparties(2) Notional Fair Value(3) Fair Values Fair Value
AA+ 1 $ 240,77: % — $ (6559 $ (6,559
AA- 7 3,088,24 3,08z (87,046 (83,969
A+ 4 1,690,06! 2,84: (44,637 (41,799
BBB- 1 205,40° 9,08¢ — 9,08¢
Subtotal 13 $5,224,49. $ 15,01 $(138,23)  $(123,22)
Other derivatives

Caps (4) 125,20( — (390) (390)

Equity-indexed options (4 13,51¢ — (4,349 (4,349

Loans (4) 2,72 — (18) (18)

Warrants N/A 1,20( — 1,20(

$5,365,92  $ 16,217  $(142,99)  $(126,779

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2005

Total
Number of Exposure at Negative Total

Rating (1) Counterparties(2) Notional Fair Value(3) Fair Values Fair Value
AA+ 1 $ 241500 $ — $ (5,646 $ (5,646
AA- 4 2,356,77 — (72,44() (72,440
A+ 6 3,342,411 3,40¢ (74,009 (70,59
A 1 80,75( 1,58( (2,069) (489)
BBB- 1 236,55( 9,56( — 9,56(
Subtotal 13 $6,257,99. $ 14 54¢ $(154,159)  $(139,61)
Other derivatives

Caps (4) 150,20( — (86€) (86€)

Equity-indexed options (4 13,51¢ — (3,09¢) (3,099

Loans (4) 2,72( 29 — 29

Warrants N/A 1,20( — 1,20(

$6,424,42  $ 1577¢  $(158,12)  $(142,34)

(1) Based on the S&P and Fitch Long Term Issuer Cialiings
(2) Based on legal entities. Affiliated legal entite® reported separate
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(3) For each counterparty, this amount includasvdtives with a positive fair value excluding ttedated accrued interest
receivable/payable

(4) These derivatives represent transactions soldcad mmmpanies or institutions for which a creditma is not readily available. The cre
exposure is mitigated because a transaction witlséime terms and conditions was bought with a @iedterparty

Credit Risk Management

First BanCorp is subject to credit risk mainligh respect to its portfolio of loans receivabl®d off-balance sheet instruments, mainly
derivatives and loan commitments. Loans receivedpeesents loans that First BanCorp holds for iuenst and, therefore, First Bancorp i
risk for the term of the loan. Loan commitmentsresgnt commitments to extend credit, subject taifipeondition, for specific amounts a
maturities. These commitments may expose the Catiporto credit risk and are subject to the samaveand approval process as for loans.
Refer to “Contractual Obligations and Commitmeraisbve for further details. The credit risk of detives arises from the potential of a
counterparty’s default on its contractual obligaioTo manage this credit risk, the Corporatiorisiedéth counterparties of good credit
standing, enters into master netting agreements&uez possible and, when appropriate, obtainsteodlh For further details and informati
on the Corporation’s derivative credit risk exp@suefer to “—Interest Rate Risk Management” sectibove. The Corporation manages its
credit risk through credit policy, underwriting,chquality control. The Corporation also employsamtive collection and loss mitigation
efforts.

The Corporation may also encounter risk oad#fin relation to its securities portfolio. Thecsirities held by the Corporation are
principally mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasimd agency securities. Thus, a substantialgrodf these instruments are guaranteed by
mortgages, a U.S. government-sponsored entityeofulhfaith and credit of the U.S. government @amnd deemed to be of the highest credit

quality.

Management’s Credit Committee, comprised ef@orporation’s Chief Credit Risk Officer and otlsenior executives, has primary
responsibility for setting strategies to achieve @orporation’s credit risk goals and objectivasode goals and objectives are documented in
the Corporation’s Credit Policy.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and-performing Assets
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The provision for loan and lease losses isggtato earnings to maintain the allowance for laad lease losses at a level that the
Corporation considers adequate to absorb probasées$ inherent in the portfolio. The Corporaticialgsshes the allowance for loan and
lease losses based on its asset classificatiomt iepoover the total amount of any assets classifis a “loss,” the probable loss exposure of
other classified assets, and the estimated logsessets not classified. The adequacy of the allowdor loan and lease losses is also based
upon a number of additional factors including his@l loan loss experience, current economic cémust the fair value of the underlying
collateral, the financial condition of the borrowgeand, as such, includes amounts based on judgrmedtestimates made by the Corporation.
Although management believes that the allowancéofom and lease losses is adequate, factors beler@orporation’s control, including
factors affecting the Puerto Rico, Florida (USA)itdd States Virgin Islands or British Virgin IsiEsmeconomies may contribute to
delinquencies and defaults, thus necessitatingiaddl reserves.

For small, homogeneous type of loans includasidential mortgage loans, auto loans, consuoagrs| finance lease loans, and
commercial and construction loans under $1.0 mmij/libe Corporation evaluates a specific allowaraset on average historical loss
experience for each corresponding type of loans.fmbthodology of accounting for all probable losserade in accordance with the
guidance provided by Statement of Accounting StedsléSFAS) No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”

Commercial and construction loans over $1.Maniamount are individually evaluated on a qudytéasis for impairment following the
provision of SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditafsa Loan.” A loan is impaired when based on aurieformation and events; it is
probable that the Corporation will be unable tdewmilall amounts due according to the contractrh$ of the loan agreement. The
impairment loss, if any, on each individual loaantlfied as impaired is measured based on the mreatie of expected cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rategpt as a practical expedient, impairment may basured based on the loan’s observable
market price, or the fair value of the collateiathe loan is collateral dependent.

The following table sets forth an analysishaf activity in the allowance for loan and leasssts during the periods indicated:
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Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands
Allowance for loan losses, beginning of y: $147,99¢ $141,03¢ $126,37¢ $111,91: $ 91,06(
Provision for loan losse 74,99: 50,64« 52,79¢ 55,91¢ 62,30
Loans charge-off:

Residential real esta (997) (945) (259) (475) (555)

Commercial and Constructic (6,03€) (8,55¢) (6,190 (6,48¢) (4,647

Finance lease (5,727 (2,749 (2,899 (2,429 (2,537)

Consume (64,45 (39,669 (34,709 (38,744 (41,26))
Recoveries 12,51¢ 6,87¢ 5,901 6,68: 7,54(
Net charg-offs (64,699 (45,049 (38,147) (41,449 (41,457)
Other adjustmeni®) — 1,36: — — —
Allowance for loan losses, end of y $158,29¢ $147,99¢ $141,03¢ $126,37¢ $111,91:
Allowance for loan losses to year end total lo 1.41% 1.17% 1.4<% 1.8(% 1.9%%
Net charge offs to average loans outstanding duha

period 0.55% 0.3%% 0.4% 0.6€% 0.87%

Provision for loan and lease losses to net chafige-o
during the periot 1.1€x 1.12x 1.38& 1.3% 1.50x

(1) Represents allowance for loan losses from the aitigui of Unibank.

First BanCorp'’s allowance for loan and leassés was $158.3 million as of December 31, 20ff6pared to $148.0 million as of
December 31, 2005 and $141.0 million as of DecerBeR004. First BanCorp’s ratio of the allowancoelban and lease losses to period end
total loans was 1.41% as of December 31, 2006, aomapto 1.17% as of December 31, 2005 and 1.498b@secember 31, 2004.

The provision for loan losses totaled 116%aetfcharge-offs for the year ended December 316, 2fimpared with 112% of net charge-
offs for the same period in 2005 and 138% for #maes period in 2004. Net charge-offs for 2006 inseeiby $19.7 million compared to the
2005. The increase in net charge-offs during 2086 mainly composed of higher chamfés in consumer loans of $24.8 million offset iarf
by higher recoveries from previously written-oficaants of $5.6 million. The increase in charge-affsonsumer loans was impacted by the
fiscal and economic situation of Puerto Rico. Adiog to the Puerto Rico Planning Board, Puerto Rida a midst of a recession. The latest
GNP forecast by the Puerto Rico Planning Board etspe 1.4% reduction in fiscal year 2007 compaoefistal year 2006. The slowdown in
activity is the result of, among other things, taghtilities prices, higher taxes, government baaigeimbalances, the upward trend in short-
term interest rates and the flattening of the yaldse, and higher levels of oil prices.

The increase of $6.9 million in net chargesaff the 2005 year, compared with the previous,yeas mainly composed of $5.0 million of
higher charge-offs in consumer loans, primarilyodotns, given higher delinquencies during 2008, $%4 million of higher charge-offs in
commercial loans, including construction loans. &®ecies made from previously written-off accoumtsreased by $1.0 million in 2005
compared to 2004.

Non-performing Assets

Total non-performing assets are the sum ofammuing loans, foreclosed real estate, otherssgssed properties and non-accruing
investment securities. Non-accruing loans and itvests are loans and investments as to which sttey@o longer being recognized. When
loans and investments fall into non-accruing stadilipreviously accrued and uncollected interestharged against interest income.
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Nor-accruing Loans Policy

Residential Real Estate Loans The Corporation classifies real estate loanm-accruing status when interest and principal hmte
been received for a period of 90 days or more.

Commercial Loans- The Corporation places commercial loans (inclgdiommercial real estate and construction loanspimaccruing
status when interest and principal have not beegived for a period of 90 days or more. The riggasure of this portfolio is diversified as to
individual borrowers and industries among othetdes: In addition, a large portion is secured wéhl estate collateral.

Finance Leases- Finance leases are classified in non-accruirtgstahen interest and principal have not been vedeior a period of
90 days or more.

Consumer Loans- Consumer loans are classified in non accruingistahen interest and principal have not been vedefior a period of
90 days or more.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)

OREO acquired in settlement of loans is cdratthe lower of cost (carrying value of the loanfair value less estimated costs to sell off
the real estate at the date of acquisition (es@thegalizable value).

Other Repossessed Property

The other repossessed property category iaslugbossessed boats and autos acquired in seitlefieans. Repossessed boats and autos
are recorded at the lower of cost or estimatedviie.

Investment securitie

This category presents investment securigelassified to non-accruing status, at their cagyamount.

Past Due Loan

Past due loans are accruing commercial lodmshware contractually delinquent 90 days or mBeest due commercial loans are current as
to interest but delinquent in the payment of ppadi
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The following table presents non-performingeds as of the dates indicated:

December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands

Non-accruing loans

Residential real esta $114,82¢ $ 54,777 $ 31,57% $ 26,323 $ 23,01¢
Commercial, commercial real estate and constru 82,71 35,81« 32,45¢ 38,30¢ 47,70¢
Finance lease 8,04¢ 3,272 2,212 3,181 2,04¢
Consume 46,50 40,45¢ 25,42: 17,71 18,99:
252,08 134,32. 91,66 85,52¢ 91,76¢
Other real estate ownu 2,87( 5,01¢ 9,25¢ 4,617 2,93¢
Other repossessed prope 12,10: 9,631 7,291 6,87¢ 6,222
Investment securitie — — — 3,75( 3,75(
Total nor-performing asset $267,06( $148,97. $108,21. $100,77: $104,67"
Past due loar $ 31,64¢ $ 27,50 $ 18,35¢ $ 23,49: $ 24,43¢
Non-performing assets to total ass 1.54% 0.75% 0.6% 0.7%% 1.0¢%
Non-accruing loans to total loal 2.2% 1.06% 0.95% 1.21% 1.62%
Allowance for loan and lease los: $158,29¢ $147,99¢ $141,03¢ $126,37¢ $111,91:
Allowance to total ng-accruing loan: 62.7% 110.19% 153.86% 147.7% 121.9%
Allowance to total non-accruing loans excluding
residential real estate loa 115.3% 186.0t% 234.7% 213.4% 162.7%

Due to macroeconomic conditions in Puerto Ritoreased delinquencies, and the overall groWtheCorporation’s loans portfolio, total
non-performing assets increased to $267.1 milloofeDecember 31, 2006 from $149.0 million as oé&mber 31, 2005 and from $108.2
million as of December 31, 2004.

As a result of the increase in delinquendies,Corporation’s non-performing loans to totaldsaatio as of December 31, 2006 increased
by 118 basis points compared to the ratio as oeBer 31, 2005, from 1.06% to 2.24%. The increasmn-performing loans was mainly
due to an increase of $60.1 million in the residgmeal estate portfolio and $46.9 million in commial portfolio, including construction and
commercial real estate. Historically, the Corpanathas experienced the lowest rates of lossefésetportfolios. As a consequence, the
provision and allowance for loan and lease losg&sat increase proportionately with the increasaan-performing loans. As of
December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s ratio alloveafor loan and lease losses to mmarforming loans decreased by 47 basis points cmed
to the ratio as of December 31, 2005, from 110%3%. Excluding mortgage loans, the ratio of alloegafor loan and lease losses to non-
performing loans decreased by 71 basis points 8% as of December 31, 2005 to 115% as of DeceB&ihe2006.

The increase in consumer non-performing loaasly relates to increases in the Corporation antb personal unsecured portfolios.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity refers to the level of cash and dllg loans and investments to meet loan and investmommitments, potential deposit outflc

and debt repayments. MIALCO, using measures ofdigudeveloped by management, which involves the of several assumptions,
reviews the Corporation’s liquidity position on aekly basis.

The Corporation utilizes different sourceduwfding to help ensure that adequate levels ofdiguare available when needed.
Diversification of funding sources is of great innamce as it protects the Corporation’s liquidityrfi market disruptions. The principal
sources of shoiterm funds are deposits, securities sold underageets to repurchase, and lines of credit withtFHEB and other unsecurt
lines established with financial institutions. MIGIO reviews credit availability on a regular basisthe past, the Corporation has securitized
and sold auto and mortgage loans as supplememarges of funding. Commercial paper has also pea/additional funding as well as
long-term funding through the issuance of noteslang-term brokered certificates of deposit. Thetad these different alternatives, among
other things, is taken into consideration. The @aafion’s principal uses of funds are the origioatof loans and the repayment of maturing
deposit accounts and borrowings.

Over the last three years, the Corporationchasmitted substantial resources to its mortgagéibg subsidiary, FirstMortgage Inc., with
the goal of becoming a leading institution in thghty competitive residential mortgage loans market
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As a result, residential real estate loans as @epéage of total loans receivable have increasedtone from 14% at December 31, 2004 to
25% at December 31, 2006. Commensurate with threase in its mortgage banking activities, the Cafion has also invested in
technology and personnel to enhance the Corpotati@eondary mortgage market capabilities. The meedd capabilities improve the
Corporation’s liquidity profile as it allows the €mration to derive, if needed, liquidity from thale of mortgage loans in the secondary
market. The U.S. (including Puerto Rico) secondaoytgage market is the most liquid in the worldarge part because of the sale or
guarantee programs maintained by FHA, VA, HUD, FNii#d FHLMC.

A large portion of the Corporation’s fundirgyretail brokered CDs issued by the Bank subsidiarthe event that the Corporation’s Bank
subsidiary falls under the ratios of a well-cajitedl institution, it faces the risk of not beindeato replace this source of funding. The Bank
currently complies with the minimum requirementsatfos for a “well-capitalized” institution and e® not foresee falling below required
levels to issue brokered deposits. In additiona¥erage term to maturity of the retail brokereds@as approximately 7 years as of
December 31, 2006. Approximately 63% of the valithese certificates are callable at the Bank’soopt

Certificates of deposit with denominationsb@b0,000 or higher amounted to $8.0 billion as e€@mber 31, 2006 of which $7.0 billion
were brokered CDs.

The following table presents a maturity sumyr@rbrokered CDs with denominations of $100,00Gigher as of December 31, 2006:

Total
(Dollars in thousand
Less than one ye: $ 2,345,81.
Over one year to five yea 1,054,41.
Over five years to ten yea 1,088,17:
Over ten year 2,548,57.
Total $ 7,036,97

The Corporation’s liquidity plan contemplatdternative sources of funding that could provigmi$icant amounts of funding at a
reasonable cost. The alternative sources of funidiclgde, among others, sales of commercial loatigizations, and the securitization of
auto loans and commercial paper.

Operational Risk

The Corporation faces ongoing and emergirigais] regulatory pressure related to the activitias surround the delivery of banking and
financial products. Coupled with external influesseich as market conditions, security risks, agdllgsk, the potential for operational and
reputational loss has increased. In order to nigigad control operational risk, the Corporatios Haveloped, and continues to enhance,
specific internal controls, policies and procedutes are designated to identify and manage operatrisk at appropriate levels throughout
the organization. The purpose of these mechanistasgrovide reasonable assurance of that the @atipon’s business operations are
functioning within the policies and limits establél by management.

The Corporation classifies operational ridlo itwo major categories: business specific andarate-wide affecting all business lines. For
business specific risks, a risk assessment grougswaith the various business units to ensure st&1sty in policies, processes and
assessments. With respect to corporate wide sich, as information security, business recovegalland compliance, the Corporation has
specialized groups, such as the Legal Departmafiot;nhation Security, Corporate Compliance, InforimafTechnology and Operations.
These groups assist the lines of business in thelafement and implementation of risk managementtimes specific to the needs of the
business groups.

Legal and Regulatory Risk

Legal and regulatory risk includes the risknoh-compliance with applicable legal and regulatequirements, the risk of adverse legal
judgments against the Corporation, and the riskal@unterpar’s performance obligations will be unenforceablee Torporation is subje
to extensive regulation in the different jurisdicts in which it conducts it business, and this l&iguy scrutiny has been significantly
increasing over the last several years. The Cofiporaas established and continues to enhance guoeg based on legal and regulatory
requirements that are reasonably designed to ensurpliance with all applicable statutory and regoty requirements. In 2006 as part of
implementation of the enterprise risk managememhé&work, the Corporation revised and implementeéva corporate compliance function,
headed by a newly
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designated Compliance Director. The Corporatiorosi@liance Director reports to the Chief Risk Offie@d is responsible for the oversight
of regulatory compliance and implementation an mmigewide compliance risk assessment process. The CanualiOfficers roles were al
established in each major business areas witreatdiporting relationship to the Corporate Comm&aGroup.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related dateepted herein have been prepared in conformity agttounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, which require tiasurement of financial position and operatingltesn terms of historical dollars witha
considering changes in the relative purchasing pafvenoney over time due to inflation.

Unlike most industrial companies, substantiall of the assets and liabilities of a finandradtitution are monetary in nature. As a result,
interest rates have a greater impact on a finam@ttution’s performance than the effects of gahtevels of inflation. Interest rate
movements are not necessarily correlated with aksmimgthe prices of goods and services.

Concentration Risk

The Corporation conducts its operations iraggaphically concentrated area, as its main mésketierto Rico. However, the Corporation
continues diversifying its geographical risk asdeviced by its operations in the Virgin Islands anttance into new markets through
FirstBank Florida.

The Corporation has a significant lending eoritation of $509.1 million in one mortgage origoran Puerto Rico as of December 31,
2006. The Corporation has outstanding $422.9 miliith another mortgage originator in Puerto Rioptbtal loans granted to mortgage
originators amounting to $932.0 million as of Dete®m31, 2006. These commercial loans are securd® 897 individual mortgage loans
residential and commercial real estate with anayeprincipal balance of $90,425 each. The mortgaigeators have always paid the loans
in accordance with their terms and conditions. @ednber 6, 2005, the Corporation obtained a wéiger the Office of the Commissioner
of Financial Institutions of the Commonwealth ofelie Rico with respect to the statutory limit fadividual borrowers (loan to one borrower
limit). Of the total loans of $11.1 billion for 26Qapproximately 78% have credit risk concentratioRuerto Rico, 14% in the United States
and 8% in the Virgin Islands.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Financial data showing results of the 2006 20@b quarters is presented below. In the opinfananagement, all adjustments necessary
for a fair presentation have been included. Tharicial data has not been reviewed by the Corporatindependent registered public
accounting firm.
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2006
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share res
Interest incom $327,70! $344,44: $317,71. $298,95:
Net interest incom 72,81¢ 126,23t 122,70: 121,93!
Provision for loan losse 19,37¢ 9,35¢ 20,56( 25,70
Net income 3,86: 31,80: 26,68: 22,28¢
Earnings per common sh-basic $ (0.0 $ 0.2€ $ 0.2 $ 0.1¢
Earnings per common sh-diluted $ (0.0 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2 $ 0.1
2005
March 31 (3) June 30 September 30 December 31
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share res
Interest incom $212,37° $249,15° $292,26: $313,79:
Net interest incom 65,27¢ 193,07: 66,74 107,22¢
Provision for loan losse 10,95¢ 11,07¢ 12,86! 15,75¢
Net income (loss 25,21t 97,40¢ 17,30¢ (25,329
Earnings per common sh-basic $ 0.1¢ $ 1.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.49
Earnings per common sh-diluted $ 0.1¢ $ 1.0t $ 0.0¢ $ (0.42)

(1) The March 31, 2005 financial information has begstated from the previously filed Form-Q.

Net interest income includes the effect of chanigake valuation of derivative, hedged instrumeantd basis adjustment accretior
amortization.

Market Prices and Stock Data

The Corporation’s common stock is traded e New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symiB#P FAs of December 31, 2006,
there were 566 holders of record of the Corporaioommon stock.

The following table sets forth the high and/lprices of the Corporation’s common stock for pleeiods indicated as reported by the
NYSE. This table reflects the effect of the Jun82@wvc-for-one stock split on the Corporation’s outstaigdshares of common stock as of
June 15, 2005.

Quarter ended High Low Last
2006:

Decembe $10.7¢ $ 9.3¢ $ 9.5¢
Septembe 11.1¢ 8.6€ 11.0¢
June 12.22 8.9C 9.3C
March 13.1F 12.2C 12.3¢
2005:

Decembe $15.5¢ $10.61 $12.41
Septembe 26.07% 16.5( 16.92
June 21.31 17.31 20.0¢
March 32.2¢ 20.7¢ 21.1:
2004:

Decembe $32.4: $23.6¢ $31.7¢
Septembe 24.9:¢ 19.81 24.1¢
June 21.3¢ 17.57 20.3¢
March 21.6€ 19.5( 20.8(
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Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng
Refer to Iltem 9A.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures @&out Market Risk

The information required herein is incorpodalty reference to the information included underghb caption “Interest Rate Risk
Management” in the Management'’s Discussion and ysigbf Financial Condition and Results of Operagigection in this Form 10-K

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements of BaCorp, together with the report thereon of RveterhouseCoopers LLP, First BanCorp's
independent registered public accounting firm,iackided herein beginning on page F-1 of this Fao¥K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements

In coming to the conclusion that the Corpanas disclosure controls and procedures and inteorarol over financial reporting were
effective as of December 31, 2006, managementderesd, among other things, the control deficiensiasted to the accounting for the cash
flows resulting mainly from the treatment of disotaiand related accretion activity on zero coupmmds, from the disposition of repossessed
assets, and purchases and principal repaymentsiatudities on securities, which resulted in thetheerestate the Corporation’s previously
issued Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows fa 20d 2004 as discussed in Note 1 to the consetidaancial statements. Management
concluded that the Corporation’s controls overabeounting for cash flows operated effectively aBBecember 31, 2006 and that it was the
effective operation of those controls that resuitethe restatement referred to above.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

First BanCorp’s management, under the sugervasnd with the participation of its Chief ExematiOfficer and Chief Financial Officer,
has evaluated the effectiveness of First BanCaligdosure controls and procedures as such tedafised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities and Exchange At®9®4, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of tHeéthe period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this evalumtour CEO and CFO concluded that, as of Decembe2@®6, the Corporation’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivensure that information required to be discldsethe Corporation in reports that the
Corporation files or submits under the Exchangeigcecorded, processed, summarized and reportbéthvitie time periods specified in St
rules and forms and is accumulated and reportétet@€orporatiors management, including the CEO and CFO, as agptejo allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management’s report on Internal Contr@rdvinancial Reporting is set forth in Iltem 8 andarporated herein by reference.

Our management’s assessment of the effectbganfeour internal control over financial reportiag of July 5, 2007 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisgarblic accounting firm, as stated in their réparset forth in Item 8.
Remediation of Prior Year Material Weaknesses in Iternal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the 2006, First BanCorp completed thplementation of remediation steps to address #tenial weaknesses identified during
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting for the year 2005. Adxefcember 31, 2005, in the Corporation’s
assessment of the effectiveness of its internarabover financial reporting, First BanCorp’s mgeaent identified material weaknesses in
the internal control over financial reporting rétatto:

1. Ineffective Control EnvironmerThe Corporation did not maintain an effective cohémvironment. Specifically the Corporation did no
maintain effective controls with respect to theiegwy supervision and monitoring of its accountiq@ertions, including with respect to the
accounting of purchases in bulk of mortgage loartsmas-through trust certificates (tt mortgag-related transactio™).

2. Ineffective controls over the documentation androomication of relevant terms of certain mortgagane bulk purchase transactiorThe
Corporation did not maintain effective controls ptlee documentation and communication of all ofrélevant terms and conditions of
certain mortgage loans bulk purchase transactioakiding the existence of oral and emails agreesmand extended recour:

3. Ineffective controls over communications to theid@dmmittee The Corporation did not maintain effective contrim®nsure that
management provided the Audit Committee compldtaimation
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regarding certain mortgage-related transactiomminrganized manner so as to enable the Audit Ctieerto properly oversee those
transactions and their associated external finaneporting.

4. Ineffective controls over communications to thep@oatior’s independent registered public accounting fifthe Corporation did not
maintain effective controls to ensure complete ashelquate communication to the Corporée’s registered public accounting fir

5. Ineffective an-fraud controls and procedure¥he Corporation did not maintain effective antitfiacontrols and procedures to ensure the
effective assignment of authority and monitoringtsfexternal financial reporting proce

6. Insufficient accounting resources and experiThe Corporation did not maintain a sufficient coement of accounting and financial
personnel with sufficient knowledge, experiencel aining to meet the Corporat’s external financial reporting responsibiliti

7. Ineffective controls over the accounting for moge-related transactionsThe Corporation did not maintain effective controler the
accounting for its mortgage-related transactiort w&rtain counterparties. Specifically, the Cogtion did not have effective controls in
place to ensure the identification of recourse @ons that precluded the recognition of such taatisns as purchases of loans or
collaterized mortgage securities in written agresimeeclating to the mortga-related transaction

8. Ineffective controls over the accounting for detiva financial instrumentsThe Corporation did not maintain effective contral@r the
accounting of its derivative financial instrumerggecifically, the Corporation’s internal contralere not properly designed to identify
derivatives embedded within its mortgage purchasesother loan contracts. Additionally, the Corpioradid not maintain effective
controls over the identification and valuation eflge ineffectiveness as required by generally dedegccounting principle

9. Ineffective controls over the valuation of premiwans discounts on mortga-backed securitiesThe Corporation did not maintain
effective controls over the valuation of premiumsl @iscounts on mortgage-backed securities. Spetiifj the Corporation amortized
premium and discounts on mortgage-backed secuusieg a straight-line pro rata method rather tiveneffective interest method, as
required by generally accepted accounting prinsi

These material weaknesses are discussed in gdesisglrin our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

As previously mentioned, during the year enBedember 31, 2006, First BanCorp completed théeémentation of the following
remediation steps to address the material wealkrseesEDecember 31, 2005:

1. First BanCorp has significantly improvesiéontrol environment including the documentatiod aommunication of relevant terms of
certain mortgage loan bulk purchase transacticmntunication to the Audit Committee and to the @oation’s independent registered
public accounting firm, and anti-fraud controls gdcedures by implementing enhanced proceduresamtdls including the following:

. Changes in Management and Clarification of thieRResponsibilities and Authority of Managemeihe former CEO and
former CFO resigned from the Corporation upon #wiest of the Board pursuant to a recommendatitmgeffect by the Audit
Committee. Also, the Board appointed a new CEOandw CFO and created the new position of COO hictwan executive of
the Corporation was appointed. In addition, therBa@pointed a new General Counsel, who repottse@EO. The roles,
responsibilities and authority of the persons icheaf these positions have been clarified to béttebit any override of the
Corporatior's internal control over financial reporting. In &dzh, in 2006 the Corporation implemented detattontrols tc
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improve the identification and response tp iastances of undue control by an unauthorized@eof the financial reporting
process

. Risk Management Program and Enhancement of then€mication of Information to the Audit CommitteBuring the first
quarter of 2006, the Board reviewed the Corpor&iask management program with the assistanceaitside consultants and
legal counsel. This effort has resulted in a remtignt of risk management functions and the adomti@am enterprise-wide risk
management process. The Board appointed a seni@gement officer as Chief Risk Officer and appadrttés officer to the Ris
Management Council with reporting responsibilitieshe CEO and the Audit Committee. In additiore Board formed an
Asset/Liability Risk Committee which is responsiliée the oversight of risk management, includingedgjuality, portfolio
performance, interest rate and market sensitisgityg, portfolio diversification. In addition, the AgA iability Risk Committee has
the authority to examine the Corporation’s investtretivities and liabilities, such as its brokef&ds, to facilitate appropriate
oversight by the Board. Finally, management is ireglto bring to the attention of the Asset/LiapilRisk Committee new forms
of transactions or variants of forms of transactitrat the Committee has not yet reviewed to erthkl€ommittee to fully
evaluate the consequences of such transactiohs todrporation. In addition, management is requiodoting to the attention of
the Audit Committee significant new forms of tracté@ns or variants of forms of transactions for eththe Corporation has not
determined the appropriate accounting treatmeah#ible the Audit Committee to fully evaluate theamting treatment of such
transactions. The enhancements of the risk managgmegram are expected to result in a controlremment that ensures the
discussion and analysis of the legal and accouitipdjcations of new forms of transactions or vatgaof transactions that may
have a significant impact on the Corporation’s fiicial condition or on the accuracy and completenédse financial reporting
process

. Transaction Documentationn August 2006, the Corporation adopted a spepiflicy that requires that all transactions be
completely and fully documented, thereby prohilgitany oral or undisclosed side agreements, andgtitét documentation be
contemporaneously prepared and executed and dgmiraihtained and organize

. Board Membership Change$he Board appointed the new CEO and new COOe®tard. In addition, in November 2005, the
Board elected Fernando Rodriguez-Amaro as a nespertient director to serve as an additional aedingittee financial expert,
and thereafter appointed him Chairman of the AGditnmittee as of January 1, 2006. Also, in the fjtstrter of 2006, the Board
appointed Jose Méndez Cortada as the Lead Independent DirectoreoBtiard.

. Corporate Governance RevieWwuring the first quarter of 2006, with the asasigte of outside consultants and outside counsel, th
Corporate Governance Committee of the Board redewedl the Corporation’s corporate governance gsliand made
recommendations to the full Board for changes. Thanges were implemented and are expected td hresutontinued and
clearer understanding of the responsibilities amied of the Board and its committees and in agnatient of those responsibilities
with the industr’s best practice:

. Ethical training of employees and directots 2006, the Corporation designed and offerecaaod corporate compliance
seminars to every employee and director of the @atjpn. Through the corporate compliance traimpnggram, the Corporation
emphasizing the importance of compliance with tbepGration’s policies and procedures and contretesys, including the new
policy regarding full and comple
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documentation of agreements and prohibitiray and side agreements, the Corporation’s Codethi€s and Code of Conduct, the
Corporation’s various legal compliance programsl @@ availability of mechanisms to report possibiethical behavior, such as
the Audit Committe’s whistleblower hotline

. Procedures Relating to Concerns About Senior amgnts Conduct During 2006, the Board and the Audit Committedsed
their respective procedures to emphasize morelglteas requirement that the Board or the Audit Cdtter be notified whenever
any concerns arise regarding the conduct of semégragement, including allegations of possible fraetf-dealing or any other
inappropriate conduct. In addition, when the Coagtion appointed a new General Counsel, it specifiatithe General Counsel
will report to the CEO in contrast to the formerm@eal Counsel who reported to the former C

2. Accounting for Mortgage-Related Transactiofuring the first semester of 2006, the Corporatioplemented controls that specify
that the terms of any recourse provisions or rethgervicing arrangements must be reviewed by theefal Counsel before they are included
in purchase agreements. In addition, the Boaravestl the Corporation’s risk management programaecdd the communication to the
Audit Committee and adopted a specific policy fansactions documentation as further describegim i above.

3. A ccounting for derivative financial instrumenWith respect to the identification of derivativéise Corporation implemented the
following changes:

. the Corporation has created the Investment amiv&ive Risk Manager position, which is responsifdr the evaluation of
complex transactions, such as derivatives, impléatiem of policies and procedures and monitoringxiernal consultants
analysis/computation

. the legal and accounting departments must reaigmwnew forms of transactions or variants of foohgansactions for which the
Corporation has not determined the accountingrtreat in order to identify any derivatives resultingm the structure of such
transactions; an

. periodic testing of the hedge effectiveness mode performed to make sure that it is operatffectvely to ensure compliance
with SFAS 133. This testing is performed by thedsiment and Derivative Risk Manag

. education of personnel on derivative financialrmstents and involvement of outside experts, asssarg.

With respect to the measurement of hedge effeats®rthe Corporation revised its accounting pditiestate that the receipt of an upfront
payment from an interest rate swap counterpartglypdes the use of the short-cut method of accogntimder SFAS 133.

4. Accounting for the amortization of premiums distounts on mortgage-backed securiti®aring the first semester of 2006,
management adjusted the balances to reflect thefuke effective interest method. In addition, @@rporation reviewed the accounting
policy to require the use of the interest methadtie amortization of premiums and discounts ontgamge-backed securities. As a result of
such review, effective January 1, 2006 the Corpamamplemented the interest method for the amatitin of premiums and discounts on
mortgage-backed securities.

5. Overall Accounting Resources and Experfidee Corporation has recruited additional stafftterggthen its accounting, internal cont
financial reporting, legal, and internal audit ftinns. Further, the Corporation has appointed @és@management executive as the Chief
Accounting Officer with primary responsibility féhe development and implementation of the Corpon&iaccounting policies and practices
and to review and monitor critical accounts andgegtions to ensure that they are managed in amocedvith such policies and practices,
generally accepted accounting principles in theté¢hBtates and applicable regulatory requirements.
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Other Enhancements to Internal Control Over Financal Reporting

The following describes other enhancementsitieae undertaken by First BanCorp during 200&ddition to the measures described
above, to address the material weaknesses in tigof@tion’s internal control over financial repagi
1. The Corporation created the position of @aape Controller that reports directly to the CH®e Corporate Controller oversees the

corporate financial records of the Corporation. Thstrollers of the Corporation’s subsidiaries maport directly to the Corporate
Controller.

The Corporation segregated the investmearduatting department from the treasury departmeme.imvestment accounting
department reports now directly to the Corporatatfadier.

The Corporation created the corporate regptepartment reporting directly to the Chief Aenting Officer. The corporate
reporting department has the responsibility of Siidys and financial reporting to the Corporar's Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation catagl the implementation of its remediation plaraleated and tested the effectiveness of
the controls as of December 31, 2006, and detedrihre the material weaknesses described abovelereremediated.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes to the Corporatint&rnal control over financial reporting duriogr most recent quarter ended
December 31, 2006 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, ther@wation’s internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Rgistrant and Corporate Governance

DIRECTORS

The current directors of the Corporation are lisgtetbw. They have provided the following informatiabout their principal, occupation,
business experience and other matters.

Luis M. Beauchamp, 64
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman from January 2006 to present. PresidehCénef Executive Officer from October 2005 to mmets Senior Executive Vice Preside
Wholesale Banking, from March 1997 to October 2@¥&ecutive Vice President, Chief Lending Officesrfr 1990 to March 1997. General
Manager —New York banking operations of Banco de Ponce fi&@88 to 1990. He had the following responsibilitéthe Chase Manhati
Bank, N.A.: Regional Manager for the Ecuador antb@dbia operations and corporate finance for thet@eAmerican operations, in 1988;
Country Manager for Mexico from 1986 to 1988; andridger of Wholesale Banking in Puerto Rico from4l&81986. Since January 2006,
Mr. Beauchamp has serves as Chairman of FirstBagki® Rico (“FirstBank”), First Leasing and Rertarporation, First Federal Finance
Corporation d/b/a Money Express, FirstBank Insueafsgency, Inc., First Insurance Agency, Inc., [Ergiress, Inc., FirstMortgage, Inc.,
Ponce General Corporation, FirstBank Florida amstBank Overseas CorpJoined the Corporation in 1990. Director since Segiier 30,
2005.

Aurelio Alemén, 48
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operatin@fficer

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operadifficer from October 2005 to present. Executived/President, responsible for
consumer banking and auto financing of FirstBamces1998 and since October 2005 also respongibliné retail banking distribution
network. President of First Federal Finance Conpmmad/b/a Money Express from 2000 to 2005. Pregidé FirstBank Insurance Agency,
Inc. from 2001 to 2005. President of First Leasing Rental Corp. from 1999 to 2005. From 1996 @81¥ice President of CitiBank, N.A.,
responsible for wholesale and retail automobilarfiting and retail mortgage business. Vice PresiofieGhase Manhattan Bank, N.A.,
banking operations and technology for corporatétabmarkets from 1990 to 1996. Director of FirstiRaFirst Leasing and Rental
Corporation, First Federal Finance CorporationalMbney Express, FirstBank Insurance Agency, Ficst Insurance Agency, Inc.,
FirstExpress, Inc., FirstMortgage, Inc., Ponce Gan@orporation, FirstBank Florida, Grupo EmpreSasvicios Financieros, Inc. d/b/a PR
Finance?, FirstBank Overseas Corp., and First Trade, loimell the Corporation in 1998. Director since Seyier 30, 2005.

José Teixidor, 53

Chief Executive Officer and President of B. Ferrémé& Hnos., Inc. from May 2003 to present; Chairméthe Board of Pan Pepin Inc. from
1998 to present; Chairman of the Board of Bagugelites from 1998 to 2006; Chairman of the BoardPah Pepin Baking, Inc. from 2004 to
present, President of Eagle Investment Fund, rom 1996 to present; President of Swiss Chalet,fiom 2000 to present; Chairman of the
Board of Marvel International from 2005 to preseveémber of the Board of the Puerto Rico Chambezahmerce and of the Industry and
Food Distribution Chamber of Commerce. Member efBloard of the

1 First Leasing and Rental Corporation, First FadEmance Corporation d/b/a Money Express, Firstfance Agency, Inc.,
FirstExpress, Inc., FirstMortgage, Inc., and FiestB Overseas Corp, are wholly-owned subsidiaridgrstBank. FirstBank Insurance
Agency, Inc., and Ponce General Corporation ardiydosvned subsidiary of the Corporation. FirstBdflkrida is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ponce General Corporati

2 Grupo Empresas Servicios Financieros, Inc. d/b/&PRBRnce is a whol-owned subsidiary of the Corporatic
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Distributors and Manufacturers Association; Memtiethe Wholesalers Chamber of Puerto Rico; and Mambthe Board of El Nuevo Dia
from 1996 to 2006. Director since January 1994,

Jorge L. Diaz, 52

Executive Vice President and member of the Boardiafctors of Empresas Diaz, Inc. from 1981 to enésand Executive Vice President
and Director of Betteroads Asphalt Corporation t®&eicycling Corporation, and Coco Beach Developr@amporation, and its subsidiaries.
Member of the Chamber of Commerce of Puerto Rioe Association of General Contractors of Puert@Ried of the U.S. National
Association of General Contractors. Member of thaf8 of Trustees of Baldwin School of Puerto RBmector since 1998.

José L. Ferrer-Canals, 48

Doctor of Medicine in private urology practice €nt992. Commissioned as Captain in the United StsiteForce in March 1991 and
appointed Chief of Aeromedical Service of the 48Rledical Squadron in December 1992. Member of theeAcan Association of Clinical
Urologists, Alpha Omega Alpha Medical Honor Socigityce 1986. Member of the Hospital Pavia Peer Review Committee, Hospital
Pavia, San Juan, Puerto Rico, from 1995 to prebtetical Faculty Representative to Hospital Pakdaf1996 to 1998. Professor of Flight
Physiology and Aerospace Medicine, InterAmericaiversity of Puerto Rico. Member of the Board of &itors of American Cancer
Society, Puerto Rico Chapter from 1999 to predeiméctor since 2001.

Richard Reiss-Huyke, 60

Financial and management consultant specializirggisils management, financial planning, negotiajamluations and litigation support
since 1979. Director of Grupo HIMA from March 20@6present. Director of Caribbean Petroleum Canf@)05 to June 2007. Director of
Banco Santander Puerto Rico from February 197@bmary 2003, and Director of Santander BanCogm fiMay 2000 to February 2003.
Employed by Bacardi Corporation in a number ofeti#ht capacities, including Chief Financial Offic€hief Operating Officer, Vice
President and Director from 1973 to 1979. MembehefBoard of Directors and the audit committe®epsi Cola Puerto Rico Bottling
Company, from February 1996 to July 1998, Presidéttie Board of Directors of the State Insuranaad-of Puerto Rico from 2001 to June
2007. Director since 2003.

Sharee Ann Umpierre-Catinchi, 47

Doctor of Medicine. Assistant Professor at the @nsity of Puerto Rico’s Department of Obstetricd &ynecology from 1993 to present.
Director of the Division of Gynecologic Oncology thie University of Puerto Rice’School of Medicine from 1993 to present. Boardi@ed
by the National Board of Medical Examiners, Ameni&oard of Obstetrics and Gynecology and the AnaariBoard of Obstetrics and
Gynecology, Division of Gynecologic Oncology. Ditecsince 2003.

José Menéndez-Cortada, 59

Attorney at law since 1973. Director and Vice Rdest in charge of the corporate and tax divisidriglartinez-Alvarez, MenéndeCortada &
Lefranc Romero, PSC, a firm which was formerly ampership were Mr. Menéndez served as the panmehnarge of the corporate and tax
divisions, formed since 1977. General Counsel ¢oBbard of Bermudez & Longo, S.E. from 1985 to prgsDirector of Tasis Dorado
School since 2002. Director of the Homebuildersosgstion of Puerto Rico since 2002. Trustee oflthis A. Ferré Foundation, Inc., since
2002. Director since April 2004. He has been thad_ndependent Director since February 2006.

Fernando Rodriguez-Amaro, 59

Certified Public Accountant, Certified Fraud Exaevimnd Certified Valuation Analyst. Managing Partaed Partner in Charge of the Audit
and Accounting Division of RSM ROC & Company. Haeh with RSM ROC & Company for the past twentyysars and prior thereto
served as Audit Manager with Arthur Andersen & €w.over nine years. Mr. Rodriguez Amaro has ov&ey&ars of public accounting
experience. He has served clients in the bankirsgirance, manufacturing, construction, government,
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advertising, radio broadcasting and services imghsstMember of the Board of Trustees of SacredtHéuaiversity of Puerto Rico since
August 2003 to present, serving as Member of thecHtve Committee and Chairman of the Audit Conmeeitsince 2004. Member of the
Board of Trustees of Colegio Puertorriquefio de BliBince 1996 to present, serving as a membeedddlard of Directors from 1998 to
2004. Member of the Board of Director of ProyectoNifios de Nueva Esperanza, Inc. since 2003.

The Corporation’s by-laws provide that each diretimds office for the term to which he or she wéscted and until his or her successor is
elected and qualified or until his or her resigoatiretirement or removal from office. The Corpamals by-laws also provide that the
directors will be divided into three classes aglyeagual in number as possible. The members df ekxss shall be elected for a three year
term and only one class shall be elected by batiatially. The Corporation’s by-laws further provitiat any director elected by an
affirmative vote of the majority of the Board ofrB¢tors to fill a vacancy shall serve until the tnebection of directors by stockholders. As
Corporation did not hold a stockholders’ meetingry 2006 nor during the first six month of 2007do the inability to file its Form 10-K
timely for the years ended 2005 and 2006, and aigealirectors were appointed to fill vacancié® following members of the Board of
Directors shall be up for election at the next kbmiders’ meeting: Luis M. Beauchamp, Aurelio Alemdosé Teixidor, José L. Feri@anals
Richard Reiss-Huyke, (Mr. Reiss will not stand fflerelection, therefore his term will expire on thege of the stockholder meeting), Sharee
Ann Umpierre-Catinchi, and Fernando Rodriguez-Amahe term of directors Jorge L. Diaz and José Méeg-Cortada expire during 2008.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The executive officers of the Corporation, FirstBamd FirstBank Florida who are not directors &t below.

Fernando Scherrer, 38
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Presitdgimce July 2006. He is a Certified Public Accaunit Co-Founder, Managing Partner and
Head of Audit and Consulting Practices at Schefemandez & Co., from 2000 to 2006. Prior to foumgdScherrer Hernandez & Co., he
worked with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for 10 y@drere he audited financial institutions and inegeacompanies. He has over 17 years
of financial and accounting experience in the firiahservices, insurance, retail and educationstriks. Since October 2006, he has servi

a director of First Leasing and Rental Corporatkirst Federal Finance Corporation d/b/a Money Eggr FirstBank Insurance Agency, Inc.,
FirstMortgage, Inc., Ponce General Corporation.

Lawrence Odell, 59
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Setagy

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and S&greince February 2006. Senior Partner at Mazt®aell & Calabria. Has over 25 years
of experience in specialized legal issues relaidzhhking, corporate finance and international omafe transactions. Served as Secretary of
the Board of Pepsi-Cola Puerto Rico, Inc. from 1892997. Served as Secretary to the Board of Rireof BAESA, S.A. from 1992 to
1997.

Dacio A. Pasarell, 58
Executive Vice President and Banking Operations Exaitive

Executive Vice President and Banking Operationschtiee since September 2002. Had over 27 yeargpdréence at Citibank N.A. in
Puerto Rico which included the following positioMice President, Retail Bank Manager, from 200@@62; Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer from 1996 to 1998; Vice Presiddiéad of Operations — Caribbean Countries from41®91996; Vice President Mortgage
and Automobile Financing; Product Manager, Latinekita from 1986 to 1994; Vice President, Mortgagé Automobile Financing Product
Manager for Puerto Rico from 1986 to 1996. Pregidéitiseguros PR, Inc. from 1998 to 2001. Chamof Ponce General Corporation i
Director of FirstBank Florida since April 2005.
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Randolfo Rivera, 53
Executive Vice President and Wholesale Banking Exative

Executive Vice President in charge of corporatekbvay; middle market, international, government arditutional, structure finance and c:
management areas of FirstBank since June 1998imea Gctober 2005 also in charge of real estatgimgn commercial mortgage unit in
Puerto Rico and merchant banking. Vice Presidetittamponent executive for local companies, puldita and institutional markets for
Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. in Puerto Rico from Ap®90 to December 1996. Corporate Finance Exeeinicharge of the Caribbean and
Central American region for Chase Manhattan BarRuperto Rico from January 1997 to May 1998.

Emilio Martiné, 56
Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer

Chief Credit Officer and Executive Vice PresidehFost Bank since October 2005. Director of FiratiR Florida since August 2006. Senior
Vice President and Credit Risk Management of FastBfrom June 2002 to October 2005. Staff Credédtxive for FirstBank’s Corporate
and Commercial Banking Business components sinaeidber 2004. First Senior Vice President of Banaot&hder Puerto Rico; Director
for Credit Administration, Workout and Loan Revigigm 1997 to 2002. Senior Vice President for Riska in charge of Workout, Credit
Administration, and Portfolio Assessment for Bas@ntander Puerto Rico from 1996 to 1997. Deputyn@gBenior Credit Officer for
Chase Manhattan Bank Puerto Rico from 1986 to 1B&&ctor of FirstBank Florida since August 2006.

Cassan Pancham, 47
Executive Vice President and Eastern Caribbean Regin Executive

Executive Vice President of FirstBank since Octdt@05. First Senior Vice President, Eastern CaghtiRegion of FirstBank from

October 2002 until October 2005. Director and R¥exsi of FirstExpress, Inc., First Trade, Inc., &irdt Insurance Agency, Inc. He held the
following positions at JP Morgan Chase Bank Easaribbean Region Banking Group: Vice President@eaderal Manager, from
December 1999 to October 2002; Vice President,ri#&ssi, Professional and Consumer Executive, frojlB88 to December 1999; Deputy
General Manager from March 1999; and Vice Presjdeohsumer Executive, from December 1997 to 1998nbkkr of the Governing Board
of Directors of the Virgin Islands Port Authoritinee June 2007.

The Corporation’s by-laws provide that each offiskall be elected annually at the first meetinthefBoard of Directors after the annual
meeting of stockholders and that each officer dhallil office until his or her successor has bedy diected and qualified or until his or her
death, resignation or removal from office.

CERTAIN OTHER OFFICERS

Miguel A. Babilonia, 41
Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Risk Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Risk Offisirce 2006. Vice President of Consumer Creditdyaind Portfolio Risk Management,
promoted to Senior Vice President in 1999. In 2@B8,mortgage risk management and centralizedatiafes responsibilities were added to
his scope. He has sixteen years of experiencedmguConsumer Scorecard Manager at Citibank, fghn 1997 to 1998; Assistant Vice
President/Risk Manager at First Union National B&okn 1996-1997; Assistant Vice President/Segmama¥lanager at First Union
National Bank from 1993 to 1996; Portfolio Risk &erAnalyst at National City Bank from 1991 to 19%hairman of the Consumer Cre
Committee of the Puerto Rico Bankers Associatiomel the Corporation in 1998.

Nayda Rivera-Batista, 33
Senior Vice President, Chief Risk Officer and Asstant Secretary

Chief Risk Officer and Senior Vice president sidgeil 2006. Assistant Secretary of the Board siNowember 2006. Senior Vice President
and General Auditor from July 2002 to April 20061eSs a Certified Public Accountant and Certifiaternal Auditor. More than 12 years of
combined work experience in public company, audijtaccounting, financial reporting, internal cotgr@orporate governance, risk
management and regulatory compliance. Serving asteof the Board of Trustees of the Bayamén Cebmaversity from January 2005 to
January 2006. Joined the Corporation in 2002.
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Pedro Romero, 34
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Chief Accounting Officer since August 2006. Seniice President since May 2005. Comptroller from N2&@5 to August 2006. Vice
President and Assistant Comptroller from DecemiB@22o May 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountaith a Master of Science in
Accountancy and has technical expertise in manageraporting, financial analysis, corporate taxeinal controls and compliance with US
GAAP, SEC rules and Sarbanes Oxley. He has moretémayears of experience including, big four pzibiécounting company, banking and
financial services. Joined the Corporation in Delcen2002.

Victor M. Barreras-Pellegrini, 39
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Treasurer and Senior Vice President since JulY)86 2Previously held various positions with Banoptar de Puerto Rico from

January 1992 to June 2006, including, Fixed-Inc&worfolio Manager of the Popular Assets Managerdamsion from 1998 to 2006 and
Investment Officer in the Treasury division from9B%o 1998. Director of FirstBank Overseas Corjl Binst Mortgage. He has over 15 ye
of experience in banking and investments and hiblel<hartered Financial Analyst designation. JothedCorporation in 2006.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RELATED MATTERS
General

The following discussion summarizes the Corporati@orporate governance including director indepeoegboard and committee structt
function and composition, and governance charpaiiies and procedures. The Corporate Governatarel8rds, including the text of the
Corporation’s charters approved by the Board oé€&lors (the “Board”) for the Audit Committee, ther@pensation and Benefits Committee,
the Corporate Governance and Nominating CommitteeAsset/Liability Risk Committee and the Corpamats Code of Ethics and Code of
Ethics for Senior Financial Officers are availahleéhe Corporation’s web site at www.firstbancorppm, under “Investor Relations /
Governance Documents”. FirstBanCorp shareholdeysahtain printed copies of these documents by mgito Lawrence Odell, Secretary of
the Board of Directors, First BanCorp, 1519 Poned.€dn Avenue, Santurce, Puerto Rico 00908.

Independence of the Board of Directors

The Board annually evaluates the independence afiémbers based on the criteria for determiningpreddence identified by the New York
Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), the Securities and Exclea@8gmmission (“SEC”) and the Corporation’s Indeparak Principles for Directors.
The Corporation’s Corporate Governance Standam&dges that a majority of the Board be composedirgictors who meet the requirements
for independence established in the Corporatiardgpendence Principles of Directors which shalbiporate, at a minimum, those
established by the NYSE and the SEC. The Indep&eaderinciples for Directors is included as Exhibit4 to this 2006 Form 10-K. The
Board has concluded that the Corporation has aritya@f independent directors. The Board determitied Messrs. José Teixidor-Méndez,
José L. Ferrer-Canals, Jorge L. Diaz, FernandoiBuelz-Amaro, Richard Reiss-Huyke, José MenéndetaGamand Sharee Ann Umpierre-
Catinchi are independent under the Independenceiples for Directors. Related to director RichReiss-Huyke, in determining
independence, the Board took into consideratiaglaionship that his adult daughter had with thep@oation for services rendered by her
consulting company which amounted to $1,500 du2id@6. Messrs. Luis M. Beauchamp, President andf @xiecutive Officer, and Aurelio
Alemén, Senior Executive Vice President and Chigéi@ting Officer, are not considered to be indepahds they are management Board
members. During 2006, the independent directorallysmet in executive sessions without the Corporéé management on days were there
were regularly scheduled Board meetings. In additmn-management directors separately met twoni®s during 2006 with José
Menéndez-Cortada serving as chairman during theingse

Board Meetings
The Board is responsible for directing and oversgéie business and affairs of the Corporation. Board represents the Corporation’s
stockholders and its primary purpose is to build
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long term shareholder value. The Board meets agalarly scheduled basis during the year to rewignificant developments affecting the
Corporation and to act on matters that require 8a@proval. It also holds special meetings wheimgoortant matter requires Board action
between scheduled meetings. The Board of the Catiparmet thirty two (32) times during 2006. Eacember of the Board participated ir
least 75% of Board and applicable committee mestivedd during 2006.

Board Committees

The Board has five standing committees: the Audin@ittee, the Compensation and Benefits CommitteeCorporate Governance and
Nominating Committee, the Asset/Liability Risk Coritbee, and an Ad Hoc Committee. The members ottmmittees are appointed a
removed by the Board, which also appoints a cHaéach committee. The functions of those committtesr current members and the
number of meetings held during 2006 are set foethv.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is composed of three outsideatdrs who meet the independence criteria eskaaiby the NYSE,
the SEC, and the Corporation’s Independence Ptaxipr Directors. Under the terms of its chartiee, Audit Committee represents and
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight reggibility relating to the integrity of the Corpoi@t’s financial statements and the financial
reporting process, the effectiveness of the Cotjmra internal controls over financial reportingdhadequacy of internal control disclosures
and procedures, the Corporation’s compliance wigfal and regulatory requirements, the performanti@eoCorporation’s internal audit
function, the annual independent audit of the Cafion’s financial statements and the qualificasiondependence and performance of the
Corporation’s independent registered public acdagrfirm. The Audit Committee also monitors the hiyeof the Corporation’s assets in
order to provide for early identification of podsilproblem assets.

The members of this Committee are Fernando Rodziguearo, appointed Chairman effective in Januaiy&dosé Ferrer-Canals and
Richard Reiss-Huyke. Each member of the Corporatidndit Committee is financially literate, knowlgeable and qualified to review
financial statements. The “audit committee finaheigerts” designated by the Corporation’s BoarlRichard Reiss-Huyke and Fernando
Rodriguez-Amaro. The Audit Committee met a totathirtty two (32) times during fiscal year 2006.

Compensation and Benefits CommitteeThe Compensation and Benefits Committee is compos#dee directors who meet the
independence criteria established by the NYSE hedCorporation’s Independence Principles for Daectin addition, the members of the
Committee are independent as defined in Rule 16be&r the Exchange Act. The Committee is respaméirithe oversight and
determination of the proper salary and incentiv@pensation of the executive officers and key enmgrsyof the Corporation. The
responsibilities and duties of the Committee inelttue following:

. Review and approve the annual goals and objectelevant to compensation of the CEO, includirgglihlance of the components of
total compensatior

. Evaluate the performance of the CEO in light ofdlgeeed upon goals and objectives and set the awafien level of the CEO bas
on such evaluatior

. Establish and approve the salaries, annual inceativards and long term incentives of the CEO, dkexofficers and selected ser
executives

. Evaluate and approve severance arrangements aridyengmt contracts for executive officers and selécenior executive
. Approve and administer the Corpora’'s cash and equity based incentive plans for semecutives
. Prepare and publish an annual executive compensatmrt in the Corporati’ s proxy statemen

. Periodically review the operation of the Corpmmals overall compensation program for key emplayard evaluate its effectiveness
in promoting shareholder value and Corporation atbjes. The Committee establishes criteria for @atihg its performance and
conducts an annual evaluation of the charter astlidses the results of the annual evaluation Wwéliull Board. The Committee has
the sole authority to engage and terminate outidsultants to assist in determining appropriatepensation levels for the CEO
and other executive officers, and
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set fees and retention arrangements for sacbultants. The Committee has full access to eleyant records of the Corporation and
may request any employee of the Corporation orrqibeson to meet with the Committee or its considtaThe Committee has the
authority to delegate all or a portion of the auitiyogranted to it by the Board to one or morelaf Committee members, senior
executives or committees, subject to applicablagpliaws and regulation

The members of this Committee are Sharee Ann Umgsi@atinchi, appointed Chairman in August 2006 hgid Reiss-Huyke and Jose
Teixidor-Méndez. The Compensation and Benefit Coitemimet a total of six (6) times during fiscal y2806.

Corporate Governance and Nominating CommitteeThe Corporate Governance and Nominating Committ¢leeoBoard of the
Corporation is composed of three directors who rtteetndependence criteria established by the NYISESEC and the Corporation’s
Independence Principles for Directors. The respmlitiés and duties of the Committee include, amottters, the following:

. Develop a set of corporate governance princigggicable to the Corporation for Board approvat] &llowing such approval shall
annually review the principles for continued corapte.

. Establish the criteria for selecting new direcioraccordance with the requirements of the NY
. Recommend the director nominees for approval byBtteerd.

. Have the authority to retain and terminate o@tsidnsultants or search firms to advice the Coremittgarding the identification and
review of candidates, including sole authority pprve such consulte’s or search fir's fees, and other retention ter

. Review annually the Corporation’s Insider TradiRajicy to ensure continued compliance with appliedegal standards and
corporate best practices. In connection with itsuah review of the Insider Trading Policy, the Coitteg also reviews the list of
executive officers subject to Section 16 of theuBides and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, lemdist of affiliates subject to the
trading windows contained in the Polic

. Review annually and update, as necessary, thast€lts adequacy and the performance of the Comeittnd receive approval from
the Board of any proposed chanc

. Consistent with the foregoing, take such act@m# deems necessary to encourage continuous\enpent of, and foster adherence
to, the Corporation’s corporate governance poligiescedures and practices at all levels and glealbrm other corporate
governance oversight functions as requested b daed.

The members of this Committee are José Luis F&egrals, appointed Chairman in February 2006, Jorge-Irizarry and José Menéndez-
Cortada. The Corporate Governance and Nominatimgriiiee met a total of eight (8) times during fisgaar 2006.

Asset/Liability Risk Committee. The Asset/Liability Risk Committee is composed aiiff directors who meet the independence criteria
established by the NYSE, the SEC, and the Cormoratindependence Principles for Directors. Unterterms of its charter the
Asset/Liability Risk Committee assists the Boardsnoversight of the Corporation’s policies andgedures related to asset and liability
management, including funds management, investmanagement and credit management. In doing s@dhamittee’s primary general
functions involve:

. The establishment of a process to enable thdifidation, assessment, and management of riskthdd affect the Corporation’s
assets and liabilitie:

. The identification of the Corporati’s risk tolerance levels related to its assets iafdities;

. The evaluation of the adequacy and effectivenéfise Corporation’s risk management process reletéhe Corporatios’ assets ar
liabilities, including manageme’s role in that proces

. The evaluation of the Corporation’s compliancéhits risk management process related to the Gatipn’s assets and liabilities;
and

. The approval of loans and other business mattdmswviog the lending authorities approved by the &b,
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The members of this Committee are Jorge Diaz-myzappointed Chairman in June 2006, José Menéf@detada, Sharee Ann Umpierre-
Catinchi, and José Teixidor-Méndez. The Asset/liigtiRisk Committee met a total of nine (9) timagithg fiscal year 2006.

Stockholder Communications with the Board

Any stockholder who desires to communicate with@oeporation’s Board may do so by writing to thea@man of the Board or to the non-
management Directors as a group in care of the@®#f the Corporate Secretary at the Corporatibe&lquarters, 1519 Ponce de Leén
Avenue, Santurce, Puerto Rico 00908 or by emalirectors@firstbankpr.comr thenetwork@firstbankpr.comCommunications may also
be made by calling the following toll-free hotlitelephone number:; 1-877-888-0002. Communicatiolase to accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters will beereéd to the Chair of the Audit Committee, commatians regarding other matters will be
directed to the General Counsel for his or her eropferral.

Code of Ethics

In November 2003, the Corporation adopted a Codg&thits for Senior Financial Officers (the “CodeThe Code which applies to the
Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Opénat Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accoung Officer, Comptroller, Executive
Vice Presidents and to all professional employadhke areas of finance, internal audit and tregsamgt members of the corporation’s risk
management council, states the principles to whéstior financial officers must adhere in orderdbia a manner consistent with the highest
moral and ethical standards. The Code imposesyatalatvoid conflicts of interest, comply with thes and regulations that apply to the
Corporation and its subsidiaries. Any waiver of gayt of the Code may be made only by the Audit @dttee and will be promptly disclos

to shareholders as required by the rules of the &kfthe NYSE. Neither the Audit Committee nor @eneral Counsel received any requ
for waivers under the Code in fiscal year 2006.

The Corporation has also adopted a Code of Ethatss applicable to all employees of the Corporatind all of its subsidiaries which
purports to strengthen the ethical culture thavaite in the Corporation. The Code of Ethics adsessamong other matters, conflicts of
interest, operational norms and confidentialitytef Corporation’s and its customers’ information.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires ourctlimss and executive officers, and persons who owrerthan ten percent of a registered
class of our equity securities, to file with theGHaitial reports of ownership and reports of chasih ownership of our common stock and
other equity securities. Officers, directors anelager than ten percent stockholders are requireé®B8y regulation to furnish us with copies of
all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of thges of such reports furnished to us and writegesentations that no other reports were
required, during the fiscal year ended DecembeRBQ6, all Section 16(a) filing requirements apglile to our officers, directors and greater
than ten percent stockholders were complied witbept as follows:
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Luis Beauchamp, Aurelio Aleman, Randolfo RiveracidaA. Pasarell, Emilio Martino, Cassan Panchand, lams Cabrera each filed one late
Form 4 relating to stock options granted in Jan28§6; Lawrence Odell filed a late Form 3 upon Ineiog a Section 16(a) reporting person,
which also reported, on a late basis, stock optipaated in connection with employment; Pedro Ramiiayda Rivera and Miguel Babilonia
each filed a late Form 3 upon their becoming Sact®&(a) reporting persons, which also reportedh tate basis, stock options granted in
January 2006.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&AEgdribes the objectives of the Corporation’s Exgeutompensation Program, the
process for determining executive officer compangsatnd the elements of the compensation for tp@ation’s President and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Chief Financial Offic§’CFQO”), and the next three highest paid executiffecers of the Corporation (the
“Named Executives”).

The Executive Compensation Program is administbyettie Compensation and Benefits Committee (tharigensation Committee”). The
Compensation Committee is responsibletifier oversight and determination of the proper galacentive compensation, honqualified ben:
and perquisites of the executive officers and kapleyees of the Corporation. To fulfill its respdikities and duties the Compensation
Committee reviews and recommends to the Boardrihaa goals and objectives relevant to the CEOeaatliates and recommends to the
Board the salaries, annual incentives awards amglterm incentives of the CEO, executive vice plesis and other selected executives of
the Corporation.

Executive Compensation Policy

The Corporation operates in a highly competitividuistry where the quality, creativity and profesaigsm of its executives are of utmost
importance to the success, profitability and groweftthe institution. The underlying philosophy b&tExecutive Compensation Program is to
attract and retain a highly qualified workforcetthall make significant contributions to the pronmt and achievement of the Corporation’s
goals, with a view to maximizing shareholder vakaeg to motivate high level of individual and grqugrformance and reward contributions
and achievement of strategic objectives underabpansibility of the executives. Accordingly, ther@oration has adopted a compensation
policy that is designed to recruit, retain and watt the best executive talent to deliver supefimrt term and long term performance to
stockholders. To support those goals, the Corpmradrovides it's Named Executives with a competitbase salary, a cash bonus, stock
option awards, and other fringe benefits. The tasius and stock awards, which are the variable ocoets of the compensation, are based
on the performance of the objectives
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assigned to the Named Executives. In 2006, variadmepensation accounted for approximately 70% ®fGEO’s total compensation and
approximately 50% to 60% for the other Named Exgest

Objectives of the Corporation’s Executive CompeiosalProgram:
. Attract and retain top executive
. Promote behavior that will lead to the attainmerthe Corporatio’s goals

. Provide a short term and long term variable campton structure aimed at rewarding performanatithmeasured against the
achievement of goals and management object

. Promote the alignment of interest with thosehef stockholders by providing a significant portafrthe executive compensation in
the form of stoc-based compensatio

For the year 2006, the Board set forth the follguimanagement key objectives:

. Recruit key corporate executives to strengtherréistructured management organization, retairckgyorate officers in the face of
potential adverse consequences to the Corporaguiting from a Restatement Process with respéts fmancial statements for
2004 and the corresponding filing of the CorporsiscAmended Annual Report restating years 2000-2082“Restatement
Proces”) and maintain high moral of the employees of thepBmtion in such circumstance

. Establish effective working relations with keynstituencies to enhance the impaired Corporatigpstation resulting from the
Restatement Process; i.e., regulators, rating &graredit counterparts, financial anal’ investors, clients and employe

. Create a strong enterprise risk management fumetid develop programs to remedy critical issmelscarrect material weaknesses
identified by management, regulatory agenciesrmateaudit and independent auditc

. Reduce credit risk concentration in connectiothwertain loans outstanding to two large mortgagginators in Puerto Rico to
levels acceptable to regulatory agencies and tgbriwithin parameters set forth in the policie®pted by the Corporatio

. Fulfill all directives and requirements imposadtbe various enforcement actions issued by thelaggrs upon the Corporation and
its banking subsidiarie

. Undertake steps towards satisfactorily resolgiggificant litigation brought against the Corpavatas a result of the Restatement
Process

. Undertake steps towards satisfactorily resolvifigranal investigation initiated by the SEC princiggbertaining to the accounting 1
certain mortgac-related transactions with two large mortgage odgprs in Puerto Rico during calendar years 1998uijiin 2005

. Initiate a process involving the raising of equigpital for the Corporatiol
. Successful completion of the Restatement Procdsbsthe filing of the Amended 2004 Form-K/A.

. Maintain the Corporation’s business componentgingoforward through the effective implementatidrkey business strategies to
grow the core business and retain existing clidating the period of potential adverse consequeandsmpaired reputation of the
Corporation.

. Sustain the Corporati’s market share goals in each business seg
Compensation Review Process

The Compensation Committee typically reviews artémheines executive compensation in January of gaah The Corporation’s President
and Chief Executive Officer, makes recommendattmrerning the amount of compensation to be awat@egecutive officers, excluding
himself, but does not participate in the Compensaiommittee’s deliberations or decisions. The Cemsption Committee reviews and
considers his recommendations and makes a finatrdatation, subject to the ratification of the Bidn making it's determinations, the
Compensation Committee reviews the Corporationtfopmance as a whole and the performance of theutixes as it relates to the
accomplishment of the goals and objectives seh flmrt management for the year, together with amhgyoals that have been established for
the relevant lines of business of the Corporafidre determinations in terms of accomplishmentsufirmately judgments based on the
Compensation Committee’s assessment of the yegpenfimimance of the Corporation against its anfinahcial and strategic objectives
established by the Board at the beginning of ttee,yend the level of responsibility and individpakformance of each executive. The
Compensation Committee, typically, also takes auosideration the performance of the Corporatiocoimparison with the performance of
other corporations in similar markets who provideikar financial services and products and exeeutiempensation at comparable
companies.
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During 2006, in lieu of the typical process, then@pensation Committee gave substantial weight t@tiéevement and/or progress made
towards the accomplishment of the key managemgatides mentioned above, in the final determinmatib management effectiveness. In
light of the Corporation’s extraordinary effortstivrespect to management’s work on the RestateRrectss and the legal and regulatory
matters affecting the Corporation, the Compensaliommittee in its deliberations and determinatigase substantial weight to the
significant time and effort employed by managemewards the resolutions of such adversities affigctie Corporation. Specifically, these
included: completion of the Restatement Processgldpment of a strong enterprise risk managemantdiwork; completion and delivery of
all items required by the Cease and Desist ordeéesed into with the FDIC, the Commissioner of Ficial Institutions of Puerto Rico and 1
Federal Reserve Bank of New York; defending agaestirities class action and shareholder derivatiieams, and working towards a
successful resolution thereof; cooperating witlE&€ $ormal investigation and undertaking a procesafsettlement of a potential
enforcement action in connection therewith; and m@mcing a process involving the raising of equépital for the Corporation to ensure its
compliance under the Bank Holding Company Act whiiuires that the Corporation serve as a sourfiaasicial strength to its banking
subsidiaries.

The following financial factors were also considene the evaluation of management overall effectéss: attainment of financial results
versus plan, overall effectiveness in the implemtoi of business strategies, market penetratidmaarket positioning, and adjusted asset
growth and adjusted earnings performance, amorey fdlstors.

Elements of Executive Compensation
The Corporation’s compensation program primarilgsists of the following components:
. Base salary
. Short term incentive- annual performance bonus
. Long term incentive— stocl-based compensation in the form of stock option tgrand
. Other compensatic
Base Salan

Base salary is the basic element of direct castpeosation, designed to attract and motivate highblified executives. In setting base
salary, the Compensation Committee takes into denziion the experience, skills, knowledge andarsjbilities required of the executive
and senior officers in their roles, and the Corgiorés performance. The Compensation Committee séeknaintain base salaries that are
competitive with the marketplace, to allow it tdratt and retain executive talent. Salaries forcaiee and senior officers are reviewed on an
annual basis as well as at the time of a promatiasther change in level of responsibilities.

Considering the financial performance of the Coagion and the large amounts of extraordinary exgenscurred during 2006 relating to the
regulatory and legal issues that the Corporatios faaing, the base salaries of the CEO, the Chpefr@ing Officer (“COQO”) and the
Executive Vice Presidents were not increased digd@h and have not been increased as of the détesdiling.

During 2006, the Corporation, because of the adiessaffecting it during the year, faced certdiralbenges which impacted the entities
ability to hire and retain employees and executiviéls the necessary skills and experience to exeextensive actions directed towards
improving corporate governance, greater transpgrdmngher quality of financial reporting, enhandetérnal control policies, programs and
processes, and the resolution of legal and regwlatttions. As part of the recruitment process,Gbeporation designed compensation
packages, which included, in some instances, gtegdmperformance bonuses, signing bonus and spicknaawards, all of which were
aimed to compensate the executives for the riskadfing their respective prior employers and/ofggsions. In meeting these objectives, the
Corporation entered into an employment agreemeiht béwrence Odell in February 2006 relating torei®ntion as Executive Vice Presid
and General Counsel of the Corporation and itsidisivees and at the same time entered into a ses\agreement with his law firm Martinez
Odell & Calabria (the “Law Firm”) in consideratiaf his employment with the Corporation. The sergiagreement provides for monthly
payments to the Law Firm of $60,000. Separatelgeunihe terms of his employment agreement, Mr. IIdekives a nominal base salary of
$100.00 a year and the opportunity to

102




Table of Contents

receive annual performance bonuses based upoghiavament of predetermined business objectiveadtiition, at the time of his
employment he received a stock options exercidabl&00,000 shares of common stock. The paymerderuhe services agreement with the
Law Firm have been taken into consideration in mheit@ng total compensation for identifying the Nadrexecutives. The employment
agreement has a four-year term with automatic @eg-gxtensions. The services agreement has a éaurtgrm.

Also, in July 2006, the Corporation entered intceamployment agreement with Fernando Scherrer mgladi his retention as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Cogtiam and its subsidiary FirstBank. Under the teaiisis employment agreement,

Mr. Scherrer receives a base salary of $700,008aa3nd a guaranteed bonus of $400,000 upon gtafiniversary of his employment.
Every year thereafter, Mr. Scherrer’'s performanmeus will be determined based upon his achievewfgmtedetermined business objectives.
In addition, Mr. Scherrer received stock optionereisable for 100,000 shares of common stock asigréng bonus of $200,000.

Short Term Annual Performance Bonuses

Generally, the annual cash bonus element of thpaZation’s Executive Compensation Program is desigo provide incentives for
executive officers on generating strong corpormancial performance and therefore seeks to liekpisyment of cash bonuses to the
achievement of key strategic, operational and fireperformance objectives. Other criteria, begidancial performance, may include
objectives and goals that may not involve actitras specifically and directly relate to financiahtters, but the resolutions of which would
necessarily protect the financial soundness oCiioration. The performance of the executive effiwas evaluated on the basis of the
Corporation’s achievement of the predeterminedrass objectives, such as the 2006 Management Kegtles detailed in the Executive
Compensation Policy section above and which audised in more detail below. The contributionsheféxecutive to the achievement of the
Corporation’s business objectives were evaluateth®yCompensation Committee to determine, at &isrdtion, the amount of the
performance bonus. The Compensation Committee mutasse a formula to calculate bonus payments.

During 2006, the Corporation placed emphasis onptiamce with various regulatory provisions and emdeamnent of the Corporationbverall
corporate governance and risk management. Notaithgtg the substantial progress realized duringyéae in accomplishing these
objectives, and considering the financial perforotaof the corporation and the large amounts ofextlinary expenses incurred during 2006
relating to the regulatory and legal issues thegp@@tion was facing, the Compensation Committeeagul the performance bonuses listed
in the Summary Compensation Table, which were eiguidose approved for 2005. Such bonuses consideté/idual performance given
certain milestones which included but were not tiaito:

. Strict adherence and completion of deliverabtesoinnection with the FDIC, the Commissioner ofdficial Institutions of Puerto
Rico, and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York wépect to the mortgage related Cease and Desist<

. A complete assessment of management’s compligithehe Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA”), a revamping b&tCorporation’s BSA
program, and substantial implementation of recontagons and action items required by the BSA CeaskDesist Orde

. Active negotiation towards a Memorandum of Underdilag for settlement of the Class Action Laws

. Dismissal of the Derivative Action Lawsu

. Active settlement negotiation with the EnforcemBittision of the SEC in connection with its formalestigation
. Completion of the Corporati’'s Amended Annual Report for the year ended Dece®ibe2004

. Substantial completion of the Corporation’s AnrRaport for the year ended December 31, 2005, wivias subsequently filed on
February 9, 2007

. Complete Corporate Governance Review and implertientaf changes in accordance with consultant renendations

. Revision of the Corporation’s risk managemengpam resulting in a realignment of risk managenfiemttions and the adoption of
an enterpris-wide risk management framewo

. Substantial reduction of the credit risk concatidn in connection with loans outstanding to tage mortgage originators in Puerto
Rico.

. Maintaining market leadership positioning in kesimess segment
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Long Term Equity Incentiy

Long term incentives were provided under the Exgeutompensation Program in the form of stock aygtionder the Corporation’s 1997
Stock Option Plan. The 1997 Stock Option Plan {1897 Plan”) was effective through January 21, 2G0&vhich time it expired. Under the
1997 Plan, the Compensation Committee had discrétiselect which of the eligible persons wouldybented stock options, whether stock
appreciation rights would be granted with suchapj and generally to determine the terms and tondiof such options in accordance v
the provisions of the 1997 Plan. Under the 1997 Riations are granted at a price not less thafaihenarket value of the stock at the dat
grant. Accordingly, all options have been awardetthe market value of the Corporation’s common lstare the date of grant. The options are
fully vested upon grant. The purpose of the 19%h Rlas to further the success of the Corporatiohnitarsubsidiaries by enabling executive
officers to maintain an equity interest in the Gogtion, which aligns their compensation with thareholders’ interest. The Corporation
makes initial grants of options to new executiweguickly align their interests.

In determining equity awards to the executivesdf® the Compensation Committee, based on reconatiend submitted by the CEO, took
into account the executiveposition and scope of responsibility, abilityaftect profitability and shareholder value, the@oplishment of thi
goals and objectives set forth by the Corporatieoent job performance, and the value of the equitgrd in relation to other compensation
elements. The Compensation Committee in grantiagetjuity awards to executives in 2006 placed greaht in the accomplishment and
progress made by management towards the resobftittie adversities facing the Corporation durin@2@nd 2006 that included substantial
legal actions against the Corporation, severalleggry enforcement actions and the RestatemeneBsod he Corporation does not have a
practice of coordinating the timing of stock optigmrants with the release of material, nonpublioiinfation. Management has no intervention
or role with respect to the timing of stock optimmards. During 2006, the equity awards were graimeadcordance with the Corporation’s
historical practice of granting equity awards te@xtives and other management personnel at thariagiof each year. Further, the amounts
were consistent with those granted in prior years.

Other Compensation

The use of personal benefits and perquisites aeament of compensation is extremely limited. Unal@rcurrent plan, Named Executives
provided with a corporate-owned automobile, clubmherships and participation in the same corporatiee-wlans and programs available to
other employees such as the 401(k) plan (inclu@iagoration’s match), group medical and dental pléong term and short term disability,
health care, and group life insurance. The Corporaiffers to all executive officers a life insucanpolicy of $1,000,000 ($500,000 in excess
of other employees). In addition, the CEO is predighersonal security solely for business purposes.

In 2007, the Compensation Committee retained Meficenan Resources Consulting to provide servicemagpensation consultants. Mercer
will perform an executive compensation review whittludes a market competitiveness study, a papdoiormance assessment, and will
assist the Compensation Committee in developingwagompensation program for the Corporation’s marnamnt.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed the Comafien®Discussion and Analysis and discussed it mi#imagement. Based on its
review and discussions with management, the ConapiensCommittee recommended to our Board of Dinectioat the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in the Corpona Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2006. This oepis provided by the following
independent directors, who comprise the committee:

Sharee Ann Umpierre-Catinchi (Chairperson)
Richard Reiss
José Teixidor
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TABULAR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION DISCLOSURE
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The Summary Compensation Table set forth belowlaises compensation for the Chief Executive OffiéGrief Financial Officer and the
next three highest paid executive officers of tleegOration, FirstBank or its subsidiaries.

Change in
Pension Value
and Nonqualified
Non-Equity Deferred
Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensatior Earnings Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year ($) (d) ($) (e) ($) ($) (f) ($) ($) ($) (9) 3)

Luis Beaucham 200¢€ 1,000,001 852,20( — 1,595,67 — — 77,34( 3,625,211
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Office

Aurelio Aleméan 200¢€ 750,00( 602,20( — 683,86 — — 36,82« 2,072,88!
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Office

Fernando Scherrer ( 200¢ 290,76¢ 202,20( — 288,00( — — 22,18( 803,14¢
Executive Vice President and
Chief Fiancial Officel

Lawrence Odell (b 200¢ 630,10( 402,20( — 459,00( — —_ 8,50¢ 1,499,80!
Executive Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary of

Board of Director:

Randolfo Rivere 200¢€ 550,00( 402,20( — 341,93: — — 31,65¢ 1,325,78
Executive Vice President and

Corporate Banking Operations

Executive

Luis Cabrera (c 200¢€ 409,84t 225,00( — 227,95: — — 614,47 1,477,27.
Former Executive Vice President,

Interim Chief

Financial Officer and Chief

Investment Office

(@) Fernando Scherrer was hired in July 2006efmployment agreement stipulates a base salany kefss than $700,000 a year and a
guaranteed bonus of $400,000 upon the first ansdvgrof his employment. In addition, Mr. Scherrexeaived a signing bonus of
$200,000 which is included in the bonus sectiothefSummary Compensation Table and stock optioescable for 100,000 shares
common stock

(b) As discussed in more detail in the Compenadiisclosure and Analysis section, in February®2®de Corporation entered into an
employment agreement with Lawrence Odell and asdime time entered into a services agreement vgitlalv firm Martinez Odell &

Calabria relating to the services of Mr. Odell ag&utive Vice President and General Counsel ofxhigoration. Mr. Odell received a

nominal base salary of $100.00 a year and the tppiby to receive annual performance bonus based hjs achievement of

predetermined business objectives. In additiomeheived a stock option exercisable for 100,000eshaf common stock. The services

agreement provides for monthly payments to the Eam of $60,000 which has been taken into consiéeran determining Mr. Odell
salary and has been included as such in the Sum@manpensation Tabl

(c) Mr. Luis Cabrera resigned as Chief Investni@fficer and Executive Vice President on August2006. He ceased being Interim Chief

Financial Officer on July 18, 2006. Pursuant taagreement with the Corporation, Mr. Cabrera reckimenthly payments, based on
yearly salary of $480,000, through September 30620pon his separation from the Corporation, leeikeed a lump sum payme

consisting of (i) a pro rata bonus of $225,000s kejuired deductions, (ii) a severance paymefiB8,860, less required deductions,

(iii) a second severance payment of $286,140 angéyment for unused vacation days of $50,
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(d) Includes regular base pay before deductions fo6z

() Includes the Christmas bonus paid during 20@6performance bonus payments granted duringetimgeof the Compensation
Committee held in January 2007, which were meacbagpensation for performance of the Named Exeesitiluring fiscal year 2006
under the Executive Compensation Program as disdusghe Compensation Discussion and Analysisae

() The assumptions made when calculating theuantsain this column for 2006 awards are found ine\2D of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Corporation on this Form 10-KAa06. The Corporation uses the Black/Scholes ngticcing model to value stock
options. The fair value of the stock options apjmepin the Summary Compensation Table were caledlat accordance with
December 2006 SEC regulations. The regulationsinedisclosure of the cost of equity awards if cemgation expense was recorded
in the income statement of the employer for eacih swvard in 2006, as required by the applicableaaiing rule (SFAS 123(R)). The
amounts disclosed in the Summary Compensation Tabléhe same as the amounts reported in finastagdments

(g) Setforth below is a breakdown of all other Comp¢ios (i.e., personal benefits

Company-
owned 1165(e) Plan Memberships Pursuant to

Vehicles Contribution Security & Dues Agreement Other Total
Name and Principal Position Year (%) (%) (& ($) ($) (%) ($) (b) $)
Luis Beaucham 200¢€ 16,86: 5,78 41,61: 8,78( — 4,30z 77,34(
Aurelio Aleman 200¢ 16,19: 5,60( — 9,53( — 5,50z 36,82«
Fernando Scherrt 200¢ 7,05¢ — — 10,85( — 4,27 22,18(
Lawrence Odel 200¢ 2,31 — — — — 6,192 8,50¢
Randolfo Riverz 200¢€ 16,73¢ 5,60( — 6,08( — 3,24( 31,65¢
Luis Cabrer: 200¢ 11,30% 18t — — 600,00( 2,98( 614,47.

(@) Includes the Corporatic's prc-rata contribution to the execut’s participation in the Defined Contribution Retiremh Plan

(b) Other compensation includes life insurandé&cp@remium paid by the Corporation in excess 59&,000 available to all employees and
expenses incurred by the Corporation for family roera who accompanied the executive in employerssed activities. None of
these benefits individually exceed $10,0

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The table set forth below discloses the informatigearding the stock options granted to the Cotmora Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and the three most highly paié@&xtives during 2006.
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All All

Other Other Exercise Grant

Stock Option or Date

Awards: Awards: Base Fair

Estimated Estimated Number Number Price Market Value

Possible Payout: Possible Payout: of Shares of for Price on of Stock

Under Non-Equity Under Equity of Securities Options Grant and

Grant Incentive Plan Awards() Incentive Plan Awards() stock or Underlying Awards Date Option
Name Date Threshold($) Target($) Maxium($) Threshold(#) Target(#) Maxium(#) units (#) Options(#) ($/SH) _ ($/SH) (a) Awards (b)

Luis Beaucham| 1/24/2001 — — — — — — — 350,00( 12.6¢ 12.6¢ 1,595,67
Aurelio Aleman 1/24/200t — — — — — — — 150,00( 12.6¢ 12.6¢ 683,86
Fernando Scherre 7/24/2001 — — — — — — — 100,00( 9.2C 9.2C 288,00(
Lawrence Odel 2/15/200¢ — — — — — — — 100,00¢ 12.6¢ 12.6¢ 459,00(
Randolfo Rivera 1/24/200t — — — — — — — 75,000 12.6¢ 12.6¢ 341,93:
Luis Cabrere 1/24/200t — — — — — — — 50,00(¢ 12.6¢ 12.6¢ 227,95«

(&) Each option provides for the purchase ofsivege of common stock at a price not less thafeihenarket value of the stock on the date
the option is granted. All options were grantethatclosing market price of the Corporation’s comrstock on the day of the grant.
Stock options are fully vested upon issuance. Thgimum term to exercise the options is ten ye

(b) The assumptions made when calculating theuatsan this column for 2006 awards are found ine\2D of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Corporation on this Form 10-K2@a06. The date in which the Compensation Commgtaated the option award is
the grant date determined in accordance with FARRR

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END

The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to the unexercised options awardedgmamed executives as of December 31,
2006.
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OptionAwards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive Equity
Plan Incentive
Equity Awards: Plan
Incentive Number of Awards:
Plan Unearned Market or
Awards: Shares, Payout
Number Number Unit or Value of
Number of of Number Other Unearned
of Securities Securities of Rights Shares,
Securities Underlying Underlying Shares Market Value that that
Underlying Unexercised Unexercisec or Units of Shares or have have
Options Options Unearned Option Option of Stock Units of Stock not not
#) #) Options Exercise Expiration that have that have Vested Vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (#) Price($) Date not vested not vested (#) $)
Luis Beaucham 54,00( — — 8.67 11/17/200: — — — —
90,00( — — 7.44 12/13/2011 — — — —
96,00( — — 9.34 2/26/201. — — — —
64,00( — — 12.81 2/25/201: — — — —
76,80( = = 21.4¢ 2/20/201- = = = =
76,80( — — 23.92 2/22/201! — — — —
350,00( — — 12.6¢ 1/24/201¢ — — — —
Aurelio Alemén 36,00( — — 8.67 11/17/200: — — — —
36,00( — — 6.54 11/23/200! — — — —
78,00( — — 7.4 12/13/201 — — — —
90,00( = = 9.34 2/26/201: = = = =
60,00( — — 12.81 2/25/201: — — — —
72,00( — — 21.4% 2/20/201« — — — —
72,00( — — 23.9¢ 2/22/201! — — — —
150,00( = = 12.6¢ 1/24/201t = = = =
Fernando Scherrt 100,00( — — 9.2 7/24/201¢ — — — —
Lawrence Odel 100,00( — — 12.64 2/15/201¢ — — — —
Randolfo Rivere 120,00( — — 9.0¢ 5/26/200¢ — — — —
2,11( — — 7.44 12/13/2011 — — — —
60,00( — — 9.34 2/26/201: — — — —
50,00( = = 12.81] 2/25/201: = = = =
60,00( — — 21.4% 2/20/201« — — — —
60,00( = = 23.9¢ 2/22/201! = = = =
75,00( — — 12.6¢ 1/24/201t — — — —

OPTIONS EXERCISED AND STOCK VESTED TABLE

During 2006, no stock options were exercised byndmred executive mainly as a result of a blackpeuiod which is in effect since the end
of 2005.

PENSION BENEFITS

The Corporation does not have a defined benefieosion plan in place for executive officers.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
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The Corporation provides a Defined ContributioniRetent Plan pursuant to Section 1165(e) of PuRito Internal Revenue Code
(“PRIRC") for Puerto Rico employees and a Definathtibution Retirement Plan pursuant to Section(49df the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code for U.S.V.l. and U.S. employees, which prosigarticipating employees with retirement, deaibalility and termination of
employment benefits in accordance with their pgoéiton. The Defined Contribution Retirement Planmplies with the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amer{tleERISA”) and the Retirement Equity Act of 1984, @sended (“REA”). The
Corporation’s employees are eligible to particigatthe Defined Contribution Retirement Plan atempleting one year of service, and there
is no age requirement. An individual account isnteined for each participant and benefits are pa&kd solely on the amount of each
participant’s account.

Participating employees may defer from 1% to 10%hefr annual salary, up to a maximum of $8,000Pfeerto Rico participants and
$15,000 for U.S.V.l. and U.S patrticipants, into Befined Contribution Retirement Plan on a preHasis as employee salary savings
contributions. Each year the Corporation will makeontribution equal to 25% of each participatingpyee’s salary savings contribution;
however, no match is provided for salary saving#riloutions in excess of 4% of compensation. Atehd of the fiscal year, the Corporation
may, but is not obligated to make, additional cbutions in an amount determined by the Board; harehe maximum of any additional
contribution in any year may not exceed 15% oftthial compensation of all eligible employees p#stiting in the Defined Contribution
Retirement Plan and no basic monthly or additi@maual matches need be made on years during wigedBdrporation incurs a loss.

In fiscal year 2006, the total contribution to fbefined Contribution Retirement Plans by the Coation amounted to $952,546 which funds
were distributed on a pro rata basis among aligypating employees. The table below sets forthttitel of the Corporation’s contribution
during fiscal year 2006 to the Named ExecutivethefCorporation who participate in the Defined Cinition Retirement Plan.

Corporate
Name Contribution
Luis M. Beaucham| $5,78:
Aurelio Alemén $5,60(
Randolfo River: $5,60(
Luis Cabrer: $ 18t

NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Deferred Compensation Plan is an unfunded ef@ompensation arrangement available to a sgleap of management or highly
compensated personnel whereby the personnel ertitlgarticipate may elect to do so by executingnaividual Deferred Compensation
Agreement (the “Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreenthe participant may defer a portion of histt@npensation to be earned from the
date in which the Agreement is executed. Thesemefamounts, if any, are included in the amourgslased in the Summary Compensal
Table. The Corporation does not match any of therted amounts. The deferred amounts are depasi@drust that is administered by
FirstBank. Investments by the Trust may be mad#doks, bonds or other securities. The income sgail losses both realized and
unrealized from investments made by the Trustphany expenses properly chargeable, shall berd@ted annually at the close of each y
and allocated among the accounts of the participantroportion to the values of their respectigatingent future benefits. The Corporation
does not guarantee a return on the investmenesetfunds. Payment of the amount allocated totaipant shall be deferred until such
participants retirement, resignation, disabilitydeath, or in the event of unforeseeable emergenngcessity.

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate

Contribution Contribution Earnings Withdrawals/ Balance at

Name in last FY($) in last FY($) in last FY($) Distributions ($)(a) Last FYE($)
Luis Beaucham — — 25,20¢ 46,21 883,87:
Aurelio Aleméan — — 33,55¢ 41,81¢ 793,99:

(&) Withdrawals from the plan assets are purstmaAtt 250 of November 29, 2006 which amends tRER to allow through
December 31, 2006"“window perio’ within which taxpayers may elect
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prepay a 5% special tax on amounts held inrcetfecompensation plans. Act 250 allowed distritmgifrom the deferred compensation
plan for the sole purpose of satisfying the 5% &heax.

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS, TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND  CHANGE IN CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

Employment Agreements

The following table discloses information redjag the employment agreements of the Named Eixersut

Name Effective Date Current Base Salal Term of Year
Luis M. Beaucham 5/14/199¢ $1,000,00! 4
Aurelio Aleméan 2/24/199¢ $ 750,00( 4
Randolfo River: 5/26/199¢ $ 550,00( 4
Lawrence Odel 2/15/200¢ $ 720,10( 4
Fernando Scherr 7/24/200¢ $ 700,00( 1

The agreements provide that on each anniversaheadate of commencement of each agreement theofesoth agreement shall be
automatically extended for an additional one (1gryeeriod beyond the then-effective expiration datdess either party receives written
notice that the agreement shall not be furtherneed.

Under the employment agreements, the Board mayirtatenthe contracting officer at any time; howeweiless such termination is for cause,
the contracting officer will be entitled to a semece payment of four years his/her base salang (&slary defined as $450,000 in the case of
Lawrence Odell), less all required deductions aitdheldings, which payment shall be made semi-migraker a period of one year, except
under Fernando Scherrer's employment agreemeng therseverance payment shall equal the annuakbésg, plus the guaranteed bonus
upon his first anniversary of $400,000. In relasi¢a a termination for cause, “Causg'tlefined to include personal dishonesty, incorpes
willful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, intiéonal failure to perform stated duties, materialation of any law, rule or regulation (other
than traffic violations or similar offenses) ordircease and desist order or any material breaahyoprovision of the employment agreement.

In the event of a “change in control” of the Comutazn during the term of the employment agreemehésexecutive shall be entitled to
receive a lump sum severance payment equal ta hisrahen current base annual salary (base séddiryed as $450,000 in the case of
Lawrence Odell) plus (i) the highest cash perforoeanonus received by the executive in any of the () fiscal years prior to the date of-
change in control and (i) the value of any othenéfits provided to the executive during the yearhich the change in control occurs,
multiplied by four (4), except for Fernando Schemsich would receive as severance a lump sum pagiment equal to the annual base
compensation plus the guaranteed bonus of $400J@dtination of employment is not a requirementdahange in control severance
payment. Pursuant to the employment agreementhamfje in control” shall be deemed to have takaoepif a third person, including a
group as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934, as amended, becomestigfibial owner of shares of the
Corporation having 25% or more of the total numiferotes which may be cast for the election of ctives of the Corporation, or which, by
cumulative voting, if permitted by the Corporatisiharter or byaws, would enable such third person to elect 25%are of the directors
the Corporation; or if, as a result of, or in coctien with, any cash tender or exchange offer, meay other business combination, sales of
assets or contested election, or any combinatidgheoforegoing transactions, the persons who wieeetdrs of the Corporation before such
transactions shall cease to constitute a majofitii@Board of the Corporation or any successdituimn.

The following table describes and quantifies thedfiés and compensation to which the Named Exeestivould have been entitled to under
existing plans and arrangements if their employnhewtterminated on December 31, 2006, based onchipensation and services on that
date. The amounts shown on the table do not inghagenents and benefits available generally to malaamployees upon termination of
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employment, such as accrued vacation pay, distoibditom the 401(K) plan, or any death, disabibtitypost retirement welfare benefits
available under broad-based employee plans.

Death, Disability, Termination Non-
Without Cause, Termination With Qualified Disability Insurance
Name Cause and Change in contro Severance ($ Plans ($) (c) Benefits ($) Benefit ($) Total ($)
Luis Beaucham Death (a) — 883,87: — 500,00( 1,383,87:
Permanent Disability (k — 883,87: 2,400,001 — 3,283,87.
Termination without caus 4,000,001 883,87: — — 4,883,87.
Termination with caus — 883,87: — — 883,87:
Change in Contrc 7,709,36! 883,87 — — 8,593,23:
Aurelio Aleman Death (a) — 793,99: — 500,00t 1,293,99
Permanent Disability (k — 793,99: 1,800,001 — 2,593,99
Termination without caus 3,000,00! 793,99: — — 3,793,99
Termination with caus — 793,99: — — 793,99:
Change in Contrc 5,547,291 793,99: — — 6,341,28
Fernando Scherr¢ Death (a) — — — 500,00( 500,00(
Permanent Disability (k — — 420,00( — 420,00(
Termination without caus 1,100,001 — — — 1,100,00t
Termination with caus — — — — —
Change in Contrc 1,100,001 — — — 1,100,001
Lawrence Odel Death (a) — — — 500,00t 500,00¢(
Permanent Disability (k — — 1,728,241 — 1,728,241
Termination without caus 1,800,001 — — — 1,800,00t
Termination with caus — — — — —
Change in Contrc 3,434,022 — — — 3,434,021
Randolfo Rivere Death (a) — — — 500,00( 500,00(
Permanent Disability (k — — 1,320,001 — 1,320,00t
Termination without caus 2,200,00! — — — 2,200,00!
Termination with caus — — — — —
Change in Contrc 3,926,62: — — — 3,926,62.

(@ Amount includes life insurance benefits in excesthose amounts available generally to other engse)

(b) If the executive shall become disabled oapacitated for a number of consecutive days exngedtibse the executive is entitled as sick-
leave and it is determined that the executive edglitinue to temporarily be unable to perform histhgties, the executive shall receive
60% of his/her compensation exclusive of any otferefits entitled to receive under the corporatgevglans and programs available to
other employees. If it is determined that the ekgels permanently disabled, the executive slelkive 60% of his/her compensation
for the remaining term of the employment agreememé executive shall be considered “permanentlghdest” if absent due to physical
or mental illness on a full tin-time basis for three consecutive mon

(c) The Nonqualified Plan includes the accumulatedrizsdaf the deferred compensation plan as of DeceBihe2006 as applicable for 1
Named Executive

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTI CIPATION

The Corporation’s Compensation Committee consistirectors Sharee Ann Umpierre-Catinchi, appoir@dirman in August 2006,
Richard Reiss-Huyke and Jose Teixidor-Méndez. Nrike current members, nor the members duringlfigear 2006, has served as an
officer of, or been an employee of, the CorporatiinstBank or a subsidiary of the Corporation bFisstBank. No Executive Officer of the
Corporation serves on any board of directors orgmmsation committee of any entity that compensatgamember of the Compensation
Committee. Other than disclosed in the Certain tRelahips and Related Transactions and Directogprddence section under Item 13 of
this 2006 Form 10-K, none of the members of the @amsation Committee had any relationship with tbgp@ration requiring disclosure
under Item 404 of the SEC Regulation S-K.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Non-employee directors of the Corporation do not neeeiompensation for meetings of the Board of thep@ation when these are held in
conjunction with meetings of the Board of Directofd-irstBank. Directors who are also officers o {Corporation, of FirstBank or of any
other subsidiaries do not receive
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fees or other compensation for service on the Boathle Corporation, the Board of Directors of Ea@nk, the Board of Directors of the
subsidiaries or any of their committees. Accordmglis Beauchamp and Aurelio Aleman are not inellich this table because they were
employees during 2006 and therefore received ngeosation for their services as a director. Theppmmation set forth in the table is based
on the following schedule of fees for 2006 comp#nraof non-employee directors:

. Meeting Fees. During 2006, each -employee director received $1,400 for each reguketing attende

. Compensation and Benefits Committee and AssdiilitiaRisk Committee. During 2006, each non-em@eydirector received $650
for each regular meeting attend

. Audit Committee. During 2006, each director recdi$d,050 for each regular meeting attent

. As part of the Audit Committee’s investigatioestin independent directors of the Board of Dwextctively engaged in activities
related to said investigation. As a result, the @ensation and Benefits Committee, in September 28@&oved the payment of
additional fees in an amount equal to $250 per fanuthese independent directors in order to corspenthem for the additional
work and time incurred by them in said investigat

In January 2007, the Board of Directors approvethearease in fees to the members of the Board efeeEebruary 2007. Fees increased as
follows:

. Meeting Fees. Currently, each -employee director receives $1,750 for each regukating attendec

. Compensation and Benefits Committee and AssdiilitiaRisk Committee. Currently, each non-employiector receives $1,200
for each regular meeting attend

. Audit Committee. Currently, each director recei$&s500 for each regular meeting attenc

The Corporation reimburses the Board member feetrdodging and other reasonable out-of-pockeeesps in connection with attendance
at board and committee meetings or performing adberices for the Corporation in their capacitiesi@mectors.

The following table sets forth fees paid to non-tyee directors for their attendance at meetinge®Board and committees during fiscal
year 2006, as well as the additional fees paitiéccertain independent directors for the additievak and time incurred by them as par
the Audit Committee’s investigation:

Fees Nonqualified
Earned or Non -Equity Deferred
Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan  Compensation All Other
Name Cash ($) Awards ($) Awards ($) Compensation ($  Earnings ($) Compensation ($) (b) Total ($)
Jo« Teixido-Méndez 44,75( — — — — — 44,75(
José Julian Alvarez-Bracero

€)) 11,75( — — — — — 11,75(
Jorge Liaz-Irizarry 60,70( — — — — 3,22 63,92:
Jo« Ferre-Canals 80,80( — — — — 41,38¢ 122,18t
Sharee Ann Umpierre-

Catinchi 54,65( — — — — 3,22: 57,87
Richard Reis-Huyke 75,05( — — — — 40,62¢ 115,67
Jo« Menénde:-Cortads 58,85( — — — — 25,19¢ 84,04¢
Fernando Rodguez-Amaro 81,80( — — — — — 81,80(

(@) Jos«JulianAlvarezBracero resigned as director of the Corporatioaatife March 31, 200¢

(b) All other compensation includes: (1) addiibfees paid to certain independent directorsHeradditional work and time incurred by
them as part of the Audit Committee’s investigatitatailed as follows; José Ferrer-Canals — $24,Ri¢hard Reiss-Huyke —
$40,625, and José Menéndez-Cortada — $21,976;d2panembership in the case of José Ferrer-Caaads(3) expenses incurred by
the Corporation for family members who accompatieddirectors in Board related activitis

PERFORMANCE OF FIRST BANCORP COMMON STOCK

The stock performance graph set forth below congpiire cumulative total stockholder return of thegooation’s common stock from
December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2006, with cutiweléotal return of the S&P 500 Market Index. T®&P 500 Market Index is a broad
index that includes a wide variety of
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issuers and industries representative of a cragmneeof the market. The S&P Supercomposite Bankigx is a capitalization-weighted index
that is composed of 96 members.

PERFORMANCE OF FIRST BANCORF'S
COMMOMN STOCK BASED ON TOTAL RETURN

$50 4 I I I |
1273172001 1273112002 1203112003 1203112004 1203112005 12/31/2008
[ First Bank — — S&P 500 - - - -S&P Supercom Banks Index |
12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 12/31/2006
First Bank $10C $121 $21E $34¢ $13¢ $10¢
S&P500 $10C $ 78 $10C $111 $117 $13E
S&P Supercom Banks Indk $10C $10C $12¢ $147 $14¢ $167

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIES

The following sets forth information concerning gems who beneficially own 5% or more of the Corgioras issued and outstanding
common stock and is derived solely from Schedul&&&nd a Form 4 that were submitted to the SEQatite Corporation.

Beneficial Owners of 5% or More
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Name and Addres Number of Share Percentag

FMR Corp. 8,038,80((a) 9.6€6%
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 0210¢

Angel Alvare:-Pérez 7,308,91i(b) 8.7&%
Condominio Plaza Stella Apt.1504

Avenida Magdalena 1362

San Juan, Puerto Rico 009

Barclays Global Investors, N 4,397,41(c) 5.2&%
45 Fremont Street
San Francisco, CA 941(

Schneider Capital Management Corpora 4,540,10((d) 5.45%
460 E. Swedesford Rd., Suite 2000
Wayne, PA 1908

(@)

(b)
(©

(d)

Based solely on a Schedule 13G/A filed wlith 8EC on February 14, 2007, FMR Corp. reportedeagdge beneficial ownership of
approximately 9.66% or 8,038,800 shares of the @atn as of December 31, 2006. FMR Corp. repdfiatlit possessed sole voting
power over 14,800 shares and sole dispositive powar 8,038,800 shares. FMR Corp. also reportedttdad not possess shared vol
or shared dispositive power over any shares baakfiowned.

Based solely on a Form 4 filed with the SECApril 3, 2006 by Mr. Angel Alvarez Pérez, whichthe most recent filing of the
reporting person known to the Corporation as of Kay2007

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed with®EC on January 23, 2007, Barclays Global InvesiA and certain of its affiliates
reported aggregate beneficial ownership of apprateéty 5.28% or 4,397,412 shares of the Corporatsaf December 31, 2006.
Barclays Global Investors, NA and certain of ifiliates reported that it possessed sole votinggraawver 4,114,549 shares and sole
dispositive power over 4,397,412 shares. Barcldgb#@ Investors, NA and certain of its affiliatds@reported that it did not possess
shared voting or shared dispositive power oversirares beneficially owne

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed with8B€ on February 12, 2007, Schneider Capital Managé Corporation reported
aggregate beneficial ownership of approximatelp%sr 4,540,100 shares of the Corporation as oEBéer 31, 2006. Schneider
Capital Management Corporation reported that ispesed sole voting power over 3,060,825 sharesaadlispositive power over
4,540,100 shares. Schneider Capital Managemeno@aipn also reported that it did not possess shawéing or shared dispositive
power over any shares beneficially own

Beneficial Ownership by Directors or Nominees

The following table sets forth information with ag to the total number of shares of the Corpan&ioommon stock beneficially owned, as
of May 31, 2007, by (i) each current member ofBloard of Directors, (ii) each nominee to the Boair@directors, (iii) each current executive
officer, and (iv) all current directors and exeuatbfficers as a group. Information regarding teaddicial ownership by executive officers
directors is derived from information submittedtie Corporation by such executive officers andadies.
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Name Number of Shares (: Percentag
Directors:

Luis M. Beauchamp, Chairman, President & C 2,231,67.(b) 2.68%
Aurelio Aleman, COO & Senior Executive V 794,00((c) *
Jos Teixidor 120,74( *
Jorge L. [iaz 23,66((d) *
Jo« Ferre-Canals 50C *
Richard Reis-Huyke — *
Sharee Ann Umpier-Catinchi 75,50((e) *
Jo« Menénde:- Cortada 15,364f) *
Fernando Rodgue-Amaro 5,25( *
Executive Officers: *
Fernando Scherrer, CFO & Executive 175,00((g) *
Lawrence Odell, General Counsel, Secretary & Exee P 175,00((h) *
Dacio Pasarell, Executive Vv 126,00((i) *
Randolfo Rivera, Executive V 518,45((j) *
Emilio Marting, Chief Credit Officer & Executive VI 68,32(Kk) *
Cassan Pancham, Executive 113,18() *
Nayda River-Batista, Chief Risk Officer & Senior V 70,36¢m) *
Miguel Babilonia, Chief Credit Risk Officer & Semi®'P 28,00((n) *
Pedro Romero, Chief Accounting Officer and Seniér 35,09:(0) *
Victor Barreras, Treasurer & Senior 70,00((p) *
Current Directors and Executive Officers as a gt 4,646,10 5.58%
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*

(@)

(b)
(©
(d)
(€)

(f)

(9)
(h)
(i)

)

(K)
0]

(m)
(n)
(0)
(9)

Represents less than 1

The options to purchase shares held by thecfoirs and Executive Officers cannot be exeraiseillthe Corporation is up to date with
all of its securities filings

Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarpurchase 1,157,600 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtanurchase 744,000 shar
Includes 22,460 shares owned by the spouse of iaz to which Mr. [iaz disclaims beneficial ownersh

Includes 9,000 shares owned jointly with $gouse. Excludes 2,091,070 shares owned by Ms. étrapCatinchi’s father and former
director, Angel L. Umpierre, to which Ms. Umpie-Catinchi disclaims ownershi

Includes 550 shares owned by Martinez-AlvaMenéndez-Cortada & Lefranc Romero, PSC of whichMenéndez-Cortada is an
indirect beneficial ownel

These are options, which are exercisable upon g@purchase 175,000 shar
These are options, which are exercisable upon g@purchase 175,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarurchase 96,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtanturchase 502,110 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarurchase 68,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtanturchase 110,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtamturchase 70,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarpiurchase 28,000 shal
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarurchase 35,000 shar
Includes options, which are exercisable upon gtarurchase 70,000 shar

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about gexurities authorized for issuance under the Catmors Equity Compensation Plan:
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(A) (B) ©)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities Future Issuance Under
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Outstanding Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding Securities
Plan category Options Outstanding Options Reflected in Column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholc
Stock option plan 3,024,411 $13.9¢ 1,856,26
Sut-total 3,024,41i $13.9¢ 1,856,26
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre N/A N/A N/A
Total 3,024,41i $13.9¢ 1,856,26

(@ The 1997 Plan expired on January 21, 200theol,856,267 options available for future iss@aamicDecember 31, 2006, 1,170,000
options were granted before expiration of the 191an.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FIRSTBANK OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OR DIRECTORS

The Corporation reviews all transactions and retesips in which the Corporation and its directord executive officers or their immediate
family members are participants to determine whetheh persons have a direct or indirect matemiakést. In addition, the Corporation’s
Corporate Governance Standards and Code of Etic&ehior Financial Officers require our direct@secutive officers and principal
financial officers to report to the Board or thedtuCommittee any situation that could be perceiasa conflict of interest. In addition,
applicable law and regulations require that alhkar extensions of credit to executive officerd dimrectors must be made in the ordinary
course of business on substantially the same ténelading interest rates and collateral, as thweailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons (unless the loaxtnsion of credit is made under a benefit progganerally available to all employees and
does not give preference to any insider over ahgradmployee) and must not involve more than threnabrisk of repayment or present other
unfavorable features. All loans to directors, exiveuofficers and their related interest are regghito be approved by the Board where the
aggregate amount loaned exceeds the greater dikR26r 5% of FirstBank’s unimpaired surplus. Loand aggregate loans of $500,000 or
greater are also reviewed and approved by the Bparduant to Regulation O of the Federal Resenard

During fiscal year 2006, directors and officers aedsons or entities related to such directorsadfickrs were customers of and had
transactions with the Corporation and/or its subsiels. All such transactions, except for the asegsforth below, were made in the ordinary
course of business on substantially the same ténelading interest rates and collateral, as thweailing at the time they were made for
comparable transactions with other persons whoetresiders, and did not either involve more tttenormal risk of uncollectibility or
present other unfavorable features:

» Lawrence Odell is a partner at Martinez Odell &abaia (the “Law Firm”). During 2006, the Corporatientered into a Services
Agreement, approved by the Board, see Exhibit 48d10.5 to the 2006 Form XQ-with the Law Firm effective as of February 1508 anc
amended on February 24, 2006 pursuant to whiajréesl to pay to the Law Firm $60,000 per monthepkéor the payment to be made in
February 2006 which was for $30,000, as considmrdtr the services rendered to the Corporatiohdwrence Odell. The Services
Agreement has a term of four years unless eadrenihated. The Corporation has also hired the Lem Eo be the corporate and regulatory
counsel to it and FirstBank. In 2006, the Corporapaid $1,242,823 to the Law Firm for its legakgzes and $630,000 to the Law Firm in
accordance with the terms of the Services Agreement

» Fernando Scherrer was the Managing Partner and éfefddit and Consulting Practices of Scherrer Heez & Co. (“Scherrer
Hernandez”) until July 23, 2006. During fiscal y@&06 through July 24, 2006, Scherrer Hernandevighed accounting services to the
Corporation in the aggregate amount of $502,972.

Information about the directors’ independence @®iporated by reference from Item 11, “Corporate&nance and Related Matters-
Independence of the Board of Directors”.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Total fees paid to the external auditors far years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, wes83$798 and $1,453,000 respectively,
distributed as follows:

« Audit Fees: $7,579,428 in 2005 for the audit o&finial statements and internal control over finaln@porting and the internal
investigation and restatement of the 2004 finarstelements, of which $5,361,404 relates to theniat investigation and restatement of the
Corporation’s 2004 Amended Annual Report restayiears 2000-2004 and $2,239,524 relates to the afittie Corporation’s financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 200555862,500 in 2006 for the audit of financiakstaents and internal control over
financial reporting for the year ended December2806.

« Audit-Related Fees: $21,500 in 2005 and $87,5@D06 audit-related fees, which consisted mainlthefaudits of employee benefit
plans.



» Tax Fees: none in 2005 and none in 2006.
« Other Fees: $2,270 in 2005 and $3,000 in 2006ee et fees paid for access to an accounting anitiragiélectronic library.
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The Audit Committee has established controts grocedures that require the pre-approval dudit, audit-related and permissible non-
audit services provided by the independent auditorder to ensure that the rendering of such sesviloes not impair the auditor’s
independence. The Audit Committee may delegateéoon more of its members the authority to pre-aprany audit, audit-related or
permissible non-audit services, and the memberhtmmvsuch delegation was made must report any prezaal decisions at the next
scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee. Undemtteeapproval policy, audit services for the Cogtimn are negotiated annually. In the
event that any additional audit services not inetith the annual negotiation, audit-related or pgsible non-audit services are required by
the Corporation, an amendment to the existing ezigagt letter or an additional proposed engagenaést Ishould be obtained from the
independent registered public accounting firm aralweated by the Audit Committee or the member(ghefAudit Committee with authority
to pre-approve such services.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) The following financial statements are irt&d in Item 8:
— Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimgm
- Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionfd3exember 31, 2006 and 20(
- Consolidated Statements of Income for Each of thed Years in the Period Ended December 31, -
— Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for Each of the Three Years in the PeriodéthDecember 31, 20C
- Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomedoin of the Three Years in the Period Ended Deee3ih 2006
- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for EacheThree Years in the Period Ended December 38..
- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

(8)(2) Financial statement schedules.

None.

(a)(3) Exhibits listed below are filed herewithpat of this Form 10-K or are incorporated hergindference.

Index to Exhibits:

No. Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation(1

3.2 By-Laws(1)

4.0 Form of Common Stock Certificate(

10.1 FirstBanl's 1987 Stock Option Plan(

10.2 FirstBanl's 1997 Stock Option Plan(

14.1 Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

14.2 Code of Ethics applicable to all employees

14.3 Policy Statement and Standards of Conduct for MesbEBoard of Directors, Executive Officers anihBipal Shareholders(:
14.4 Independence Principles for Directors of First BarL

31.1 Section 302 Certification of the CE
31.2 Section 302 Certification of the CF
321 Section 906 Certification of the CE

32.2 Section 906 Certification of the CF

(1) Incorporated by reference from Registration statéroa Form -4 filed by the Corporation on April 15, 19¢
(2) Incorporated by reference from the Forn-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 filed byGbeporation on March 26, 199
(3) Incorporated by reference from the Forn-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed byGbeporation on March 15, 20C
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5qd) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 #gistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

FIRST BANCORP.

By: /s/ Luis M. Beauchamp Date: 7/05/07

Luis M. Beauchamp Chairman
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiifiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidpyetthe following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

/sl Luis M. Beauchamp Date: 7/05/07
Luis M. Beaucham,

Chairman

President and Chief Executi

Officer

/s/ Aurelio Aleman Date: 7/05/07
Aurelio Aleméan

Senior Executive Vice Preside

and

Chief Operating Office

/s/ Fernando Scherrer Date: 7/05/07
Fernando Scherrer, CF

Executive Vice President al

Chief Financial Officel

/s/ Fernando Rodriguez-Amaro Date: 7/05/07

Fernando Rodguez Amaro
Director

/s/ Richard Reiss-Huyke Date: 7/05/07
Richard Reis-Huyke, Directol

/sl Jorge L. Diaz Date: 7/05/07
Jorge L. [iaz, Directol

/sl Sharee Ann Umpierre-Catinchi Date: 7/05/07

Sharee Ann Umpier-Catinchi,
Director

/sl José Teixidor Date: 7/05/07
José Teixidor, Director

/s/ José L. Ferrer-Canals Date: 7/05/07
Jos€ L. Ferre-Canals, Directo

/sl José Menéndez-Cortada Date: 7/05/07

Jo« Menénde:-Cortada, Leau
Director

/s/ Pedro Romero Date: 7/05/07
Pedro Romero, CP.

Senior Vice President ar

Chief Accounting Office
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of FzahCorp:

The management of First BanCorp (the Corporatiemgsponsible for establishing and maintaining adsegjinternal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15{der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 amabfo assessment of internal control
over financial reporting. The Corporation’s intdroantrol over financial reporting is a processigesd to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportinga@preparation of financial statements for extepaposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The management of First BanCorp has assessedf#futivedness of the Corporation’s internal contreéofinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, dhgoation used the criteria set forth by the Cotteaiof the Sponsoring Organization:
the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Contntégrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concludati@éhiabrporation maintained effective internal cohtiver financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006.

The Corporation’s independent registered publi@anting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, hastaddnanagement’'s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal contreér financial reporting as of December 31, 20€68tated in their report dated July 5, 2007.

/sl Luis Beauchamp

Luis Beauchamp

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Fernando Scherrer
Fernando Scherrer

Senior Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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PricewaterhouseCoopers L
254 Mufoz Rivera Avenu
BBVA Tower, 9t Floor
Hato Rey, PR 009:
Telephone (787) 75809(
Facsimile (787) 768094

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of First BanCorp

We have completed integrated audits of First BapBaronsolidated financial statements and of itsrimal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the staisdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited States). Our opinions,
based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated stetgts of financial condition and the related coigstéd statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in stockholderstequd cash flows present fairly, in all materedpects, the financial position of First
BanCorp and its subsidiaries (the “Corporation”patember 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results ofdperations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@006 in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepted in the United St
of America. These financial statements are thearesipility of the Corporation’s management. Oump@ssibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our auditscdifducted our audits of these statements in aceoedaith the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Statéhpse standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement. An audit of finahstatements includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts antbdiges in the financial statements, assessingabeunting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating dralbfinancial statement presentation. We belignag our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Corporation changed the mannghich it accounts for share-based
compensation in 2006.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Corporation has restated its 26852004 consolidated statements of cash
flows.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmentydted in Management's Report on Internal ControltQaieancial Reporting, that the
Corporation maintained effective internal contreépfinancial reporting as of December 31, 200GHam criteria established linternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on thawiar Furthermore, in our opinion, the Corporatinaintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2006, based on criteria estadgiininternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the COSO. The Corporation’s managemeasonsible for maintaining effective internal wohover financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissmd internal control over financial reporting.r@esponsibility is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectivenéss Gbrporation’s internal control over finanai@porting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internal control over finaheceporting in accordance with the standardsefRublic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirentbgilan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabéerance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. An audit of intéic@ntrol over financial reporting includes
obtaining an understanding of internal control dgaincial reporting, evaluating management’s agsest, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controt] parforming such other procedures as we conselegssary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable fasisur opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (i) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(idyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadé&gbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Juan, Puerto Rit
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FIRST BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31, 200

December 31, 200

Assets
Cash and due from ban $ 112,340,61 $ 155,848,81
Money market instruments, including, for 2005, $838,364 of collateral that can be repled 377,296,01 666,856,43
Federal funds sold and securities purchased umgleements to rese 42,051,28 508,967,36
Time deposits with other financial institutio 37,123,11 48,967,47
Total money market investmer 456,470,40  1,224,791,27
Investment securities availa-for-sale, at fair value
Securities pledged that can be repled 1,373,466,63 1,744,846,05
Other investment securitis 326,956,34 203,331,44
Total investment securities availa-for-sale 1,700,422,97 1,948,177,50
Investment securities he-to-maturity, at amortized cos
Securities pledged that can be repled 2,661,088,02 3,115,260,66
Other investment securitis 686,042,71 323,327,29
Total investment securities h-to-maturity, fair value $3,256,965,610 (20- $3,336,558,64€ 3,347,130,73  3,438,587,95
Other equity securitie 40,159,18 42,367,50

Loans, net of allowance for loan and lease losE84%8,295,662 (200- $147,998,733

11,070,446,4C

12,436,257,99

Loans held for sale, at lower of cost or ma 35,238,12 101,672,53
Total loans, ne 11,105,684,52 12,537,930,52
Premises and equipment, | 155,661,72 116,947,77
Other real estate ownt 2,869,71. 5,019,101
Accrued interesreceivable on loans and investme 112,505,00 103,692,47
Due from customers on acceptan 149,71¢ 353,86
Other asset 356,861,27 343,933,93

Total asset

Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity

$17,390,255,87

$19,917,650,72

Liabilities:

Nor-interest bearing depos $ 790,98515 $ 811,006,12
Interes-bearing deposit 10,213,302,04 11,652,746,08
Federal funds purchased and securities sold umpieements to repurcha 3,687,724,00 4,833,882,00
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FH 560,000,00 506,000,00
Notes payabli 182,827,57 178,693,24
Other borrowing 231,719,40 231,622,02
Bank acceptances outstand 149,71¢ 353,86«
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 493,994,79 505,506,45

Commitments and contingencies (Note 29 and

Stockholder' equity:

Preferred stock, authorized 50,000,000 sharesedsand outstanding 22,004,000 shares at $25

liquidation value per shai 550,100,00 550,100,00
Common stock, $1 par value, authorized 250,000sb@0es; issued 93,151,856 shares (2005 -

90,772,856 share 93,151,85 90,772,85
Less: Treasury Stock (at par vall (9,897,801 (9,897,801
Common stock outstandir 83,254,05 80,875,05
Additional paic-in capital 22,756,99 —
Legal surplus 276,847,82 265,844,19
Retained earning 326,761,46 316,696,97
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of te$2@fl,389 (200- $16,259) (30,167,15) (15,675,28)

1,229,553,18 1,197,840,93

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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FIRST BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Interest income:
Loans

Year ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

$ 936,051,81 $ 772,099,93 $458,180,08

Investment securitie 281,846,81 273,603,90 228,417,18
Money market investmen 70,914,40 21,886,15 3,736,45:
Total interest incom 1,288,813,04 1,067,589,98 690,333,72
Interest expense:
Deposits 605,033,33 393,151,94 119,843,69
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agree 195,327,44 179,124,07 129,572,72
Advances from FHLE 13,703,93 32,756,08 27,668,47
Notes payable and other borrowir 31,054,37 30,238,67 15,767,89
Total interest expens 845,119,08 635,270,77 292,852,78
Net interest incom 443,693,95 432,319,20 397,480,94
Provision for loan and lease losse 74,991,17 50,644,34 52,799,55
Net interest income after provision for loan araskelosse 368,702,78 381,674,86 344,681,39
Non-interest income:
Other service charges on lo¢ 5,944,91. 5,430,71. 3,910,48
Service charges on deposit accol 12,591,25 11,796,18 10,937,99
Mortgage banking activitie 2,258,94i 3,798,14! 3,921,13
Net loss on partial extinguishment of secured corsrakloan to local financie

institution (20,640,34) — —
Net (loss) gain on investments and impairm (8,193,85) 12,338,96 9,457,19i
Rental incomg 3,264,09 3,462,50. 3,070,69
Gain on sale of credit card portfo 500,00( — 5,532,68
Other nor-interest incomt 25,611,06 26,250,06 22,793,76
Total nor-interest incom 31,336,06 63,076,57 59,623,95
Non-interest expenses:
Employee’ compensation and benef 127,523,01 102,077,92 82,439,61
Occupancy and equipme 54,439,92 47,582,00 39,430,28
Business promotio 17,672,48 18,717,46 16,348,84
Professional fee 32,095,27 13,387,33 4,165,09
Taxes, other than income ta 12,427,91 9,809,32i 8,467,96:
Insurance and supervisory fe 7,066,52. 5,509,42! 4,125,83!
Provision for contingencie — 82,750,00 —
Other operating expens 36,737,53 35,298,37 25,502,06
Total nor-interest expense 287,962,67 315,131,85 180,479,70
Income before income tax provisi 112,076,17 129,619,58 223,825,64
Income tax provision 27,441,91 15,015,50 46,500,24
Net income $ 84,634,26 $ 114,604,08 $177,325,39
Dividends to preferred stockholders 40,275,99 40,275,99 40,275,99
Net income available to common stockholder $ 4435826 $ 74,328,08 $137,049,39
Net income per common share basic:
Earnings per common share be $ 0.5¢ $ 0.9z $ 1.7¢C
Net income per common share diluted
Earnings per common share dilu $ 0.5¢ $ 0.9C $ 1.6F
Dividends declared per common shar $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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FIRST BANCORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Restated) (Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 8463426 $ 114,604,08 $ 177,325,39
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciatior 16,810,01 15,412,28 13,939,36
Amortization of core deposit intangibl 3,384,66! 3,709,07. 2,396,62!
Provision for loan and lease los: 74,991,17 50,644,34 52,799,55
Stocl-based compensation expel 5,379,51l — —
Deferred income tax bene (31,714,94) (60,222,88) (6,508,819
Gain on sale of investments, 1 (7,057,52) (20,712,60) (12,156,18)
Other-thar-temporary impairments on availa-for-sale securitie 15,251,38 8,373,63! 2,698,99:
Unrealized derivative and hedging activities |agasirf) 61,819,51 73,442,94 (15,528,99)
Net gain on sale of loans, net of impairm (1,689,81) (3,270,150 (3,594,87)
Net loss on partial extinguishment of secured comsrakloan to local financial
institution 10,640,34. — —
Net amortization of premium and discount and defiéfoan fees and cc (2,568,20) (1,724,65) 2,305,72!
Amortization of broker placement fe 19,955,01 15,123,38 13,874,99
Accretion of basis adjustments on fair value hec (3,625,82) — —
Net accretion of (discounts) and premiums on invesit securitie (35,933,29) (30,014,25) (34,944,44)
Amortization of discounts on subordinated nc — 544 58: 515,02¢
Gain on sale of credit card portfo (500,000 — (5,532,68)
(Decrease) increase in accrued income tax pa (39,701,92) 28,362,57. (4,766,399
Increase in accrued interest receive (8,812,52) (43,996,02) (15,400,48)
Increase in accrued interest paye 33,910,19 58,799,58 6,828,561
Decrease (increase) in other as: 12,088,54 (33,206,46) (29,531,59)
Increase in other liabilitie 14,451,46 103,543,16 14,171,81
Total adjustment 137,077,77 164,808,54 (18,433,80)
Net cash provided by operating activities 221,712,03 279,412,62 158,891,59
Cash flows from investing activities:
Principal collected on loar 6,022,632,54 3,803,804,42 2,263,042,65

Loans originatet
Purchases of loar

(4,718,927,53)

(168,662,08)

(6,058,105,28)

(454,873,01)

(4,979,882,61)

(199,970,91)

Proceeds from sale of loa 169,421,94 120,682,223 137,071,44
Proceeds from sale of repossessed a 50,895,53 33,337,05 32,867,25
Purchase of servicing ass (1,155,83) — —
Proceeds from sale of availa-for-sale investment securiti 232,482,87 252,745,61 131,571,93

Purchases of securities h-ta-maturity
Purchases of securities availe-for-sale

(447,483,62)
(225,372,83)

(2,540,827,36)
(1,221,389,58)

(2,233,429,19)

(505,736,94)

Principal repayments and maturities of securitigg-to-maturity 574,796,85 2,511,738,28 2,031,513,59
Principal repayments and maturities of securitigglable-for-sale 217,828,26 325,981,15 336,840,23
Additions to premises and equipm (55,523,96) (28,920,98) (24,483,51)
Decrease (increase) in other equity secur 2,208,31! 41,690,60 (35,250,00)
Cash paid for net assets acquired on acquisitidrusinesse — (78,404,80) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie 1,653,140,45 (3,292,541,66) (3,045,846,06)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net (decrease) increase in depa (1,550,713,90) 4,120,051,01 1,149,976,60
Net (decrease) increase in federal funds purchaisédecurities sold under
repurchase agreemet (1,146,158,00) 668,521,08 525,888,56
Net FHLB advances taken (paymer 54,000,00 (1,132,000,00) 685,000,00
Net proceeds from the issuance of notes payableted borrowing: — — 595,778,61
Repayments of notes payable and other borrow — (127,992,61) (140,185,00)
Dividends (63,566,13) (62,914,80) (59,593,30)
Exercise of stock optior 19,756,48 2,094,35. 4,956,31
Treasury stock acquire — (965,079 —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie (2,686,681,55) 3,466,793,96 2,761,821,79
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (811,829,06) 453,664,92 (125,132,67)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 1,380,640,08 926,975,16 1,052,107,83

Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric
Cash and cash equivalents inclu

$ 568,811,02 $1,380,640,08 $ 926,975,16




Cash and due from ban $ 112,340,61 $ 155,848,81 $ 6,211,37.
Money market investmen 456,470,40 1,224,791,27 920,763,79

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 568,811,02 $1,380,640,08 $ 926,975,16

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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FIRST BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

Preferred Stock:
Balance at beginning and end of y

Common stock:

Balance at beginning of ye

Stock options exercised (before stock split in 2808 2004
Treasury stock acquired before June 30, 2005 stplitk
Shares issued as a result of stock split on Jun2®®

Balance at end of ye

Additional paid-in capital:

Balance at beginning of ye

Treasury stock acquire

Stock options exercise

Stocl-based compensation recogni:
Adjustment for stock split on June 30, 2(

Balance at end of ye

Capital Reserve:

Balance at beginning of ye
Transfer from retained earnin
Transfer to legal surplt

Balance at end of ye

Legal surplus:

Balance at beginning of ye
Transfer from retained earnin
Transfer from capital resen

Balance at end of ye

Retained earnings:

Balance at beginning of ye

Net income

Cash dividend declared on common st
Cash dividend declared on preferred st
Adjustment for stock split on June 30, 2(
Transfer to capital resen

Transfer to legal surplt

Balance at end of ye

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, nef tax:
Balance at beginning of ye
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of defeiag:

Balance at end of ye
Total stockholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.
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Year ended December 31,

EQUITY

2006

2005

2004

$ 550,100,00 $ 550,100,00 $ 550,100,00

80,875,05  40,389,15  40,027,28
2,379,001 76,37: 361,87

— (28,000) —

— 40,437,552 —

$ 8325405 $ 80,87505 $ 40,389,15
— 4,863,29! 268,85t

— (937,07 —

17,377,48 2,017,98; 4,594,44.
5,379,511 — —

— (5,944,20) —

$  22,756,99 — $ 4,863,229
—  82,825000  80,000,00

— — 2,825,001

—  (82,825,00) —

$ — — $ 82,825,00
265,844,19  183,019,19  165,709,12
11,003,63 —  17,310,07

—  82,825,00 —

$ 276,847,82 $ 265,844,19 $ 183,019,19
316,696,97 299,501,01  201,903,99
84,634,26  114,604,08  177,325,39
(23,290,14)  (22,638,80)  (19,317,30)
(40,275,99)  (40,275,99)  (40,275,99)
—  (34,493,32) —

— — (2,825,001
(11,003,63) —  (17,310,07)

$ 326,761,46 $ 316,696,97 $ 299,501,01

(15,675,28)
(14,491,86)

43,635,62
(59,310,90)

35,812,50
7,823,12

$ (30,167,15)$ (15,675,28)$ 43,635,62

$1,229,553,18 $1,197,840,93 $1,204,333,28
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FIRST BANCORP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive incorr

Unrealized (losses) gains on securit

Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising duringkriod
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net lossas&) and other-than-temporary

impairments included in net incor

Income tax benefit (expense) related to items loéiotomprehensive incon
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the peried ofi tax

Total comprehensive incon

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$84,634,26 $114,604,08 $177,325,39

(22,890,85)  (47,839,30)  17,561,62

8,193,85  (12,382,26)  (9,457,19)
205,13( 910,65 (281,31
(14,491,86)  (59,310,90) 7,823,12.

$70,142,39 $ 55,293,17 $185,148,51
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FIRST BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Business and Summary of Signiimt Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have peepared in conformity with accounting principtgnerally accepted in the United St
of America (“GAAP”) and with prevailing practicesithin the financial services industry. The followirs a description of First BanCorp’s
(“First BanCorp” or “the Corporation”) most sigriéint policies:

Nature of business

First BanCorp is a publicly-owned, Puerto Rat@rtered bank holding company that is subjeceguilation, supervision and examination
by the Board of Governors of the Federal ResensteBy. The Corporation is a full service providefioéncial services and products with
operations in Puerto Rico, the United States aad}t8 and British Virgin Islands.

The Corporation provides a wide range of faahservices for retail, commercial and institntbclients. As of December 31, 2006, the
Corporation controlled four wholly-owned subsidéri FirstBank Puerto Rico (“FirstBank” or the “BépkirstBank Insurance Agency, Inc.,
Grupo Empresas de Servicios Financieros (d/b/aFiPBnce Group”) and Ponce General Corporation,(Iftonce General”). FirstBank is a
Puerto Rico-chartered commercial bank, FirstBaskilance Agency is a Puerto Rico-chartered insurageacy, PR Finance Group is a
domestic corporation and Ponce General is the igplddmpany of a federally chartered stock savisgs@iation, FirstBank Florida.
FirstBank is subject to the supervision, examimatiad regulation of both the Office of the Commissir of Financial Institutions of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the Federal Depasitrance Corporation (the “FDIC”). Deposits arsured through the FDIC Deposit
Insurance Fund. Within FirstBank, there are twoasefely regulated businesses: (1) the Virgin Isdamgerations; and (2) the Miami loan
agency. The U.S. Virgin Islands operations of Biastk are subject to regulation and examinatiorhieynited States Virgin Islands Banking
Board, and the British Virgin Islands operations subject to regulation by the British Virgin IstinFinancial Services Commission.
FirstBank’s loan agency in the State of Florideeigulated by the Office of Financial Regulatiortleé State of Florida, the Federal Reserve
Bank of Atlanta and the Federal Reserve Bank of Nevk.

FirstBank Insurance Agency is subject to thgesvision, examination and regulation by the @ffié the Insurance Commissioner of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. PR Finance Group ligesti to the supervision, examination and reguhatibthe Office of the Commissioner
of Financial Institutions of the Commonwealth ofee Rico. FirstBank Florida is subject to the suson, examination and regulation of
the Office of Thrift Supervision (the “OTS").

As of December 31, 2006, FirstBank conductethusiness through its main offices located in Baam, Puerto Rico, forty-eight full
service banking branches in Puerto Rico, fourtgandhes in the United States Virgin Islands (USAAY British Virgin Islands (BVI) and a
loan agency in Coral Gables, Florida (USA). FirstBaad four wholly-owned subsidiaries with operation Puerto Rico: First Leasing and
Rental Corporation, a vehicle leasing and dailyakctompany with eight offices in Puerto Rico; Fifgderal Finance Corp. (d/b/a Money
Express La Financiera), a finance company withythiine offices in Puerto Rico; FirstMortgage, lngresidential mortgage loan origination
company with thirty five offices in FirstBank brdmes and at stand alone sites; and FirstBank Ovefsegooration, an international banking
entity organized under the International BankingditigrAct of Puerto Rico. FirstBank had two subsitka with operations outside of Puerto
Rico; First Insurance Agency VI, Inc., an insuraagency with four offices that sell insurance praddun the USVI and First Express, a sn
loans company with four offices in the USVI.

Business combinations

On March 31, 2005, the Corporation complebtedacquisition of 100% of the outstanding commareas of Ponce General Corporation,
the holding company of FirstBank Florida (formeklyown as Unibank), a thrift subsidiary, and PonealR, with a total of eleven financial
service facilities in the State of Florida. The pase of the acquisition was to build a platfornfriarida from which to initiate further
expansion into the United States. As of the actioisdate, excluding the effect of purchase acdagrentries, Ponce General had
approximately $546.2 million in assets, $476.0ianllin loans composed mainly of residential and i@rtial mortgage loans amounting to
approximately $425.8 million, commercial and couastion loans amounting to approximately $28.2 wmilliconsumer loans amounting to
approximately $22.1 million and $439.1 million irmbsits. The consideration consisted mainly of paysimade to principal and minority
shareholders of Ponce General’s outstanding constomk at acquisition date. This consideration abeity other direct acquisition costs and
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liabilities incurred led to a total acquisition to$ approximately $101.9 million. The purchasecpriesulted in a premium of approximately
$36 million that was mainly allocated to core depwgangibles and goodwill.

FirstBank Florida is a federally charteredckteavings association which is headquartered amhliFlorida (USA) and currently is the
only operating subsidiary of Ponce General. FiratiBlorida provides a wide range of banking sewviteindividual and corporate custom
through its eight branches in Florida (USA).

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inclilndeaccounts of the Corporation and its subsidiaAd significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consadiulat

Statutory business trusts that are wholly-avog the Corporation and are issuers of trust prediesecurities are not consolidated in the
Corporation’s consolidated financial statementadoordance with the provisions of Financial Intetation No. 46R (“FIN 46R”).
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — amdrpretation of ARB No. 51".

Reclassifications
For purposes of comparability, certain prieripd amounts have been reclassified to conforthe®006 presentation.
Use of estimates in the preparation of financial stements

The preparation of financial statements infeomity with accounting principles generally acasgpin the United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptiondfinztttae reported amounts of assets and lialslied contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the tedg@mounts of revenues and expenses during tbetirgpperiod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Stock split

All references to the numbers of common shanesper share amounts in the financial staten@rdshotes to the financial statements,
except for the number of shares issued, outstaradidgheld in treasury as of December 31, 2004 ptedén the consolidated statements of
changes in stockholders’ equity, have been restategflect the June 30, 2005 two-for-one commaulssplit.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cashaasth equivalents include cash on hand, amountfralmebanks and short-term money
market instruments with original maturities of tar@onths or less.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell

The Corporation purchases securities undeyemgents to resell the same securities. The cowmtgnetains control over the securities
acquired. Accordingly, amounts advanced under thgseements represent short-term loans and aeetedl as assets in the statements of
financial condition. The Corporation monitors tharket value of the underlying securities as conghémehe related receivable, including
accrued interest, and requests additional collatdran deemed appropriate.

Investment securities
The Corporation classifies its investments in detat equity securities into one of four categories:

Held-to-maturity- Securities which the entity has the intent anititglto hold-to-maturity. These securities arergad at amortized cost.
The Corporation may not sell or transfer held-taurity securities without calling into question itgent to hold other debt securities to
maturity, unless a nonrecurring or unusual evedt ¢buld not have been reasonably anticipated t@sied.

Trading- Securities that are bought and held principaillythe purpose of selling them in the near ternesehsecurities are carried at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses reporteghinings. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, thpdtation did not hold investment
securities for trading purposes.
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Available-for-sale Securities not classified as heldrturity or trading. These securities are carrtefdiavalue, with unrealized holdil
gains and losses, net of deferred tax, reportethiear comprehensive income as a separate compofstoickholders’ equity.

Other equity securitiesEquity securities that do not have readily avdédair values are classified as other equity g8es in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. SEheecurities are stated at the lower of costalizable value. This category is principally
composed of stock that is owned by the Corporatiaromply with Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) redoig requirements. Their
realizable value equals their cost.

Premiums and discounts on investment secsidtie amortized as an adjustment to interest inamevestments over the life of the
related securities under the interest method. diized gains and losses and valuation adjustneentsdered other-than-temporary, if any,
related to investment securities are determinetgusie specific identification method and are réguebin Non-interest income as net gain
(loss) on investments. Purchases and sales ofises@are recognized on a trade-date basis.

Evaluation of other-than-temporary impairment on hdd-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Corporation evaluates for impairment ébtdand equity securities when their fair markéti@das remained below cost for six mot
or more, or earlier if other factors indicativepaftential impairment exist. Investments are considéo be impaired when their cost exceeds
fair market value.

The Corporation evaluates if the impairmenttiser-than-temporary depending upon whether thigghio is of fixed income securities or
equity securities as further described below. ThepGration employs a systematic methodology thasitters all available evidence in
evaluating a potential impairment of its investnsent

The impairment analysis of the fixed incomeeistments places special emphasis on the analytsie oash position of the issuer, its cash
and capital generation capacity, which could inseear diminish the issuer’s ability to repay its\d@bligations. The Corporation also
considers its intent and ability to hold the fixadome securities until recovery. If managemenielvels, based on the analysis, that the issuer
will not be able to service its debt and pay itigaltions in a timely manner, the security is veiittdown to management’s estimate of net
realizable value. For securities written down teitlestimated net realizable value, any accrueduacdllected interest is also reversed.
Interest income is then recognized when collected.

The impairment analysis of equity securiteperformed and reviewed on an ongoing basis basd#e latest financial information and
any supporting research report made by a majorebagje firm. This analysis is very subjective anskloia among other things, on relevant
financial data such as capitalization, cash floguidity, systematic risk, and debt outstandinghaf issuer. Management also considers the
issuer’s industry trends, the historical performeantthe stock, as well as the Corporation’s intertiold the security for an extended period.
If management believes there is a low probabilftyecovering book value in a reasonable time frafmen an impairment will be recorded by
writing the security down to market value. As poagly mentioned, equity securities are monitoredmiongoing basis but special attentic
given to those securities that have experiencesthng in fair value for six months or more. An iamment charge is generally recognized
when the fair value of an equity security has reradisignificantly below cost for a period of twelwenths or more.

Loans

Loans are stated at the principal outstandalgnce, net of unearned interest, unamortized@eferigination fees and costs and
unamortized premiums and discounts. Fees colletddtosts incurred in the origination of new loaresdeferred and amortized using the
interest method or a method which approximatesnteeest method over the term of the loan as amsamlient to interest yield. Unearned
interest on certain personal, auto loans and fied@ases is recognized as income under a methadh\approximates the interest method.
When a loan is paid off or sold, any unamortizeddederred fee (cost) is credited (charged) toineo

Loans on which the recognition of interesoime has been discontinued are designated as namracd/NVhen loans are placed on non-
accruing status, any accrued but uncollected isténeome is reversed and charged against interesine. Consumer, commercial and
mortgage loans are classified as rameruing when interest and principal have not beeaived for a period of 90 days or more. Thisqyois
also applied to all impaired loans based upon atuation of the risk characteristics of said lodass experience, economic conditions and
other pertinent factors. Loan and lease lossestagyed and recoveries are credited to the allogvbordoan and lease losses. Closed-end
consumer loans and leases are charged-off whenguagrare 120 days in arrears. Open-end (revolviegjty consumer loans are chargaftl-
when payments are 180 days in arrears.
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Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale are stated at the lowerest-or-market. The amount by which cost exceealket value in the aggregate portfolio of
loans held for sale, if any, is accounted for &alaation allowance with changes therein includethe determination of net income. As of
December 31, 2006, the aggregate fair value ofslbeetd for sale exceeded their cost.

Allowance for loan and lease losses

The Corporation follows a systematic roelitiogy to establish and evaluate the adequadyechliowance for loan and lease losses to
provide for inherent losses in the loan portfolibis methodology includes the consideration ofdexsuch as current economic conditions,
portfolio risk characteristics, prior loss expederand results of periodic credit reviews of indival loans. The provision for loan and lease
losses charged to current operations is basedamrsathodology. Loan losses are charged and reesvae credited to the allowance for
loan and lease losses.

The methodology used to establish ttmaalhce for loan and lease losses is based on StaterhFinancial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impaint of a Loan” (as amended by SFAS No. 118), &SSNo. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies.” Under SFAS No. 114, commercial $oaver a predefined amount are identified for impant evaluation on an individual
basis.

The Corporation has defined impaired $oas loans with interest and/or principal past@®uéays or more and other specific loans for
which, based on current information and events, grobable that the debtor will be unable to paamounts due according to the contrac
terms of the loan agreement. The Corporation measmpairment individually for those commerciahlrestate and construction loans wi
principal balance exceeding $1 million. An allowaror impaired loans is established based on thsemit value of expected future cash fl
or the fair value of the collateral, if the loarclateral dependent. Groups of small balance,dgeneous loans are collectively evaluated for
impairment considering among other factors, histrcharge-off experience, existing economic cooiét and risk characteristics relevant to
the particular loan category. The portfolios ofidestial mortgage loans, consumer loans, auto laadsfinance leases are individually
considered homogeneous and each portfolio is etealu@llectively for impairment.

Under SFAS No. 5, the allowance for laad lease losses calculation for the Corporationamly based on historical net charge-off
experience by loan type as adjusted for econonriditons.

Cash payments received on impaired lea@secorded in accordance with the contractuaigef the loan. The principal portion of t
payment is used to reduce the principal baland¢beofoan, whereas the interest portion is recoghé#einterest income. However, when
management believes the ultimate collectibilitypdghcipal is in doubt, the interest portion is dpglto principal.

Transfers and servicing of financial assets and exiguishment of liabilities

After a transfer of financial assets thadlifies for sale accounting, the Corporatioredegnizes financial assets when control has beer
surrendered, and derecognizes liabilities whemgutshed.

The transfer of financial assets in whith Corporation surrenders control over the asseaiscounted for as a sale to the extent that
consideration other than beneficial interests ¢gireed in exchange. SFAS No. 140, “Accounting faarifer and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Liabilities — a Replacement of SFAS N&”, sets forth the criteria that must be metdontrol over transferred assets to be
considered to have been surrendered, which incliipthe assets must be isolated from creditote®transferor, (2) the transferee must
obtain the right (free of conditions that constridifiom taking advantage of that right) to pledgesxchange the transferred assets, and (3) the
transferor cannot maintain effective control over transferred assets through an agreement toctegme them before their maturity. When
the Corporation transfers financial assets andrresfer fails any one of the SFAS No. 140 critetti@ Corporation is prevented from
derecognizing the transferred financial assetstl@dransaction is accounted for as a secured\irgo

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at costfraecumulated depreciation. Depreciation is ed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of each type of asset. Arzation of leasehold improvements is computed dvetérms of the leases (contractual term
plus lease renewals that are “reasonably assuoedie estimated useful lives of the improvementschever is shorter. Costs of
maintenance and repairs, which do not improve terekthe life of the
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respective assets, are expensed as incurred. @aostsewals and betterments are capitalized. Whsetsa are sold or disposed of, their cost
and related accumulated depreciation are remowad fihe accounts and any gain or loss is reflecteghinings.

The Corporation has operating lease agreenpeimsirily associated with the rental of premisesupport the branch network or for
general office space. Certain of these arrangenagataon-cancelable and provide for rent escalai@hrenewal options. Rent expense on
non-cancelable operating leases with scheduledniergases is recognized on a straight-line basis e lease term.

Other real estate owned (OREOQ)

Other real estate owned, which consists dfegate acquired in settlement of loans, is reztbt the lower of cost (carrying value of the
loan) or fair value minus estimated cost to sellial estate acquired. Subsequent to foreclogaies or losses resulting from the sale of
these properties and losses recognized on thediereevaluations of these properties are creditetharged to income. The cost of
maintaining and operating these properties is esg@s incurred.

Servicing assets

The Corporation recognizes as separate abeetights to service loans for others, whetheséhgervicing assets are originated or
purchased. The total cost of the loans to be sdli servicing assets retained is allocated to @meising assets and the loans (without the
servicing asset) based on their relative fair val®ervicing assets are amortized in proporticengb over the period of estimated net servi
income. Loan servicing fees, which are based ogregmtage of the principal balances of the loansceal, are credited to income as loan
payments are collected.

To estimate the fair value of servicing asstis Corporation considers the present value péeted future cash flows associated with the
servicing assets. For purposes of measuring imeairiof servicing assets, the Corporation stratdgigsh assets based on the predominant ris|
characteristics of the underlying loans such amregerms and coupon. Temporary impairment isgated through a valuation allowance
with changes included in net income for the perfoahich the change occurs. If it is later deteredthat all or a portion of the temporary
impairment has been recovered for a particularctranthe valuation allowance is reduced througécawvery of income. Any fair value
increase in excess of the cost basis of the sagvasset for a given stratum is not recognized.

Servicing rights are also reviewed for other-temporary impairment. When the recoverabilftgroimpaired servicing asset is
determined to be remote, the unrecoverable podidhe valuation allowance is applied as a diregteadown to the carrying value of the
servicing rights, precluding subsequent recoveries.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Business combinations are accounted for usiagpurchase method of accounting. Assets acgaiddiabilities assumed are recorded at
estimated fair value as of the date of acquisitifter initial recognition, any resulting intangébassets are accounted for as follows:

» Definite life intangibles, mainly core deposise amortized over their estimated life, generafiya straight-line basis, and are reviewed
periodically for impairment when events or chanigesircumstances indicate that the carrying amouay not be recoverabl

» Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles aret amortized but are reviewed periodically for airment at least annuall

The Corporation performed impairment teststtfieryears ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2@Ddedermined that no impairment
was needed to be recognized for those periodsofedgill and other intangible assets. For furthechtisures, refer to Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

The Corporation sells securities under agregse repurchase the same or similar securitiese@lly, similar securities are securities
from the same issuer, with identical form and tygimilar maturity, identical contractual intereatas, similar assets as collateral and the :
aggregate unpaid principal amount. The Corporatiains control over the securities sold underetaggeements. Accordingly, these
agreements are considered financing transactiathsh&nsecurities underlying the agreements rennding asset accounts. The counterpal
certain agreements may have the right to repldugedllateral by contract or custom. Such assetpisented separately in the statements o
financial condition as securities pledged to cadithat can be repledged.
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Income taxes

The Corporation uses the asset and liabiligghrod for the recognition of deferred tax assetslatbilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognizied @orporation’s financial statements or taxnmeuDeferred income tax assets and
liabilities are determined for differences betwéaancial statement and tax bases of assets dpititiess that will result in taxable or
deductible amounts in the future. The computatiopaised on enacted tax laws and rates applicapkeriteds in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or seltidation allowances are established, when nacgs® reduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realizecestimating taxes, management assesses thieaetarits and risks of the appropriate tax
treatment of transactions taking into account stay judicial and regulatory guidance, and recagaitax benefits only when deemed
probable.

The Corporation adopted Financial Accountitan8ards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting@ncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 3&ffective January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies tlte@unting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial siatgs in accordance with SFAS 109. This Interpiatgtrescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statémezognition and measurement of a tax positikartaor expected to be taken in a tax
return. This Interpretation also provides guidaooelerecognition, classification, interest and ftess accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. The cumulative efféadoption of FIN 48 resulted in an increase oB%gillion to tax reserves with offsetting
adjustments to retained earnings. Additionallygamnection with the adoption of FIN 48, the Corpiaraelected to classify interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax portionoagonents of income tax expense.

Treasury stock

The Corporation accounts for treasury stoghaatvalue. Under this method, the treasury stackant is increased by the par value of ¢
share of common stock reacquired. Any excess paighpare over the par value is debited to additipaia-in capital for the amount per sh
that was originally credited. Any remaining excisssharged to retained earnings.

Stock-based compensation

The Corporation has a stock-based employeg@ensation plan, which is described more fully itéN®0. On January 1, 2006, the
Corporation adopted SFAS 123 (Revisdt)counting for Stock-Based Compensafi@FAS 123R"), using the “modified prospective”
method. Under this method and since all previoisslyed stock options were fully vested at the tirhadoption, the Corporation expenses
fair value of all employee stock options grantegaianuary 1, 2006 (which is the same as undegrtispective method). Prior to adoption,
the Corporation accounted for the plan under thegrition and measurement principles of Accounkmnigciples Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ, and related Interpretations where no stock-basggloyee compensation cost was reflected in net
income, as all options granted under the plan Inagikarcise price equal to the market value of tidedying common stock on the date of
grant. Options granted are not subject to vestggirements. The Compensation expense associate@xgensing stock options for 2006
was approximately $5.4 million. The proforma effexfbrmation for the years 2005 and 2004 are prteskim Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income includes net income hadihrealized gain (loss) on securities availabteséle, net of estimated tax effect.
Derivative financial instruments

As part of the Corporation’s overall interestie risk management, the Corporation utilizesvéities instruments, including interest rate
swaps, interest rate caps and options to managregttrate risk. In accordance with SFAS No. 12&8cbunting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133"), all derivavinstruments are measured and recognized on theoldated Statements of Financial
Condition at their fair value. On the date the dmive instrument contract is entered into, theg@oation may designate the derivative as
hedge of the fair value of a recognized assetaility or of an unrecognized firm commitment (‘faialue” hedge), (2) a hedge of a
forecasted transaction or of the variability offtélsws to be received or paid related to a recogphiasset or liability (“cash flow” hedge) or
(3) as a “standalone” derivative instrument, inahgdeconomic hedges that the Corporation has motdity documented as a fair value or
cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of adtve instrument that is highly effective andttidesignated and qualifies as a fair-value
hedge, along with change in fair value on the hddggset or liability that is attributable to thalged risk (including gains or losses on firm
commitments), are recorded in current-period egsiiSimilarly, the changes in the fair value ohst@one derivative instruments or
derivatives not qualifying or designated for hedgeounting under SFAS 133 are reported in curreribg earnings. Changes in the fair
value of a derivative instrument that is highlyeetive and that is designated and qualifies ash-ftaw hedge are recorded in other
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comprehensive income in the stockholders’ equityige of the Consolidated Statements of Financ@idition until earnings are affected by
the variability of cash flows (e.g., when period&ttlements on a variable-rate asset or liabiligyracorded in earnings).

Prior to entering a hedge transaction or degigg a hedge the Corporation formally documemsrélationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, as well as themekagement objective and strategy for undertatkiadhedge transaction. This process
includes linking all derivative instruments thag¢ alesignated as fair value or cash flow hedgepdoific assets and liabilities on the
statements of financial condition or to specifitrficommitments or forecasted transactions alony avfiormal assessment at both inceptic
the hedge and on an ongoing basis as to the eeetss of the derivative instrument in offsettingriges in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item. The Corporation discontinues hedgeusting prospectively when it determines that tegvétive is not effective or will no
longer be effective in offsetting changes in thealue or cash flows of the hedged item, thewdgive expires, is sold, or terminated, or
management determines that designation of theaterévas a hedging instrument is no longer appat@riWhen a fair value hedge is
discontinued, the hedged asset or liability isargkr adjusted for changes in fair value and tlhigtiag basis adjustment is amortized or
accreted over the remaining life of the assetalnility as a yield adjustment.

The Corporation recognizes unrealized gaimslasses arising from any changes in fair valudesivative instruments and hedged items,
as applicable, as interest income or interest esgpedepending upon whether an asset or liabilibeiag hedged.

The Corporation occasionally purchases ornimmaitgs financial instruments that contain embedtird/atives. At inception of the financial
instrument, the Corporation assesses: (1) if toe@mic characteristics of the embedded derivatieeckearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics of the financial instrutr{@ost contract), (2) if the financial instrumehat embodies both the embedded derivative
and the host contract is measured at fair valule ghianges in fair value reported in earnings, pif(@ separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded instrument would meet theititaf of a derivative. If the embedded derivatol@es not meet any of these conditions,
it is separated from the host contract and caatddir value with changes recorded in currentqebgarnings. Information regarding
derivative instruments is included in Note 30 te @orporation’s audited financial statements.

Effective April 3, 2006, the Corporation adegthe long-haul method of effectiveness testindpaiSFAS 133, for substantially all of the
interest rate swaps that hedge its brokered CDsratlum-term notes. The long-haul method requieggdic assessment of hedge
effectiveness and measurement of ineffectivendss iffeffectiveness results to the extent the chairgthe fair value of the derivative do not
offset changes in the fair value of the debt duehtanges in the hedged risk in the Consolidategd®@ents of Income. Prospectively, changes
in the value of the Corporation’s brokered CDs aradlium-term notes should substantially offset thenges in the value of the interest rate
swaps.

First BanCorp’s implementation of the lohgul method resulted from its previously reportetednination that it should not have used
short-cut method to account for interest rate swafaged to brokered CDs and medium-term notesusecaf technical issues involving the
interpretation of the use of the method (referitstBBanCorp audited Consolidated Financial Statésjencluded in the Corporation’s
amended 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K for addétionformation). Accordingly, prior to the implem@tion of the long-haul method,
First BanCorp has reflected changes in the faneaf those swaps as well as swaps related tarcéstns as non-hedging instruments
through operations.

Upon the implementation of the long-haul methgth respect to the brokered CDs and medium-teotas (“hedged liabilities”) on
April 3, 2006, the Corporation has been accretingmortizing the difference between the market &a@nd the book value of the hedged
liabilities on April 3, 2006 of approximately $2@0million as a yield adjustment over the remairtiexgn of the hedged liabilities, as the
changes in value since the inception of the longj-hreethod are recorded to the hedged liabilities.tRe year ended December 31, 2006, the
Corporation recorded an accretion of $3.6 millisragbasis adjustment on the hedged liabilities.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporatiorctele to early adopt Statement of Financial Accaunftandard No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) and Statement of Firangccounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Valuei@pfor Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159”). Following thmitial fair value measurement date, ongoing urizedl gains and losses on items for which
fair value reporting has been elected are repantedrnings at each subsequent financial repodatg.

The Corporation decided to early adopt SFAS® for the callable brokered CDs and a portibtihe callable fixed medium-term notes
(“Notes”) that were hedged with interest rate swajast BanCorp had been following the lohgul method of accounting, which was ado|
on April 3, 2006, under SFAS 133 for the portfadibcallable interest rate swaps, callable brok&Bd and callable notes. One of the main
considerations in determining to early adopt SFAS for these instruments was to
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eliminate the operational procedures required kyldhg-haul method of accounting in terms of docoragon, effectiveness assessment, and
manual procedures followed by the Corporation tfillfithe requirements specified by SFAS 133.

Upon adoption of SFAS 159, First BanCorp geléthe fair value measurement for approximately $dlion, or 63%, of the brokered
CDs portfolio and approximately $29 million, or 1686 the medium-term notes portfolio (“designatiedbilities”). Interest rate risk on the
brokered CDs and medium-term notes chosen foraine@dlue measurement option will continue to bedsel through callable interest rate
swaps with the same terms and conditions. The catiualafter-tax effect on the opening balance t@ined earnings from adopting these
standards is an approximate increase of $92.2amillunder SFAS 159, this one-time charge was raatg®ized in current earnings.

With the elimination of the use of the lohgul method in connection with the adoption of SFA&S as of January 1, 2007, the Corpore
will no longer amortize or accrete the basis adjgstt. The basis adjustment amortization is therssd@f the change in value of the broke
CDs and medium-term notes recognized since thesimghtation of the long-haul method. Since the tineeCorporation implemented the
long-haul method, it has recognized the basis &dprst and the changes in the value of the brok€i2sland medium-term notes based on
the expected call date of the instruments. The timlopf SFAS 159 also requires the recognitionetiained earnings as part of the adoption
adjustment of all of the unamortized placement thaswere paid to broker counterparties upongdkadnce of the brokered CDs and
medium-term notes. The Corporation previously amedtthose fees through earnings based on the xpeall date of the instruments. The
impact of the derecognition of the basis adjustnagk the unamortized placement fees as of Jany@30Y results in a cumulative after-tax
reduction to retained earnings of approximately.828illion. This negative charge is included in tb&al cumulative after-tax increase to
retained earnings of $92.2 million that resultdwtite adoption of SFAS 157 and SFAS 159.

Income recognition — Insurance agencies business

Commission revenue is recognized as of thect¥fe date of the insurance policy or the datectistomer is billed, whichever is later. The
Corporation also receives contingent commissions finsurance companies as additional incentivadbieving specified premium volume
goals and/or the loss experience of the insurate®@ by the Corporation. Contingent commissioomfinsurance companies are recogn
when determinable, which is generally when suchro@sions are received or when the Corporation vesailata from the insurance
companies that allows the reasonable estimatidnesie amounts. The Corporation maintains an alloevémcover for the commissions
which management estimates will be returned upercéimcellation of a policy.

Advertising costs
Advertising costs for all reporting periode @&xpensed as incurred.
Earnings per common share

Earnings per shalmsic is calculated by dividing income availabledmmon stockholders by the weighted average nuofeutstandin
common shares. The computation of earnings peeddiluted is similar to the computation of earnipgs share-basic except that the number
of weighted average common shares is increasettiadie the number of additional common sharesvioaid have been outstanding if the
dilutive common shares had been issued. Stockmptatstanding under the Corporation’s stock opplam are considered in earnings per
share-diluted by the application of the treasuoglstmethod, which assumes that the proceeds faxbecise of options are used to
repurchase common stock in the open market. Ahttide stock options are excluded from the compatatThe computation of earnings per
share considers any stock splits or stock dividemdkthese are retroactively recognized in allquripresented in the financial statements.

Restatement of 2005 and 2004 Consolidated Statemsimif Cash Flows

During the preparation of the 2006 consoliddieancial statements, management became awamd incorrect classifications in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaaded December 31, 2005 and 2004. The classificatirors related to three main items:
1) the treatment of discounts and the related Hoaractivity on certain investment securities (tho%ero coupon securities”) purchased by
the Corporation which were incorrectly presentedash flows related to investing activities (“piipad repayments and maturities of
securities held-to-maturity”), instead of operatagjivities (“net amortization or accretion of diseits and premiums on investment
securities”), 2) the classification of cash flowsrh the disposition of repossessed assets whichnekgled as part of operating activities
(“decrease or increase in other assets”), instéat/esting activities (“proceeds from sale of repessed assetsfyr the same periods, and
purchases of zero coupon bonds and agency disnoteg amounts presented as part of investing ieiVi'purchases of securities held-to-
maturity”)were reported at par amount rather thenactual cash paid for the securities and theodigts on such securities were being
presented as investing activities (“principal repayts and maturities of securities held-to-matiyitsither than being excluded from the C
Flow Statements.
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The cash flows related to the accretion of@isit on certain investment securities have beepaly classified as “cash flows from
operating activities” and the cash flows from tlepdsition of repossessed assets have been prapesbified as “cash flows from investing
activities” in the restated Consolidated StatemehtSash Flows for the years ended December 315 28 2004. The amounts presented as
purchases, principal repayments and maturitiegeaidrities under “cash flows from investing actedi have also been corrected to reflect
actual cash outflows and inflows related to zenopom bonds and discounts notes. In addition, th@&@ation has corrected the classification
of other items (see footnotes in table below) al$ agthe 2005 and 2004 amounts of cash paid ferast (to exclude non cash valuations and
net settlements on derivatives) and additions to epossessions (to include amounts inadvertexttjuded in 2005), included in note 28
“Supplemental Cash Flow Information” to the 2008salidated financial statements.

These corrections impacted solely the clasifin of the aforementioned activities and théndlmvs from operating and investing
activities presented in the Consolidated Statem&n@ash Flows for the years ended December 315 266 2004. However, the changes
made did not impact the net increase (decreadhgitotal Cash and cash equivalents set fortharCibnsolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for any of the previously reported periods. Funthere, the correction has no effect in the Corporesgi Consolidated Statements of Income
(including but not limited to net income and eagsmper share), Consolidated Statements of FinaBoiatlition or Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Stockholder’'s Equity.

The following comparative table presents ttfieats of the restatement of the Consolidated 8tate of Cash Flows for 2005 and 2004:

Year Ended December 31, (in thousand: 2005
As Previously As Previously
reported Restated reported Restated
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 114,60: $ 114,60 $ 177,32 $ 177,32
Net gain on sale of loans, net of impairment (3,63€) (3,270 (3,595 (3,595
Net amortization of premiums and discounts and
deferred loan fees and cost 38¢ (1,725 (1,517 2,30¢
Net amortization or accretion of (discounts) and
premiums on investment securities 14,52( (30,019 15,09( (34,949
Increase in accrued interest payable 77,49¢ 58,80( 14,58¢ 6,82¢
Decrease (increase) in other asset: 5,66% (33,20¢) 7,37¢ (29,537
Increase in other liabilities (¢ 87,25¢ 103,54: 4,86¢ 14,17
Total adjustments to reconcile net income to nehca
provided by operating activitie 252,36¢ 164,80¢ 63,14 (18,439
Net cash provided by operating activities 366,96 279,41: 240,47. 158,89:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Principal collected on loans ( 3,823,22i 3,803,80: 2,266,86! 2,263,04.
Loans originated (£ (6,088,69) (6,058,10) (4,985,69) (4,979,88)
Proceeds from sale of loans 122,16: 120,68 138,83 137,07:
Proceeds from sale of repossessed asse — 33,33 — 32,867
Purchases of securities h-to-maturity (2) (4,757,90) (2,540,82) (5,996,23) (2,233,42)
Purchases of securities availe-for-sale (1) (1,227,79) (1,221,39)) (508,23) (505,73)
Principal repayments and maturities of securitielsl+
to-maturity (2) 4,690,68. 2,511,73 5,744,06! 2,031,51
Principal repayments and maturities of securities
availablefor-sale (1) 325,98 325,98: 341,10: 336,84(
Net cash used in investing activities (3,380,09) (3,292,54) (3,127,42) (3,045,84))
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,466,79: 3,466,79: 2,761,82. 2,761,82.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 453,66! 453,66! (125,13) (125,13)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 926,97! 926,97! 1,052,10: 1,052,10:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric $ 1,380,64! $ 1,380,641 $ 926,97! $ 926,97
Supplemental cash flow information: (6)
Cash paid for
Interest on borrowing $ 555,87( $ 559,64: $ 278,59 $ 409,51
Non-cash investing activitie
Additions to auto repossessic 48,967 72,891 43,78 43,787

(1) Change resulting from the correction of immateeiabrs.

2) Refer to explanation of change in the first parpbraf Restatement of 2005 and 2004 Consolidatet@i8tnts of Cash Flows aboy
3) Change resulting from reclassification to gragsorting of interest payable on interest rate sviiaps line item “increase (decrease) in accruedrggt payable” to line

item “increase (decrease) in other liabili” to be consistent with 2006 presentation and othematerial correctior
4) Change to correct for the exclusion of -cash transactions resulting from the transfer ah$oto repossessed ass
5) Change to correct for the exclusion of -cash transactions resulting from the transfer pbssessed assets to commercial loans originatadadtr plan dealers
(6) Refer to explanation of change in the second papdgof Restatement of 2005 and 2004 ConsolidateeiBents of Cash Flows abo



Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“BASits Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) ané BEC have issued the following
accounting pronouncements and Issue discussiongrelto the Corporation’s operations:

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No."“T5@ Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddficial Liabilities — Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”". This Stateéra#lows entities to choose to measure certaimfired assets and liabilities at fair
value with changes in fair value reflected in eagsi The fair value option may be applied on atrumsent-by-instrument basis. This
Statement is effective for periods after Novemtigr2D07 however, early adoption is permitted prewithat the entity also elects to apply
provisions of SFAS 157 “Fair Value Measurementdie TTorporation adopted SFAS 159 effective Janua?pQ7. For further details and for
the effect on the Corporation’s financial conditeomd results of operations upon adoption of SFAS iéfer toDerivative financial
instrumentsabove.
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In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AdiogiBulletin No. 108 “Considering the Effects afid® Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Finan8tdtements” (SAB 108). This interpretation expeeshe SEC staf§'views regarding tt
process of quantifying financial statement misstegiets that could result in improper amounts of tasseliabilities. While a misstatement
may not be considered material for the period iictvlit occurred, it may be considered material Bubhsequent year if the corporation were
to correct the misstatement through current pezrthings. SAB 108 requires a materiality evaluabiased on all relevant quantitative and
qualitative factors and the quantification of thsstatement using a balance sheet and income statepproach to determine materiality.
SAB 108 is effective for periods ending after Novwemn15, 2006. The adoption of this Statement dichawe a material effect on the
Corporation’s financial condition and results okogtions.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS N8.'Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiand Other Postretirement Plans —
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 10@.38¢R)". This Statement requires corporationstmgnize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretir@rplan as an asset or liability in its statenoériinancial position and to recognize chan
in that funded status in the year in which the gesnoccur through comprehensive income of a busiertity or changes in unrestricted net
assets of a not-for-profit organization. This Staet is effective for periods ending after Decenttigr2006. This Statement is not applicable
to the Corporation and therefore has no impadtécCorporation’s financial condition or resultsopferations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS N@.'E&air Value MeasurementsThis Statement defines fair value, establisheaméworl
for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disgtes about fair value measurements. This Stateieffective for periods beginning
after November 15, 2007. Effective January 1, 2885 Corporation elected to early adopt this Statenor further details and for the effect
on the Corporation’s financial condition and reswif operations upon adoption of SFAS 157, ref@edvative financial instrumentabove.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Inttgtion No. 48 — “Accounting for Uncertainty incime Taxes — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109". This interpretation clarifiee faccounting for uncertainty in income taxes rec in accordance with SFAS 109. This
interpretation provides a recognition threshold emehsurement attribute for the financial statemeegnition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmefThis interpretation also provides guidancelerecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. This interpretation is effectise periods beginning after December 15,
2006. The Corporation adopted FIN 48 effective dayd, 2007. The cumulative effect of adoption B B8 resulted in an increase of $2.6
million to tax reserves with offsetting adjustmetusetained earnings. Additionally, in connectioith the adoption of FIN 48, the
Corporation elected to classify interest and pémlelated to unrecognized tax portions as compsref income tax expense.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 156 “Aatmng for Servicing of Financial Assets,” an amerainof SFAS No. 140. This
Statement allows servicing assets and servicifigjitias to be initially measured at fair value a¢pwith any derivative instruments used to
mitigate inherent risks. This Statement is effexfior periods beginning after September 15, 200@. adoption of this Statement in 2007 did
not have a material effect on the Corporation’aficial condition and results of operations.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 155ctAmting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumerdgs, amendment of FASB Statements
No. 133 and 14". This Statement allows fair value measuremengfor hybrid financial instrument that contains artbedded derivative
requiring bifurcation. It also establishes a reguient to evaluate interests in securitized findragaets to establish whether the interests are
freestanding derivatives or hybrid financial instients that contain an embedded derivative requbifugcation. This Statement is effective
for all financial instruments acquired or issuettaBeptember 15, 2006. The adoption of this Statemiid not have a material effect on the
Corporation’s financial condition and results okogtions.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS 154 “AccaunChanges and Error Corrections — a replacenfeldP8 Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3". This Statement changes the reapeints for the accounting for and reporting of ntary change in accounting principle.
This Statement requires retrospective applicatigorior periods’ financial statements of a changadcounting principle unless it is
impracticable to do so; in which case the earfiestod for which retrospective application is pieable should be applied. If it is
impracticable to calculate the cumulative effeca@hange in accounting principle, the Statemeqiires prospective application as of the
earliest date practicable. This Statement doeshantge the guidance in APB Opinion No. 20 with rdda the reporting of the correction of
an error, or a change in accounting estimate. Tae®ent’'s purpose is to improve the comparahiltfinancial information among periods.
SFAS No. 154 is effective for fiscal years beginnaiter December 15, 2005. The adoption of thiseBtant did not have a material effect on
the Corporation’s financial condition and result®perations.
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Note 2 — Restrictions on Cash and Due from Banks

The Corporation’s Bank subsidiary is requibgdaw, as enforced by the Office of the Commiseioof Financial Institutions of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, to maintain minimurerage weekly reserve balances. The amount of tng=mge reserve balances for the
week ended December 31, 2006 was $165 million (2605161 million). As of December 31, 2006 and 200&, Bank complied with the
requirement. Cash and due from banks as well a&s stfort-term, highly liquid securities are useddwer the required average reserve
balances.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and as redjliy the Puerto Rico International Banking Lave, @orporation maintained separately
for two of its international banking entities (IBE$600,000 in time deposits, equally split betweentwo IBEs which were considered
restricted assets.

Note 3 — Money Market Investments

Money market investments are composed of momeket instruments, federal funds, securities lpased under agreements to resell and
time deposits with other financial institutions.

The securities purchased underlying the agee¢srto resell were delivered to, and are heldh®/Corporation. The counterparties to such
agreements maintain effective control over suchirsges. The Corporation is permitted by contractapledge the securities, and has agreed
to resell to the counterparties the same or sutisligrsimilar securities at the maturity of theragments.

The fair value of the collateral securitietdh@y the Corporation on these transactions asesfeinber 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
Market Market
Value of Value of
Balance Collateral Balance Collateral
Money market instruments, interest ranging fronv%8o 5.29% (2005
3.81% to 4.25% $377,29¢ N/A $ 666,85t N/A
Federal funds sold, interest 5.15% (2(- 4.09%) 42,05 N/A 8,961 N/A
Securities purchased under agreements to reselépladged, interest
(2005- 3.25%) — — 500,00t 510,01:
Time deposits with other financial institutionstarest ranging from
5.14% to 5.38% (200- 4.10%) 37,12¢ N/A 48,96¢ N/A
Total $456,47( $1,224,79.

Note 4 — Investment Securities

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gaind@swks, approximate fair value, and weighted aeeydeld by contractual maturities of
investment securities available-for-sale as of Ddwer 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
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December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross Weighted Gross Weighted
Amortized Unrealized Fair average Amortized Unrealized Fair average
cost gains losses value yield% cost gains losses value yield%

(Dollars in thousands)
Obligations of U.S.
government sponsore(

agencies
Within 1 year $ —$%$ —$ — 3 — $ 1000 $ — $ — $ 100C 6.0C
After 5 to 10 year. 402,54. 6 11,82 390,72¢ 4.31 392,93¢ —  4,28¢ 388,65( 4.27
After 10 years 12,98 — 12C 12,86¢ 6.1¢€ — — — —
Puerto Rico government
obligations:
After 1 to 5 year: 4,63t 12€ — 4,761 6.1¢ 4,59¢ 22% — 4,817 6.17
After 5 to 10 year. 15,53¢ 21¢ 50¢ 15,24: 4.8¢€ 15,27: 19¢€ 67¢ 14,78¢ 4.84
After 10 years 5,37¢ 98 17¢ 5,29¢ 5.8¢ 5,311 131 42 5,40( 5.8¢
United States and Puertc
Rico government
obligations $ 441,07: $ 44¢ $12,62¢ $ 428,89 44 $ 419,11' $ 55C $ 5,00¢ $ 414,65¢ 4.3¢
Mortgage-backed
securities
FHLMC certificates
Within 1 year $ 82 $§ — $ — $ 82 59¢ $ 2% — % — $ 2 4.2¢
After 1 to 5 year: 1,66¢ 36 — 1,70z 6.9¢ 1,762 30 — 1,792 6.4%
After 5 to 10 year — — — — — 1,33¢ 82 — 1,41¢ 7.9¢
After 10 years 5,84¢ 55 11C 5,791 5.61 6,83¢ 77 16€ 6,75( 5.5¢
7,59¢ 91 11C 7,57¢ 5.9z 9,93¢ 18¢ 16€ 9,96: 6.0
GNMA certificates:
After 1 to 5 year: 86¢ 10 — 87¢ 6.44 93¢ 14 — 958 6.3¢
After 5 to 10 year 79t 3 3 79t 5.5¢% 291 10 — 301 6.64
After 10 years 379,36: 47C 7,13¢ 372,69 5.2¢ 438,56! 1,021 1,95¢ 437,62 5.1¢

381,02 48:< 7,13¢ 374,36 5.2¢ 439,79¢ 1,04¢ 1,95¢ 438,88: 5.2C

FNMA certificates:

After 1 to 5 year: a0 — — a0 7.34 187 3 — 19C 7.58
After 5 to 10 year 18,04( 10 30t 17,74: 4.81 124 11 — 13t 11.4(
After 10 years 864,50¢ 675 11,47¢ 853,70! 5.1¢ 1,038,121 1,05¢ 10,037 1,029,14! 5.14

882,63t 685 11,78 871,54( 5.17 1,038,43 1,06¢ 10,031 1,029,47. 5.14

Mortgage pass-through

certificates:
After 10 year: 367 3 — 37C 7.2¢ 40C 3 — 408 7.2¢
Mortgage-backed
securities $1,271,62. $1,26( $19,03( $1,253,85: 5.21 $1,488,57. $2,30t $12,15¢ $1,478,72 5.1¢€
Corporate bonds
After 1 to 5 year: $ —$ —$ — 3 — — $ 248 $ 84 $ 1 $ 256¢€ 7.7
After 5 to 10 year 1,30( — 83 1,217 7.7C 1,912 12 42 1,88 8.0¢
After 10 years 4,41 — 66€ 3,744 7.97 21,85% 90¢ 1,83: 20,93 7.44
Corporate bond $ 571 8 — $ 751 $ 4,961 791 $ 26,25. $1,008 $ 187¢ $ 25,38 7.52

Equity securities (without
contractual maturity $ 12,40¢ $ 45z $ 14F $ 12,71f 3.7C $ 29,93 $1,131 $ 1,641 $ 29,42 3.7¢

Total investment securities
availablefor-sale $1,730,81; $2,161 $32,55( $1,700,42. 5.01 $1,963,86' $4,991 $20,68: $1,948,17: 5.0C

Maturities for mortgage-backed securitiestssed upon contractual terms assuming no repayfpesgayments. Expected maturities of
investments might differ from contractual matustigecause they may be subject to prepayments azalla@ptions. The weighted average
yield on investment securities availe-for-sale is based on amortized cost; therefordods not give effect to changes in fair value. fibe
unrealized gains or losses on investment secustiadable-for-sale are presented as part of actatediother comprehensive income.

The aggregate amortized cost and approximat&ehvalue of investment securities availabledfale as of December 31, 2006, by
contractual maturity are shown below:

Amortized Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands




Within 1 year $ 82 $ 82

After 1 to 5 year: 7,251 7,42¢
After 5 to 10 year: 438,21 425,73(
After 10 years 1,272,85! 1,254,46
Total 1,718,401 1,687,70:i
Equity securitie: 12,40¢ 12,71¢
Total Investment securities availa-for-sale $ 1,730,81 $1,700,42.

The following table shows the Corporation’sidable-for-sale investments’ fair value and groseealized losses, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that indiidsecurities have been in a continuous unreal@Eiposition, as of December 31, 2006
and 2005:
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December 31, 2006

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(Dollars in thousands
Debt securities

U.S. Treasury note $ 21,80: $ 14¢ $381,79( $ 11,79« $ 403,59. $ 11,94(
Puerto Rico government obligatio — — 13,47 68€ 13,47 68€
Mortgage-backed securities
FHLMC 30 — 3,90¢ 11C 3,93¢ 11C
GNMA 354,07: 7,13¢ — — 354,07: 7,13¢
FNMA 376,81: 4,71¢ 465,60t 7,062 842,41 11,78
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bond — — 4,961 751 4,961 751
Equity securities
Equity securitie: 1,62¢ 142 — 1,62¢ 142

$754,34° $ 12,147 $869,73¢ $ 20,40: $1,624,08. $ 32,55(

December 31, 2005
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(Dollars in thousands
Debt securities

U.S. Treasury note $ 388,65! $ 4,28¢ $ — $ — $ 388,65! $ 4,28¢

Puerto Rico government obligatio — — 13,44( 72C 13,44( 72C

Mortgage-backed securities

FHLMC 4,44( 16€ — — 4,44( 16€

GNMA 369,23: 1,95¢ — — 369,23: 1,95¢

FNMA 939,19 10,03: — — 939,19 10,03:

Corporate Bonds

Corporate Bond 8,711 1,87¢ — — 8,711 1,87¢

Equity securities

Equity securities 16,22¢ 1,641 — — 16,22¢ 1,641
$1,726,45 $ 19,96 $ 13,44( $ T2 $1,739,89: $ 20,68:

The investment portfolio is structured prinhaviith highly liquid securities which have histoaily possessed a large and efficient
secondary market. Valuations are performed at wast quarterly basis using third party providerd dealer quotes. Management has the
intent and ability to hold these investments foeasonable period of time for a forecasted recowéfgir value up to (or beyond) the cost of
these investments, as a result, the impairmentrisidered temporary.

Total proceeds from the sale of securitiesnduthe year ended December 31, 2006 amounted3®.$2nillion (2005 — $252.7 million,
2004 — $131.6 million). The Corporation realizedsg gains of $7.25 million (2005 — $21.4 millio®02 — $12.2 million), and realized
gross losses of $0.2 million (2005 — $0.7 milli@004 — $0).

During the year ended December 31, 2006, trpd@ation recognized through earnings approxingei&b.3 million (2005 —
$8.4 million, 2004 — $2.7 million) in losses in thevestment securities available-for-sale portféfiat management considered to be other-
than-temporarily impaired. The impairment lossesewelated to equity securities.
Investments Held-to-Maturity

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gaind@swts, approximate fair value, weighted averagld ynd contractual maturities of
investment securities held-to-maturity as of Decendi, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
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December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross Weighted Gross Weighted
Amortized Unrealized Fair average Amortized Unrealized Fair average
cost gains losses value yield% cost gains losses value yield%

(Dollars in thousands)
U.S. Treasury securitie
Due within 1 yea $ 158,40 $44 $ — $ 158,44¢ 497 $ 149,15¢ $48 ¢ — $ 149,20 3.97

Obligations of other U.S.
Government sponsore

agencies
Due within 1 yea 24,69t 5 — 24,70( 5.2t — — — —
After 10 years 2,074,94: — b3,66¢ 2,021,27! 5.8¢ 2,041,55! —  65,79¢ 1,975,75 5.8¢
Puerto Rico government
obligations:
After 5 to 10 year. 16,71¢  55% 11F 17,15¢ 5.84 5,00( 20 — 5,02( 5.0C
After 10 years 15,00( 53 — 15,05! 5.5C 9,16: 50z 143 9,52: 5.9¢

United States and Puel
Rico government

obligations $2,289,75! $65F $53,787 $2,236,62! 5.7¢ $2,204,87 $57C $ 65,94: $2,139,50! 5.7C
Mortgage-backed
securities
FHLMC certificates
After 5 to 10 year. 15,43¢ — 577 14,86 361 $ 2021 $— $ 77¢ $ 19,43 3.6%
FNMA certificates:
After 5 to 10 year: 14,23 — 484 13,75( 3.8C 18,41¢ — 602 17,81¢ 3.7¢
After 10 years 1,025,70: 48 36,06« 989,68’ 4.4C 1,195,08; — 35,277 1,159,80! 4.3z
Mortgage-backed
securities $1,055,37! $ 48 $37,12¢f $1,018,29 4.3t $1,233,71. $ — $ 36,657 $1,197,05 4.3(C

Corporate bonds
After 10 years $ 2000 $40 $ — $ 2,04 58(C $ — $— 3 — 3 —

Total investment securities
helc-to-maturity $3,347,13.  $74% $90,90¢ $3,256,96! 5.3z  $3,438,58! $57C $102,59¢ $3,336,55! 5.2C

Maturities for mortgage-backed securitiestased upon contractual terms assuming no repayfpesgayments. Expected maturities of
investments might differ from contractual matustigecause they may be subject to prepayments azadlaptions.

The aggregate amortized cost and approximat&ehvalue of investment securities held-to-m#guas of December 31, 2006, by
contractual maturity are shown below:

Amortized Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands
Within 1 year $ 183,09 $ 183,14t
After 1 to 5 year: — —
After 5 to 10 year: 46,38¢ 45,76¢
After 10 years 3,117,64! 3,028,05!
Total Investment securities h-to-maturity $ 3,347,13 $3,256,96!

The Corporation has securities held-to-matuhiat are considered cash and cash equivalentarardassified as money market
investments on the Consolidated Statements of Eiab@ondition:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

(Dollars in thousands
U.S. government and U.S
government sponsored

agencie
Due within 30 day: $199,97: $ 27 $ — $200,00( $171,84: $ 22 $ — $171,86:
After 30 days up to

60 days — — — — 31,14¢ 7 — 31,15t

After 60 days up ti



90 days 175,88! 78 — 175,96: 462,45 37 — 462,49(
$375,85¢ $ 10t $ — $375,96: $665,44: $ 66 $ — $665,50¢

The following table shows the Corporation’sdh®-maturity investments’ fair value and grossealized losses, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual sedesithave been in a continuous unrealized lossiposis of December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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December 31, 2006

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands

Debt securities
U.S. government sponsored agen  $ — $ — $2,021,27! $ 53,66¢ $2,021,27! $ 53,66¢
Puerto Rico governme — — 3,97¢ 11F 3,97¢ 11F
Mortgage-backed securities
FHLMC — — 14,86: 577 14,86: 577
FNMA 24,58¢ 1,02( 975,51( 35,52¢ 1,000,09 36,54¢

$ 24,58¢ $ 1,02( $3,015,62. $ 89,88¢ $3,040,21. $ 90,90¢

December 31, 2005
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands

Debt securities
U.S. government sponsored agen ~ $1,585,81i $ 40,37¢ $ 389,94¢ $ 25,42( $1,975,75! $ 65,79¢
Puerto Rico governme 3,74¢ 145 — — 3,74¢ 145
Mortgage-backed securities
FHLMC — — 19,43: 77¢ 19,43: 77¢
FNMA 11,77: 33¢ 1,165,84! 35,54( 1,177,62 35,87¢

$1,601,32 $ 40,86 $1,575,23; $ 61,73¢ $3,176,55! $102,59¢

Held-to-maturity securities in an unrealizedd position as of December 31, 2006 are primardytgage-backed securities and U.S.
agency securities. The vast majority of them aredréhe equivalent of AAA by the major rating agescManagement believes that the
unrealized losses in the held-to-maturity portf@of December 31, 2006 are related to marketeisiteate fluctuations and not deterioration
in the creditworthiness of the issuers; as a rethdtimpairment is considered temporary.

The following table states the name of issuansl the aggregate amortized cost and market wdlilne securities of such issuers (includes
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitieglen the aggregate amortized cost of such sexsigkceeds 10% of stockholders’ equity.
This information excludes securities of the U.S1 8iR. Government. Investments in obligations idduea state of the U.S. and its political
subdivisions and agencies which are payable andegby the same source of revenue or taxing atghother than the U.S. Government,
are considered securities of a single issuer arldde debt and mortgage-backed securities.

2006 2005
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands
FHLMC $ 1,012,86: $ 991,14. $ 991,30: $ 953,63(
GNMA 381,02 374,36¢ 439,79! 438,88:
FNMA 2,839,63. 2,763,87. 3,175,67. 3,107,84.
FHLB 428,16( 423,81¢ 328,51( 322,64(
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Note 5 — Other Equity Securities

Institutions that are members of the FHLB sgsare required to maintain a minimum investmerhiLB stock. Such minimum is
calculated as a percentage of aggregate outstantingages and an additional investment is requfratlis calculated as a percentage of
total FHLB advances, letters of credit, and théatetalized portion of interesite swaps outstanding. The stock is capital sksiked at $1C
par. Both stock and cash dividends may be receimegeHLB stock. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 ar@42€he Corporation received
$2.0 million, $3.3 million and $1.0 million, resgiely, in dividends from FHLB stock.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there werestments in FHLB stock with a book value of $38itlion and $40.9 million,
respectively. The estimated market value of sughstments is its redemption value determined bywttimate recoverability of its par value.

The Corporation has other equity securitie$ tto not have a readily available fair value. @h@unt of such securities as of Decembe!
2006 and 2005 was $1.7 million and $1.4 milliorspectively.
Note 6 — Interest and Dividend on Investments

A detail of interest on investments and FHL#dend income follows:

Year ended December 3.
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Interest on money market investmel

Taxable $ 2181t $ 297¢ % 92
Exempt 49,09¢ 18,91: 3,644
70,91« 21,88¢ 3,73¢

Mortgagebacked securitie:
Taxable 3,121 3,391 3,521
Exempt 121,68’ 127,37 119,23
124,80t 130,76t 122,75t

PR Government securities, US Treasury securitidsoafigation of US Government
sponsored agencie

Taxable — — —
Exempt 154,07¢ 134,61- 101,74.
154,07¢ 134,61« 101,74.
Equity securities

Taxable 274 58¢ —
Exempt 76 1,03¢ 511
35C 1,62¢ 511

Other investment securitie
Taxable 2,57¢ 5,66¢ 974
Exempt 31 92¢ 2,43:
2,61( 6,59¢ 3,407

Total interest and dividenc
on investment $352,76: $ 295,49( $232,15¢

The following table summarizes the componeiisterest and dividend income on investments:
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Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Interest income on investment securities and momanket investment $350,75( $291,85¢ $230,24:
Dividends on FHLB stoc 2,00¢ 3,28¢ 974
Net interest realized on interest rate sw (25 (479 (1,92))
Interest income excluding unrealized gain (lossylenivatives (economic undesignated
hedges 352,73 294,66 229,29t
Unrealized gain on derivatives (economic undesiggh&edges) from interest rate swap
corporate bond 27 823 2,85¢
Total interest income and dividends on investm $352,76. $295,49( $232,15¢
Note 7 — Loans Receivable
The following is a detail of the loan portfmli
December 31 December 31
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
Residential real estate loans, mainly securedrsyriortgage $ 2,737,39. $ 2,245,27.
Commercial loans
Construction loan 1,511,60:! 1,137,11
Commercial mortgage loal 1,215,041 1,090,119
Commercial loan 2,698,14. 2,421,21!
Commercial loans to local financial institutiondlateralized by real estate mortgages and passthro
trust certificate: 932,011 3,676,31
Total commercial loan 6,356,80: 8,324,84.
Finance lease 361,63: 280,57
Consumer loan 1,772,91 1,733,56!
Loans receivabl 11,228,74 12,584,25
Allowance for loan losse (158,296 (147,999
Loans receivable, ni 11,070,44 12,436,25
Loans held for sal 35,23¢ 101,67:
Total loans $11,105,68  $12,537,93

As of December 31, 2006, loans in which theraal of interest income had been discontinued antemito $252.1 million (2005 —
$134.3 million). If these loans had been accruiigrest, the additional interest income realizedld/dave been $14.1 million (2005 —
$7.0 million; 2004 — $5.9 million). Past due anill siccruing loans, which are contractually delieqti90 days or more, amounted to $31.6
million as of December 31, 2006 (2005 — $27.5 ).

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation veagising residential mortgage loans owned by otlhggregating $592.0 million
(2005 — $423.5 million) and construction loans od/bg others aggregating $39.7 million (2005 — $2@iBion).

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation veagising commercial loan participations owned blyars aggregating $167.8 million
(2005 — $138.4 million).

Various loans secured by first mortgages vassegned as collateral for certificates of depasdtividual retirement accounts and advances
from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The mortgage @ddgs collateral amounted to $1.9 billion as ofdédelger 31, 2006 and 2005.

The Corporation’s primary lending area is Bu&ico. The Corporation’s subsidiary Bank alsalkeim the U.S. and British
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Virgin Islands markets and in the State of Floifld&A). The Corporation has a significant lendingaentration of $509.1 million in one
mortgage originator in Puerto Rico as of Decemle2B06. The Corporation has outstanding $422.Bomilvith another mortgage origina
in Puerto Rico for total loans granted to mortgagginators amounting to $932.0 million as of Detem31, 2006. These commercial loans
were secured by 10,307 individual mortgage loansesitdential and commercial real estate with amage principal balance of $90,425 e
The mortgage originators have always paid the limascordance with their terms and conditions.

On May 25, 2006, the Corporation entered ingeries of credit agreements with Doral to docurasrsecured borrowings the loan
transfers between the parties that previously eehlaccounted for incorrectly as sales. The tefrtteeccredit agreements specified: (1) a
floating interest payment based on a spread ovela§(LIBOR subject to a cap; (2) an amortizationestule tied to the scheduled
amortization of the underlying mortgage loans scidie@ a maximum maturity of 10 years; (3) mandafmgpayments as a result of actual
prepayments from the underlying mortgages; anéui4)ption to Doral to prepay the loan without pgnat any time.

On May 31, 2006, First BanCorp received a gashment from Doral, substantially reducing theabak of approximately $2.9 billion in
secured commercial loans to approximately $450anilas of that date. In connection with the repaytihe Corporation and Doral entered
into a sharing agreement on May 25, 2006 with retsjoecertain profits or losses that Doral incusgart of the sales of the mortgages that
previously collateralized the commercial loanssFBanCorp agreed to reimburse Doral for 40% ofitelosses incurred by Doral as a result
of sales of the mortgages, subject to certain ¢mmdi and subject to a maximum reimbursement @ #8llion, which will be reduced
proportionately to the extent that Doral does miitthe mortgages. As a result of the loss shaagngement and the partial extinguishment of
the commercial loans by Doral and the gain shaagrgement, the Corporation recorded a net losd@Bdmillion composed of losses
realized as part of the sharing agreement, thereifice between the carrying value of the loandf@ndet payment received from Doral.

Of the total net loans receivable of $11.1idlfor 2006, approximately 78% have credit risincentration in Puerto Rico, 14% in the
United States and 8% in the Virgin Islands.

On December 6, 2005, the Corporation obtameaiver from the Office of the Commissioner ofdfigial Institutions of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico with respect to theustay limit for individual borrowers (loan-to-ori®rrower limit) as it relates to total
loans granted to mortgage originators.

Note 8 — Allowance for loan and lease losses

The changes in the allowance for loan andeléasses were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $147,99¢ $141,03¢ $126,37¢
Provision charged to incon 74,99: 50,64« 52,79¢
Losses charged against the allowa (77,209 (51,920 (44,047
Recoveries credited to the allowar 12,51t 6,87¢ 5,901
Other adjustmeni(@ 1,361 —
Balance at end of ye $158,29¢ $147,99¢ $141,03¢

(1) Represents allowance for loan and lease lossestfreracquisition of FirstBank Florid

The allowance for impaired loans is part & #flowance for loan and lease losses. These lepnssent loans for which management has
determined that it is probable that the debtor badllunable to pay all the amounts due, accorditige@ontractual terms of the loan
agreement, and do not necessarily represent loanghich the Corporation will incur a substantiags. As of December 31, 2006, all
impaired loans had a related allowance and the caenis were as follows:
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Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Impaired loans with a related allowar $63,02: $59,80: $59,21¢
Allowance for impaired loan 9,98¢ 9,21¢ 17,52:
During the year
Average balance of impaired loa 54,08: 59,68: 65,52(
Interest income recognized on impaired lo 3,23¢ 4,58¢ 2,261

Note 9 — Related Party Transactions

The Corporation granted loans to its directerecutive officers and certain related individual entities in the ordinary course of
business. The movement and balance of these loaresas follows:

Amount

(Dollars in thousand
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 61,60:
New loans 25,13(
Payment: (7,662
Other change 333
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 79,400
New loans 57,62
Payment: (15,800
Other change (2,379
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 118,85:

These loans do not involve more than nornsil of collectibility and management considers firasent terms are no more favorable than
those that would have been obtained if transacti@asbeen with unrelated parties. The amounts reg@s other changes include changes in
the status of those who are considered relateééepamainly due to directors whose terms have egpir

From time to time, the Corporation in the aatly course of its business, obtains services fimdated parties or makes contributions to
non-profit organizations that have some associatitimthe Corporation. Management believes the sepfrsuch arrangements are consistent
with arrangements entered into with independend tharties.

Note 10 — Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment is comprised of:

Useful life December 31,
in years 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Buildings and improvemen 10-40 $ 75,51¢ $ 57,50(
Leasehold improvemen 1-15 37,57 33,11
Furniture and equipme 3-10 98,39 86,78t
211,48. 177,40(
Accumulated depreciatic (100,039 (88,849
111,44 88,55¢
Land 21,82« 12,62
Projects in progres 22,39¢ 15,76¢
Total premises and equipment, $ 155,66: $116,94¢
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Note 11 — Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 artexlito $28.7 million and resulted primarily frohetacquisition of Ponce General
Corporation.

As of December 31, 2006, the gross carryinguthand accumulated amortization of core depotnigibles was $41.2 million and
$15.0 million, respectively (December 31, 2005 —2 .24million and $11.6 million, respectively). Dugitthe year ended December 31, 2006,
the amortization expense of core deposit intangibfaounted to $3.4 million (2005 — $3.7 million;020— $2.4 million).

The following table presents the estimatedeggte annual amortization expense of the coresiteptangible for each of the following
five fiscal years:

(Dollars in thousand

2007 $ 3,26¢
2008 3,26¢
2009 3,061
2010 2,32¢
2011 2,32¢

Note 12 — Deposits and Related Interest

Deposits and related interest consist of tflewing:

December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Type of account and interest ra

Non-interes-bearing checking accour $ 790,98 $ 811,00t
Savings accoun- 1.00% to 5.00% (200- 1.00% to 1.81% 984,33: 1,034,04
Interes-bearing checking accour—1.01% to 5.00% (200- 1.01% to 2.16% 433,27¢ 375,30!
Certificates of depos— 0.75% to 7.25% (200- 0.75% to 7.25% 1,696,21. 1,664,37
Brokered certificates of depo— 3.00% to 6.13% (200- 2.50% to 6.13% 7,099,47! 8,579,01

$11,004,28 $12,463,75

The weighted average interest rate on totabsliés as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 4.92P3.89%, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate amafumierdrafts in demand deposits that were redlagsas loans amounted to $22.2 million
(2005 — $17.4 million).

The following table presents a summary ofifieates of deposit with a remaining term of mdnan one year as of December 31, 2006:

Total

(Dollars in thousand

Over one year to two yea $ 624,68:
Over two years to three ye: 324,63.
Over three years to four yes 248,94
Over four years to five yea 197,11¢
Over five year: 3,637,91.
Total $ 5,033,29;
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As of December 31, 2006, certificates of d&p@Ds) in denominations of $100,000 or higher amed to $8.0 billion (2005 —
$9.5 hillion) including brokered CDs of $7.0 bilig2005 — $8.6 billion) at a weighted average mdt6.06% (2005 — 4.54%). As of
December 31, 2006, unamortized broker placemestda®unted to $41.3 million (2005 — $50.0 milliav)ich are amortized over the
expected maturity of the brokered CDs under theré@st method.

As of December 31, 2006, deposit accounteibso government agencies with a carrying valug3d4.1 million (2005 — $02.7 million)
were collateralized by securities with a carryiredue of $401.3 million (2005 —380.4 million) and estimated market value of $394illion
(2005 — $329.9 million), and by municipal obligat®with a carrying value and estimated market vafu#31.5 million (2005 —
$32.4 million).

A table showing interest expense on deposiksviis:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Interes-bearing checking accour $ 5,91¢ $ 4,73( $ 3,68¢
Savings 12,97( 12,57: 10,93¢
Certificates of depos 80,28 52,76¢ 28,954
Brokered certificates of depo: 505,86( 323,08: 76,26¢
Total $605,03: $393,15: $119,84:

The interest expense on certificates of deposiudes the valuation to market of interest t@ps that hedge brokered certificates of
deposit, the related interest exchanged, the amatidn of broker placement fees and the basis td@rg amortization on the brokered CDs
designated under fair value hedges.

The following are the components of interegtemse on brokered certificates of deposit:

Year ended December 3.

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Interest expense on brokered certificates of dé $431,00¢ $ 238,82.  $76,73(
Accretion of basis adjustments on fair value hec (3,576 — —
Amortization of broker placement fe 19,89¢ 15,09¢ 12,94
Interest expense on certificates of deposit exolyidinrealized loss (gain) on derivatives

(designated and undesignated hed 447,32¢ 253,91¢ 89,67:
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives (designatedi andesignated hedge 58,53: 69,16 (13,409

Total interest expense on brokered certificatedepbsit $505,86( $ 323,08: $ 76,26«

Total interest expense on brokered CDs indudierest exchanged on interest rate swaps thigiehgesignated and undesignated brokered
CDs that for the year ended December 31, 2006 atedua net interest incurred of $8.9 million (2065net interest realized of
$71.7 million; 2004 — net interest realized of $X2nillion).

Note 13 — Federal Funds Purchased and SecuritiesI8dJnder Agreements to Repurchase

Federal funds purchased and securities saldnegreements to repurchase (repurchase agreg¢memssst of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
Repurchase agreements, interest ranging from 3ta@84% (200:- 3.26% to 5.39% $3,687,72. $4,833,88;

The weighted average interest rates of fedanals purchased and repurchase agreements asefmber 31, 2006 and
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2005 was 4.87% and 4.31%, respectively.
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agnéemature as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
One to thirty day: $1,898,34 $ 988,55t
Over thirty to ninety day 158,67" 689,36¢
Over ninety days to one ye 543,20( —
Over one yea 1,087,50! 3,155,96!
Total $3,687,72. $4,833,88:

The following securities were sold under agrents to repurchase:

December 31, 2001

Amortized Approximate Weighted
cost of fair value average
underlying Balance of of underlying interest
Underlying securitie securities borrowing securites rate of security
(Dollars in thousands
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of oth&.Government
sponsored agenci $2,459,971  $2,233,291  $2,394,92. 5.5¢%
PR Government securiti 374 34C 39z 6.4&%
Mortgagebacked securitie 1,601,68! 1,454,09. 1,564,73 4.88%
Total $4,062,03! $3,687,72. $ 3,960,05!
Accrued interest receivab $ 38,41
December 31, 200!
Amortized Approximate Weighted
cost of fair value average
underlying Balance of of underlying interest
Underlying securitie securities borrowing securites rate of security
(Dollars in thousands
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of oth&.Government
sponsored agenci $2,797,78  $2,573,02!  $2,729,25: 5.35%
PR Government securitit 351 325 374 6.4&%
Mortgage-backed securitie 2,457,99; 2,260,53. 2,415,35. 4.78%
Total $5,256,12. $4,833,88,; $5,144,97
Accrued interest receivab $ 36,89

The maximum aggregate balance outstanding@@006 was $4.8 billion (January) (2005 — $5.0dsil (June)). The average balance

during 2006 was $4.1 billion (2005 — $4.6 billion).

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the seearithderlying such agreements were delivered tbaembeing held by the dealers with

which the repurchase agreements were transacted.
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Note 14 — Advances from the Federal Home Loan BanlEHLB)
Following is a detail of the advances from Eh¢_B:

December 31,

Maturity Interest rate 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
January 1, 200 4.44% $ — $105,00(
January 3, 200 4.1% — 18,00(
September 18, 20( 4.37% — 100,00(
December 19, 200 5.6(% 20,00¢( —
January 25, 200 3.81% 10,00( 10,00(
June 19, 200 5.61% 15,00( —
October 9, 200: 5.1(% 14,00( 14,00(
October 16, 200 5.0¢% 15,00( 15,00(
November 17, 200 5.41% 200,00( —
December 15, 200 5.4(% 200,00( —
January 15, 200 5.6% 20,00( —
June 19, 200 5.6(% 15,00( —
July 21, 200¢ 5.44% 20,00( —
December 14, 20C 4.9€% 7,00( —
December 14, 201 4.97% 7,00( —
February 28, 201 4.5(% — 79,00((1)
March 21, 201: 4.42% — 165,00(®)
October 19, 201 5.22% 10,00¢( —
December 14, 201 4.9%% 7,00( —

$560,00( $506,00(

(1) These advances were called during 2(

Advances are received from the FHLB under daahces, Collateral Pledge and Security AgreentbatGollateral Agreement). Under
Collateral Agreement, the Corporation is requiedhiintain a minimum amount of qualifying mortgagdlateral with a market value of
generally 125% or higher of the outstanding advangs of December 31, 2006, the estimated valwvailable specific mortgage loans
collateral pledged amounted to $1.2 billion (200552-1 billion), as computed by the FHLB for collaiepurposes. The carrying value of
such loans as of December 31, 2006 amounted tadfilich (2005 — $1.9 billion). In addition, sectigs with an approximate market value
of $1.0 million (2005 — $1.2 million) and a carrgiralue of $1.0 million (2005 — $1.2 million) weptéedged to the FHLB.
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Note 15 — Notes Payable

Notes payable consist of:

Callable fixec-rate notes, bearing interest at 6.00%, maturin@ctober 1, 202.

Callable step-rate notes, bearing step increasiegeast from 5.00% to 7.00%, maturing on October 18

2019

Dow Jones Industrial Average (DJIA) linked prindipeotected notes

Series A, maturing on February 28, 2(

Series B, maturing on May 27, 20

Note 16 — Other Borrowings
Other borrowings consist of:

Junior subordinated debentures due in 2034, intbesring at a floating rate of 2.75% over threeatho
LIBOR (2006- 8.11%, 200%- 7.25%)

Junior subordinated debentures due in 2034, iritbeering at a floating rate of 2.50% over threeatho
LIBOR (2006- 7.87%, 200%- 7.00%)
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December 31,

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
$151,55¢ $149,45¢
15,61¢ 15,24t

7,52t 6,752
8,13t 7,24(C

December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

$102,85: $102,75t¢
128,86t 128,86t
$231,71¢ $231,62:
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Note 17 — Unused Lines of Credit

The Corporation maintains unsecured uncomciites of credit with other banks. As of Decem®g&r 2006, the Corporation’s total
unused lines of credit with these banks amount&®&5 million (2005 — $370 million). As of Deceml#t, 2006, the Corporation has an
available line of credit with the FHLB guaranteeithnexcess collateral already pledged, in the arhofii687.7 million (2005 —
$597.9 million).

Note 18 — Earnings per Common Share

The calculations of earnings per common sfarthe years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 andl 200w:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands, except per share c

Net income $ 84,63 $114,60:¢ $177,32!
Less: dividends on preferred stc (40,27¢) (40,27¢) (40,27¢)
Net income available to common stockholc $ 44,35¢ $ 74,32¢ $137,04¢
Earnings per common sh-basic:

Net income available to common stockholc $ 44,35¢ $ 74,32¢ $137,04¢

Weighted average common shares outstan 82,83t 80,84 80,41¢

Earnings per common sh-basic $ 0.5 $ 0.92 $ 1.7c
Earnings per common sh-diluted:

Net income available to common stockholc $ 44,35¢ $ 74,32¢ $137,04¢

Weighted average common shares and share equisi

Average common shares outstanc 82,83t 80,84 80,41¢

Common stock equivalen— stock options 303 1,92¢ 2,591

Total 83,13¢ 82,77 83,01(

Earnings per common sh-diluted $ 0.5¢ $ 0.9 $ 1.6t

Stock options outstanding under the Corpon&istock option plan for officers are common stecgkiivalents and, therefore, considered in
the computation of earnings per common share-dillB®mmon stock equivalents were computed usingréasury stock method. Stock
options not included in the computation of outstagghares because they were antidilutive amount@d054,600 and 1,706,600 for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 23pectively. For the year ended December 314,28lDoptions outstanding we
included in the computation of outstanding shares.

Note 19 — Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Corporation is subject to various regulatapital requirements imposed by the federal bapkgencies. Failure to meet minimum
capital requirements can result in certain mangaod possibly additional discretionary actionségulators that, if undertaken, could hay
direct material effect on the Corporation’s finalatatements. Under capital adequacy guidelindgtanregulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Corporation must meet specépital guidelines that involve quantitative regies of the Corporation’s assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet itemgasulated under regulatory accounting practi¢ég. Corporation’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative jondat by the regulators about components, risk wigigh and other factors.

Capital standards established by regulatiegsire the Corporation to maintain minimum amowmd ratios of Tier 1 capital to total
average assets (leverage ratio) and ratios ofITérd total capital to risk-weighted assets, amddfin the regulations. The total amount of
risk-weighted assets is computed by applying rigkghting factors to the Corporation’s assets amthteoff-balance sheet items, which vary
from 0% to 100% depending on the nature of thetasse

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation waimpliance with the minimum regulatory capitajugements.
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Corgmratnd each of its subsidiary banks were categdris “well-capitalized” under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidimnere are no conditions or events since Decemhe2@®I6 that management believes have
changed any subsidiary bank’s capital category.

The Corporation’s and its banking subsidiarggulatory capital positions were as follows:

Regulatory requirement

For capital To be
Actual adequacy purposes well capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands
At December 31, 2006
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted

Assets)
First BanCorf $1,500,21. 12.46% $ 963,56( 8% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,398,52 12.25% $ 913,14 8% $1,141,42 10%
FirstBank Floride $ 63,97( 11.3% $ 45,08¢ 8% $ 56,357 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
First BanCorf $1,357,32 11.27% $ 481,78l 4% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,258,07. 11.02% $ 456,57: 4% $ 684,85¢ 6%
FirstBank Floride $ 61,77( 10.9¢% $ 22,54 4% $ 33,81« 6%
Tier | Capital (to Average Asset
First BanCory $1,357,32 7.91% $ 680,84t 4% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,258,07. 7.76% $ 648,39 4% $ 810,49¢ 5%
FirstBank Floride $ 61,77( 8.1(% $ 30,50: 4% $ 38,13 5%
At December 31, 200!
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
First BanCory $1,454,86. 10.72% $1,086,13 8% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,419,99 10.8%% $1,042,91 8% $1,303,64 10%
FirstBank Floride $ 53,50: 10.97% $ 39,03( 8% $ 48,787 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
First BanCory $1,317,84. 9.71% $ 543,07 4% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,287,69. 9.85% $ 521,45¢ 4% $ 782,18¢ 6%
FirstBank Floride $ 51,95 10.65% $ 19,51t 4% $ 29,27 6%
Tier | Capital (to Average Asset
First BanCory $1,317,84. 6.72% $ 784,18! 4% N/A N/A
FirstBank $1,284,69. 6.7% $ 758,10¢ 4% $ 947,63 5%
FirstBank Floride $ 51,95! 7.9% $ 26,01 4% $ 32,51¢ 5%

Note 20 — Stock Option Plan

Since 1997, the Corporation has a stock opilan covering certain employees. This plan allofegdhe granting of up to 8,696,112
purchase options on shares of the Corporation’sommstock to certain employees. The options granbekbr the plan cannot exceed 20% of
the number of common shares outstanding. Eachroptiovides for the purchase of one share of comstaek at a price not less than the fair
market value of the stock on the date the optiagramted. Stock options are
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fully vested upon issuance. The maximum term to@se the options is ten years. The stock optiam plrovides for a proportionate
adjustment in the exercise price and the numbshafes that can be purchased in the event of k dtaidend, stock split, reclassification of
stock, merger or reorganization and certain otb&rdances and distributions such as stock appm@tiagihts. The stock option plan expired
January 21, 2007.

Under the Corporation’s stock option plan, @@npensation Committee may grant stock appredciatihts at any time subsequent to the
grant of an option. Pursuant to the stock apprieciatghts, the Optionee surrenders the right ®reise an option granted under the plan in
consideration for payment by the Corporation oharount equal to the excess of the fair market vafube shares of common stock subject
to such option surrendered over the total optidcepof such shares. Any option surrendered shatdneelled by the Corporation and the
shares subject to the option shall not be eligitstdurther grants under the option plan.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R on Jandar3006, the Corporation accounted for the plareutite recognition and measurement
principles of APB 25, and related Interpretatidde.stock-based employee compensation cost wagteflén net income, as all options
granted under the plan had an exercise price equlaé market value of the underlying common stockhe date of the grant. Options
granted are not subject to vesting requirements.t@ble below illustrates the effect on net incand earnings per share if the Corporation
had applied the fair value recognition provisiohS§BAS 123 to stock-based employee compensatiartegan years 2005 and 2004.

Proformanet income and earnings per common share

Year ended December 31
2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands, except per share «

Net income
As reportec $ 114,60: $ 177,32!
Deduct: Stoc-based employee compensation expense determined fairdealue methot 6,11¢ 4,96:
Pro forma $ 108,48t $ 172,36:
Earnings per common shar-basic:
As reportec $ 0.9z $ 1.7C
Pro forma $ 0.84 $ 1.64
Earnings per common shar-diluted:
As reportec $ 0.9C $ 1.65
Pro forma $ 0.8 $ 1.5¢

On January 1, 2006, the Corporation adoptediSSFE23R Accounting for Stock-based Compensatiming the “modified prospective”
method. Under this method and since all previoisslyed stock options were fully vested at the tifhadoption, the Corporation expenses
fair value of all employee stock options grantegajanuary 1, 2006 (which is the same as the potisp method). The compensation
expense associated with expensing stock optiornthéoyear ended December 31, 2006 was approxim®bedymillion. All employee stock
options granted during 2006 were fully vested atttime of grant.

The fair value of options granted in 2006, 2@0d 2004 was estimated using the Black-Scholtsropricing model using the following
assumptions:

2006 2005 2004
Expected weighted dividend yie 2.31% 1.0(% 1.0(%
Weighted expected life (year 4.2t 4.2t 413
Weighted expected volatilit 45.35% 28.0(% 28.0(%
Weighted ris-free interest rat 4.8% 4.2(% 3.1(%
Weighted estimated fair value of stock options tgd $ 4.3¢€ $ 6.4C $ 5.3¢
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The Corporation use empirical research datstionate options exercise and employee terminatithin the valuation model; separate
groups of employees that have similar historicareise behavior are considered separately for tialupurposes. For 2006, the expected
volatility is based on the historical implied vality of the Corporation’s common stock at eachrgrdate. For periods prior to 2006, the
expected volatility is based on the historical tititg of the Corporation’s common stock over a 286rking days period. The dividend yield
is based on the historical 12-month dividend ymdervable at each grant date. The risk-free aatpdriods is based on historical zero
coupon curves obtained from Bloomberg at the tifngrant based on the option expected term.

Following is a summary of the activity relatedstock options:

Number Weighted Average
of Options Exercise Price per Option

At December 31, 2003 4,583,001 $ 8.54
Granted 931,80( $21.4¢
Exercisec (723,740 $ 6.8¢
Cancelec (3,000 $21.4¢

At December 31, 200: 4,788,06! $11.3(
Granted 955,80( $23.92
Exercisec (72,959 $ 8.11
Cancelec (354,49) $16.1:

At December 31, 200! 5,316,41I $13.2¢
Granted 1,235,00! $12.21
Exercisec (2,379,00i) $ 8.3C
Cancelec (1,148,000 $20.6¢

At December 31, 200t 3,024,41i $13.9¢

The weighted average exercise price for th@mog outstanding and exercisable is $13.95 aseaehber 31, 2006 and the weighted
average remaining contractual term is approximateiyen years. The aggregate intrinsic value obthistanding options amounted to
approximately $0.9 million as of December 31, 2006.

Total proceeds from options exercised durivegytear ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $iid, $2.1 million and $5.0 millior
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiamsercised during 2006 was approximately $10.0 aml|licompared to $0.8 million during 2C
and $12.1 million during 2004.

Following is additional information concernitige stock options outstanding as of December 3062
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Numbers of Exercise Price Contractual
Options per Option Maturity
120,00( $ 9.02 May 2008
6,00( $ 8.8 June 200¢
99,00( $ 8.67 November 200!
67,50( $ 6.54 November 200!
204,61( $ 7.44 December 201
307,70( $ 9.3t February 201.
20,00( $13.0C October 201
247,00( $12.82 February 201:
372,80( $21.4¢ February 201-
398,80( $23.92 February 201!
916,00( $12.6¢ January 2011
100,00( $12.6¢4 February 201t
50,00( $ 8.9C July 2016
100,00( $ 9.2C July 2016
15,00( $ 9.92 August 201€
3,024,411

Note 21 — Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock

The Corporation has 250,000,000 authorizedeshaf common stock with a par value of $1 pereshas of December 31, 2006, there w
93,151,856 (2005 — 90,772,856) shares issued a@88856 (2005 — 80,875,056) shares outstandingn®@005, the Corporation declared
a two-for-one or 100% stock split on its 40,437,528standing shares of common stock as of Jun2Qli. As a result, a total of 45,386,428
additional shares of common stock were issued oa 30, 2005, of which 4,948,900 shares were redaaddreasury stock.

The Corporation issued 2,379,000 shares ohoomstock (2005 — 152,746, 2004 — 723,740) durid@g2as part of the exercise of stock
options or pursuant to stock appreciation rightstgd under the Corporation’s stock-based compiengalan. The 2005 and 2004 number of
shares issued have been adjusted to reflect tbet eff the June 30, 2005 two-for-one stock split.

Stock repurchase plan and treasury stock

The Corporation has a stock repurchase progradar which from time to time it repurchases sb@fecommon stock in the open market
and holds them as treasury stock. Under this progttae Corporation purchased a total of 28,0000@®& shares as adjusted for the June 2005
stock split) shares of common stock at a cost 66979 during the second quarter of 2005. No st@fresmmon stock were repurchased
during 2006 and 2004 by the Corporation. As of Daper 31, 2006 and 2005, from the total amount afroon stock repurchased, 9,897,800
shares were held as treasury stock and were aleaftalgeneral corporate purposes.

Preferred stock

The Corporation has 50,000,000 authorizedeshaf non-cumulative and non-convertible prefestedk with a par value of $25,
redeemable at the Corporation’s option subjecettain terms. This stock may be issued in seridstlaam shares of each series shall have suct
rights and preferences as shall be fixed by thedofDirectors when authorizing the issuance at ffarticular series. During 2006 and 2(
the Corporation did not issue preferred stock. Theporation has five outstanding series of non edible preferred stock: 7.125% non-
cumulative perpetual monthly income preferred st&gkies A, 8.35% non-cumulative perpetual monititpme preferred stock, Series B,
7.40% non-cumulative perpetual monthly income prefestock, Series C, 7.25% non-cumulative perpeteathly income preferred stock,
Series D, and 7.00% non-cumulative perpetual mgmtidome preferred stock, Series E, which tradéherNYSE. The liquidation value per
share is $25. Annual dividends of $1.75 per sh@egi¢s E), $1.8125 per share (Series D), $1.85hze (Series C), $2.0875 per share
(Series B) and $1.78125 per share (Series A) grabpamonthly, if declared by the Board of Direstddividends declared on preferred stock
for 2006 amounted to $40.3 million for 2006, 2008l 2004.
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Capital reserve

The capital reserve account was establishedraply with certain regulatory requirements of @igice of the Commissioner of Financial
Institutions of the Commonwealth of Puerto Ricated! to the issuance of subordinated notes byBe&irdt in 1995. An amount equal to 10%
of the principal of the notes was set aside eaah fyem retained earnings until the reserve equiiledotal principal amount. The
subordinated notes were repaid on December 20, 200%0tes’ maturity date; the balance in capéaérve was transferred to the legal
surplus account in accordance with the approvéhi@Commissioner of Financial Institutions of then@nonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Legal surplus

The Banking Act of the Commonwealth of Pudttoo requires that a minimum of 10% of FirstBank&t income for the year be
transferred to legal surplus, until such surplusadgithe total of paid-in-capital on common andemred stock. Amounts transferred to the
legal surplus account from the retained earningswt are not available for distribution to thecgiwolders. During December 2005, the B
transferred $82.8 million from the capital reseaeeount to legal surplus upon the maturity of thigosdinated notes on December 20, 2005
and with prior approval from the Office of the Coissioner of Financial Institutions. The amount sf@nred exceeded 10% of FirstBank’s
net income for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Dividends

On March 17, 2006, the Corporation announbatlit had agreed with the Board of Governors effbederal Reserve System to a cease
and desist order issued with the consent of th@&@ation (the “Consent Order”). The Consent Ordiirasses certain concerns of banking
regulators relating to the incorrect accountingafiod documentation of mortgage-related transactigtisDoral and R&G. The Corporation
had initially reported those transactions as pwebaf mortgage loans when they should have beuaied for as secured loans to the
financial institutions because, as a legal mathery did not constitute “true sales” but ratheafining arrangements. The Corporation also
announced that FirstBank had entered into a siradaeement with the FDIC and the Commissioner (refieto together with the Consent
Orders as the “Consent Orders”). The agreememgsediby all parties involved, did not impose arstrietions on the Corporation’s or
FirstBank’s day-to-day banking and lending actesti

The Consent Orders with banking regulatorsoisepl certain restrictions and reporting requiresientthe Corporation and FirstBank.
Under the Consent Orders, FirstBank may not diyemtindirectly enter into, participate in, or inyaother manner engage in certain
transactions with any affiliate without the prioritten approval of the FDIC. The Consent Ordersinegthe Corporation and FirstBank to
take various affirmative actions, including engagaém independent consultant to review the mortgagtolios and prepare a report includ
findings and recommendations, submitting capital liquidity contingency plans, providing notice @rito the incurring of additional debt or
the restructuring or repurchasing of debt, obtajrapproval prior to purchasing or redeeming stéiikg amended regulatory reports upon
completion of the restatement of financial statetsieaind obtaining regulatory approval prior to pgyilividends after those payable in
March 2006. The requirements of the Consent Otdave been substantially completed and reportedetoggulators as required by the
Consent Orders.

Subsequent to the effectiveness of the Cor@etdrs, the Corporation and FirstBank have regdeshd obtained written approval from
the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC for the payof dividends by FirstBank to its holding compaand for the payment of dividends
by the Corporation to the holders of its prefersemtk, common stock and trust preferred stock.Wiitten approvals have been obtained in
accordance with requirements of the Consent Orders.

Note 22 — Employees’ Benefit Plan

FirstBank provides contributory retirementrdgursuant to Section 1165(e) of the Puerto Riterhal Revenue Code for Puerto Rico
employees and Section 401(k) of the U.S. InterrmaldRue Code for U.S.V.I. and U.S. employees (than$?). All employees are eligible to
participate in the Plans after completion of thmeenths of service for purposes of making electigfedal contributions and one year of
service for purposes of sharing in the Bank’s matghqualified matching and qualified nonelectivtributions. Under the provisions of the
Plans, the Bank contributes 25% of the first 4%hefparticipant’s compensation contributed to ttam®. Participants are permitted to
contribute up to 10% of their annual compensatiamted to $8,000 per year ($15,000 for U.S.V.ldah.S. employees). Additional
contributions to the Plans are voluntarily madeh®y/Bank as determined by its Board of Directotse Bank had a total plan expense of
$1.4 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million for 2602005 and 2004, respectively.

FirstBank Florida provides contributory retirent plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the U.&rhal Revenue Code for its U.S.
employees (the “Plan”). All employees are eligitdgarticipate in the Plan after six months of gggvUnder the provisions of the Plan,
FirstBank Florida contributes 50% of the participgeontribution up to a maximum of 3% of the pafant’'s compensation. Participants are
permitted to contribute up to 18% of their annu@hpensation, limited to $15,000 per year (partictpaver 50 years of age are permitted an
additional $5,000 contribution). FirstBank Floridad total plan expenses of approximately $87,00¢h#® full year 2006 and approximately
$53,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Note 23 — Other Non-interest Income

A detail of other operating income follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Other commissions and fe $ 1,47C $ 911 $ 1,98:

Insurance incom 11,28¢ 9,44: 6,43¢



Other
Total
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Note 24 — Other Non-interest Expenses

A detail of other operating expenses follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Servicing and processing fe $ 7,297 $ 6,57¢ $ 2,727
Communication: 9,16t 8,64: 7,27¢
Depreciation and expenses on reve-earning equipmer 2,45¢ 2,22¢ 1,94:
Supplies and printin 3,49 3,094 3,04
Other 14,32, 14,76« 10,51¢
Total $36,73¢ $35,29¢ $25,50:

Note 25 — Income Taxes

The Corporation is subject to Puerto Rico inedax on its income from all sources. For Unitéat&s income tax purposes, the
Corporation is treated as a foreign corporatiorcakdingly, it is generally subject to United Stairgsome tax only on its income from sour
within the United States or income effectively ceated with the conduct of a trade or business withe United States. Any United States
income tax paid by the Corporation is creditablighiw certain conditions and limitations, as a fgretax credit against its Puerto Rico tax
liability. In addition, certain interest includingterest on U.S. Treasury and agency securitiastitaxable in the U.S. under a portfolio
interest exception applicable to certain foreigrpooations. The Corporation is also subject to W.IStaxes on its income from sources
within this jurisdiction. However, any tax paid,bject to certain conditions and limitations, isditable as a foreign tax credit against its P.R.
tax liabilities.

Under the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue CddoeCorporation and its subsidiaries are treatesparate taxable entities and are not
entitled to file consolidated tax returns. The Cpdavides a dividend received deduction of 100%lieidends received from “controlled”
subsidiaries subject to taxation in Puerto Rico &% on dividends received from other taxable ddimesrporations. Dividend payments
from a U.S. subsidiary to the Corporation are stttiiga 10% withholding tax based on the provisiofigie U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

On August 1, 2005, the Government of PuertmRipproved legislation that imposed a special trary income tax of 2.5% to
corporations subject to the additional tax. Theialcstatutory income tax rate of 39% increasedlté%. This law was effective for taxable
years beginning after December 31, 2004 and eraling before December 31, 2006. Accordingly, thenGany recorded an additior
current income tax provision of $2.8 million and&#nillion during the years ended December 31, 20@62005, respectively. Deferred tax
amounts have been adjusted for the effect of thaghin the income tax rate considering the endatethte expected to apply to taxable
income in the period in which the deferred tax tesdiability is expected to be settled or reatize

In addition, on May 13, 2006 the GovernmenPoérto Rico approved a legislation that impossegexial temporary income tax of 2.0%
corporations covered by Act 55 of May 12, 1933,Wna@s Puerto Rico Banking Law. This law is effeetfor taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2005 and ending on or before DeceBihe2006. Accordingly, the Corporation recordedadditional current income tax
provision of $1.7 million during the year ended Bexber 31, 2006.

Act 98 of May 16, 2006, amended the Puert@Riternal Revenue Code by imposing a tax of 5% thwe 2005 taxable net income
applicable to corporations with gross income ovEd fillion, which was required to be paid July 2006. The Corporation can use the full
payment as a tax credit in its income tax returrfdture year. The prepayment of tax resulted dishursement of $7.1 million. No net
income tax expense was recorded since the prepaymilkhe used as a tax credit in future taxablarge

The components of income tax expense for #a@syended December 31 are summarized below:

Year ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands
Current income tax expen $ 59,157 $ 75,23¢ $53,00¢
Deferred income tax bene (31,719 (60,229 (6,509
Total income tax expen: $ 27,44: $ 15,01¢ $46,50(

The differences between the income tax expappkcable to income before provision for incorares and the amount computed by
applying the statutory tax rate in Puerto Rico wasdollows:
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Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
% of % of % of
pre-tax pre-tax pre-tax
Amount income Amount income Amount income
(Dollars in thousands
Computed income tax at statutory r $ 46,51: 41.5% $ 53,79. 41.5% $ 87,29 39.(%
Federal and state tax 1,657 1.5% 4,99¢ 3.2% —
Non-tax deductible expens 2,23 2.C% 3,52¢ 2.7% —
Benefit of net exempt incon (34,607 -30.9% (57,529 -44.% (49,07) -21.%
Deferred tax valuation allowan: 3,20¢ 2.9% 2,84 2.2% —
2% temporary tax applicable to bar 1,704 1.5% — —
Othernet 6,72¢ 6.C% 7,37¢ 5.7% 8,27¢ 3.7%
Total income tax provisio $ 27,44 24.5% $ 15,01¢ 11.6% $ 46,50( 20.£%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net taxat$fef temporary differences between the carryingunts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Significantponents of the Corporation’s deferred tax assmed liabilities as of December 31, 2006

and 2005 were as follows:
December 31,

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax asse

Allowance for loan and lease loss $ 61,70t $ 58,69¢
Unrealized losses on derivative activit 82,22 59,71
Deferred compensatic 2,31z 8,18:
Legal reservi 29,19¢ 28,99;
Reserve for insurance premium cancellati 703 68t
Net operating loss and donation carryforward atéel 2,552 412
Impairment on investmen 4,42°¢ 1,71¢
Tax credits available for carryforwa 7,115 —
Unrealized net loss on availa-for-sale securitie — 30
Other reserves and allowanc 1,69( 1,41¢
Deferred tax ass: 191,92! 159,85:
Deferred tax liability:
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie 14t —
Broker placement fee 15,22 18,37:
Differences between the assigned values and taslidsassets and liabilities recognized in purchase
business combinatior 5,05¢ 5,42¢
Amortization of intangible: — 43
Unrealized gain on other investme 46¢ 46¢
Other 2,881 2,171
Deferred tax liability 23,77 26,48
Valuation allowanct (6,057%) (3,230
Deferred income taxes, n $162,09¢ $130,14(

In assessing the realizability of deferreddagets, management considers whether it is nialg than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @tenealization of deferred tax assets is depengmnt the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those tempodiiferences become deductible. Management consibderscheduled reversal of deferred
tax liabilities, projected future taxable incomaddax planning strategies in making this assestmevaluation allowance of $6.1 million
and $3.2 million is reflected in 2006 and 2005pessively, related to deferred tax assets arisiomftemporary differences for which the
Corporation could not determine
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the likelihood of its realization. Based on theoimhation available including projections for futduexable income over the periods in which
the deferred tax assets are deductible, managdrakewes it is more likely than not that the Cogian will realize all other items
comprising the net deferred tax asset as of DeceBihe006 and 2005. The amount of the deferre@s$art considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimatesiiré taxable income during the carryforward pedoe reduced.

The tax effect of the unrealized holding gaifoss on securities available-for-sale, excludhmg Corporation’s international banking
entities, was computed based on a 20% capitaltgairate, and is included in accumulated other gelmgmnsive income as part of
stockholders’ equity.

Note 26 — Lease commitments

As of December 31, 2006, certain premisedea®ed with terms expiring through the year 202 Torporation has the option to renew
or extend certain leases from two to ten years @yboe original term. Some of these leases redoo@@ayment of insurance, increases in
property taxes and other incidental costs. As afdbeber 31, 2006, the obligation under various keé&s®ows:

Year Amount

(Dollars in thousand

2007 $ 8,974
2008 7,56¢
2009 6,281
2010 4,83¢
2011 3,73¢
2012 and later yea 22,78t
Total $ 54,18!

Rental expense included in occupancy and ewgiip expense was $10.2 million in 2006 (2005 - $&lflon; 2004 — $6.7 million).
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Note 27 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The information about the estimated fair vadfiénancial instruments required by accountinmgiples generally accepted in the United
States of America is presented hereunder. Theodigied requirements exclude certain financial imsemts and all non-financial instruments.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts preskdo not represent managemgettimate of the underlying value of the CorporatA
summary table of estimated fair value and carryialge of financial instruments as of December 3D&and 2005 follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Estimatec Carrying Estimatec Carrying
fair value value fair value value
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from banks and money market invessr $ 568,91t $ 568,81: $ 1,380,701 $ 1,380,64
Investment securitie 4,957,38! 5,047,55. 5,284,73 5,386,76!
Other investment securitis 40,15¢ 40,15¢ 42,36¢ 42,36¢
Loans receivable, including loans held for sale 10,977,48 11,263,98 12,659,95 12,685,92
Derivative fair value, included in other ass 16,21 16,21: 15,77¢ 15,77¢
Liabilities:
Deposits 10,673,24 11,004,28 12,243,24. 12,463,75
Federal funds purchased and securities sold umgleements to
repurchasi 3,679,53! 3,687,72 4,740,81! 4,833,888

Advances from FHLE 560,41t 560,00( 497,63¢ 506,00(
Notes payabli 177,55! 182,82¢ 161,91: 178,69:
Other borrowing: 231,71¢ 231,71¢ 231,62: 231,62:
Derivative fair value, included in other liabilig 142 ,99: 142,99: 158,12: 158,12¢

(1) Excludes allowance for loan and lease los

The estimated fair value is subjective in ratand involves uncertainties and matters of sicanit judgment and, therefore, cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in the undegl@asumptions used in calculating fair value caigaificantly affect the results. In
addition, the fair value estimates are based ostanding balances without attempting to estimagevtilue of anticipated future business.
Therefore, the estimated fair value may materidiffer from the value that could actually be reatizon a sale.

The estimated fair value was calculated usertain facts and assumptions, which vary depenaiinthe specific financial instrument, as
follows:

Cash and due from banks and money market investmest

The carrying amount of cash and due from bamksmoney market investments are reasonable ¢sirohtheir fair value. Money market
investments include held-to-maturity U.S. Governtradligations which have a contractual maturitghoe months or less. The fair value of
these securities is based on market prices provwigi@dcognized broker dealers.

Investment securities

The fair value of investment securities isti@rket value based on quoted market prices ankemnarices provided by recognized broker
dealers.

Other Equity Securities

Equity or other securities that do not ha\adily available fair value are stated at the loafetost or realizable value. This category is
principally composed of stock that is owned by @wporation to comply with Federal Home Loan BaRKIB) regulatory requirements.
Their realizable value equals their cost.
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Loans receivable, including loans held for sale

The fair value of all loans was estimated gsliscounted present values. Loans were clasdifidgipe such as commercial, residential
mortgage, credit cards and automobile. These aasegories were further segmented into fixed- aljdstable-rate categories and by
accruing and non-accruing groups. Performing flfaptiate loans were valued at book value if theyicepat least once every three months, as
were performing credit lines. The fair value ofdikrate performing loans was calculated by disdngreéxpected cash flows through the
estimated maturity date. Recent prepayment expegiems assumed to continue for mortgage loans |leams and personal loans. Little or
prepayment was assumed for other loans. Prepayestntates were based on the Corporation’s histatata for similar loans. Discount
rates were based on the Treasury Yield Curve afdbe of the analysis, with an adjustment, whidlects the risk and other costs inherent in
the loan category.

Non-accruing loans covered by a specific llwss allowance were viewed as immediate lossesvanel valued at zero. Other naneruing
loans were assumed to be repaid after one yeauebly this would occur either because the loaagaid, collateral has been sold to
satisfy the loan or because general reserves atedo it. The principal of non-accruing loang sovered by specific reserves was
discounted for one year at the going rate for sirmew loans.

Deposits

The estimated fair value of demand depositksavings accounts, which are deposits with nanddfmaturities, equal the amount payable
on demand at the reporting date. For deposits stéted maturities, but that reprice at least qugrtthe fair value is also estimated to be the
recorded amounts at the reporting date.

The fair values of fixedate deposits with stated maturities are baseti®present value of the future cash flows expetctdxd paid on tr
deposits. The cash flows are based on contractatirities; no early repayments are assumed. Didcatrs are based on the LIBOR yield
curve. The estimated fair value of total depositdieles the fair value of core deposit intangiblesich represent the value of the customer
relationship measured by the value of demand depastd savings deposits that bear a low or zeeoafanterest and do not fluctuate in
response to changes in interest rates.

The fair value of brokered CDs, included witkieposits, is determined using discounted cashdiwalyses over the full term of the CDs.
The valuation uses a “Hull-White Interest Rate Tiaggproach for the CDs with callable option compaisea well-accepted approach for
valuing instruments with interest rate call optiofiBe model assumes that the embedded optionxareissed economically. The fair value of
the CDs is computed using the outstanding prin@pabunt. The discount rates used are based on ¥ HBOR and swap rates. At-the-
money implied swaption volatility term structureo(atility by time to maturity) is used to calibratee model to current market prices and
value the cancellation option in the deposits.

Federal funds purchased and securities sold undeigaeements to repurchase

Federal funds purchased and some repurchasenagnts reprice at least quarterly, and theirtauténg balances are estimated to be their
fair value. Where longer commitments are involviad, value is estimated using indications from leskof the cost of unwinding the
transactions as of December 31, 2006.

Advances from FHLB

The fair value of advances from FHLB with fikenaturities are determined using discounted dashdnalyses over the full term of the
borrowings, or using indications from brokers df fair value of similar transactions. The cash 8@gsumed no early repayment of the
borrowings. Discount rates are based on the LIB@RIcurve.

Derivative instruments
The fair value of the derivative instrumentsrevprovided by valuation experts and counterartie
Term notes payable

The fair value of term notes is determinechgsi discounted cash flow analysis over the futhtef the borrowings. The valuation uses a
“Hull-White Interest Rate Tree” approach for thaiop components of the term notes, a well acceptethodology for valuing interest rate
options. The model assumes that the embedded sgierexercised economically. The fair value of inmagerm notes is computed using
notional amount outstanding. The discount rated irs¢éhe valuations are based on US dollar LIBOR smap rates. At-the-money implied
swaption volatility term structure (volatility bynte to maturity) is used to calibrate the modeatuorent market prices and value the
cancellation option in the term notes.
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Other borrowings

Other borrowings consist of junior subordimatiebentures and a loan payable. These instruneprise quarterly based on three-month
LIBOR,; therefore, outstanding balances were assumeéd their fair values.
Note 28 — Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information follows:

Year ended December 31,
2005 2004
2006 (Restated) (Restated)
(Dollars in thousands

Cash paid for

Interest on borrowing $720,43¢ $559,64. $409,51.

Income tax 91,77¢ 44 ,53¢ 51,48(
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢

Additions to other real estate own 2,98¢ 3,904 8,08¢

Additions to auto repossessic 113,60¢ 72,89 43,78’

Capitalization of servicing asse 1,121 1,481 1,76

Mortgage loans securitized and transferred to @igsiavailabl-for-sale — — 51,107

Note 29 — Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Leers of Credit and Commitments to Purchase and Selloans

The following table presents a detail of cotmants to extend credit, standby letters of credipmitments to purchase and sell loans and
other commitments:

December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptesedit risk
Commitments to extend cred

To originate loan: $ 539,26 $ 619,94
Unused credit card line 21,47 144,06¢
Unused personal lines of cre 50,27¢ 36,24(
Commercial lines of cred 1,331,82. 1,012,54!
Commercial letters of crec 40,91¢ 77,12:
Standby letters of crec 97,31¢ 136,50:
Commitments to purchase log — 1,650,001
Commitments to sell loar 55,23¢ 50,00(
Other commitment — 5,00(

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loshim ¢évent of nonperformance by the other party édittancial instrument on commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit iseepnted by the contractual amount of those instntsn&anagement uses the same credit
policies in entering into commitments and condiséibobligations as it does for on-balance sheetunstnts.

Commitments to extend credit are agreemenentbto a customer as long as there is no vialatfoany condition established in the
contract. These commitments generally expire witria year. Since certain commitments are expeoteggire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amount does not necessarilsesent future cash requirements. In the caseeditarards and personal lines of credit,
the Corporation can, at any time and without cacaecel the unused credit facility. The amountadfateral, obtained if deemed necessar
the Corporation upon extension of credit, is basethanagement’s credit evaluation of the borroRetes charged on the loans that are
finally disbursed are the rates being offered attiime the loans are closed; therefore, no febasged on these commitments. The fee is the
amount that is used as the estimate of the fairevaf commitments.
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In general, commercial and standby lettersreflit are issued to facilitate foreign and donuestide transactions. Normally, commercial
and standby letters of credit are short-term commevitts used to finance commercial contracts fostigment of goods. The collateral for
these letters of credit includes cash or availablamercial lines of credit. The fair value of contmal and standby letters of credit is based
on the fees currently charged for such agreemesiish as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was noffisignt.

Commitments to purchase loans represent ttgtamading commitments for the purchase of mortdages from local financial institutions.
The purchases related to these commitments wehanacterized as secured loans to local financsitinions collateralized by real estate
mortgages and pass-through trust certificates.réimaining outstanding balances on these commitnvegrs cancelled in 2006.

Commitments to sell loans represent commitsentered into under agreements with FNMA and FHL#IGhe sale, at fair value, of
residential mortgage loans originated by the Catfion.

Note 30 — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activies

The Corporation uses derivative instruments@her strategies to manage its exposure to sttemee risk caused by changes in interest
rates beyond management’s control. The Corporaiasset liability management program includes seeaf derivative instruments, which
have worked effectively to date and that managereligves will continue to be effective in the figuThe Corporation designates a
derivative as held for hedging or non-hedging pegsowvhen it enters into the derivative contractividéve instruments utilized by the
Corporation include, among others, interest ratepsyindex options and interest rate cap agreements

The following table summarizes the notionabamt of all derivative instruments as of DecemkkrZ006 and 2005:

Notional Amount
December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Interest rate swap agreemet

Pay fixed versus receive floatil $ 80,72 $ 109,32(
Receive fixed versus pay floatil 4,802,371 5,751,122
Embedded written optior 13,51¢ 13,51t
Purchased optior 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Written interest rate cap agreeme 125,20( 150,20(
Purchased interest rate cap agreem 330,60 386,75(

$5,365,92 $6,424,42i

The following table summarizes the notional amafrdll derivatives by the Corporation’s designatamof December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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Notional Amount
December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Designated hedge
Fair value hedge

Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed rate icatis of depos $4,381,17! $ —
Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed and stemotes payabl 165,44. —
Total fair value hedge $4,546,61 $ —
Economic undesignated hedg
Interest rate swaps used to hedge fixed rate icatis of deposit and loa $ 336,47: $5,860,44:
Embedded options on stock index depc 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Purchased options used to manage exposure toottiersirket on embedded stock index opti 13,51¢ 13,51¢
Written interest rate cap agreeme 125,20( 150,20(
Purchased interest rate cap agreem 330,60 386,75(
Total derivatives not designated as he $ 819,31( $6,424,42
Total $5,365,92 $6,424,42:

As of December 31, 2006, derivatives qualifyfar fair value hedge accounting with a negataie ¥alue of $126.7 million were recorded
as “Other Liabilities”in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Coolitvith fluctuations in fair value recorded in eiags. Changes in tt
fair value of hedged liabilities since the inceptif hedge accounting are recorded to the hedgbdities.

As of December 31, 2006, derivatives not destigd or not qualifying as a hedge with a positarevalue of $16.2 million (2005 —
$15.8 million) and with a negative fair value of633 million (2005 — $158.1 million) were recordesl‘®ther Assets” and “Other
Liabilities”, respectively, in the Consolidated &t@ents of Financial Condition with fluctuationsf&ir value recorded in earnings.

The majority of the Corporation’s derivativesiruments represent interest rate swaps and n@inkert long-term fixed-rate brokered
CDs to a floating rate. Changes in the fair valtithese derivatives and the interest payments éxggthare recognized in earnings as interest
income or interest expense depending upon whethasset or liability is being hedged. A summaryhefse interest rate swaps as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows:

December 31
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Pay fixed/receive floating

Notional amoun $80,72( $109,32(
Weighted average receive rate at year 7.38% 6.41%
Weighted average pay rate at year 6.37% 6.6(%

Floating rates range from 175 to 252 basis poinés bIBOR rate

December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Receive fixed/pay floating

Notional amoun $4,802,37! $5,751,12
Weighted average receive rate at year 5.16% 4.9(%
Weighted average pay rate at year 5.42% 4.31%

Floating rates range from 5 basis points under LRB@te to 20 basis points over LIBOR r

The changes in notional amount of interes sataps outstanding during the years ended Dece®ih@006 and 2005 follows:
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Notional amount
(Dollars in thousand
Pay-fixed and receiv-floating swaps

Balance at December 31, 20C $ 113,16!
Canceled and matured contra (44,565
New contract: 40,72(
Balance at December 31, 20C 109,32(
Canceled and matured contra (28,600
New contract: —
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 80,72(

Receiv«fixed and pay floating swap

Balance at December 31, 20C $ 4,118,61!
Canceled and matured contra (549,309
New contract: 2,181,81!
Balance at December 31, 20C 5,751,122
Canceled and matured contra (948,759
New contract: —
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 4,802,37!

Indexed options are generally over-the-couf@arC) contracts that the Corporation enters intorder to receive the appreciation of a
specified Stock Index (i.e., Dow Jones Industriairposite Stock Index) over a specified period iohexge for a premium paid at the
contract’s inception. The option period is detemaiy the contractual maturity of the notes payé&bteto the performance of the Stock
Index. The credit risk inherent in these optionthesrisk that the exchange party may not fulfdlabligation.

Interest rate caps are option-like contrdtas tequire the writer (“seller”) to pay the purskaat specified future dates the amount, if any,
by which a specified market interest rate excekddixed cap rate, applied to a notional princgralount.

To satisfy the need of its customers, the Ga@ion may enter into non-hedging transactiongstttransactions are structured with the
same terms and conditions and the Corporationgiaates as a buyer in one of the agreements athe a®ller in the other agreements.

In addition, the Corporation enters into derontracts with embedded derivatives that dorequire separate accounting as these are
clearly and closely related. When the embedded/atitre possesses economic characteristics thatctrdearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics of the host contracs, itifurcated, carried at fair value, and designated trading or non-hedging derivative
instrument.

The Corporation views its derivative strat@gya prudent management of interest-rate sengjtbytreducing the risk on earnings
presented by changes in interest rates.

Interest-Rate and Credit Risk

The Corporation uses derivative instruteén manage interest rate risk. By using derieainstruments, the Corporation is exposed to
credit and market risk. If the counterparty fadsgperform, credit risk is equal to the extent af @orporatiors fair value gain in the derivati
When the fair value of a derivative instrument cact is positive, this generally indicates that ¢tbenterparty owes the Corporation and,
therefore, creates a credit risk for the CorporatiWhen the fair value of a derivative instrumemtttact is negative, the Corporation owes
counterparty and, therefore, it has no credit fidle Corporation minimizes the credit risk in dative instruments by entering into
transactions with recognized broker dealers tratevriewed periodically by the Corporation’s Mamagat's Investment and Asset Liability
Committee (MIALCO) and by the Board of DirectordieTCorporation also maintains a policy of requiringt all derivative instrument
contracts be governed by an International Swap<$anivatives Association Master Agreement, whiotludes a provision for netting; most
of the Corporation’s agreements with derivativerdegparties include bilateral collateral arrangetsefihe bilateral collateral arrangement
permits the counterparties to perform margin dalthe form of cash or securities in the event thatfair market value of the derivative
favors either counterparty. The book value and eggpe market value of securities pledged as cadliafier interest rate swaps as of Decen
31, 2006 was $345 million and $355 million, respegy (2005 — $215 million and $212 million, respigely). The Corporation has a policy
of diversifying derivatives counterparties to rediilse risk that any counterparty will default.
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The Corporation has credit risk of $1&i#lion (2005 — $15.8 million) related to derivagiinstruments with positive fair values. The
credit risk does not consider the value of anyatetal and the effects of legally enforceable mastéting agreements. There were no credit
losses associated with derivative instruments ifledsas designated hedges or undesignated hedg#wefyears ended December 31, 2006
and 2005. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there no derivative counterparties in default. ABetember 31, 2006, the Corporation
had a total net receivable of $5.4 million (2005$19.6 million) related to the swap transactions withreceivables related to other deriva
instruments. The net settlements receivable andatééments payable on interest rate swaps aleded as part of “Other Assets” an@thel
Liabilities”, respectively, on the Consolidated t8taents of Financial Condition.

Market risk is the adverse effect thahange in interest rates or implied volatility sat&s on the value of a financial instrument. The
Corporation manages the market risk associatedintithest rate contracts by establishing and mangdimits as to the types and degree of
risk that may be undertaken.

The Corporation’s derivative activitie® anonitored by the MIALCO as part of its risk-mgeaent oversight of the Corporation’s
treasury functions.

Note 31 — Segment Information

Based upon the Corporation’s organizationaicstire and the information provided to the Chige@ating Decision Maker and to a lesser
extent the Board of Directors, the operating segmare driven primarily by legal entities. As ofd@enber 31, 2006, the Corporation had |
reportable segments: Commercial and Corporate Bgnkiortgage Banking; Consumer (Retail) Banking] @neasury and Investments, as
well as an Other category reflecting other legéities reported separately. Management determinedeportable segments based on the
internal reporting used to evaluate performancetarabsess where to allocate resources. Othersasucoh as the Corporation’s
organizational chart, nature of the products, itistron channels and the economic characterisfitiseoproducts were also considered in the
determination of the reportable segments.

The Commercial and Corporate Banking segmemsists of the Corporation’s lending and otherises/for large customers represented
by the public sector and specialized and middleketaglients. The Commercial and Corporate Bankegnsent offers commercial loans,
including commercial real estate and constructi@ms$, and other products such as cash managentebtisiness management services. The
Mortgage Banking segment’s operations consist@fbtfigination, sale and servicing of a varietyedidential mortgage loans products. The
Mortgage Banking segment also acquires and seltgyages in the secondary markets. Mortgage loanpunchased from other local banks
or mortgage brokers. The Consumer (Retail) segemmists of the Corporation’s consumer lending @eyabsit-taking activities conducted
mainly through its branch network and loan centéh& Treasury and Investment segment is resporfeibtee Corporation’s investment
portfolio and treasury functions designed to mareggenhance liquidity. This segment loans fundeécCommercial and Corporate
Banking, and Mortgage Banking segments to finaheé& tending activities and borrows from those segte. The Consumer segment also
loans funds to other segments. The interest ré@ged or credited by Treasury and Investmentsta@onsumer segment are allocated
based on market rates that match the expectedityand/or re-pricing of the segment’s assets #addlities. The difference between the
allocated interest income or expense and the Catipois actual net interest income from centralized mamant of funding costs is report
in the Treasury and Investments segment. The @#ttegory is mainly composed of insurance, finaresds and other products.

The accounting policies of the segments aresttime as those described in Note 1 — “Nature sfr@gs and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.”

The Corporation evaluates the performanceé®tegments based on net interest income aftestimated provision for loan and lease
losses, non-interest income and direct non-intengs¢nses. The segments are also evaluated badleel average volume of their interest-
earning assets less the allowance for loan and leases.

The following table presents information abtié reportable segments:
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For the year ended December 31,
2006

Interest incom

Net (charge) credit for transfer
funds

Interest expens

Net interest income (los

Provision for loan and lease los:

Non-interest income (los:

Net loss on partial extinguishment
secured commercial loan to local
financial institution

Direct nor-interest expense

Segment income (los
Average earning asse

For the year ended December 31,
2005

Interest incomt

Net (charge) credit for transfer
funds

Interest expens

Net interest income (los

Provision for loan and lease los:

Non-interest incom

Direct nor-interest expense

Segment income (los

Average earning asse

For the year ended December 31,
2004

Interest incom:

Net (charge) credit for transfer
funds

Interest expense

Net interest incom

Provision for loan and lease los:

Nor-interest incomt

Direct nor-interest expense

Segment incom

Average earning asse

Net Income
Total income for segments and ot
Other norinterest expense

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Total consolidated net incon

Average asset:

Total average earning assets for segments and

Average non earning ass

Mortgage Commercial and Treasury and
Banking Consumer Corporate Investments Other Total
(Dollars in thousands
$ 148,81: $ 201,60¢ $ 472,17¢ $ 350,03t $ 116,17t $ 1,288,81.
(105,43) 108,97¢ (317,449 334,14¢ (20,257 —
— (72,129 — (747 40)) (25,589 (845,119
43,38( 238,46( 154,73: (63,215 70,33¢ 443,69¢
(3,98¢) (35,48 (7,936) — (27,585 (74,997
2,471 23,54 4,59( (8,319 19,68t 41,97¢
— — (10,640 — — (10,640
(17,450 (86,905 (16,917 (7,677 (43,890) (172,839
$ 24,41 $ 139,61t $ 123,83( $ (79,209 $ 18,54¢ $ 227,20(
$2,283,68. $1,919,08: $ 6,298,32 $6,787,58 $1,156,71. $18,445,38
$ 107,36: $ 176,000 $ 406,43: $ 293,43 $ 84,34¢ $ 1,067,59
(68,329 78,02¢ (252,98)) 255,95! (12,674 —
- (53,259 - (570,056 (11,967 (635,27)
39,03¢ 200,78: 153,45! (20,664) 59,71 432,31¢
(2,060) (34,009 (2,699 - (11,887 (50,644
3,94¢ 23,05¢ 5,64¢ 12,87¢ 17,54¢ 63,07¢
(15,43)) (77,31) (10,499 (5,017 (32,699 (140,95¢)
$ 25,49 $ 112,51¢ $ 145,90: $ (12,806 $ 32,68t¢ $ 303,79
$1,634,84! $1,706,64 $ 7,299,87 $6,027,74! $ 785,32! $17,454,44
$ 7751¢ $ 138,04t $ 19563« $ 232,15 $ 46,98 $ 690,33
(49,78) 54,28¢ (88,760 92,15¢ (7,907 —
— (40,344 — (252,509 — (292,85))
27,73 151,99: 106,87 71,79¢ 39,08¢ 397,48
(64€) (27,449 (14,14 — (10,56%) (52,800)
4,04t 24,597 6,91¢ 11,14( 12,92° 59,62«
(12,43) (66,799 (8,117) (3,205) (18,187 (108,729
$ 18,69: $ 82,35: $ 91,53( $ 79,73 $ 23,26¢ $ 295,57¢
$1,120,55. $1,327,16! $ 5,141,14 $5,294,06! $ 288,16 $13,171,09
The following table presents a reconciliatadrihe reportable segment financial informatiorhte consolidated totals:
Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

$ 227,20( $ 303,79 $ 295,57¢
(115,12, (174,17Y) (71,75))
112,07¢ 129,62( 223,82!
(27,447 (15,016 (46,500
$ 84,63¢ $ 114,60« $ 177,32!
$18,445,38 $17,454,44 $13,171,09
737,52t 546,59¢ 450,04
$19,182,91 $18,001,03 $13,621,13

Total consolidated average ass
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The following table presents revenues andcsadebalance sheet data by geography based oodcdiioh in which the transaction is

originated:

2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in thousand

Revenues
Puerto Ricc $ 1,107,45. $ 1,015,64 $ 714,23
United State: 133,08 52,38 48
Other 79,61°F 62,64: 35,67:
Total consolidated revenu $ 1,320,14' $ 1,130,66° $ 749,95¢
Selected Balance Sheet Informati
Total assets
Puerto Ricc $14,688,75 $ 17,697,56.  $15,230,12
United State! 1,742,24. 1,382,08: 13,537
Other 959,25¢ 838,00 393,38t
Loans:
Puerto Ricc $ 8,777,266 $ 10,634,54  $ 9,336,12
United State: 1,594,14. 1,271,69i 13,37¢
Other 892,57 779,68t 348,49:
Deposits;
Puerto Rico (1 $ 9,318,933 $ 10,998,19. $ 6,904,04
United State: 580,91° 476,16t —
Other 1,104,43! 989,39 1,008,27!

(1) Includes brokered certificates of deposit useditwlfactivities conducted in Puerto Rico and inUinéed States

Note 32 — Litigation

On August 1, 2005, the Audit Committee of @@rporation determined that it should review thekgaound and accounting for certain
mortgage-related transactions that FirstBank haered into with Doral and R&G between 1999 and 20@6 did not qualify as “true sales”
for accounting purposes. The Committee retainediathdirms of Clifford Chance U.S. LLP and Martin®dell & Calabria and forensic
accountants FTI Consulting Inc. to assist the AGdilmittee in its review. On August 25, 2005, tleg@ration announced the receipt of a
letter from the SEC in which the SEC indicated ihatas conducting an informal inquiry into the @oration. On October 21, 2005, the
Corporation announced that the SEC had issued@afarder of investigation into the accounting ttee mortgage—related transactions with
Doral Financial Corporation and R&G Financial. T®erporation announced on December 13, 2005 thaageament, with the concurrence
the Board of Directors, determined to restate igvjpusly reported financial statements to coritscaccounting for the mortgage-related
transactions. The Corporation has fully cooperatigh the SEC'’s investigation. In August 2006, thedt Committee completed its review
and the Corporation filed the Amended 2004 FornkKiith the SEC on September 26, 2006 and the 2@ A.0-K on February 9, 2007.

First BanCorp has been engaged in discussitihghe staff of the SEC regarding a possible ltdgm to its investigation relating to the
Corporation’s restatement of its financial statetador the years 2002 to 2004, and has accruedrfibn in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 208&ninection with a potential settlement of the SEf’s investigation of the Corporation.
Any settlement is subject to the approval of then@ussioner of the SEC. There can be no assuraatéhih Corporation’s efforts to resolve
the SEC'’s investigation with respect to the Corgiorawill be successful, or that the amount accrwébbe sufficient, and the Corporation
cannot predict at this time the timing or finalner of any settlement. This contingency is incluthethe 2005 Statement of Income as
Provision for contingencies.

Following the announcement of the Audit Contegts review, the Corporation and certain of iteent and former officers and directors
were named as defendants in five separate sesuities actions filed between October 31, 2005@wkmber 5, 2005, alleging violations
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exch&wgef 1934. At present, all securities class@wihave been consolidated into one case
named “In Re: First BanCorp Securities LitigationBased on available evidence and discussionsthgttead plaintiff, the Corporation
accrued $74.25 million in the 2005 Statement obine million for a possible settlement of the classon. Subsequently, in 2007, the
Corporation reached an agreement in principle &ed a memorandum of understanding with the |éaittiff. The agreement specified a
payment of $74.25
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million by the Corporation and is subject to apm@idyy the United States District Court for the Bigtof Puerto Rico.

Between November 8, 2005 and March 7, 200&raéshareholders of the Corporation commencetdaparate derivative actions aga
certain current and former executive officers aimdators of the Corporation. In these actions,Gloeporation was included as a nominal
defendant. These actions were filed pursuant ttide804 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 andgaite among other things, a breach of
fiduciary duty on behalf of the defendants. All s#t@older derivative actions were consolidated orie case named “In Re: First BanCorp
Derivative Litigation” which was dismissed on Novieen 30, 2006 before the U.S. District Court for Bistrict of Puerto Rico.

In addition, the Corporation is a defendard mumber of legal proceedings arising in the nbcoarse of business. Management believes,
based on the opinion of legal counsel, that thel filisposition of these matters will not have aemat adverse effect on the Corporation’s
financial position or results of operations.

Note 33 — First BanCorp (Holding Company Only) Financial Information

The following condensed financial informatjmresents the financial position of the Holding Camponly as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the results of its operations and itk 8asvs for the years ended on December 31, 20085 2nd 2004.
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Assets

Cash and due from ban
Money market instrumen

Investment securities availa-for-sale, at marke
Equity investment

Other investment securiti

Loans receivabl

Investment in FirstBank Puerto Rico, at eqt
Investment in FirstBank Insurance Agency, at eq
Investment in Ponce General, at eq!

Investment in PR Finance, at eqL

Accrued interest receivab

Investment in FBP Statutory Trus

Investment in FBP Statutory Trust

Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities:
Other borrowings
Accounts payable and other liabiliti
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (see Note
Stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Statements of Financial Condition
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Year ended December 31,

2006

2005

(Dollars in thousands

$ 14,58 $ 277
30¢ 30¢
12,71 29,42:
1,42t 1,42t
65,16 74,91
1,309,06( 1,316,38
2,98: 5,95:
103,27 105,90°
2,627 3,00¢
401 362
3,09: 3,00:
3,86¢ 3,86¢
84,66 29,75¢
$1,604,15. $1,577,15
$ 288,26 $ 295,44¢
86,33: 83,87(
374,60 379,31
1,229,55: 1,197,84
$1,604,15. $1,577,15
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Statements of Income

Year ended December 3.
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

Income:
Interest income on investment securi $ 34¢ 3 75€  $ 39t
Interest income on other investme 17k 2,97 1,53(
Interest income on loar 3,981 4,18¢ 2,15¢
Dividends from FirstBank Puerto Ri 107,30: 67,88( 62,39¢
Dividends from other subsidiari 14,50( 24C 3,07(
Other income 54:Z 417 13€
126,85¢ 76,45 69,69(

Expense
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agree — — 2
Notes payable and other borrowir 22,37t 16,51¢ 5,80¢
(Recovery) provision for loan loss (77) 16¢ —
Other operating expens 5,39( 83,90¢ 82t
27,69 100,58 6,63¢
(Loss) gain on sale of investments and impairmergt (12,525 2,58¢ 4,27°¢

Income (loss) before income tax provision and gguitundistributed earnings of

subsidiaries 86,637 (21,54%) 67,32¢
Income tax provision (benefi (1,382 (29,01) 104
Equity in undistributed (losses) earnings of suiasies (3,389 107,14( 110,10(
Net income 84,63¢ 114,60: 177,32!
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of (14,497) (59,31) 7,82:%
Comprehensive incorr $ 70,14: $ 55,29: $185,14¢

The principal source of income for the Holding C@mnp consists of the earnings of FirstBank.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:
(Recovery) Provision for loan loss
Deferred income tax bene
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidial
Net gain on sale of investment securii
Loss on impairment of investment securi
Net increase in other ass
Net increase in other liabilitie

Total adjustment
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

Capital contribution to subsidiari
Principal collected on loar
Loans originate:
Purchases of securities availe-for-sale
Sales of available-for-sale investment securitieds maturity of securities held-to-
maturity
Cash paid on acquisitiol
Other investing activitie
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from purchased funds and other -term borrowings
Repayments of purchased funds and other -term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of Iterm debr

Payment to repurchase common st

Exercise of stock optior

Cash dividends pai

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdhe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the

Cash and cash equivalents inclu
Cash and due from ban
Money market instrumen
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Year ended December 31

2006

$ 84,63

(71)
(2,577)
(36,616
(2,726)
15,25:
(12,377
2,544

(36,567)
48,07

9,82
(460)

5,461

14,82¢

123,24°
(130,52;)

19,75¢

(63,560)
(51,08%)

11,81:
3,07z
$ 14,88«

$ 14,58«
30C

$ 14,88

2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands

$ 114,60 $177,32!
16¢ —
(29,029 -
(106,85¢) (110,100
(10,969 (6,979
8,37/ 2,69¢
(276 (7,629
82,87: 461
(55,71)) (121,54
58,89¢ 55,78:
(110,000 (100,000
9,00z 9,052
— (99,349
(34,58 (15,42))
56,62 27,31«
(103,67() -
687 687
(181,94:) (177,71)
944,37: 681,44
(970,71) (591,276
— 231,46
(965) —
2,09¢ 4,95¢
(62,915 (59,599
(88,129 267,00(
(211,179 145,07:
214,25( 69,17¢
$ 3,07: $ 214,25(
$ 2,772 $ 18,05(
30C 196,20(
$ 3,07¢ $ 214,25(
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Note 34 — Subsequent Events

Governmental Action
SEC

On February 9, 2007, the Corporation filed with 8#C the 2005 Form -K.

New York Stock Exchange Listing

On March 19, 2007, the Corporation receivedt@idtom the NYSE advising that the proceduresenti®n 802.01E of the Listed
Company Manual are applicable to the Corporatioa ssult of the fact that it did not file with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) the Corporation’s Annual Bepn Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen8igr2006 (the “2006 10-
K™ by March 1, 2007, the date on which it was need to have been filed under Section 13 of theuB8tes Exchange Act of 1934.
Among other things, the NYSE advised the Corporatiiat it will post the Corporation’s 2006 10-Ktte annual late filers list on
the Listing Standards Filing Status page on the B'¢Svebsite on March 22, 2007. The NYSE also adiise Corporation that,
pursuant to Section 802.01E of the Listed Compaandal, the NYSE is closely monitoring the statuthefCorporation’s late filing
and, if the Corporation does not file the 2006KL@#thin six months of the March 1, 2007 due d#bte, NYSE will determine wheth
to allow the Corporation’s securities to tradedprto an additional six months or to commence susipa and delisting procedures.
With the filing of this 2006 1-K, the Corporation has complied with the-month period provided for by Section 802.0

Business Developments

On February 15, 2007, the Corporation agreed t®id9% of its outstanding common stock at a prfcgl6.25 per share to the Ba
of Nova Scotia (“Scotiabank”) in a private placemd&uased upon the number of shares outstandingbrubry 15, 2007, the
Corporation would issue approximately 9.250 millgirares of its common stock to Scotiabank for @ fmirchase price of

$94.8 million. The valuation reflects a premiumapproximately 5% over the volume weighted-averdgsirtg share price over the
3C-trading day period ending January 30, 2007. Theaisse of common stock to Scotiabank is subjeatgalatory approva

On February 15, 2007, the Corporation enterazlaninortgage payment agreement with R&G under wRi&lB paid down

$50 million of the outstanding commercial loan whinstBank resulting in a remaining balance of $#illion which the parties
agreed to relocument as a secured loan. The agreement willettad Corporation and FirstBank to fulfill the raiming requiremer
of the previously announced Consent Orders withkiognregulators relating to the mortgage-relatedi$actions with R&G that the
Corporation recharacterized for accounting andllpgeposes as commercial loans secured by the agetpans and pass-through
trust certificates. In addition, various agreeménig were executed for approximately $218 milladrcommercial loans secured by
trust certificates were amended to allow both Bastk and R&G Crown to treat these transactiongrag ‘sale” for accounting and
legal purposes, as such, these commercial loanseskby trust certificates were transferred to labéd-for-sale securities
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Stockholders’ Information

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Telephone(787) 729-8200

Internet http://www.firstbankpr.com

Additional Information and Form 10-K:

Additional financial information about First Ban@omay be requested to Mr. Pedro Romero, Senior Riesident and Chief Accounting
Officer, PO Box 9146, Santurce, Puerto Rico 00%0&t BanCorp's filings with the Securities and Baoge Commission (SEC) may be
accessed in the website maintained by the SEGmft/imwvw.sec.gowand at our web site http://www.firstbankpr.coifirst BanCorp section,
Company Filings link.

Transfer Agent and Registrar:

The Bank of New York

1-800-524-4458

1-888-269-5221 (Hearing Impaired-TDD Phone)

Address Shareholder Inquiries To:

Shareholder Relations Department

PO Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY 1028¢

E-mail Address: shareowners@bankofny.com
The Bank of New York’s Stock Transfer Website:
http://www.stockbny.com

Send Certificates for Transfer and Address Changeg$o:
Receive and Deliver Department

PO Box 11002

Church Street Station

New York, NY 1028¢

Common Stock:

Listed on New York Stock Exchange

Stock Symbol FBP

The Corporation filed on December 29, 2006, théfization of the Chief Executive Officer required
under Section 303A.12 (a) of the New York Stock liamge’s Listed Company Manual.
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EXHIBIT 14.4

INDEPENDENCE PRINCIPLES FOR DIRECTORS OF
FIRST BANCORP

A majority of the directors will be independentatitors under the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE§gul'he board has determined that
seven of First BanCorp’s nine directors are indepeh

First BanCorp will seek to have a minimum of sig@épendent directors at all times.

To be considered independent and as directed bYYt&E rules, the board must determine that a diratbes not have any direct or indirect
material relationship with First BanCorp. The bohad established the following guidelines to agsistdetermining director independenct
accordance with the rule:

A director is not independent if;
a. He orshe is an employe
b.  His or her immediate family memblis or has been within the last three years, anwixecofficer of the Corporatior

C. He or she receives, or whose immediate famémber receives or has received during any tweleath period within the last three
years, more than $100,000 in direct compensatmm the Corporation, excluding director and comreifeses and pension and ol
forms of deferred compensation for prior servigeymed such compensation is not contingent invaay on continued servic

d. He or she has not been deemed independent bylti®#ud of directors

e.  He or she or an immediate family memberdaraent partner of a firm who serves as an inlesnaxternal auditor of the
Corporation.

f. He or she is an employee of a firm who serves astamal or external auditor of the Corporati

g. He or she has an immediate family member who ismaployee of a firm who serves as an internal ogred auditor of th

1 The amended regulations definemediate Family Member as a person’s spouse, parents, children, siblingghers and fathers -in-
law, sons and daught-in-law, and anyone (other that domestic employees)sklaoes such pers's home




Corporation and who participates in said s audit, assurance or tax compliance (excludingkamning) practice

h.  He or she or an immediate family membeuisently or has been within the past three yeausrib longer is) a partner in the firm
who serves as an internal or external auditor ®Gbrporation and personally worked on the Corjpam’s audit during that time

i. He or she is employed or has been employiddnthe last three years, or whose immediate famember is employed or has been
employed within the last three years as an exeewtficer of another company where any of the Cmfion’s present executives
serve or served within the same period of timehah tompan’s compensation committe

. He or she is an executive officer or an emplayeleas been within the last three years, or whoseddiate family member is an
executive officer or has been within the last threars, of a company that makes payments to, eivex payments from, the listed
company for property or services in an amount whitlany single fiscal year, exceeds the great&lahillion, or 2% of such other
company’s consolidates gross revenues. Exceptitradtions to tax exempt organizations will not basidered “payments” for
purposes of this provisiol

k.  He or she regularly acts as a consultantisador in a similar capacity in matters that cemcor impact corporate strategic decisions,
structure or planning

l. He or she regularly acts as management’sutant, advisor or in a similar capacity regardingtters related to the operation of the
Corporatior' s business

A director of the Corporation will not fail to badependent under these Principles solely as & iifdehding relationships, deposit or other
banking relationships between the Corporation gndibsidiaries, on the one hand, and a compatmwtiich the director is affiliated by
reason of being a director, officer or a significahareholder, on the other provided that:

a. such relationships are in the ordinary a@woifsbusiness of the Corporation and are on sutisiigrthe same terms as those prevailing
at the time for comparable transactions with-affiliated person; an

b.  with respect to such extensions of credit by thepGation or its subsidiaries to such company®ositbsidiaries

1.  Such extensions of credit have been madenpliance with applicable law, including Regulati® of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve and the provisibtte Puertc




Rico Banking Law applicable to loans to directansl afficers.

2.  No event of default has occurred under the extansi@redit.






EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Luis Beauchamp, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First BanCorp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or aenttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financedarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntats report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportitight occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date July 5, 2007 By: /s/ Luis Beaucham
Luis Beaucham|
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Office







EXHIBIT 31. 2
CERTIFICATION

I, Fernando Scherrer, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First BanCorp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or aenttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financedarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntats report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportitight occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date July 5, 2007 By: /s/ Fernando Scherr
Fernando Scherrer, CF
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officel







EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.sec.1350, the undersigneckoffif First BanCorp. (the “Company”) hereby cétf to such officer's knowledge,
that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadtexhDecember 31, 2006 (the “Report”) fully compligth the requirements of
Section 13(apr 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchaheteof 1934 and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents,
all material respects, the financial condition aesults of operations of the Company.

Dated July 5, 2007 By: /s/ Luis Beaucham
Luis Beaucham,
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Office

This certification accompanies this Form 10-K pargito Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act o£228@d shall not, except to the
extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@2Jeemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of $eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilityrattSection.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to, and willdb@ined by, the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commigsidts staff upon request.






EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.sec.1350, the undersigneckoffif First BanCorp. (the “Company”) hereby cétf to such officer's knowledge,
that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadtexhDecember 31, 2006 (the “Report”) fully compligth the requirements of
Section 13(apr 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchaheteof 1934 and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents,
all material respects, the financial condition aesults of operations of the Company.

Dated July 5, 2007 By: /s/ Fernando Scherr
Fernando Scherrer, CF
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office

This certification accompanies this Form 10-K pargito Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act o£228@d shall not, except to the
extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@2Jeemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of $eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilityrattSection.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to, and willdb@ined by, the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commigsidts staff upon request.



